
 

CITY OF STAR, IDAHO 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 City Hall - 10769 W State Street, Star, Idaho 

Tuesday, September 05, 2023 at 7:00 PM 
 

Any person needing special accommodation to participate in the above noticed meeting should contact the City Clerk’s 
Office at 208-286-7247, at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting date. 

PUBLIC NOTICE: THIS MEETING IS RECORDED AND PLACED IN AN ONLINE FORMAT. PERSONS MAY EITHER 
VIEW OR LISTEN TO VIDEO / AUDIO OF THIS MEETING UNTIL SUCH TIME THE RECORDING IS DESTROYED 
UNDER THE CITY'S RETENTION POLICY. 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance 

2. INVOCATION – Pastor David Ax, Calvary Star Church 

3. ROLL CALL 

4. PROCLAMATIONS / PRESENTATIONS  

A. Constitution Week Proclamation 

B. Elevate Our Heroes Day Proclamation 

C. Star Police  - Introduction School Resource Officer, Alan Takeuchi & Chief Hessing July Report 

5. CONSENT AGENDA (ACTION ITEM) *All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to 
each member of the Star City Council for reading and study, they are considered to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion of the Consent Agenda or placed on the Regular Agenda by request. 

A. City Council Minutes - May 9, 2023 & August 15, 2023 and CLAIMS 

B. Final Plat - Milestone 6 (FILE #FP-23-11) 

C. Claims to be Approved 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS with ACTION ITEMS:  

A. PUBLIC HEARING - De-Annexing an Easement in Iron Mountain Vista Subdivision (FILE: DE-AX-23-
01) - The Applicant is seeking approval of a De-Annexation of a small area along the south boundary 
line. Approximately 3,500 square feet or 0.08 acres. The subject property is generally located NE ¼, 
SW ¼ Section 4 T4N, R1W.  Ada County Parcel No# R9545740040. (ACTION ITEM) 

7. ACTION ITEMS:(The Council at its option may suspend the rules requiring three separate readings on 
three separate days for ordinances on the agenda for approval. This may be by a single motion to suspend 
the rules under Idaho Code 50-902; second of the motion; ROLL CALL VOTE; Title of the Ordinance is read 
aloud; motion to approve; second of the motion: ROLL CALL VOTE.) 

A. Request for Mediation - Dude Dewalt (FILE # CU-23-05) (ACTION ITEM) 

B. Ordinance 387-2023 - Oliver Estates & Development Agreement (FILE # AZ-22-01 / DA-22-01 / PUD-
22-01 / PP-22-01)  AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF STAR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO; 
MORE SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 22491 N. CAN ADA ROAD IN STAR, IDAHO (CANYON COUNTY 
PARCELS R340000000 & R34000010A1) AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY OF STAR; THE PROPERTY IS 
OWNED BY CAROL A. STORKAN & JEFFREY D. STORKAN; ESTABLISHING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION 
OF THE ANNEXED PROPERTY AS RESIDENTIAL WITH A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT (R-3-PUD-DA) OF APPROXIMATELY 37.58 ACRES; DIRECTING THAT CERTIFIED 
COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (ACTION ITEM) 

C. Ordinance 389-2023 - Dude Dewalt & Development Agreement (FILE # AZ-23-02 / DA-23-04): AN 
ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF STAR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO; MORE SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 5446 HWY 16, 
IN STAR, IDAHO (ADA COUNTY PARCEL S0328427800) AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY OF STAR; THE 
PROPERTY IS OWNED BY TRAE & JOHNNA BUCHERT; ESTABLISHING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION 
OF THE ANNEXED PROPERTY AS RURAL RESIDENTIAL WITH A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (RR-DA) OF 
APPROXIMATELY 32.5 ACRES; DIRECTING THAT CERTIFIED COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS 
PROVIDED BY LAW; PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (ACTION ITEM)  

D. Access Control System - Approval to purchase an Access Control System for security purposes for Star 
City Hall, Star Riverhouse and Star Recreation Center (ACTION ITEM) 

E. Traffic Box Art Project Resolution TBD-2023 - Approval of a Resolution suggested by the Park, Art & 
Beautification Committee for Traffic Box Art at identified locations - (ACTION ITEM) 

F. Beer / Wine License - Dude Dewalt Winery (ACTION ITEM) 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
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CITY OF STAR, IDAHO 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 City Hall - 10769 W State Street, Star, Idaho 

Tuesday, September 05, 2023 at 7:00 PM 
 

Any person needing special accommodation to participate in the above noticed meeting should contact the City Clerk’s 
Office at 208-286-7247, at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting date. 

 

The meeting can be viewed via a link posted to the City of Star website at staridaho.org.  Information on how to 
participate in a public hearing remotely will be posted to staridaho.org under the meeting information. The 
public is always welcomed to submit comments in writing. 

Land Use Public Hearing Process 

Public signs up to speak at the public hearing 

Mayor Opens the Public Hearing 

Mayor asks council if there is any Ex Parte Contact 

Applicant has up to 20 minutes to present their project 

Council can ask the applicant questions and staff questions 

Public Testimony (3 minutes per person) 

     1.  Those for the project speak 

     2.  Those against the project speak 

     3.  Those who are neither for or against but wish to speak to the project 

     4.  Council may ask the individual speaking follow-up questions that does not count   
          towards their 3 minutes 

Applicant rebuttal (10 minutes) 

Council can ask the applicant and staff questions 

Mayor closes the public hearing 

Council deliberates  

Motion is made to approve, approve with conditions, deny or table the application to a date certain in the 
future 
 

Thank you for coming to the Star City Council meeting, public involvement is fantastic and helps in shaping our 
city for the future.  As this is a public hearing, there will be no cheering, clapping, jeering or speaking out 
during the hearing.  Only the person at the podium has the floor to speak during their allotted time.  If 
someone does speak out, cheer, claps, etc. they will be asked to leave the hearing and or escorted out of the 
hearing.   We want to keep these hearings civil so everyone can be heard. 
   

Thank you for your participation. 

Mayor Trevor Chadwick 
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WHEREAS, September 17, 2023, marks the two hundred and thirty-sixth anniversary of the
drafting of the Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional Convention;
and 

WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent document
and its memorable anniversary; and to the patriotic celebrations which will commemorate
the occasion; and 

WHEREAS, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the
President of the United States of America designating September 17th through 23rd as
Constitution Week; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Trevor A Chadwick, Mayor of the City of Star, do hereby proclaim the
week of September 17th through September 23rd as CONSTITUTION WEEK; 

AND, ask our citizens to reaffirm the ideals of the Framers of the Constitution had in 1787 by
vigilantly protecting the freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of our liberties,
remembering that lost rights may never be regained 

Signed this 5th day of September, 2023
 
 
 
 

Mayor Trevor A. Chadwick

CITY OF STAR

PROCLAMATION

Idaho
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WHEREAS, we recognize our law enforcement officers, fire fighters, EMS, dispatchers, corrections,
coroners, chaplains, retired first responders, healthcare workers, clinicians, our military, our veterans,
and their families as everyday heroes; and 

WHEREAS, these heroes put themselves in harm’s way, protecting and serving our communities
without hesitation; and 

WHEREAS, they are called to help, serve, protect, and save lives; and 

WHEREAS, their selfless work can take a great toll on their physical and mental health; and 

WHEREAS, over the past four years, we have seen a devastating upturn in numbers of suicides among
these professions; and 

WHEREAS, Idaho is currently tied for 50th in the United States for having the least amount of mental
health and wellness resources; and 

WHEREAS, we recognize it is paramount for us as a community to surround our first responders,
members of the military, our veterans and their families with love, respect and the best resources
available for them to maintain their mental health, wellness and build resiliency; and 

WHEREAS, it has been shown that improving access to good mental health and wellness resources
substantially affects their families’ wellbeing, as well as the communities in which they serve; and 

WHEREAS, we honor and pay tribute to those who have been lost in the line of duty, or died by suicide,
as well as those who continue to keep the “Spirit of True Heroism” alive each day be serving as our
Everyday Heroes. 

NOW THEREFORE, I Trevor A Chadwick, Mayor of the City of Star, Idaho, do hereby proclaim September
11, 2023, to be Elevate our Everyday Heroes Day. 

Signed this 5th day of September, 2023
 
 
 
 

Mayor Trevor A. Chadwick

CITY OF STAR

PROCLAMATION

Idaho
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CITY OF STAR, IDAHO

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
 LifeSpring Church - 174 North Star Road, Star Idaho

Tuesday, May 09, 2023 at 7:00 PM
 

BC / jmq   Page 1 of 5 

 

Notice: the following minutes constitute a Summary Overview of the meeting from Audio, Video Recordings 

and live testimony.   

A formal meeting transcript has also been prepared by Certified Shorthand Reporter, Jeff LaMar of M&M 

Court Reporting Services  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER –  

Mayor Trevor Chadwick called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  

 

2. INVOCATION –  

The invocation was provided by Michael Maglish, Youth Minister at LifeSpring Church. 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

City Council Members present:  Mayor Trevor Chadwick, Council President David Hershey, and Council 

Members Kevin Nielsen, Jennifer Salmonsen, and Kevan Wheelock. 

  

City Staff present:  City Clerk / Treasurer Jacob Qualls, City Attorney Chris Yorgason, Public Information 

Officer Dana Partridge, City Engineer Ryan Morgan, City Planner / Zoning Administrator Shawn Nickel, 

Assistant City Planner / Code Enforcement Ryan Field, Star Fire Chief Greg Timinsky, Deputy Fire Chief Victor 

Islas, and Star Police Chief Zach Hessing. 

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA (ACTION ITEM) *All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to 

each member of the Star City Council for reading and study, they are considered to be routine and will be 

enacted by one motion of the Consent Agenda or placed on the Regular Agenda by request. 

A. Final Plat - Moon Valley Subdivision Phase 7 (FILE: FP-23-02) (ACTION ITEM) 

B. Final Plat - River Park Subdivision Phase 1 (FILE: FP-21-35) (ACTION ITEM) 

 

 Council Member Nielsen moved to approve the Consent Agenda; Council Member Salmonsen 

seconded the motion.  ROLL CALL VOTE:  Hershey – aye; Wheelock - aye; Salmonsen – aye; Nielsen 

– aye.  Motion carried. 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS with ACTION ITEMS: 

A. PUBLIC HEARING - Willowbrook Development Annexation & Development Agreement (FILE: AZ-21-

12 & DA-21-20) - The Applicant is requesting approval of an Annexation and Zoning (R-2-DA) with a 

Development Agreement for a proposed master planned development consisting of up to 1,094 single-

family residential lots, 2 non-residential lots for future neighborhood commercial and municipal 

services, and an 18-hole golf course on approximately 726.6 acres.  The property is located west of 

Highway 16 in Star, Idaho. The project is exclusively in Ada County. (ACTION ITEM) 
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CITY OF STAR, IDAHO

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
 LifeSpring Church - 174 North Star Road, Star Idaho

Tuesday, May 09, 2023 at 7:00 PM
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Mayor Trevor Chadwick explained the rules of the public hearing process.  Planning staff would explain the 

project, the applicant would then have 25 minutes to explain their project, and public testimony would then 

be called in the order of those who signed up as for, against, and neutral. After public testimony, the 

applicant would be granted 15 minutes for rebuttal.  Mayor Chadwick further explained that a hard stop to 

the meeting would need to be called at 11:30 p.m., and that the meeting would be re-convened on June 

20, 2023, with the decision to be made on June 20th.  

 

Mayor Chadwick asked the City Council if they had had any ex parte communication and, hearing none, 

opened the public hearing at 7:08 p.m.   

 

City Planner / Zoning Administrator Shawn Nickel presented slides explaining the application for proposed 

annexation and zoning with a development agreement with a requested R2 zoning designation and 

requested density of 1.5 dwelling units per acre, which he stated equates to a maximum of 1094 dwelling 

units.  Mr. Nickel’s Staff Presentation is available on the City of Star website.  

  

 Nate Mitchell of Willowbrook Development at 1470 Northbrook Way, Star, Idaho, introduced the applicant 

team of himself, Mr. Phillips, Mr. Macosian, Mr. Kinkela, and Ms. Nelson.  Debra Nelson of Givens Pursely 

at 601 West Bannock Street in Boise served a primary presenter on behalf of the applicant. Willowbrook 

Development’s presentation is available for viewing on the City of Star website at: 

https://www.staridaho.org/pz/page/willowbrook-council-packet-documents 

 

 Mayor Chadwick called a brief recess at 8:03 p.m.  He reconvened the public hearing at 8:09 p.m. 

 

 Public Testimony:   

Below is the order of speakers who participated in the Public Testimony section of the Public Hearing process 

for Item 5.A..  In all cases, please see the official court reporter transcription for an accounting of spoken 

testimony: 

 

 Nancy Collins, 4718 North Echo Summit Way, Star.   

 Todd Collins, 4718 North Echo Summit Way, Star.   

 Joseph Galbraith, 9758 West Lanktree Gulch Road, Star.  

 Sabrina Newberry, 9909 West Lanktree Gulch Road, Star.   

 Rachelle Hinson, 5233 North High Prairie Place, Star.   

 Richard Moore, 25385 Desert Springs Circle, Star.  

 Colleen Moore, 23585 Desert Springs Circle, Star.   

 Ben Shields, 9947 West Lanktree Gulch Road, Star.   

 Cherie Shields, 9947 West Lanktree Gulch Road, Star.   
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 Anna Dean Galbraith, 9758 West Lanktree Gulch Road, Star.   

 Lisa Priapi, 10325 West Lanktree Gulch Road, Star.   

 Abby Jermain, 251 East Front Street, Boise, representative of Elam and Burke on behalf of Hillsdale HOA.   

 Jim Young, 24862 Valley Run Place, Star.   

 Greg Miller, 11950 West Deep Canyon Drive, Star.   

  

Mayor Chadwick called a brief recess at 9:00 p.m.  He reconvened the Public Hearing at 9:05 p.m.  

  

Ben Pelka, 2284 North Finsbury Way, Star.   

 Kim Munichko, 13038 Skyview Street, Nampa.   

 Gordon Sonnay, 12670 West Deep Canyon Drive, Star.   

 Niles Nordquist, 4652 North Echo Summit Place, Star.   

 David Welch, 4635 North High Prairie Place, Star.   

 Russ Merz, 4498 North High Prairie Place, Star.   

 Michael Flanagan, 1012076 West Deep Canyon Drive, Star.   

 Randy Biddle, 10623 West Wild Iris, Star.   

 John Pickens, 10200 West Scenic View Lane, Star.   

 Bob Lanigan, 10605 West Deep Canyon Drive, Star. 

 Christine Welch, 4635 North High Prairie Place, Star. 

 Ronald Stout, 6227 Purple Sage Road, Star. 

 Stephen Packard, 6052 North Echo Summit Lane, Star. 

 Pam Schwendorn, 5089 North Golden View Court Course, Star. 

 Kenneth Richardson, 11370 West Lanktree Gulch Road, Star. 

 Kathleen Northrup, 11334 West Colina Vista Drive, Star. 

 

 Mayor Chadwick called a brief recess at 9:56 p.m.  He reconvened the Public Hearing at 10:03 p.m. 

 

 Michael Keyes, 338 South Long Bay Way, Star. 

 Chris Todd, 10497 West Deep Canyon Drive, Star. 

 Peter Albertson, 11951 West Lanktree Gulch Road, Star. 

 Steve Burton, 3915 Canyon Bend Court, Star. 

 Anita Metro, 9069 North Spangler Place, Star. 
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Applicant Rebuttal: 

 

 Debra Nelson of Givens Pursley, 601 West Bannock Street, Boise, presented the applicant rebuttal.   

Please see the official court reporter transcription for a full accounting of remarks presented; below are 

Summary Notes: 

 

 Ms. Nelson provided consolidated comments in response to the Public Testimony.  With respect to traffic, 

she noted that the applicant did not propose widening Deep Canyong and Lanktree to three lanes.  She 

noted the TIS did have to evaluate mitigations to avoid impacts to those roads and that is being addressed 

by the extension of Wing Road and new connection of Airy Road to provide alternatives.   

 

Nelson further stated that planned protection is in place for local roads via ACHD’s conditions to enforce 

their local standards, and that commercial uses such as the golf course are factored in.  She noted that the 

TIS studied all the road segments within Hillsdale.  She said that scope and growth rates were set by 

COMPASS.  She re-stated former Council Member Keye’s remark that it was in the City’s best interest to 

maintain this growth path to the north, and that the applicant team agrees.   

 

Nelson addressed the sewer/water concerns raised, noting the importance of water impacts and that any 

changes/additions go through an administrative process of approval.  She referenced EPA standards, and 

Class A vs. Class B water.   

 

With respect to Police Service, Nelson noted that the City’s current level of service is .73 per thousand and 

the target level of service as set forth by Star’s Police Department is one per thousand, which she stated is 

similar to other cities.  Nelson noted the property taxes and impact fees that the proposed subdivision 

would bring in.   

 

Nelson rebutted remarks made by Mr. Main, the attorney for Hillsdale HOA, with respect to the 

development agreement not meeting requirements, indicating that Main was citing an old section that was 

subsequently revised.  Nelson said that City Staff had a condition of approval that the applicant team is 

asking for a slight modification in order to ensure they bring the bar and restaurant forward in a was that is 

consistent with the City’s definition of Golf Course Uses.  She noted the expert analysis that has been done 

to ensure the golf course amenities will bring in the correct opportunities for business.  She went on to 

address setbacks for homes in the Southwest area of the proposed development map, noting landscape 

buffering.   

 

The applicant stood for questions. 
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 Council Member Hershey referenced citizen water concerns, noting that per Star Sewer and Water District 

information, the intent is not to directly inject wastewater that has been cleaned directly into the aquifer, 

but rather that it would be placed on the surface and go through the same filtration process as other water 

such as rainwater.  Council discussion and questioning ensued on water rights and issues.  Discussion moved 

to the Bureau of Land Management land, access issues, and amenities.  Discussion returned to an overview 

of traffic matters and the Canyon County Highway District.  Council President Hershey inquired if the HOA 

would own the golf course; the applicant clarified that no, the golf course would be owned by a private 

entity. 

 

 City Attorney Jorgason provided guidance to Council on properly noting the status of the evening’s 

proceedings given the need to proceed into a second meeting date due to the late hour.   

 

Mayor Chadwick declared the Public Testimony section of the proceedings closed at 11:29 p.m. 

 

 Council President Hershey moved to continue the Public Hearing with additional Council Questions 

withthe Applicant and Council Deliberations to the meeting date of June 20, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at 

LifeSpring Church; Council Member Nielsen seconded the motion.  ROLL CALL VOTE:  Hershey – aye; 

Wheelock – aye; Salmonsen – aye; Nielsen -aye.  Motion carried. 

  

6. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Chadwick adjourned the Star City Council meeting at 11:30 p.m. 

 

 

____________________________________   ATTEST: ______________________________ 

Trevor A Chadwick, Mayor         Jacob M Qualls, City Clerk – Treasurer 
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Audio Transcription 1

 
 
           BEFORE THE CITY OF STAR CITY COUNCIL
 

 
  IN RE:                      )
 
  WILLOWBROOK DEVELOPMENT     )
 
  ____________________________)
 

 

 

 
          TRANSCRIPT OF RECORDED COUNCIL MEETING
 
                   TUESDAY, MAY 9, 2023
 

 

 
  COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:
 
  TREVOR A. CHADWICK, MAYOR
 
  DAVID HERSHEY, COUNCIL PRESIDENT
 
  KEVIN NIELSEN, COUNCILMAN
 
  JENNIFER SALMONSEN, COUNCILWOMAN
 
  KEVAN WHEELOCK, COUNCILMAN
 

 
  TRANSCRIBED BY:
 
  JEFF LaMAR, C.S.R. No. 640
 
  Notary Public
 

 

 

10

Section 5, Item A.



City Council Meeting - May 9, 2023
Audio Transcription
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 1               (Beginning of video file.)
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I'm going to call the Star City
  

 3   Council meeting to order.  It's Tuesday, May 9th, 2023
  

 4   at 7:02 p.m.  We're at a City Council special meeting
  

 5   at the LifeSpring Church at 174 North Star Road.
  

 6               I'm going to ask you all to please join me
  

 7   in the pledge of the allegiance.
  

 8               I pledge allegiance...
  

 9               That is beautiful sound there with
  

10   everybody doing that.
  

11               Tonight we're going to have our invocation
  

12   by LifeSpring Church here.  Please join us in the
  

13   invocation.
  

14          PASTOR TIM NAY:  Would you please pray with me.
  

15               Father, we come to you this evening and we
  

16   pray first and foremost for grace.  We pray for your
  

17   grace upon us, and we thank you for your loving
  

18   kindness.  We pray, God, for this country and for this
  

19   city.  We pray for our Mayor and the City
  

20   Councilmembers and for each person here in this town,
  

21   God, that you can give us wisdom and clarity and
  

22   direction in all that we do.  And we leave this in your
  

23   hands.  In Jesus' name.  Amen.
  

24          ALL:  Amen.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.
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 1               Roll call.  No, you got to speak in your
  

 2   microphone.  Wait.  Hang on.  They got to turn it on.
  

 3   We need Jacob's -- there we go.  Go ahead.
  

 4          THE CLERK:  David Hershey.
  

 5          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Present.
  

 6          THE CLERK:  Kevan Wheelock.
  

 7          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Here.
  

 8          THE CLERK:  Trevor Chadwick.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Here.
  

10          THE CLERK:  Jennifer Salmonsen.
  

11          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Here.
  

12          THE CLERK:  Kevin Nielsen.
  

13          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Present.
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.  We're all
  

15   present and accounted for.
  

16               We're going to move on to item 4, the
  

17   consent agenda.
  

18          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Mayor Chadwick.
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Do we have a motion?
  

20          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Mayor Chadwick.
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilman Nielsen.
  

22          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  I move that we approve the
  

23   consent agenda consisting of items 4A, final plat Moon
  

24   Valley Subdivision, Phase 7, and 4B, final plat River
  

25   Park Subdivision, Phase 1.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  We have a motion.
  

 2               Do we have a second.
  

 3          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Second.
  

 4          MAYOR CHADWICK:  We have a motion and a second
  

 5   by Councilwoman Salmonsen.
  

 6               Any further discussion?
  

 7               Hearing none, roll call.
  

 8          THE CLERK:  Hershey.
  

 9          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Aye.
  

10          THE CLERK:  Wheelock.
  

11          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Aye.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Salmonsen.
  

13          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Aye.
  

14          THE CLERK:  Nielsen.
  

15          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Aye.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  That motion carries.
  

17               We're going to move on to item 5, which is
  

18   the public hearing tonight that we're all here for.
  

19   Just one public hearing.  I think this is the largest
  

20   audience ever for a public hearing.
  

21               Yeah, hey.  Public's out here.  Folks, you
  

22   know what?  Having folks here is part of the process.
  

23   And I've always been a fan of people being part of the
  

24   process.
  

25               So just to let you guys know the ground
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 1   rules of this process.  You guys must sign up to speak
  

 2   if you wish to speak.  Even if you don't want to speak
  

 3   and you just want your voice heard, you could sign up
  

 4   and check "No."
  

 5               I'm going to open the public hearing.  I
  

 6   will ask the Council if there's any ex parte contact or
  

 7   communication regarding the project.  Our planning
  

 8   staff's going to present the application to the
  

 9   Council.  And the applicant will then have 25 minutes
  

10   to present their project.  Council will ask the
  

11   applicant and staff questions during that time frame.
  

12               And then we'll have public testimony, which
  

13   is three minutes per person.  We do have, I believe
  

14   behind me, a clock up here behind me that will testify
  

15   with -- I'm sorry, that will have your timing on there.
  

16   And we're going to have those for the project speak
  

17   first, those against it, and then those who are neutral
  

18   to speak next.
  

19               The Council can ask the individuals
  

20   speaking follow-up questions, which doesn't count
  

21   towards your three minutes, if they choose.  We are
  

22   going to have a stop tonight at 11:30.  It's very
  

23   possible we're not going to get to everybody's comments
  

24   tonight, meaning that on June 20th we're going to
  

25   reconvene the meeting here and continue the public
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 1   hearing at that point.
  

 2               If by chance we get through the public
  

 3   hearing, all the testimony, we're still not going to
  

 4   make a decision tonight.  The decision's going to be
  

 5   made on June 20th.  Okay?  Just so everybody's fully
  

 6   aware of that.
  

 7               We are going to take some breaks throughout
  

 8   the night too.  We got a lot of folks here.  I want to
  

 9   make sure that we get the facilities used so everybody
  

10   who's here can hear and listen to what's going on.
  

11               Let's see here.  The one thing, guys, is
  

12   we're not -- only the person at the podium has the
  

13   right to speak.  No one else can -- cheering, jeering,
  

14   doing all that stuff, holding up signs, creating
  

15   distraction, you'll be asked to leave.  And we have
  

16   some deputies here that will ask you to leave from
  

17   that.  It's supposed to be a civil process; right?  And
  

18   civility is a big thing, and we're losing that in our
  

19   country.  And I refuse to lose that in my town here.
  

20   Okay?  So let's please be civil, because everybody's
  

21   going to have an opportunity to be heard, regardless if
  

22   you're for it or against it.  All right?
  

23               Oh, and then at the end of the public
  

24   testimony, the applicant will have a rebuttal time of
  

25   15 minutes.  The Council can ask the applicant and
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 1   staff questions.  I will then close that public
  

 2   hearing, and the Council will deliberate.  And they're
  

 3   either going to make a motion to approve, approve with
  

 4   conditions, deny, or table the application to a date
  

 5   certain in the future.
  

 6               At the end of tonight at 11:30, we are
  

 7   going to make a motion to continue the hearing to
  

 8   June 20th.  Okay?  So you won't see any of those other
  

 9   motions at that point.  Okay?
  

10               So with that said, it is 7:08, and I'm
  

11   going to open the public hearing and ask the Council if
  

12   they have any ex parte contact or communication
  

13   regarding this project?
  

14          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  None.
  

15          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  No.
  

16          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  None.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Very good.  And one real
  

18   quick thing.
  

19          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Excuse me.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I'm going to read several names
  

21   on the list.
  

22          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Sorry.
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  And we have -- I'm sorry.
  

24   Councilwoman Salmonsen.
  

25          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  I don't know.  I was a
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 1   little slow there.
  

 2               I would like to say I have read some things
  

 3   on Facebook and I have seen an article in the
  

 4   newspaper, so I just want to disclose that.  But
  

 5   otherwise, I don't think, you know, that it's going to
  

 6   affect my decision-making tonight.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  And Chris is agreeing.  He's
  

 8   shaking his head yes.
  

 9               Okay.  Very good.  Anything else from
  

10   anybody else before we move on?
  

11               Okay.  Let's see.  We will have -- you
  

12   have -- oh, okay.  The bullpen.  The seats that are up
  

13   here, I'm going to call names ahead of time so we get
  

14   people up here seated that are going to be speaking
  

15   next.  All right?  So we can roll through the process
  

16   and try to get everybody heard as quickly as we can.
  

17               All right.  With that said, Shawn, I'm
  

18   going to have you -- oh, you're going to do it right
  

19   there?  Okay.  Very good.
  

20          SHAWN NICKEL:  Test the audio.
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You what?
  

22          SHAWN NICKEL:  You can test the audio.
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Test it out for us.
  

24               And, guys, real quick, we just need to
  

25   thank LifeSpring Church for allowing us to utilize this
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 1   facility tonight, you know, so thank them very much.
  

 2               All right.  Go ahead, Shawn.  The floor is
  

 3   yours.
  

 4          SHAWN NICKEL:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor and Council.
  

 5               For the record, Shawn Nickel planning
  

 6   director, City of Star.
  

 7               Staff has before you this evening an
  

 8   application for annexation and zoning with a
  

 9   Development Agreement with a requested R-2 zoning
  

10   designation.  The requested density of 1.5 dwelling
  

11   units per acre, which equates to a maximum of 1,094
  

12   dwelling units.
  

13               The Development Agreement is before you to
  

14   establish conditions of approval within the
  

15   development.  The Development Agreement is also being
  

16   used in lieu of a conditional-use permit for approval
  

17   of Phase 1 of the development for the golf course
  

18   facility.
  

19               The Unified Development Code allows
  

20   Development Agreements to be used in lieu of to approve
  

21   two or more conditional uses.  The applicant is
  

22   requesting approval of the golf course facility and the
  

23   municipal or civic uses for the approval of the future
  

24   sewer treatment facility.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Is it moving?
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 1          SHAWN NICKEL:  Sorry.  There we go.
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

 3          SHAWN NICKEL:  I told you I was a guinea pig.
  

 4               Regarding the application submittal
  

 5   process, the application submittal process meets the
  

 6   Unified Development Code requirements, including
  

 7   submittal of the application.  The original submittal
  

 8   and acceptance date of this application was July 15th,
  

 9   2021.  Revised information was submitted on June 23rd,
  

10   2022.  Excuse me.  This includes removal of the Canyon
  

11   County side of the development and removal of the
  

12   original planned unit development.
  

13               All submittal requirements have been
  

14   completed, including pre-application meetings,
  

15   neighborhood meetings, and a completed, signed
  

16   application packet.
  

17               The application review process:  Agencies
  

18   were transmitted the application for review and
  

19   comment.  This includes ACHD, ITD, Canyon Highway
  

20   District No. 4, West Valley -- or excuse me, West Ada
  

21   School District, Star Fire District, Star Sewer and
  

22   Water District, among other agencies.
  

23               The agencies provided comments provided in
  

24   the Council packet.  Staff provided the Council with a
  

25   summary transportation analysis of all transportation
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 1   agencies and the Star Transportation and Pathway
  

 2   Committee.
  

 3               The applicable Comprehensive Plan and
  

 4   land-use map and applicable Unified Development Code
  

 5   for this application is the 2020 version, which was
  

 6   then placed at the time of submittal and acceptance of
  

 7   the application.  Idaho case law establishes review
  

 8   criteria as of the time of submittal of the
  

 9   application.
  

10               Some of the development features
  

11   highlighted in the submitted conceptual plan include a
  

12   density of 1.5 dwelling units per acre.  This is less
  

13   than the maximum allowed three dwelling units per acre
  

14   per the applicable Comprehensive Plan land-use map from
  

15   2020.
  

16               Open space and amenity review:  The entire
  

17   development requires 109 acres, or 15 percent of total
  

18   open space, with 73 acres of that being usable open
  

19   space, and 10 percent.  The application provides
  

20   130-and-a-half acres or 18 percent qualified total
  

21   space, including 73 acres of qualified usable, or
  

22   13.7 percent.  This open space does not include the
  

23   176-acre golf course in the calculations.
  

24               The applicant will need to provide 15
  

25   qualified amenities in the development per the Unified
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 1   Development Code.
  

 2               And the concept plan that was submitted by
  

 3   the applicant.  Whoops.  And the development data
  

 4   submitted, which includes the breakdown of the acreage,
  

 5   open space, residential areas.
  

 6               Regarding community review, staff created a
  

 7   separate website on the City website devoted to
  

 8   Willowbrook information, including application
  

 9   materials, agency reviews, public input letters, and
  

10   workshop videos.  All public input letters received
  

11   were included in the Council packets.  All late
  

12   exhibits after the packets were sent out have been
  

13   provided to the Council, including the submitted
  

14   petition and late public input letters.  And you have
  

15   those in front of you this evening.
  

16               Staff recommendations:  Staff recommends
  

17   that if approved Council prepare conditions of approval
  

18   to include the Development Agreement for the
  

19   application.  Staff recommends Council adopt specific
  

20   conditions of approval from reviewing entities,
  

21   including, but not limited to, ACHD, ITD, Canyon
  

22   Highway District 4, and the Star Transportation and
  

23   Pathways Committee, including future traffic-impact
  

24   study updates.
  

25               Staff recommends Council consider staff
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 1   recommended conditions included in the staff report and
  

 2   Council packet, including future applications for
  

 3   planned-unit development, preliminary plats, and
  

 4   certificates of zoning compliance and design review
  

 5   applications for all commercial uses, including review
  

 6   of open space and amenities, pathways, streets, and
  

 7   subdivision standards.
  

 8               Staff is recommending a minimum of one-half
  

 9   acre transitional lots adjacent to all existing 1 acre
  

10   residential lots within the development.
  

11               Again, the Development Agreement will be
  

12   drafted by staff if approved by the Council with the
  

13   conditions that come about as a part of these
  

14   proceedings.
  

15               Regarding Council findings of fact and
  

16   conclusions of law for approval, Council should direct
  

17   staff to provide findings of fact, conclusions of law
  

18   upon a Council decision on this application.  If
  

19   approved -- if approval is granted, provide conditions
  

20   of approval in the Development Agreement for acceptance
  

21   by the City and applicant for future recordation.
  

22               The Development Agreement should condition
  

23   the following at a minimum:  Staff recommended
  

24   conditions of approval, adoption of the traffic agency
  

25   conditions of approval, and any Council-adopted
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 1   conditions of approval.
  

 2               Finally, staff submits -- submits that all
  

 3   procedures, application processes, and applicable codes
  

 4   and plans have been followed in the presentation of
  

 5   this application before the City Council tonight.  A
  

 6   staff report and Council packet has been provided to
  

 7   the Mayor and the Councilmembers, the applicant, and
  

 8   the public.
  

 9               Thank you.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

11               At this time we're going to call the
  

12   applicant up.  I'm sorry.  Hang on one sec here.
  

13               Can you turn on Councilman Nielsen's mic.
  

14          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Test.  Thank you.
  

15               Mayor Chadwick.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilman Nielsen.
  

17          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Thank you.
  

18               If we go back a few -- few pages,
  

19   Willowbrook Development staff recommendations where you
  

20   started talking about the Council should prepare a
  

21   conditions of approval.
  

22               There's one item in there -- and I know
  

23   we're not at that point yet, but before we set an
  

24   expectation I want to set -- get -- make sure that
  

25   there's clarity and understanding.  One of the
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 1   recommended things that staff said we should adopt is
  

 2   including future traffic-impact study updates.
  

 3               Typically the future is unknown by design;
  

 4   right?  And so I just want to get clarity on what
  

 5   potential future things could we put into an adoption
  

 6   today?  And can we -- first of all, I'm not sure we can
  

 7   do something based on a future unknown.  But what did
  

 8   you have in mind there.
  

 9          SHAWN NICKEL:  I -- Mr. Mayor and Council, I
  

10   think if you adopt the conditions of approval from the
  

11   traffic agencies, they have that built in, that they
  

12   will require traffic study updates with every phase of
  

13   the development.
  

14          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Got it.
  

15          SHAWN NICKEL:  Yeah.
  

16          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Thank you.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Any further questions
  

18   for Shawn?
  

19               Okay.  Thank you, Shawn.
  

20               Hearing none, we will have the applicant
  

21   come up and present the project.  And do they have to
  

22   pull the project up there?  Oh, is it already up?  I
  

23   can't see behind my head so -- can we turn on these TVs
  

24   in the back right here so we can watch where we're at,
  

25   by chance?
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 1               Some of these folks back up here on the
  

 2   front might be able to see that as well.  Need a bigger
  

 3   TV in the back.  Okay.  Hang on one second here.
  

 4               Shawn, do you got the timer here?  So go
  

 5   ahead and get started there, sir.  State your name and
  

 6   address for the record, please.
  

 7          NATE MITCHELL:  Nate Mitchell, Willowbrook
  

 8   Development, 1470 North Rook Way, Star, Idaho.
  

 9               Councilmembers, Mayor, staff, we appreciate
  

10   the time tonight.
  

11               I'm going to be brief.  In front of you
  

12   we've got a slide of the development team that we've
  

13   put together.  We've got myself, Mr. Phillips,
  

14   Mr. McKozian [phonetic], Mr. Kinkela, and Deb Nelson
  

15   and Danielle here tonight from Givens Pursley.
  

16               Danielle -- sorry.  Deb Nelson's going to
  

17   do the majority of the presentation tonight.  I just
  

18   wanted to take a second of our time and thank you guys
  

19   for your patience.  We've had about a five or six-year
  

20   ongoing conversation about this project.  It's changed
  

21   several times.  We've tried to be reactive to what
  

22   we've heard from our neighbors.  We've tried to narrow
  

23   the scope of this development down to something that
  

24   fits the comfort level of everybody involved.
  

25               I can't say enough about your staff and how
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 1   patient they've been and how helpful they've been for
  

 2   us and for the public keeping track of this
  

 3   information.  We appreciate everything that Shawn and
  

 4   his team has done, and we look forward to a great
  

 5   conversation tonight.
  

 6               And I'll turn it over to Deb Nelson with
  

 7   Givens Pursley.
  

 8          DEBORAH NELSON:  Good evening, Mayor, Members of
  

 9   the Council, Deborah Nelson, 601 West Bannock Street in
  

10   Boise, here on behalf of the applicant team.
  

11               The application that's here before you as
  

12   Shawn has described is for the annexation of 726 acres
  

13   into the City of Star with R-2 zoning and a Development
  

14   Agreement.  The Development Agreement, if approved by
  

15   the City, does include approval of two conditional uses
  

16   in the R-2 zone, that includes a golf course and the
  

17   municipal infrastructure uses.  This will include a
  

18   lift station for the Star Sewer and Water District.
  

19               The DA also contemplates a conceptual
  

20   Master Plan and will include conditions of approval
  

21   that limit the scope of development.
  

22               I want to start briefly with an overview of
  

23   the entire planned development as illustrated by the
  

24   conceptual Master Plan, even though some later phases
  

25   will require additional approvals.

26

Section 5, Item A.



City Council Meeting - May 9, 2023
Audio Transcription

18

  

 1               The Willowbrook golf community is a
  

 2   mixed-use residential and commercial community nestled
  

 3   in the Star foothills surrounding a proposed 18-hole
  

 4   championship golf course that will be open to the
  

 5   public.  The golf course was designed by Tom Weiskopf
  

 6   and Phil Smith, who have designed some of the most
  

 7   beautiful courses in the world.  This will be an
  

 8   exceptional gem for the City and the community and
  

 9   creates a prestige recreation destination for the
  

10   area's golf community.
  

11               The areas that are shown in orange
  

12   centrally include the clubhouse, plus along the western
  

13   edge there on Can-Ada, some neighborhood commercial
  

14   uses for a total of 110,000 square foot of commercial
  

15   proposed.
  

16               The red area that's along Can-Ada on the
  

17   west side there includes approximately 2 acres for
  

18   municipal uses, including the lift station use, as well
  

19   as space for donation of land for fire, where also
  

20   emergency services and police may be co-located.
  

21               Once built out, the development would
  

22   include 1,094 single-family detached residences, for a
  

23   density of 1.5 homes per acre, below the allowed
  

24   density in the R-2 zone that we're requesting.
  

25               In addition to the large amenity of the
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 1   golf course, Willowbrook will preserve 99 acres of
  

 2   usable natural areas and open space with access to BLM
  

 3   lands to the north.
  

 4               This is an overhead view of the property,
  

 5   which, as you can see, is embedded within the Hillsdale
  

 6   Subdivision, providing an infill opportunity with
  

 7   existing residential nearly surrounding the site,
  

 8   rather than sprawling into open, rural lands.
  

 9               In the middle of the development you can
  

10   see on this image was a gravel pit that was approved by
  

11   the County for Hillsdale roads.  This development will
  

12   now be improving into residences and golf course space.
  

13               The Master Plan for this application has
  

14   evolved based on the feedback that we've received over
  

15   the lengthy time period that this has been in
  

16   discussion.  Canyon County areas have now been removed,
  

17   taking out over 1500 acres, and 1600 homes that were in
  

18   the Ada County portion have been reduced down to 1,094.
  

19   We've also eliminated the townhomes.  So there's only
  

20   single-family detached.  And as noted the zoning is R-2
  

21   now, rather than R-3.
  

22               You may also recall that the City
  

23   originally approved Willowbrook with R-2 zoning back in
  

24   2018 without the golf course.
  

25               Sorry, I'm having a hard time getting this
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 1   to click.
  

 2               Residential development cannot proceed
  

 3   until there's a preliminary plat approval and any
  

 4   accompanying planned-unit development.  The plat must
  

 5   comply with conditions that are in the Development
  

 6   Agreement, such as a maximum density of 1.5.
  

 7               Additional future uses, including
  

 8   neighborhood commercial outside of the golf course also
  

 9   cannot proceed until the preliminary plat and
  

10   planned-unit development are approved.  A Development
  

11   Agreement modification will be required at that time to
  

12   incorporate any new conditions or plan updates.
  

13               The plan -- the preliminary plat -- looks
  

14   like it skipped twice -- and planned-unit development
  

15   and DA modification will require a public hearing with
  

16   notice to all the neighbors and an updated
  

17   traffic-impact study that will have to be approved by
  

18   the transportation agencies.
  

19               Focusing in on the golf course.  This golf
  

20   course merits particular attention in this application
  

21   because it will be truly a world-class amenity for the
  

22   City of Star, providing a quality commercial business,
  

23   natural resource-based recreation asset, an economic
  

24   development tool, and water savings device all in one.
  

25               The design was finished by professional
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 1   golfer turned golf course designer Tom Weiskopf prior
  

 2   to his death.  Tom was the designer of some of the best
  

 3   golf courses in the world, including many that are on
  

 4   the PGA Tour.  So it is truly a privilege for the City
  

 5   of Star to have one of his designs.  Phil Smith,
  

 6   working with him, and remains -- remains part of this
  

 7   team and will see this vision to completion.
  

 8               The design includes a practice fairway 350
  

 9   yards long, winter practice facilities that are built
  

10   into the course hillside.  The course will also
  

11   incorporate many sustainable features, including most
  

12   significantly the use of recycled water from Star Sewer
  

13   and Water District's wastewater treatment plant for
  

14   irrigation of the course.
  

15               Recycled water will put the class A treated
  

16   water that would otherwise go into the Boise River back
  

17   into use and ultimately into the aquifer, reducing
  

18   demand for irrigation water that would be needed to
  

19   irrigate the course, thereby benefiting all well users
  

20   in the area.
  

21               Other sustainability measures at the course
  

22   include low-water turf grass, appropriate for the high
  

23   desert climate, efficient gravity drainage, water
  

24   harvesting measures to reduce energy and combat water
  

25   evaporation, and efficient irrigation heads.  The
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 1   world-class amenity will be an economic benefit to
  

 2   Star.
  

 3               Golf is a significant economic driver,
  

 4   creating $191.9 billion in total economic impact across
  

 5   the country and generating $25.7 billion in secondary
  

 6   spending from visiting golfers, according to studies
  

 7   from the PGA Tour.
  

 8               While many industries shrank during COVID,
  

 9   national and global interest in golf grew.  And the
  

10   golf industry is seeing that growth continue as golfers
  

11   continue to engage with a hobby they may have picked up
  

12   just a few years ago.
  

13               Golfers patronize other Star businesses,
  

14   adding revenue at the course and in surrounding
  

15   community.  A golf course also offers numerous
  

16   community benefits, including youth development and a
  

17   lifetime sport and special events opportunities.
  

18               Let me go back here.
  

19               I'm going to click through some of the
  

20   images so you can see what this truly special amenity
  

21   can provide.  In addition to the golf course, as you
  

22   mentioned, there will be 99 acres of natural hiking
  

23   trails in the foothills.  The development will exceed
  

24   the 15 percent open space requirement and 10 percent
  

25   usable open space, without including the golf course in
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 1   those calculations.
  

 2               The project will also provide the minimum
  

 3   15 amenities that will be required for a development of
  

 4   this size.  The pocket parks and other amenities,
  

 5   clubhouses will all be identified through the
  

 6   preliminary plat and planned-unit development process
  

 7   as is appropriate.
  

 8               As requested by the Parks Committee,
  

 9   Willowbrook will be providing north-south and east-west
  

10   pathway connections through the site, and will provide
  

11   connection to BLM with a public parking area that can
  

12   serve equestrian users from around the city.
  

13               Star City Code allows for transitions and
  

14   calls for transitions between abutting residential
  

15   lots.  These transitions may be accomplished by
  

16   matching setbacks, a buffer strip, or providing
  

17   one-half to 1 acre size lots adjacent to rural
  

18   residential lots.
  

19               Staff has proposed half-acre lots for
  

20   perimeter lots adjacent to the existing residential.
  

21   Willowbrook is agreeable to staff's proposal.  But in
  

22   the southwest portion of the site, we do request to add
  

23   a landscape buffer as the transition consistent with
  

24   code.  You can see that highlighted there in the box in
  

25   the lower left.
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 1               This area is very central to the golf
  

 2   course core, near neighborhood commercial and the main
  

 3   entrance at Can-Ada, making this a great place for
  

 4   walkability.
  

 5               Also, these particular lots border larger
  

 6   lots in the Monument Ridge Development where homes are
  

 7   set back approximately 40, 50, and 70 feet.
  

 8               The intent with the development design is
  

 9   to concentrate smaller lots central to the development
  

10   along the golf course.  This helps contribute to
  

11   housing diversity and supply in the city of Star, while
  

12   also preserving some of the larger areas for the usable
  

13   golf course and the natural open-space trails for
  

14   public recreation.
  

15               The R-2 zoning with a 1.5 units per acre
  

16   density cap is an appropriate transition from City
  

17   adjacent and nearby zoning.  R-2 zoning is consistent
  

18   with recent developments approved in the City of Star,
  

19   including Oliver Estates at R-3 with a PUD at 2.34
  

20   dwelling units, the final plat for River Park Estates
  

21   subdivision zoned R-2 at two dwelling units, and Medici
  

22   Hills at R-2 with 1.52 dwelling units.
  

23               Nearby subdivisions are also at densities
  

24   over two units per acre, including Cresta Del Sol,
  

25   Kendall Estates, Trident Ridge, and Collina Vista.
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 1               Willowbrook is aligned with the goals of
  

 2   the Star Comprehensive Plan, as well as the plan's
  

 3   implementation policies.  This mixed-use community will
  

 4   help fulfill Star's goals to enhance and develop the
  

 5   economy with a world-class golf course that has
  

 6   secondary economic benefits for other Star businesses,
  

 7   as well as providing walkable, commercial uses.
  

 8               The golf course will diversify the economy
  

 9   and the protection of visual open space at the golf
  

10   course and the additional natural open-space areas
  

11   within the development will enhance the city's natural
  

12   resources, providing a climate where businesses can
  

13   thrive, consistent with your plan's goals.
  

14               The Willowbrook concept plan facilitates a
  

15   walkable community with commercial space concentrated
  

16   near residential and surrounding a large community
  

17   amenity available for public use and enjoyment.
  

18               Consistent with your plan, Willowbrook's
  

19   residences will be proposed in a variety of size,
  

20   targeting different kinds of folks with patio homes
  

21   near the golf course, likely for empty nesters, all the
  

22   way up to traditional, single-family detached homes at
  

23   the periphery.
  

24               The golf course's use of treated wastewater
  

25   for irrigation will support groundwater conservation,
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 1   which is directly aligned with the plan's goals and
  

 2   will benefit Star residents.
  

 3               There's been a great deal of public
  

 4   engagement, including multiple public meetings, work
  

 5   sessions with the Council to discuss opportunities to
  

 6   address the project and area growth concerns with local
  

 7   highway districts, the school, other service providers.
  

 8               Information about Willowbrook has also been
  

 9   on the City's website, and the Willowbrook team has
  

10   conducted multiple neighborhood meetings.  Some of the
  

11   main concerns from those meetings are in regard to
  

12   traffic, sewer and water, comments that we will address
  

13   in further detail.
  

14               Beginning with traffic, a traffic study was
  

15   conducted for the development in the fall of 2022.
  

16   With the elimination of the Canyon County property, the
  

17   study scope included an 18-hole golf course with
  

18   clubhouse uses, and at that time also considered 330
  

19   residential units in Phase 1 with townhomes with a 2030
  

20   build-out, but also studied the full project through
  

21   the build-out of 2045.
  

22               That Phase 1 scope has narrowed as we're
  

23   not asking for the 330 residential uses at this time.
  

24   In fact, Phase 1, as I've described and is explained in
  

25   the application materials, will only include the golf
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 1   course and initial public infrastructure uses.
  

 2               The TIS also did evaluate the golf course
  

 3   only use, as requested by transportation agencies.  The
  

 4   number of trips generated for the golf course is 526
  

 5   daily trips.  At that threshold it would not trigger a
  

 6   traffic study in and of itself.  And of course, the TIS
  

 7   did evaluate the full build-out.
  

 8               For context, Willowbrook is part of a
  

 9   growing Star community, as you and everyone in this
  

10   room well knows.  Even without the addition of this
  

11   development, there will be a need for more road
  

12   capacity in the coming years, as evidenced by COMPASS
  

13   modeling, the TIS, the Star Comprehensive Plan, all of
  

14   which have identified a number of improvements.
  

15               Many road improvements are actually planned
  

16   and funded already in ACHD's and Canyon County Highway
  

17   District's capital improvement plans.
  

18               Willowbrook will be working with the
  

19   transportation agencies to build new road connections
  

20   and improvements to alleviate congestion.  Project
  

21   plans to construct Aerie Way between Deep Canyon Drive
  

22   and Highway 16 to provide alternate highway access to
  

23   Deep Canyon.
  

24               I think I skipped a slide.  No.  Okay.  Let
  

25   me -- I want to show you a map when I go through that.
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 1   So let me skip to comments that we received from the
  

 2   transportation agencies.
  

 3               These are some general comments that are
  

 4   summarized here.  All of them want us to do the updated
  

 5   traffic studies, as was noted.  ACHD commented that
  

 6   it's important to keep local roads under their planning
  

 7   thresholds, which is 2,000 average daily trips.  ITD
  

 8   has improvements that they want to see when Aerie Way
  

 9   is connected up to Highway 16 that I'll show you on a
  

10   map.
  

11               And once that is -- Aerie Way is
  

12   constructed, they have improvements that they want to
  

13   see around that interchange that's within ITD's
  

14   jurisdiction.  They want us to coordinate with Spring
  

15   Valley at that intersection since they also have
  

16   requirements there.
  

17               Canyon County comments were focused on
  

18   Can-Ada and Purple Sage Roads, and also proportional
  

19   funding to these intersection improvements.  All of
  

20   this has been incorporated into Shawn's memo where he
  

21   summarized the conditions and incorporated those into
  

22   conditions of approval.  So those have all been added
  

23   to conditions, proposed conditions for you to approve
  

24   the Development Agreement.  And we're in support of
  

25   that.
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 1               Here we go.  Now we could see the map here.
  

 2   So we'll be working with transportation agencies on
  

 3   these road extensions and improvements in particular.
  

 4   You can see that future Aerie Way at the top connecting
  

 5   up to the Highway 16.
  

 6               We will -- we have already begun
  

 7   discussions with BLM.  We will need to get permission
  

 8   from BLM in the form of a right-of-way, which is a
  

 9   lengthy process, that we've begun that process with
  

10   them with an informal meeting.  We'll file a formal
  

11   application once we have approval from the City.
  

12               The project also plans to extend Wing Road
  

13   up to Lanktree Gulch to serve the project with another
  

14   north-south connection into the development.
  

15               And other mitigations identified in the TIS
  

16   that are significant include improvements to Can-Ada
  

17   Road, improvements to intersections along Can-Ada and
  

18   along Beacon Light and Floating Feather.
  

19               There's a lengthy list.  These are
  

20   contributed by existing conditions, background
  

21   conditions, and the project.  And as you know, the TIS
  

22   breaks out each one of those, and everybody has a share
  

23   of that.  Each of those items will be evaluated in
  

24   these future traffic impact studies as we come forward
  

25   with preliminary plat so that no residential can go
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 1   forward until those specific mitigations by phase have
  

 2   been identified.
  

 3               Turning to sewer.  The Star Sewer and Water
  

 4   District will be the water and sewer agency serving the
  

 5   development.  Willowbrook will be constructing and
  

 6   dedicating a new lift station and pressure sewer line
  

 7   to allow treated sewer water from the City to be used
  

 8   for land application.
  

 9               Willowbrook will be extending the sewer
  

10   system up to the project and through the project and
  

11   will stub to adjacent properties so that they can
  

12   connect in the future if they so desire.
  

13               A large amount of treated wastewater will
  

14   be pumped back up to the golf course, as I mentioned,
  

15   for land application, as well as irrigation of common
  

16   areas.
  

17               If that wastewater were not land-applied in
  

18   Willowbrook, it would need to be cooled to an
  

19   appropriate temperature and discharged to the river.
  

20   That cooling process takes a great deal of energy.  The
  

21   water does not wind up in the aquifer where it came
  

22   from.
  

23               Here instead, because the treated
  

24   wastewater will be used at Willowbrook, it does wind up
  

25   in the aquifer.  So not only will this wastewater
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 1   recycling program save Star significant money in energy
  

 2   cost it would otherwise take to cool it, the water is
  

 3   put to use and placed back into the area's aquifer,
  

 4   rather than being discharged in the river and going
  

 5   downstream.
  

 6               For water, Star Sewer and Water will be
  

 7   serving the development.  As noted in the Star Sewer
  

 8   and Water District comment letter, Willowbrook will be
  

 9   transferring 5 cfs of Willowbrook's water rights to the
  

10   District as part affidavit of an annexation agreement.
  

11   This will only add to the surplus of water that the
  

12   District already has.
  

13               Additionally, it's important to note that
  

14   water availability for domestic or temporary irrigation
  

15   use, pending the kickoff of the recycling program, is
  

16   not a concern, as evidenced by the District's comments
  

17   and also the discussion at the work session.  And that
  

18   information, that transcript, is in the record that
  

19   Star Sewer and Water District has more than enough
  

20   water to serve the development.
  

21               The improvements that are being provided by
  

22   the development will help further Star Sewer and Water
  

23   District's plans, will also be upsized in various
  

24   locations to serve the broader community.  The
  

25   developer will be paying for a water tank storage
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 1   facility to store 500,000 gallons of water, will be
  

 2   providing new wells to Star Sewer and Water District, a
  

 3   12-inch mainline, booster station, and pressure
  

 4   station.
  

 5               As we've discussed already, Willowbrook
  

 6   will be constructing or contributing funds towards
  

 7   significant road improvements, will also be providing
  

 8   sewer and water improvements that are upsized to serve
  

 9   more than the project.
  

10               Willowbrook will be extending fiberoptic
  

11   Internet connection to the area with stubs available to
  

12   adjacent residential developments.
  

13               Additionally, this development will include
  

14   public dedications to Star Fire for a future fire
  

15   station site, with co-location space for police and
  

16   EMS.  We'll have dedications to Star Sewer and Water
  

17   for the lift station and water tank, and to West Ada
  

18   School District for an elementary school site, if
  

19   that's required by the District.
  

20               The development will also be paying impact
  

21   fees and additional mitigation fees to address general
  

22   jurisdictional increases in cost to pay for public
  

23   services like police, fire, emergency services,
  

24   et cetera.  You see those here.  This was described in
  

25   the staff report.
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 1               These fees are significant.  This excerpt
  

 2   taken from the staff report, which is required as part
  

 3   of your code for all developments, if you magnify that
  

 4   by the number of residential lots, we're already at
  

 5   10.5 million, add in some commercial fees, we're at
  

 6   10.6 million.
  

 7               This includes impact fees and mitigation
  

 8   fees.  So this is not limited to capital improvements
  

 9   only with the mitigation fees.  It helps with the
  

10   service.
  

11               Willowbrook meets the annexation approval
  

12   required under Star City Code.  The amendment will
  

13   comply with provisions of your plan, as we've already
  

14   walked through.  It complies with the regulations and
  

15   the R-2 zone, meeting all the open-space requirements,
  

16   providing allowed uses.
  

17               Residential uses are not materially
  

18   detrimental to public health, safety, and welfare,
  

19   neither are -- is a golf course or municipal services.
  

20   This does not result in an adverse impact on the
  

21   delivery of services.  The development will mitigate
  

22   impacts with direct improvements, land donations, and
  

23   payment of impact and mitigation fees, and
  

24   proportionate share contributions.
  

25               The annexation is in the best interest of
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 1   the City and will help align housing, economic, and
  

 2   walkability goals.
  

 3               We also meet the criteria for CUP.  A
  

 4   Development Agreement can be used in lieu of a
  

 5   conditional-use permit.  The site is large enough for
  

 6   the use.  The uses comply with the Comprehensive Plan.
  

 7   As described, they do not create adverse impacts or
  

 8   noxious uses and are not detrimental to the general
  

 9   public.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thanks, Ms. Deb.
  

11   Appreciate that.
  

12               We'll move on to the public testimony
  

13   portion of this.
  

14          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor, may I.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Hang on one
  

16   second.
  

17          DEBORAH NELSON:  May I ask for an accommodation
  

18   to at least show you the request, because the public
  

19   needs to be able to respond to our change in the
  

20   conditions?
  

21          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Mayor Chadwick.
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilman Nielsen.
  

23          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  I do have some questions
  

24   for the applicant.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You're right.  I get that.
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 1   We're going to -- let us ask some questions, and then
  

 2   we'll have them.
  

 3          DEBORAH NELSON:  Okay.
  

 4          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So we'll go on to asking you
  

 5   some questions there.
  

 6          DEBORAH NELSON:  Thank you.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So do you have some questions,
  

 8   Councilman Nielsen, you want to start out with?
  

 9          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Thank you.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

11          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  You mentioned that the
  

12   irrigation water is anticipated to recharge the
  

13   aquifer.  And we did have the water authorities in, you
  

14   know, workshop meetings kind of talk to that.
  

15               I just want to make sure that we're clear
  

16   on -- on the statement that that recharge will
  

17   benefit -- I think what you said is it will benefit all
  

18   users -- all well users in the area.  And part of my
  

19   recollection, and it's been awhile, so that's why I'm
  

20   asking the question.  But part of my recollection is
  

21   that the aquifers that we draw the water from are
  

22   hundreds of feet deep, whereas a lot of times the
  

23   aquifer, the runoff and seepage into the ground hits,
  

24   there's often layers in there.  So the aquifer that may
  

25   be recharged could be different than the aquifer that
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 1   we're drawing from.
  

 2               Could you speak to that, or perhaps
  

 3   Mr. Mitchell could.
  

 4          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Nielsen,
  

 5   I'll start it, and then maybe our engineer can jump in
  

 6   if we've got -- or Nate if we've got additions to that.
  

 7               So the primary benefit to the water users
  

 8   that I was describing comes from not needing to use the
  

 9   irrigation rights that are already being used on the
  

10   property and applicable to the property once we're able
  

11   to generate the wastewater application onto the
  

12   property.  And so that water will simply stay in the
  

13   aquifer, so you don't even need to return water to it.
  

14   We will leave the water in there to begin with.  It
  

15   won't need to be taken out to irrigate the golf course
  

16   once we're able to use that wastewater recycled reuse.
  

17   So that's the most important benefit.
  

18               But then yes, once the treated, class A
  

19   water can be delivered back to the golf course and used
  

20   for land application, then that will eventually, yes,
  

21   seep into the aquifer.  The extent of that, I won't
  

22   pretend to be a hydrogeologist to say how much of that,
  

23   but that is what's reported by the -- by those that
  

24   have weighed into this before, including at the work
  

25   session, that at least, then, it's coming back into the
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 1   ground.
  

 2          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Thank you.
  

 3               And I think that perhaps answers my
  

 4   question.  My primary concern was the tie-in of the
  

 5   benefit to those users up there already.  And I did
  

 6   notice in your packet, although I don't believe it was
  

 7   stated, that there won't be a net increase in water
  

 8   draw.  In fact, it will be neutral and likely less than
  

 9   what's currently being drawn for irrigation, so --
  

10          DEBORAH NELSON:  That is correct.
  

11          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  And then I did have
  

12   questions, of course, on the materials that are not
  

13   covered here.  And you've got just a few pages to go
  

14   here.
  

15               And, Mr. Mayor, I don't know what you had
  

16   in mind for that, but --
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I was going to have her take
  

18   one minute to -- I think you want to talk about the
  

19   conditions.
  

20               Is that what you said?
  

21          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor, if that's okay.  And
  

22   I would like to just say for the public's
  

23   understanding, I've handed to the Mayor and
  

24   Councilmembers copies of the slides that are on the
  

25   screen.  That's all that's in there.  And there is a
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 1   condition change that we wanted to ask for the
  

 2   Council's consideration, and we want to be sure that
  

 3   everybody has the opportunity to rebut that when
  

 4   they're coming up.
  

 5               If you would allow me a minute or two to
  

 6   walk through the last two slides, I'd be happy for the
  

 7   opposing counsel, neighborhood association, to have
  

 8   that courtesy as well.  It's up to you.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah, I'll give you a minute
  

10   here to talk about that real quick.
  

11          DEBORAH NELSON:  Okay.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yep.
  

13          DEBORAH NELSON:  Just briefly, then, we're just
  

14   asking for this change to condition No. 2 that was
  

15   recommended by staff that previously said the
  

16   restaurant and bar at the clubhouse would have to wait
  

17   for a conditional-use permit.
  

18               The code defines golf course to include
  

19   restaurant and bar.  So that restaurant and bar would
  

20   come in with the clubhouse.  That's always been
  

21   contemplated with the clubhouse uses.  So we're asking
  

22   for clarification that that would be allowed with this
  

23   Development Agreement in lieu of CUP.  Any other
  

24   restaurant and bar and commercial use would follow with
  

25   later applications.
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 1               And this slide simply showed additional
  

 2   conditions to capture the various commitments that
  

 3   we've made out loud to say that we would like for those
  

 4   things to also -- and support those things also getting
  

 5   included into the Development Agreement as conditions.
  

 6   Those are items that I already said.  Just wanted to
  

 7   capture them in one place.
  

 8               Thank you very much.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So just with that, on the first
  

10   one here, you said residential density capped at 1.5
  

11   units per acre.  I would almost prefer to put a cap, a
  

12   total number of units based on the discussions we're
  

13   having here.  Right now you have 1,094, you know, and
  

14   have that cap in there.  I know it's probably the
  

15   same --
  

16          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- but it's just -- it's more
  

18   cleaner, I think, in my opinion, on capping the number
  

19   of units if that goes that direction.
  

20               Okay.  Any questions of Ms. Deb?
  

21          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Yes.
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilman Wheelock.  You want
  

23   to pull that microphone to you so everybody can hear
  

24   you.
  

25          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  So with the water usage
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 1   being recycled, what's that time frame look like?  Are
  

 2   we talking about being able to recycle the water up
  

 3   there at 2045 at completion of project or at 2026 when
  

 4   this kicks off or whatever?
  

 5          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor,
  

 6   Councilmember Wheelock, we expect that to be within a
  

 7   few years.  That timing is going to depend on Star
  

 8   Sewer and Water District's needs as well, and the
  

 9   applicant will continue to work with them.
  

10               But initially when the golf course is
  

11   constructed, we will go ahead and use the irrigation
  

12   rights that are available to it.  But in -- within --
  

13   and I don't know if you want to give any more precise
  

14   timeline.  We expect within a year or two that that
  

15   would be -- okay, within a year or two that that would
  

16   still -- but as fast as we can get it worked out with
  

17   Star Sewer and Water District, we want to get that
  

18   water in use.
  

19          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Thank you.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Any further questions of the
  

21   applicant at this time?
  

22               I'm going to ask you a question here real
  

23   quick.
  

24               On condition 3 you have suggest -- project
  

25   will provide an elementary school site preliminary plat
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 1   if needed by West Ada School District.  I'm going to
  

 2   suggest that we do put that elementary school on site,
  

 3   regardless of what West Ada says at the current date,
  

 4   because they seem to be short-sighted, because your
  

 5   development, in my opinion, when it says that it's
  

 6   going to create 500 elementary school children, we're
  

 7   going to need a school for that.
  

 8               And so I would say that we think about it
  

 9   and talk about this on creating a 10-acre site for an
  

10   elementary school, which is the minimum size required
  

11   for West Ada School.
  

12          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor, and understand that
  

13   may be the City's direction.  From our perspective we
  

14   can't force the District to accept a site.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Again --
  

16          DEBORAH NELSON:  And so we just want to make it
  

17   available if they want it.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yep.  Okay.  Any further
  

19   questions of the applicant?
  

20          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Mayor Chadwick.
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilwoman Salmonsen.
  

22          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  So regarding the total
  

23   phasing -- and you probably can't answer this right
  

24   now, but can you give us just a general idea like the
  

25   first phase will be the golf course and the municipal
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 1   facility.  What -- can you kind of lay it out in the
  

 2   future how the rest of it, the building phasing would
  

 3   go.
  

 4          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor,
  

 5   Councilmember Salmonsen, in general we expect the golf
  

 6   course to come online around 2026.  And then that is
  

 7   the first time that we might come back and start to
  

 8   begin with residential is upon the golf course
  

 9   completion.  And so that would be the first phase.
  

10               Now, we may work on planning and design and
  

11   entitlements and -- in that period to be working with
  

12   you on it, but that's our expectation of timeline when
  

13   the residential may occur.
  

14               So with the first preliminary plat then,
  

15   the conditions of approval that have already been
  

16   proposed by your planning staff, we're required to
  

17   bring back a phasing plan at that time with the first
  

18   preliminary plat.  And that will be coordinated with
  

19   updated traffic studies that have to be approved by the
  

20   transportation agencies so that as each phase rolls
  

21   out, we can tie the necessary improvements to those
  

22   phases.
  

23               At this time I don't think we know what
  

24   those phases will look like.  But we -- but that's part
  

25   of why we tried to present the entire development so
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 1   you can see the maximum amount we'll be asking for.  We
  

 2   do expect it to be a lengthy build-out.  Just it's a
  

 3   large property.  We want to focus on the golf course.
  

 4   We want to focus on quality and roll this out as
  

 5   appropriate.
  

 6               Necessarily there's going to be some things
  

 7   we can't do until road improvements.  So it's going
  

 8   to -- it's going to depend on a lot of that analysis.
  

 9   So we've -- we've planned out to 2045.  Hopefully the
  

10   market and improvements don't make it take that long,
  

11   but it possibly could.  So we'll have a better idea of
  

12   how that may break out between the end of the golf
  

13   course and that window.
  

14               Anything else you want to add?  Okay.
  

15          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  So just to make sure I
  

16   understand correctly, so you're saying you'd probably
  

17   be -- if it's approved, you'd bring back a preliminary
  

18   plat for approval in '26, 2026?  Am I understanding
  

19   correctly, somewhere around there?
  

20          DEBORAH NELSON:  Councilmember Salmonsen, that's
  

21   right.  Yeah, like I said, we could start the
  

22   entitlement process before then.  But that's our
  

23   planned expectation.
  

24          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I apologize for that.  I tried
  

25   to cover that.
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 1          DEBORAH NELSON:  That's our expectation of when
  

 2   the golf course would be done.  And so our plan is to
  

 3   have the residential come after.  We can't bring
  

 4   forward the residential until we go through this
  

 5   additional permitting process either way.  But our plan
  

 6   is to time it at the end of the golf course.
  

 7          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Okay.
  

 8          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Any further questions of
  

 9   the applicant at this time?
  

10          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Yes, sir.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilman Hershey.
  

12          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  It's more of just a recap.
  

13   Just for absolute clarity, what you're asking for
  

14   tonight is the golf course.  That's what I'm capturing.
  

15   Everything else would have to come back as a
  

16   preliminary plat and a new traffic study.
  

17               So I do appreciate the fact you showed the
  

18   entire magnitude over this you're saying 22-year build.
  

19   And yeah, I can see why people would think that looks
  

20   scary, yes.
  

21               So the golf course, all that will be done,
  

22   then and only then will we look at any type of housing
  

23   units?  You're just trying to set the framework?
  

24          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor,
  

25   Councilmember Hershey, that's correct.

53

Section 5, Item A.



City Council Meeting - May 9, 2023
Audio Transcription

45

  

 1               But I also just want to set it in the right
  

 2   context too.  I mean as you know, when we annex, we
  

 3   have to zone.
  

 4          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Yes.
  

 5          DEBORAH NELSON:  So while we can't build
  

 6   residential, we are asking for residential zoning.  And
  

 7   so at this time we are asking for R-2.
  

 8               It also provides the City an opportunity to
  

 9   provide conditions on the larger plan that will govern
  

10   how we come back with future applications.  It doesn't
  

11   mean you can't add conditions later, because you can,
  

12   because that's when you'll see a lot of the details.
  

13   But it also does give that opportunity, a Development
  

14   Agreement.
  

15               So we are asking for residential zoning of
  

16   R-2, and we're asking for an initial approval of the
  

17   golf course and appropriate public infrastructure uses.
  

18               Beyond that, we won't be able to continue
  

19   to build out any other uses, even though they're
  

20   allowed in the R-2 zone, because we haven't achieved
  

21   all of the boxes that need to be checked for those.
  

22               Does that --
  

23          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Thank you for that clarity.
  

24   I'm just --
  

25          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah.
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 1          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  -- making sure it's very
  

 2   clear.
  

 3          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yes.  Thank you.
  

 4          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  I'm the slowest one in the
  

 5   Council.
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Just real quick on the Council,
  

 7   we have like 65 people online.  We need to make certain
  

 8   that we're talking into the microphone so they can
  

 9   actually hear us.  They can hear everybody else, but
  

10   you two.
  

11          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  They heard you cough.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  They heard me cough.  I think
  

13   the world heard me cough on that one, so okay.
  

14          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Mayor Chadwick.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Any further questions?
  

16          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Yes, Mayor Chadwick.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Hang on.  Councilman Wheelock
  

18   pinged me first.
  

19          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Yep.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Go ahead, Councilman Wheelock.
  

21          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  On your packet here you
  

22   showed all the beautiful golf courses out in the
  

23   country, and not one house.  I'm sure that people are
  

24   interested in what that looks like with houses, because
  

25   the open space that's currently there has no houses.
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 1   But that would help in the illustrations, from my point
  

 2   of view.
  

 3               The roadway, Aerie Way, that future
  

 4   Highway 16 connection, would that be constructed before
  

 5   you came in for housing as the traffic study asked for,
  

 6   or would that be after the golf course?
  

 7          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor,
  

 8   Councilmember Wheelock, so it would be after we
  

 9   commence on this initial use with the golf course.  It
  

10   would not be before the golf course.  It would be part
  

11   of the updated traffic study plan to see what, if
  

12   any -- you know, what's the level of uses that can
  

13   proceed before that is completed or in what timing --
  

14   you know, how it correlates to that improvement.
  

15               ACHD has included a specific condition in
  

16   their comments about -- that that road will need to be
  

17   completed before they will allow additional trips to go
  

18   onto Deep Canyon that could exceed that 2,000 ADT, that
  

19   local planning threshold.
  

20               And so I'm sure they're going to continue
  

21   to look at that very closely when they look at a
  

22   specific proposal that they're commenting on.
  

23          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Does the BLM have a time
  

24   frame that it takes to have that go through their
  

25   system for an approval?  And do you know that?
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 1          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor,
  

 2   Councilmember Wheelock, yes, we did visit with BLM
  

 3   about that.
  

 4               It's a lengthy answer, and it's a lengthy
  

 5   process.  And the length of the process depends on the
  

 6   status of slickspot peppergrass surveys and where you
  

 7   might find it.  And if you find it, then it extends the
  

 8   process.
  

 9               So it does involve a very careful
  

10   environmental review, and depending on what you find in
  

11   initial surveys or what initial surveys have been done
  

12   in the area where the road will go through, it could be
  

13   a longer process than a shorter process.
  

14               And so I think the minimum time frame is
  

15   about a year.  And it could be much longer.  It could
  

16   be a multiyear process.  And so that's something that
  

17   will commence immediately upon having City approvals.
  

18   It's -- it's just a very involved process.  It doesn't
  

19   make sense if we don't have approval to annex into the
  

20   City or a decision on the development.
  

21          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Thank you.
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Councilman Nielsen.
  

23          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Thank you.
  

24               Mayor Chadwick, I think this is perhaps a
  

25   clarifying question for you regarding the lot for a
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 1   potential elementary school.  I know that near Star
  

 2   Middle School there's already a potential elementary
  

 3   school lot.
  

 4               Do you know, is this -- is what is in your
  

 5   mind in addition to that, or is that -- and we also
  

 6   have one, I think, next to Roselands; right?
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah, this would be in
  

 8   addition, another site for up in that area.
  

 9          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yep.
  

11               Any further questions of the applicant at
  

12   this time?
  

13          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Mayor Chadwick.
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilwoman Salmonsen.
  

15          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  I actually have a
  

16   question for Mr. Mitchell, if that's okay.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yep.  Absolutely.
  

18          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  So one of the findings
  

19   that we have to make is that the annexation is in the
  

20   best interest of the City.
  

21               And so as a resident, I would like to hear
  

22   from you why you think that this project is in the best
  

23   interest of the City for the current residents.
  

24          NATE MITCHELL:  You bet.  Nate Mitchell, again
  

25   1470 North Rook Way.
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 1               I think Deb's presentation outlined our
  

 2   thoughts on why this is a positive thing for the City.
  

 3   As a resident, I think the additional economic
  

 4   development that the golf course will bring is positive
  

 5   for not just the golf course but the rest of the
  

 6   businesses in Star.  It adds to our commercial tax
  

 7   base.
  

 8               And I think frankly the -- I don't know if
  

 9   anybody's noticed, but people want to move to Star.  A
  

10   lot of people want to move to Star.  I think we can
  

11   provide an unparalleled housing product that hasn't
  

12   been offered in the Valley with the amenity of the golf
  

13   course that provides for an active adult lifestyle, a
  

14   lot of the -- a lot of the demographic that's moving
  

15   here is empty nester baby-boomers, and this is a
  

16   product that we think fits that very well.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

18          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Thank you.  I
  

19   appreciate your answer.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Any further comment of the
  

21   applicant at this time?
  

22               Okay.  With that said --
  

23          DEBORAH NELSON:  Thank you.
  

24          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- thank you, Ms. Deb.
  

25               And we're going to use this as -- before we
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 1   get into public testimony, as a natural break to take a
  

 2   facilities break.  So we're going to recess at 8:03 and
  

 3   come back at 8:08.  Okay?
  

 4               (Recess.  Video file silent from 1:00:40 to
  

 5          1:05:37.)
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  There we go.  Let's get
  

 7   everybody seated, please.  He's coming.  All right.  We
  

 8   got -- yeah, we got the quorum of the Council here.
  

 9   Councilman Hershey will be back up here in just a
  

10   second.
  

11               Just a reminder, folks, when we come up to
  

12   testify, I need you to please state your name and
  

13   address for the record.  We have three minutes each to
  

14   testify tonight.  We do -- I think it's behind me
  

15   still; right?  The clock is up behind me.  And
  

16   Mr. Shawn right here will control that.
  

17               I'm going to call several people up to get
  

18   set up here in the bullpen area so we can move on with
  

19   the process.  And we talked -- said those that are in
  

20   favor will speak first.
  

21          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  It's like 33
  

22   [unintelligible].
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  And is that -- that's not right
  

24   now, though, I don't think; right?
  

25          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  So we're going to call
  

 2   in the in-favor side of this to start out.
  

 3               Chad Kinkela, if I said that right, if you
  

 4   could come up and state your name and address -- I'm
  

 5   sorry.  It's 8:09 that we're starting the public
  

 6   hearing back up.  Sorry about that.
  

 7               Mr. Chad, are you here?  Chad?
  

 8          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Moving on.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  We'll move on here in a sec.
  

10               Chad Kinkela?
  

11          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Oh, that's your engineer?
  

13          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  He's our engineer.
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Oh, okay.  All right.  Then we
  

15   don't need to -- then we're good there.
  

16               We'll move on to the public testimony for
  

17   those that are against.  We'll start out, we have Nancy
  

18   Collins that's going to start.  We have Todd Collins in
  

19   the hole, and Layne Galbraith and Sabrina Newberry.  So
  

20   please come sit up here at the front for us, and we're
  

21   all ready to go.
  

22               Okay.  So hang on one second.  We got a
  

23   PowerPoint.
  

24          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  All right.  All right.
  

25          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You ready, Shawn?
  

 2          NANCY COLLINS:  I'm not.
  

 3          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You're not?  Is your -- is your
  

 4   little clicker working?
  

 5          NANCY COLLINS:  I don't need that right now.
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You don't need that right now.
  

 7   Okay.  Okay.  So please state your name and address,
  

 8   please, for the record.
  

 9          NANCY COLLINS:  Okay.  Good evening, Mayor and
  

10   City Councilmembers.  My name is Nancy Collins, 4718
  

11   North Echo Summit Way, Star, Idaho.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

13          NANCY COLLINS:  Ready?
  

14               I'd like to present the Willowbrook Golf
  

15   Course Annexation and Rezone Petition.  As of Monday
  

16   morning at nine o'clock, we have received over 800
  

17   signatures.  Tonight we accumulated another hundred.
  

18   And I just want to read the petition to you so you know
  

19   what you have.
  

20               We are opposed to the annexation of this
  

21   development for some or all of the following reasons:
  

22   Incomplete, inaccurate application; improper use of
  

23   site amenities; unresolved, unfunded mitigation
  

24   measures for Star Road, Can-Ada Road, Wing Road, Beacon
  

25   Light Road, Floating Feather, New Hope; increase in
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 1   traffic, parking issues, and demand on roads; trisects
  

 2   the BLM, making it unusable; Star Transportation and
  

 3   Pathway Committee proposes two new roads through the
  

 4   BLM; decrease in road safety for children with only two
  

 5   exits for 1409 dwellings and changing the
  

 6   classification of Lanktree Gulch Road, Deep Canyon
  

 7   Road, Purple Sage, and Can-Ada due to increased number
  

 8   of trips.  This will decrease safety.  Overcrowding at
  

 9   nearby schools; lack of police coverage; increased
  

10   burdened on understaffed police and fire departments;
  

11   increase in density; incompatibility, all surrounding
  

12   neighborhoods are rural, residential, single-family,
  

13   detached homes on 1 acre to 10-acre lots.  This project
  

14   creates density up to 10.5 homes per acre that are
  

15   unlike the existing lots in Hillsdale and Monument
  

16   Ridge.
  

17               Noncompliance with the Comprehensive Plan,
  

18   special transition overlay zone.  Cumulative impact of
  

19   already approved projects is having a harmful effect
  

20   upon the desirable, open, and rural characteristics of
  

21   Star.
  

22               Undetermined --
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So, guys, here, no speaking
  

24   out.  I'm telling you we're going to let you -- have
  

25   you leave.  We're going to keep it civil.  No speaking
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 1   out.  Only the person up here gets to speak, please.
  

 2   Thank you.
  

 3          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

 4          NANCY COLLINS:  Undetermined designation
  

 5   approval of additional roads acquired by -- or required
  

 6   by ACHD, ITD.  Commercial development.  Proposed
  

 7   commercial development in the foothills not a part of
  

 8   Star Comprehensive Plan.
  

 9               For these reasons we ask the City Council
  

10   to honor their process and ensure full due diligence is
  

11   complete.
  

12               In addition, we ask that the Council review
  

13   the conceptual plan and ask that the applicant revise
  

14   their plan to conform with the Star Comprehensive Plan,
  

15   one that will ensure this project will add to the
  

16   prosperity and be a benefit to the City of Star.
  

17               Therefore we request that the City of Star
  

18   cancel, deny this application for Willowbrook Golf
  

19   Community until it has been revised with lower density
  

20   to accommodate road capacity and follow the
  

21   Comprehensive Plan and until a complete application has
  

22   been submitted and reviewed.
  

23               That's all I have.
  

24          MAYOR CHADWICK:  All right.
  

25          NANCY COLLINS:  Thank you.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.  Nice job.  Got that
  

 2   in three minutes.
  

 3               So real quick, did the applicant get a copy
  

 4   of this?  Did you get a copy?
  

 5               Okay.  Very good.
  

 6               So then we have Mr. Todd Collins, you're
  

 7   on.
  

 8               We got Ms. Rachel -- or Rochelle Henson,
  

 9   please come on down.  Okay, Todd.
  

10          TODD COLLINS:  Good evening, Mayor and
  

11   Councilmembers.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  State your name and address.
  

13          TODD COLLINS:  This is Todd Collins, 4718 North
  

14   Echo Summit Way, Star, Idaho.
  

15               This should be a piece of cake; right?
  

16   Applicant is just wanting a zoning of R-2 DA for his
  

17   entire property.
  

18               Okay.  So R-2 works with the Comp Plan, or
  

19   at least with the Comp Plan that the staff says we have
  

20   to use.  Oh, but then the applicant wants to put in a
  

21   golf course.  That would typically require a
  

22   conditional-use permit.  And then he wants or needs to
  

23   have a sewer treatment facility on the property.
  

24   Another CUP.
  

25               And on top of that, 110,000 square foot of
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 1   commercial space.  There must be some amazing details
  

 2   within the application, the narrative, and the concept
  

 3   plan to request such an ask of the City Council, such
  

 4   detail that the Council could feel confident that they
  

 5   could just blanketly approve the entire conceptual plan
  

 6   under an R-2 zone.
  

 7               Unfortunately, the details are not there.
  

 8   From the very start of this application, the details
  

 9   were lacking and uncertain.  In the application it
  

10   mentions the development will be adjacent to other
  

11   developments.
  

12               They failed to mention that this will be a
  

13   major infill project wherein their urban, commercial
  

14   development will be intertwined with an established
  

15   rural development.  They don't mention that they will
  

16   be needing to use the narrow, unimproved rural roads
  

17   within the existing development to access their
  

18   development.
  

19               Willowbrook did take the time to put
  

20   together a concept plan, but didn't bother to show any
  

21   details, such as paved pathways for pedestrians and
  

22   bike riders, amenities in appropriate places,
  

23   accommodation for transition overlay zones, no
  

24   transition between commercial and rural lots, no house
  

25   clustering.
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 1               In fact, if you ignore the pretty fairways
  

 2   and greens, you see that there is a solid wall of
  

 3   houses across the entire 2 mile length of their
  

 4   development.  No accommodation for the wildlife that
  

 5   live and migrate through the area.  Not just the fox
  

 6   and turkeys mentioned in the application, but also
  

 7   deer, badger, pheasant, raccoon, mountain lion, rabbit,
  

 8   and others.
  

 9               No elevations of the clubhouse or
  

10   maintenance facility.  No elevations of what they
  

11   envision for the 110,000 square feet of commercial
  

12   space.  They want you to approve on the conceptual map
  

13   under this R-2 DA zoning request.
  

14               The elevations they do show are just a
  

15   bunch of random home styles that anyone could pull off
  

16   the Internet.  No access to the BLM.  No indication
  

17   they respect the existing neighbors in regard to the
  

18   placement of the golf range and maintenance facility in
  

19   regards to the impact this development will have on the
  

20   rural, residential, unimproved local roads.
  

21               There is sufficient detail already for you
  

22   to know that this project cannot possibly be built as
  

23   proposed without getting more clarification.  So do not
  

24   move this forward for expedience sake.
  

25               The staff report gives all the details for
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 1   handling the various requests under this application
  

 2   for CUP and PUD processes.  I think they put them in
  

 3   there for a reason.
  

 4               Follow the processes so that you can be
  

 5   certain, so that the applicant can be certain, so that
  

 6   we can be certain, and trust the process.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Collins.
  

 8               On to -- let's see.  Let's see.  Richard,
  

 9   Mr. Moore, you're on.  You're not up yet, but you're in
  

10   the hole down here.
  

11               Mr. Layne Galbraith.
  

12          JOSEPH GALBRAITH:  Mr. Mayor and Councilmembers,
  

13   we appreciate the opportunity to speak with you
  

14   tonight.
  

15               Star leadership --
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So real quick, state your name
  

17   and address, please, for the record.
  

18          JOSEPH GALBRAITH:  My name is Joseph Galbraith.
  

19   I live at 9758 West Lanktree Gulch Road in Hillsdale
  

20   Estates.
  

21               Star leadership is in the wonderful
  

22   position of being able to plan a city that provides for
  

23   a variety of lifestyles, to create a community that
  

24   meets the varying needs and desires of its citizens
  

25   from low-density country homes to medium and higher
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 1   density homes.
  

 2               It is possible now to create a well-planned
  

 3   city that is beautiful and functional.  Hillsdale
  

 4   Estates and the neighboring Monument Ridge were
  

 5   originally conceived and developed over the last 25
  

 6   years in seven phases by Dick Phillips, a primary owner
  

 7   and developer of Willowbrook.
  

 8               Is there a slide two anywhere?
  

 9               It was originally conceived to offer a
  

10   low-density, country living option that hundreds of
  

11   residents have now invested in.  When it was conceived,
  

12   the appropriate housing density for this area was 1 to
  

13   3 acres per house, with larger lots up to 5 acres in
  

14   Purple Sage, and 10 acres in Monument Ridge.
  

15               It offered opportunities for raising and
  

16   caring for animals, bordered by farmland and public
  

17   recreation areas.
  

18               Slide three, if you can.
  

19               Amenities that were promoted included a
  

20   network of pathways and trails upon and wetlands, park
  

21   and picnic area, an equestrian center, and acres of
  

22   open space.  Willowbrook's current proposal is a
  

23   radical departure from the initial plan.
  

24               Today the current Willowbrook proposal
  

25   wants to fill the open spaces with much denser housing.
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 1   The whole area will be transformed away from a country
  

 2   lifestyle that includes -- that hundreds of people have
  

 3   invested in.  There are currently 315 homes in
  

 4   Hillsdale and 29 in Monument Ridge.
  

 5               This proposal includes over a thousand new
  

 6   houses, a golf course, a shopping center, and a sewage
  

 7   plant, just for starters.  The plan doesn't just intend
  

 8   to build higher density homes next to the current
  

 9   neighborhoods, but insert them throughout the current
  

10   neighborhoods.
  

11               We support Willowbrook developing their
  

12   land.  The original design for this area was rural.
  

13   The next building phase should support that.  A rural,
  

14   country appearance, with one residence on a minimum of
  

15   1 acre will accomplish that.
  

16               We request that this proposal and the
  

17   annexation be denied and a minimum 1 acre lot size be
  

18   set for the new development, consistent with the
  

19   existing neighborhood that Willowbrook initially
  

20   designed, instead of R-2 that turns into a much higher
  

21   visual density when implemented and clustered.
  

22               The next speakers will explain further why
  

23   this proposal should be declined in its present format.
  

24   We hope that you'll give some thought to modifying this
  

25   extreme proposal.
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 1               Thank you.
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

 3               Ms. Sabrina Newberry, Ms. Colleen Moore,
  

 4   you're down here in the bullpen.
  

 5               So state your name and address, please, for
  

 6   the record.
  

 7          SABRINA NEWBERRY:  Good evening.  I'm Sabrina
  

 8   Newberry.  I'm at 9909 West Lanktree Gulch Road.
  

 9               The City of Star Comprehensive Plan calls
  

10   for this area to be rural, and we request that the
  

11   Willowbrook proposal align with this adopted Comp Plan
  

12   and Uniform Development Code.
  

13               We realize the staff report reviews the
  

14   application per the obsolete 2020 Comp Plan and
  

15   Development Code.  We disagree with this approach.
  

16               The current Comprehensive Plan was adopted
  

17   in June of 2022 and provides the overall framework for
  

18   the City and future development.  It is a good plan and
  

19   it needs to be followed.
  

20               However, in reviewing both documents, a lot
  

21   of the text remains the same.  The allowed land use
  

22   density is less stringent in the old Comp Plan.  The
  

23   Comprehensive Plan identifies the area of Willowbrook's
  

24   proposal as low density -- low-density residential, max
  

25   one unit per acre.
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 1               The corresponding municipal code zoning
  

 2   designations for this land use are RR or R-1, not R-2.
  

 3   We understand R-2 is allowed under the old Comp Plan,
  

 4   but believe RR or R-1 zoning is more compatible with
  

 5   the existing, developed rural area.
  

 6               There are commercial sites proposed within
  

 7   the development, but only R-2 zoning proposed.
  

 8   Commercial is not allowed in residential zoning.  Staff
  

 9   says a PUD may be submitted later, but zoning and
  

10   annexation is being proposed now.
  

11               How can the zoning and annexation be
  

12   approved if the PUD standards are not provided to fully
  

13   review the proposed uses.  At this point there's just a
  

14   proposal for commercial sites in R zoning, which is not
  

15   allowed.
  

16               Golf course requires a CUP in residential
  

17   zone districts.  The applicant is asking for approval
  

18   as part of the DA, but no details have been provided on
  

19   the proposed use associated with a CUP application.
  

20               In the Comprehensive Plan there are three
  

21   objectives in the land-use chapter that speak directly
  

22   to the proposed Willowbrook Development and the
  

23   existing neighborhoods of Hillsdale Estates and
  

24   Monument Ridge.
  

25               As highlighted in this slide, the
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 1   objectives state "to manage urban sprawl; protect,
  

 2   retain, and encourage rural areas; and encourage land
  

 3   uses that are in harmony with surrounding land uses."
  

 4               The Comprehensive Plan does a decent job of
  

 5   providing denser land uses at the city center and
  

 6   calling for less dense development as you reach the
  

 7   city edge with -- to blend with the county development.
  

 8   This is good standard planning practice.
  

 9               However, the proposal includes 1,094
  

10   residential lots, a golf course, 110,000 square feet of
  

11   commercial and various civic uses that are not in
  

12   harmony with the existing land uses.
  

13               As designed, this is a very dense
  

14   development with a lot of very small lots and a
  

15   complete departure from what is already built in the
  

16   area and the objectives laid out in the Comp Plan.
  

17               Thank you.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Ms. Rochelle Henson.
  

19   And then we have Benjamin Shields in the hole.
  

20          ROCHELLE HENSON:  Good evening, Mayor and
  

21   Members of the Council.  My name is Rochelle Henson.  I
  

22   reside at 5233 North High Prairie Place in Star.
  

23               As you can see in this slide, which is from
  

24   the staff report, Willowbrook is being proposed within
  

25   the Hillsdale and Monument Ridge neighborhoods, not
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 1   adjacent to it.  Therefore, we believe the project
  

 2   should be built at the same density and with similar
  

 3   lot sizes and design features to blend with the
  

 4   existing neighborhoods that it is being built within.
  

 5               However, we also know that this is part of
  

 6   a special transition overlay area.  Development
  

 7   adjacent to this area is to provide for an appropriate
  

 8   transition between existing and new homesites.
  

 9               The exhibit in this slide is showing the
  

10   lots adjacent to existing lots highlighted in red.  The
  

11   staff report says the highlighted lots should be a
  

12   minimum of one-half an acre in size.  The 2020 code
  

13   says transition area lots are to be one-half acre to 1
  

14   acre in size.  The recommendation in the staff report
  

15   is for one-half acre minimum.
  

16               The surrounding lots are 1 to 10 acres in
  

17   size, so the transitional lots should be more closely
  

18   aligned with the sizes of the existing lots, and should
  

19   be a minimum 1 acre in size.
  

20               Next slide.
  

21               We have highlighted some relevant sections
  

22   of the Comp Plan related to residential development.
  

23   Low densities are supposed to be built in the hillside
  

24   areas and adjacent to larger lots that will not
  

25   subdivide in the future, such as of the existing
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 1   neighborhood.
  

 2               There needs to be an adequate transition
  

 3   from the existing, rural, residential development to
  

 4   the suburban development that's being proposed.  The
  

 5   housing objective states that existing, rural,
  

 6   residential housing developments need to be preserved
  

 7   and maintained.  This area is one of the only rural,
  

 8   residential developments in Star.
  

 9               Allowing this proposed development with its
  

10   current design and density will take away the
  

11   opportunity to preserve the rural feel at the city's
  

12   edge adjacent to the county development and the BLM
  

13   land.
  

14               Next slide.
  

15               The proposal by the developer for a DA that
  

16   uses the entire site acreage to blend and average out
  

17   densities would allow for much smaller lot sizes, with
  

18   the majority of the proposed lots smaller than 9,000
  

19   square feet, and some as small as 3800 square feet.
  

20   This is much smaller and does not comply with the
  

21   existing lots in the area.
  

22               The picture above on the left shows a
  

23   typical lot developed in the area, and the photo on the
  

24   right is a sample of the housing types Willowbrook is
  

25   proposing.  Clearly this lot type does not fit in with
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 1   the existing neighborhood, the vision of the
  

 2   Comprehensive Plan, or the Development Code standards
  

 3   for RR, R-1, or R-2.
  

 4               We would like the City to require
  

 5   Willowbrook to provide the necessary application
  

 6   materials previously mentioned for a conditional-use
  

 7   permit and PUD, as well as require them to follow the
  

 8   adopted Comprehensive Plan and Development Code and
  

 9   develop this area compatible with the existing, rural
  

10   development that has been there for the last 20 years.
  

11               Thank you.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you.
  

13               Mr. Richard Moore and Ms. Cherie Shields.
  

14          RICHARD MOORE:  Mayor Chadwick, Council, thank
  

15   you for your time.  Richard Moore, professional
  

16   engineer with a master's in civil engineering from
  

17   Brigham Young University.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I need your address.
  

19          RICHARD MOORE:  25385 Desert Spring Circle.
  

20               Pardon?
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I need your address.  Address
  

22   first.
  

23          RICHARD MOORE:  25385 Desert Spring Circle,
  

24   Star, Idaho.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.

76

Section 5, Item A.



City Council Meeting - May 9, 2023
Audio Transcription

68

  

 1          RICHARD MOORE:  Willowbrook has resisted doing a
  

 2   traffic-impact study ever since this development was
  

 3   first proposed.  The City Council required them to do a
  

 4   development -- to do a traffic-impact study prior to
  

 5   Development Agreement approval.  Thank you.  That was a
  

 6   very good decision.
  

 7               Now that the traffic study is complete, it
  

 8   is apparent why Willowbrook did not want to do one.  It
  

 9   shows this project is unfeasible as proposed.  I have
  

10   read the traffic study and only understood enough to
  

11   get scared.
  

12               Consequently, I arranged a meeting with
  

13   Mindy Wallace from ACHD.  She provided clarity, and I
  

14   realized my fears were founded.  Adding over 1,000
  

15   homes to this area generates over 12,000 trips per day,
  

16   per the traffic study.
  

17               Next slide, please.
  

18               This area is constrained by rural roads,
  

19   which only permit 2,000 trips per day.  The current
  

20   traffic on these roads is about 1200 trips per day, not
  

21   leaving much room for increased traffic.
  

22               Willowbrook's solution, as first suggested
  

23   in the first traffic study, was to widen Deep Canyon
  

24   and Lanktree Gulch to five lanes.
  

25               Next slide.
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 1               This is a small section of Deep Canyon
  

 2   Drive to indicate how much private property would need
  

 3   to be given up by the homeowners in order to develop a
  

 4   road size to handle the traffic Willowbrook will
  

 5   generate.  This clearly shows the infeasibility of this
  

 6   project.
  

 7               Having been told by ACHD that expanding
  

 8   these roads was not possible, Willowbrook did withdraw
  

 9   this request for the expansion of these roads without
  

10   providing an alternative for the increased traffic,
  

11   other than changing -- requesting a change of the
  

12   designation of the road to collector.
  

13               Now, you don't need a degree in engineering
  

14   to know that simply changing the designation of the
  

15   road is not going to allow you to fit five lanes of
  

16   traffic in two lanes.
  

17               Next slide.
  

18               The impacts are not limited to areas
  

19   immediately around the development, but extend as far
  

20   south as State Street, as far east as Highway 16, and
  

21   as far west as Blessinger, and even beyond.
  

22               Here are a few of the roads impacted by
  

23   Willowbrook.  The mitigation of these roads is not
  

24   funded, not planned, and in some cases not even
  

25   possible because of issues with right-of-way.
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 1               Next slide.
  

 2               Here are 25 more roads requiring
  

 3   significant mitigation to accommodate the proposed
  

 4   development, many with the same issues as the previous
  

 5   slide.  This list is by no means complete.  For
  

 6   example, High Country Way will need mitigation if Wing
  

 7   Road is installed, because it will become a throughway
  

 8   to Deep Canyon.
  

 9               Next slide.
  

10               Sorry.  My time's up.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah.  Thank you, sir.
  

12   Appreciate it.
  

13               We got Ms. Colleen Moore and Ms. Ana Deane
  

14   Galbraith will be in the hole up here.
  

15          COLLEEN MOORE:  Mayor, Councilmen, thank you
  

16   very much.  My name is Colleen Moore.  I live at
  

17   25385 Desert Spring Circle, Star, Idaho.
  

18               Follow-up from Mr. Moore, the roads
  

19   surrounding the Willowbrook Development as currently
  

20   proposed do not and cannot support the additional
  

21   traffic this development will generate.  There's no
  

22   viable solutions to override this reality.  A cap on
  

23   the number of additional homes created by this
  

24   development consistent with existing road capacity must
  

25   be established.
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 1               The Council has consistently sought facts
  

 2   and expert testimony prior to making decisions.  The
  

 3   hard facts from the transportation study and expert
  

 4   testimony from ACHD demonstrate this development, as
  

 5   proposed, is inappropriate for this area.
  

 6               Additionally, I have been learning a lot
  

 7   about sheep lately.  The daughter of a sheep farmer,
  

 8   Jane Mallen, tells of the year a huge storm hit right
  

 9   after they had sheared their sheep in Wyoming.  They
  

10   lost 1,000 ewes that year, among them mothers of 350
  

11   lambs.  Despite valiant efforts to feed the orphaned
  

12   lambs that summer, 60 percent of them died.
  

13               Now, Ms. Mallen's father had no control
  

14   over the weather.  When he sheared his sheep, he had no
  

15   forecast even suggesting there was a violent storm
  

16   coming, so he went ahead, sheared the sheep, and buried
  

17   many carcasses over the next six months.
  

18               The Star City Council has no control over
  

19   roads and infrastructure.  That is the jurisdiction of
  

20   ACHD and ITD.  However, the traffic study that Council
  

21   has wisely requested is, in effect, a forecast of an
  

22   impending, violent storm of cars and traffic congestion
  

23   which will occur if 1,094 new homes are added to the
  

24   existing roads.
  

25               Trying to suggest that rerouting traffic
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 1   through Aerie Road will take care of all potential
  

 2   congestion due to the demand of the 12,000 additional
  

 3   road trips per day resulting from the new development
  

 4   is much like believing that if you push hungry lambs to
  

 5   a trough filled with milk they will willingly go there
  

 6   and drink their fill.  Not practical.  Not realistic.
  

 7   Ultimately, it will prove completely unsuccessful.
  

 8               I urge the City Council to study and heed
  

 9   the warnings evident from the traffic study.  The roads
  

10   are in place.  Please cap the number of additional new
  

11   homes such that the roads can reasonably accommodate
  

12   the additional traffic.
  

13               Thank you very much.
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.
  

15               All right.  Mr. Benjamin Shields is up.
  

16   Ms. Lisa -- is it Priapi?  All right.  Thank you.
  

17          BEN SHIELDS:  Mr. Mayor, Councilmembers, my name
  

18   is Ben Shields.  I live at 9947 West Lanktree Gulch
  

19   Road in Star, Idaho.
  

20               After attending multiple meetings, we have
  

21   heard numerous times that what is presented must be
  

22   fact, not emotion or opinion.  We ask that the standard
  

23   be held with the applicant to ensure that the City can
  

24   make a sound vote that guarantees the protection and
  

25   advancement of the City of Star.  I will review some of
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 1   the opinions that Willowbrook's application and
  

 2   Development Agreements state.
  

 3               Next slide.
  

 4               Willowbrook states housing will be
  

 5   compatible with surrounding areas.  The Hillsdale and
  

 6   Monument Ridge homes on the left, versus the townhomes
  

 7   and small homes on the right.  As stated before, in
  

 8   design, size, and density, they are not similar.
  

 9               Next slide.
  

10               They state the golf course will be the
  

11   focal point.  Not sure how you can -- not sure how that
  

12   is when you cannot see it through the wall of
  

13   townhomes.
  

14               Also states compatible with surrounding
  

15   uses and existing, intended character of the vicinity.
  

16               Next slide.
  

17               Stating a driving range, commercial and
  

18   clubhouses is in alignment with the intended character,
  

19   which is rural homes and raising animals, is opinion.
  

20               As you can see the arrow, this
  

21   undetermined, neighborhood commercial space lacks any
  

22   addition -- lacks any details to the intended use.
  

23   There needs to be clarification to understand the full
  

24   impact of these facilities.  TIS does not factor in
  

25   commercial traffic.
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 1               Next slide.
  

 2               This small space is going to house a
  

 3   multimillion dollar water filtration system,
  

 4   generators, fire stations, police station, and EMS
  

 5   services.  How is all that going to fit in that tiny,
  

 6   little space?
  

 7               Intended -- included in the open space and
  

 8   amenities is multiple commercial items.  They state
  

 9   these commercial amenities will not constitute nuance
  

10   activities.  That is an opinion.  Nuisance activities.
  

11   Excuse me.  That is an opinion.  Having a driving range
  

12   and clubhouse so close to your home is the perspective
  

13   of the homeowner and the animals.
  

14               Idaho code requires analysis of provision
  

15   to ensure that land use does not violate property --
  

16   private property rights, values, or unnecessary
  

17   technical limitations.  The -- the developer builds and
  

18   leaves and the homeowner remains.
  

19               And just I was thinking, kind of going off
  

20   script here, we're talking about a commercial -- or a
  

21   championship golf course.  I haven't once heard if the
  

22   PGA Tour decides to come to this area with thousands of
  

23   people deciding to watch a championship golf, parking,
  

24   traffic overwhelming all the streets.  Where are those
  

25   people going to go?  Where are they going to park?

83

Section 5, Item A.



City Council Meeting - May 9, 2023
Audio Transcription

75

  

 1   Where are they going to eat?
  

 2          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  And use the bathroom.
  

 3          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Where are they going to
  

 4   stay?
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Hey, guys, enough.  Seriously,
  

 6   enough.
  

 7          BEN SHIELDS:  So just something to consider.
  

 8   Because I was looking at the map, I don't see any
  

 9   parking lots.  I don't see anything that's going to
  

10   accommodate some of those commercial uses for such a
  

11   magnificent golf course.
  

12               Thank you.
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.
  

14               Ms. Cherie Shields, and then we have
  

15   Ms. Abigail Germaine.
  

16               Is she here?  There you are.  Okay.
  

17               Okay, Ms. Shields.
  

18          CHERIE SHIELDS:  All right.  Mr. Mayor, Council,
  

19   my name is Cherie Shields.  I live at 9947 West
  

20   Lanktree Gulch Road, Star, Idaho.
  

21               For the 175-acre golf course, Boisedev
  

22   published in an article on 5/3/23 that the course will
  

23   be privately owned and maintained and that the public
  

24   will be welcome to enjoy it.  Because Willowbrook will
  

25   be receiving profit and income from this golf course,
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 1   per Star City Code 8-4E-1, all open space and amenities
  

 2   must be owned, maintained by the applicable HOA.
  

 3   Therefore, the 175 acres should not be used in
  

 4   calculating zoning density.
  

 5               Special transition overlay is also a
  

 6   concern.  This golf course and amenities leave multiple
  

 7   questions about that, operating hours, light pollution,
  

 8   noise pollution, and if it can be used for zoning.
  

 9               Then there's a matter of opinion.  These
  

10   are opinions.  Number one, that it will not adversely
  

11   affect properties, but it will add over 12,000 trips a
  

12   day.
  

13               Number two, it will enhance property and
  

14   aesthetic values, but creates a wall of patio homes
  

15   with fences impeding our views and open space.
  

16               Number three, it encourages walkability.
  

17   But with a wall of homes, a golf course that we cannot
  

18   use, and multiple areas up to 25 percent grade, that is
  

19   not feasible.
  

20               Number five, commercial adjacent to the
  

21   area with similar use.  But horse stables and farming
  

22   is not similar.
  

23               Then we go into the unknown.  Number one,
  

24   by building some commercial first, we do not know the
  

25   impacts.  The TIS did not project daily trips for the
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 1   commercial use due to the lack of detail.
  

 2               Number two, that the CUP requirements are
  

 3   met.  But these findings are more opinion, per their
  

 4   letter submitted to the Council.
  

 5               Number three, future commercial that lacks
  

 6   the proper PUD applications.  Again, no clarity.
  

 7               Number four, pathways, that, again, are
  

 8   unusable in high grade areas, and I'm only seeing very
  

 9   few.
  

10               That this will minimize impacts on our road
  

11   when the TIS was only conducted on a small portion of
  

12   Lanktree Gulch and the entrance of Deep Canyon.  They
  

13   did not fully study Can-Ada.  And also there's concerns
  

14   with that steep grade.
  

15               The increased tax base for the City with
  

16   impact fees, golf course tax, and property tax.  But
  

17   what about all the required infrastructure costs that
  

18   will be incurred?
  

19               Approving the application based on a
  

20   seven-page boilerplate document removes the public from
  

21   being able to provide accurate feedback on how the DA
  

22   will truly impact its citizens.  You each have business
  

23   savvy and accountability that I know you will use to
  

24   ensure that Willowbrook is held to the same standard as
  

25   its citizens.
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 1               Willowbrook's DA is seven pages.  And
  

 2   although it plans to be revised in the future,
  

 3   statements that Willowbrook has made, that without the
  

 4   thousand homes to offset their cost, the project isn't
  

 5   worth it.  What happens if we annex and they cannot
  

 6   exceed ACHD's recommendation of 213 homes?
  

 7               Spring Valley's DA was 135 pages long and
  

 8   protects Eagle.  Willowbrook, being the largest project
  

 9   in Star, I implore you to deny this annexation and
  

10   rezone until all information is found out, agencies are
  

11   approved, and the impact is minimal.
  

12               Thank you.
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.
  

14               Okay.  We have Ms. Ana Galbraith.
  

15               And then we got Jim Junge, if you'd come up
  

16   here in the hole, please.  There you are.  Okay.
  

17               Ms. Ana, the floor is yours.
  

18          ANA DEANE GALBRAITH:  Hello.  My name is Ana
  

19   Deane Galbraith.  I live at 9758 West Lanktree Gulch
  

20   Road.
  

21               And I have just four quick comments that
  

22   I'd like to make.
  

23               First, just to reinforce, the area that
  

24   Willowbrook wants to develop in is a rural area.
  

25               Can you -- is there anybody doing the
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 1   clicker?
  

 2          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I'll do it.
  

 3          ANA DEANE GALBRAITH:  Yeah.  Click for me.
  

 4               There's a combination now of 344 homes,
  

 5   each on 1 to 10-acre lots between Monument Ridge and
  

 6   Hillsdale.  The current Willowbrook plan will put 1,094
  

 7   homes on 314.4 buildable acres.  67 percent of the
  

 8   total homes to be built will have a density of almost
  

 9   five to over ten homes per acre.
  

10               This is a dramatic departure from the
  

11   current density and does not fit the existing rural
  

12   neighborhoods.
  

13               Click it for me.
  

14               There are -- number two, there are no
  

15   reasonable transition or buffer areas.  The Hillsdale
  

16   and Monument Ridge Developments are labeled special
  

17   transition overlay areas and require larger setbacks
  

18   and lots.  New lots next to current lots should match
  

19   current density.  That would be 1 acre plus, not the
  

20   less than half acre and lower acreage in the proposed
  

21   Willowbrook plan.  One of the lots has a proposed six
  

22   lots abutting it, and another has five.  And you can
  

23   see those in the circle up there.
  

24               In addition, there are no buffers between
  

25   Willowbrook and Monument Ridge, which you can see on
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 1   the left.  There is dense housing and a driving range
  

 2   right next to the 10-acre lots.
  

 3               There are also no buffer areas on the homes
  

 4   abutting the road.  So the road -- the houses sit right
  

 5   on the road.
  

 6               Point number three, the Willowbrook plan
  

 7   conflicts with the current City Comp Plan, which I
  

 8   understand you don't have to hold them to that, but we
  

 9   are hoping that you will.  Our own City plan calls for
  

10   low-density development in the outer perimeter of the
  

11   city.  Both Hillsdale and Monument Ridge are located at
  

12   the edge of Star city limits, an area designed to be
  

13   rural.
  

14               If rural areas are not preserved here on
  

15   the very edge of the city, where are you going to have
  

16   them?  As per City plan, new residential lots should
  

17   match density with current ones.
  

18               Point number four, rural amenities will
  

19   disappear with this plan.  The rural areas now have low
  

20   lighting, open fencing, country roads with no curb and
  

21   gutter.  All these will disappear with this Willowbrook
  

22   plan.
  

23               In summary density matters.  Going from one
  

24   home per 10 acres -- oh, yeah, at the top left, down to
  

25   10.5 on the lower right is unreasonable for this area.
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 1   Please keep this area rural.  Please hold to the vision
  

 2   defined in the City plan and require R-1 zoning.
  

 3          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

 4          ANA DEANE GALBRAITH:  Doing that will ensure our
  

 5   City offers -- okay.  I'm done.
  

 6               Thank you.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Your time's up.  Thank you.
  

 8               Okay.  Ms. Lisa.  Then we have, let's see,
  

 9   Mr. Derrell Foote in the hole up here.
  

10          LISA PRIAPI:  Hi.  I'm Lisa Priapi.  And I
  

11   reside at 10325 West Lanktree Gulch Road.
  

12               And I'm going to offer some final thoughts.
  

13   We're here tonight to talk about how the Willowbrook
  

14   Development will impact all of us.  We do believe in
  

15   property rights, property rights for all property
  

16   owners to hold and enjoy their property.
  

17               There is a reasonable way for Willowbrook
  

18   to develop this property, but this current proposal is
  

19   not it.  Mr. Phillips himself over 20 years ago
  

20   envisioned and set in motion the pastoral community of
  

21   Hillsdale Estates and Monument Ridge.  He designed 317
  

22   1 to 5-acre lots, 29 10-acre lots, the roads,
  

23   amenities, HOAs, et cetera, to align with his vision
  

24   for rural living, a place where people who desired this
  

25   rural lifestyle could live.  He implemented this vision
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 1   over seven phases to what exists today.
  

 2               Now he's dramatically departing from his
  

 3   long-term design.  This is not phase eight of
  

 4   Hillsdale, a plan that should seamlessly integrate with
  

 5   the existing rural neighborhoods, but rather an
  

 6   incompatible, urban, multiuse development that injects
  

 7   1,094 homes packed onto 314 acres, along with a golf
  

 8   course, sewage treatment facility, and commercial space
  

 9   weaving within and throughout an R-1 zoned rural
  

10   neighborhood.
  

11               We end up with a development that appears
  

12   like a densely crowded bedroom -- densely crowded
  

13   bedroom communities that we expect closer to town.
  

14   This proposal bypasses the current Comprehensive Plan
  

15   and City codes and doesn't consider the existing
  

16   neighborhood, nor the people who live in Star.
  

17               Both the proposal and the Development
  

18   Agreement are incomplete and missing key information
  

19   needed to evaluate the plan and receive accurate input
  

20   from the public.
  

21               Next slide.
  

22               The plan puts a strain on a road
  

23   infrastructure that can't support it and will come at
  

24   the expense of the existing homeowners and Star
  

25   citizens.  Its dependent on the mitigation of many
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 1   roads that are either not funded for mitigation, do not
  

 2   have plans for mitigation, or just not possible to
  

 3   implement the mitigation required.
  

 4               Even ACHD acknowledges the problem with the
  

 5   road infrastructure in their April 27th letter, stating
  

 6   that with the Wing Road extension and the golf course
  

 7   traffic only 213 homes can be built before exceeding
  

 8   the local street traffic limits.
  

 9               It's concerning that the City staff report
  

10   only calls out a single minor recommendation, and that
  

11   is to slightly increase the size of the lots that abut
  

12   the existing homes in these neighborhoods.
  

13               Your current Comprehensive Plan shows this
  

14   as R-1, and Willowbrook should be required to have like
  

15   kind development at a minimum of 1 acre lots.  This
  

16   approach would resolve all issues.
  

17               So we're asking, please, require 1-acre
  

18   minimum lots for this development.  Deny the annexation
  

19   until we have the entire picture from Willowbrook.  Fix
  

20   the roads first and protect the residents -- current
  

21   residents and the citizens of Star with a well-written
  

22   Development Agreement.
  

23               We elected you to hold the vision of Star
  

24   so that we can trust this process.
  

25               Thank you.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  We have Ms. Abigail and
  

 2   then Mr. Greg Miller.
  

 3               I skipped you.  Sorry.  You're up here in
  

 4   the hole.  Sorry about that.
  

 5          ABI GERMAINE:  Good evening, Mr. Mayor, Members
  

 6   of the Council.  For the record, Abi Germaine with
  

 7   Elam & Burke, 251 East Front Street, Boise, Idaho
  

 8   83701.
  

 9               I'm here on behalf of the Hillsdale Estates
  

10   HOA, Homeowners' Association.  I will try and make my
  

11   comments very brief and not cover what's already been
  

12   discussed.
  

13               I would refer the Council to the comments
  

14   that were submitted by the HOA on April 24th.  That
  

15   gives a full outline of our position and some of the
  

16   issues that we're concerned with the application as
  

17   it's presented.
  

18               I would note that those comments were
  

19   submitted prior to some of the information that's
  

20   currently on the online site, so some of those comments
  

21   may be a little bit different based on that new
  

22   information.
  

23               There's three main themes I want to talk
  

24   about.  One is the lack of detail, the traffic issues,
  

25   and the water.
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 1               As it relates to the lack of detail, what
  

 2   we have before you this evening is a request for an
  

 3   annexation and a rezone and an approval of the
  

 4   Development Agreement.
  

 5               Based on the application that we have
  

 6   before us, I do not believe that the City Council can
  

 7   find that the requirements of an annexation and a
  

 8   rezone have been met because the Development Agreement
  

 9   and the conceptual Master Plan lack the details
  

10   necessary.
  

11               In Star City Code it specifically states
  

12   that in order to approve an annexation and rezone there
  

13   must be a Development Agreement, and it must show
  

14   building elevations, including front and rear, and a
  

15   concept plan.
  

16               The concept plan that's attached to this
  

17   application does not have sufficient detail for the
  

18   Council to appropriately condition it in order to
  

19   ensure that it meets the requirements.
  

20               In addition, the applicant has asked for
  

21   several conditional uses to be approved through the
  

22   Development Agreement.  We recognize that that's
  

23   allowable, that they don't have to come with the CUP,
  

24   they can do it through the Development Agreement.  But
  

25   again, there's not sufficient detail on what those
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 1   conditional uses will be.
  

 2               Tonight we even heard that the conditional
  

 3   use of the clubhouse will be changing to add the
  

 4   restaurant and to add the more commercial uses, and
  

 5   that hasn't even been considered by staff at this
  

 6   point.  So we would ask that the Council consider that
  

 7   when deciding whether or not to approve the Development
  

 8   Agreement this evening.
  

 9               As it relates to traffic, one thing that I
  

10   haven't heard discussed is that the traffic studies and
  

11   the agency reports do not address the impacts to the
  

12   roads actually within Hillsdale's Estates, so it looks
  

13   at the bigger ingress and egress roads and highways,
  

14   but it doesn't look at what's actually going to happen
  

15   if traffic has to go through Hillsdale Estates.
  

16               And then as it relates to water, I would
  

17   say that we did hear a lot more information from the
  

18   applicant as it relates to the reuse plan, but none of
  

19   that is really included in the actual application and
  

20   what is before the Council today.
  

21               So what we're doing is we're considering
  

22   how there might not be impacts to water in the future
  

23   if this kind of reuse program is approved.  And there's
  

24   a lot of condition -- there's a lot of permits and
  

25   approvals that they need in order to do that.  So today
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 1   we don't have any assurance that the Council is
  

 2   confident that the resources there to support this
  

 3   development exist.
  

 4               As has been noted, the Comp Plan that the
  

 5   staff has reviewed this under is the older Comp Plan.
  

 6   The Council, though, can certainly condition this in a
  

 7   way that meets the future Comp Plan.
  

 8               And with that, I would stand for any
  

 9   questions.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

11               We will go to Mr. Jim Junge.
  

12          JIM JUNGE:  This is an increasingly difficult
  

13   act to follow.  My name is -- my name is Jim Junge.  I
  

14   live at 24862 Valley Run Place, Star, Idaho.
  

15               I do not play golf.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  All right.  Let's go.
  

17          JIM JUNGE:  Excuse me.  I'm not going to be
  

18   redundant with all the numerous, excellent points.  I
  

19   just hope you folks are getting this and not paying lip
  

20   service to the people in this room, which is
  

21   unfortunately too often the case.
  

22               By the way, the traffic study that you
  

23   commissioned with Keller four years ago, okay, is
  

24   completely contrary to what our friends at Willowbrook
  

25   are trying to put across to you.  Okay?
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 1               The Keller report indicates many more
  

 2   vehicles on the affected roads than what Willowbrook is
  

 3   trying to lead you to believe.  That's important.
  

 4               The second thing here is I have a question.
  

 5   So we've heard about a lift station.  Where is the
  

 6   outfall line from that lift station going?
  

 7               I heard a nasty rumor that it was going to
  

 8   go down Purple Sage, through the front yards of some of
  

 9   the people on Purple Sage, cross Purple Sage, go
  

10   through the back yard of a number of people on Sage
  

11   Canyon Way.  It's a rumor.  I don't know.  I would like
  

12   you to find that out and address it, because that's
  

13   important.
  

14               Also, let me say, make a comment about
  

15   water.  I want to see if I have this straight.  So
  

16   Willowbrook wants to take the fresh water from the
  

17   aquifer and then replenish the aquifer with their
  

18   treated water.  And I -- I just -- I just find that
  

19   absolutely crazy.
  

20               Okay.  So to summarize and turn the mic
  

21   over to somebody else with something else to say, given
  

22   the lack of details.  Given the lack of -- I mean you
  

23   have the poster child for bad development here.  And
  

24   it's incumbent upon you to follow the law.
  

25               And with that, I'm going to quote
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 1   Councilman Nielsen from 2017.  "The will of the people
  

 2   is embodied in the Star City Code, Idaho State law, and
  

 3   Star's formally adopted Comprehensive Plan.  While it's
  

 4   normal that not everyone agrees with the laws of the
  

 5   land, the general will of the people is that elected
  

 6   officials follow the laws and adopted plans for
  

 7   growth."
  

 8               Okay.  What you've been presented with
  

 9   tonight, and will continue to be presented here, is a
  

10   plea for people, by people, for you to follow the law,
  

11   okay, and deny this application as it presently stands.
  

12               Thank you.
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

14               Okay.  Real quick, folks.  We have a
  

15   vehicle that's a Ford something that has a license
  

16   plate BUILT4U that is blocking a driveway, and it needs
  

17   to be moved or it's going to get towed, just so you're
  

18   aware.  You can't block somebody's driveway out there.
  

19   Okay?
  

20               All right.  I'm going to start with --
  

21   we're going to go to Mr. Greg Miller before I go to
  

22   Mr. Derrell, just because I accidentally skipped you.
  

23          GREG MILLER:  I have my speech in hard copy.
  

24               Do you want it for the record or --
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yes, the clerk would love your
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 1   copy for the record.
  

 2          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

 3          GREG MILLER:  Good evening.  My name is Greg
  

 4   Miller.  I live at 11950 West Deep Canyon Drive in
  

 5   Star.
  

 6               I could go on for a long time, but I will
  

 7   try to focus on just a couple aspects.  First of all,
  

 8   to be clear, I ask and encourage the Star City Council
  

 9   to not approve this annexation and related development.
  

10   I briefly want to touch on traffic and required road
  

11   changes if this development is approved.
  

12               There are quite a lot of streets that,
  

13   according to ACHD, would need to be reclassified and/or
  

14   widened.  One in particular is Star Road.  Right
  

15   outside.  It would need to be enlarged to five lanes.
  

16               To do so would mean the partial loss of two
  

17   community parks, the parking lots of the school, the
  

18   parking lots of two churches, including this one, and
  

19   the back yards or safe setback spaces of numerous
  

20   homes.  That's just on one street quite far from the
  

21   actual development, and it doesn't consider the
  

22   cumulative impacts of other developments in the city
  

23   either that are in progress and pending.
  

24               Most, if not all, of these road expansions
  

25   are just not feasible.  For that reason alone, this
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 1   project should be a common sense denial.
  

 2               I also want to share a personal experience.
  

 3   Before moving to Star, I lived in a golf course
  

 4   community in a semi-rural area on the edge of town.
  

 5   The third hole was directly across the street from our
  

 6   house.  And being at a higher elevation, that area had
  

 7   a great vantage of the city lights and views for many
  

 8   miles.
  

 9               The developer owned that golf course, as
  

10   well as a second golf course in another neighborhood
  

11   about 1.3 miles away.  It is very similar to our area
  

12   with another golf course nearby off Highway 16.
  

13               For a dozen or so years they maintained
  

14   both golf courses and even provided security to shoo
  

15   away non-customers, especially teens who tried to
  

16   gather on the hill on weekend nights.
  

17               Without any sign of trouble, the developer
  

18   announced that both golf courses weren't making money.
  

19   They closed them both down, and then immediately
  

20   submitted to redevelop both areas with multistory,
  

21   commercial, residential buildings, townhouses, and
  

22   homes much smaller and not in harmony with the
  

23   surrounding homes.
  

24               When the neighborhoods expressed their
  

25   displeasure of the redevelopment, the developer doubled
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 1   down by eliminating most maintenance, letting the
  

 2   fairways and cart paths get overrun with weeds and
  

 3   scrub and cancelling their security.
  

 4               In short order, that area became a teenage
  

 5   party zone.  Every weekend, non school night, and all
  

 6   summer long, large groups of teens arrived to hang out
  

 7   on the golf course, play music, drink alcohol, smoke,
  

 8   set off fireworks, and cause a general ruckus.  Every
  

 9   morning after, I would have to pick up it trash that
  

10   was thrown in the street and in my yard.
  

11               Neighbors called the police numerous times
  

12   for general dispersal.  I personally called the fire
  

13   department for one of two hillside fires that they
  

14   caused.  And I personally called the police to report a
  

15   group that brought and brandished a gun.
  

16               Golf is a consistently declining sport.  In
  

17   my personal experience, two nearby golf courses shut
  

18   down because they didn't make enough money to remain
  

19   viable.  Here Willowbrook is proposing a golf course as
  

20   a selling point just down the road from another golf
  

21   course that was a selling point.
  

22               I swear, developers must all attend the
  

23   same yearly trade show and convention.  Build a golf
  

24   course, run it for a dozen or so years, and then shut
  

25   it down and redevelop that land with even more crowded
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 1   housing to make even more money.
  

 2               Please do not annex this land into the City
  

 3   of Star and do not approve this development.
  

 4               Thank you.
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  All right.  So it's
  

 6   nine o'clock, guys.  We're going to take a five-minute
  

 7   recess to 9:05 to use the facilities, and then we'll
  

 8   get back to the public testimony.
  

 9               When we come in, we'll have Mr. Derrell
  

10   Foote and Lauralee Foote up here, and Ben Pelka, I
  

11   think.
  

12               (Recess.  Video file silent from 1:56:49 to
  

13          2:02:02.)
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Uh-huh.  Okay.  We're going to
  

15   call this meeting back to order.  It's 9:05.  And we
  

16   will move on with the public testimony.
  

17               Mr. Derrell Foote advised me that
  

18   everything has been said, what he wanted to speak, so
  

19   he does not want to speak.
  

20          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Derrell Foote.  So we'll move
  

22   on to, let's see, Mr. Ben -- I think it's Pelka.
  

23               Is that correct?  Okay.  And hang on one
  

24   second, sir.
  

25               Then we've got a Kim Yanecko, if you'd come
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 1   up here for me.
  

 2               And then Mr. Gordon Sonne, if you could
  

 3   come up here, sir, for me as well.
  

 4               All right, sir.  The floor is yours.
  

 5   Please state your name and address, please, again, for
  

 6   the record.
  

 7          BEN PELKA:  Ben Pelka, 2284 North Finsbury Way
  

 8   in Star.
  

 9               And I do not live up in that area.  I live
  

10   down here just off of Munger.  So I am not impacted by
  

11   what they're talking about, but I do appreciate the
  

12   immense burden that you are undertaking with this.
  

13               Is the project of value?  I think it is.
  

14   But after hearing everything, I'm coming up with two
  

15   conclusions.
  

16               One is there is a lot -- there are a lot of
  

17   unknowns that could really play into this whole thing.
  

18   The developer tells you one thing, and five years later
  

19   something else mitigates them doing it, and you have to
  

20   modify.  And then you end up what you didn't want.
  

21               The other thing is it looks like a great
  

22   development, but maybe it's in the wrong spot.  And I
  

23   really think that, that you're trying to stick an apple
  

24   in a bunch of oranges.
  

25               I do appreciate -- one of the things I

103

Section 5, Item A.



City Council Meeting - May 9, 2023
Audio Transcription

95

  

 1   thought of is, Jeez, what if I live there and I've got
  

 2   the -- I look at Top Golf and the lights, you know, as
  

 3   you come down the freeway.  What if you're by that
  

 4   driving range?  What is the, you know, light pollution
  

 5   going to be for you?
  

 6               I was joking around.  Maybe I would like
  

 7   four of those little, small homes.  And you know what?
  

 8   I'm going to put them out on VRBO.  Now I'm sure
  

 9   they've thought about that.  But I was in a condo
  

10   development over in Sparks, and it was really tough to
  

11   stop somebody from saying, "Well, you know what?  I
  

12   have a hardship.  I need to rent this out."
  

13               So is this going to be a development where
  

14   a lot of the property turns into rental property?
  

15               And the gentleman, I think, stated what I
  

16   was also thinking of, where do you stay?  You're not
  

17   going to attract somebody from Arizona or California or
  

18   something to come here and golf.  I just -- I really
  

19   don't see that.  I don't see that we have a destination
  

20   yet for that here.
  

21               So there are a lot of pieces to this that's
  

22   making me, even though I live down here, feel really
  

23   uncomfortable about what's being proposed up there.  So
  

24   just please consider it all.  You're very smart people.
  

25   I know you love Star every much as I do, and I've only
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 1   been here 18 months.  This is why I moved here.
  

 2               And I just hope that you go forward and
  

 3   have the wisdom to make the right decision.
  

 4               Thank you.
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

 6               Okay.  Ms. Kim, state your name and address
  

 7   for the record, please.
  

 8          KIM YANECKO:  It's a tough last name.  It was
  

 9   hard for me to marry into.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Hang on one second.
  

11               Then, Mr. Niles Nordquist, if you'd come up
  

12   here.
  

13               And, Mr. Doug Stewart, if you could come up
  

14   here, too, and sit down, that would be awesome.  Thank
  

15   you.
  

16               Okay.  Go ahead, ma'am.
  

17          KIM YANECKO:  My name is Kim Yanecko,
  

18   13038 Skyview Street in Nampa.
  

19               My husband is 30-year L.A. County sheriff.
  

20   I think behind me is probably a whole lot of people
  

21   that moved here from the C word, but that doesn't make
  

22   us bad people.  And I think actually there are a lot of
  

23   us who don't want to see Idaho changing like it's
  

24   changing.
  

25               What I'm seeing here tonight is a lack of
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 1   infrastructure or missing infrastructure before this
  

 2   development goes forward.  So I'm going to talk about
  

 3   police -- policing.
  

 4               How many sworn officers currently are on
  

 5   staff in Star?  11.  Ada County -- I could be wrong,
  

 6   but I believe 11, because I looked it up today.  Ada
  

 7   County Sheriff is contracted for law enforcement for
  

 8   services in Star.
  

 9               The police national average says 2.4 sworn
  

10   officers per 1,000 residents.  The current population
  

11   of Star is 12,912, according to the 2021 census, or
  

12   whatever the stats were that I got today on the
  

13   Internet.  That would mean that there should be 31
  

14   officers that represent Star.  And so you're already
  

15   down 20 officers.
  

16               What will that -- what would the population
  

17   be when the already-approved homes in Star are built?
  

18   National average per -- for residency is 3.15 persons
  

19   per household.  So to bring staffing just to current,
  

20   not including the homes that have already been
  

21   approved.  Retention equals pay, because we all know
  

22   it's hard to keep cops here, right, because there's
  

23   better pay elsewhere.  Unfortunately, Idaho is lacking
  

24   in salaries and benefits.
  

25               So the current salary for a three to
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 1   five-year experience plus benefits, do we know?
  

 2   Average is 68,000 in Ada County, not including
  

 3   benefits.  So times the 20 staff that you're under,
  

 4   that's 1.6 -- or $1.36 million.  One-time impact fees
  

 5   by this developer result in taxpayers absorbing the
  

 6   needed infrastructure to have proper policing.
  

 7               So people that move here expect that we are
  

 8   going to be covered properly for safety.  And I believe
  

 9   that's lacking all over this state.
  

10               So Willowbrook alone requires an additional
  

11   seven officers, 500,000 on top of the current deficit
  

12   and staffing, and an adjustment for already approved
  

13   growth, which I believe you guys haven't already
  

14   accounted for.
  

15               So who will police the community park that
  

16   they're trying to install and the -- the golf course
  

17   that they're talking about?  That has to be covered.
  

18   Kids will come up there.  That's just the way kids are.
  

19   I know.  I was one of them.  Don't tell my husband.
  

20               Policing budget is based on Ada County
  

21   salaries.  You have no control over those salaries, but
  

22   you're contracting them to do the work for you.  How
  

23   many additional hired already, approved development in
  

24   Star, how many of those have been already hired for the
  

25   homes that you've already approved?
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 1               These cops are here.  They're doing their
  

 2   job.  And they're risking their lives every single day.
  

 3   And it's not -- you guys are not protecting them, and
  

 4   you're not protecting your citizens.
  

 5               So real quick, all these people are here in
  

 6   opposition.  And the fact you have 800 people
  

 7   signing --
  

 8          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Time is up.  Time is up, ma'am.
  

 9          KIM YANECKO:  -- I think gives you the clue that
  

10   this is probably not the time or place for this
  

11   development.
  

12               Thank you very much.
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So I -- I'm going to invite you
  

14   after the hearing's over to call me and talk to me
  

15   about the policing, because we're very on top of the
  

16   policing in the City of Star.  So I would encourage you
  

17   after June 20th when this is all done, contact me, and
  

18   I'll give you a whole bunch of information on policing
  

19   in Star, because I'm passionate about that.
  

20               Okay.  Gordon, are you here?
  

21          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  He's right here.
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  There you are, sir.  The floor
  

23   is yours.
  

24               And we have Mr. Niles and Mr. Doug Stewart,
  

25   are you up here Mr. Doug?
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 1               Okay.  Go ahead, sir.
  

 2          GORDON SONNE:  Mr. Mayor, Council, Ladies and
  

 3   Gentlemen, my name is Gordon Sonne.  I live at
  

 4   12670 West Deep Canyon Drive, Star, Idaho.
  

 5               All the folks that spoke before me tonight
  

 6   have covered 99 and 9 percent of the issues that we are
  

 7   facing right now.  What I would ask you -- I'm going to
  

 8   get right to it.
  

 9               Don't go along with this annexation and
  

10   this R-2 zoning issue.  And I'll tell you why, among
  

11   others.  Too many unknowns, too many promises, and
  

12   quite frankly, I don't believe will ever be carried
  

13   out.
  

14               We -- this is about the fourth time we've
  

15   seen this movie, and it's always the same thing.
  

16   Things change, change, change, change, and it's always
  

17   the same thing.  Trust us now, annex us in, give us the
  

18   zoning, and we'll take care of it at a later date.
  

19   There's too many unknowns.  All the roads, all the lack
  

20   of infrastructure, schools, everything.  There's just
  

21   not enough of it in place right now.
  

22               If Willowbrook wants to build up here, let
  

23   them do all the infrastructure.  Let them build all the
  

24   roads.  Let them do everything they want to do, then
  

25   let them put in the golf course, and then see what goes

109

Section 5, Item A.



City Council Meeting - May 9, 2023
Audio Transcription

101

  

 1   from there.  I don't think it will happen.
  

 2               And I'll tell you something else.  It may
  

 3   not be accurate, but it was as of several months ago.
  

 4   I had a meeting with BLM, and at that particular point
  

 5   in time they didn't know anything about having a road
  

 6   out through the BLM.  They didn't know anything about
  

 7   it.  So I'm just saying, maybe things have changed in
  

 8   the last couple of months, but I don't think so.
  

 9               Lastly, because I live in Hillsdale, I'm
  

10   not in favor of this.  I realize the owner, this guy
  

11   Phillips, has a right to build on his property.  I
  

12   don't deny him that.  But what I will say is that think
  

13   about the residents of Star and what this is going to
  

14   do to them, along with the other how many, 7700 more
  

15   homes that are being built, and all the traffic that
  

16   that's going to introduce into Star.  Star is nothing
  

17   but a parking lot now.  How much worse can it get
  

18   before you can't even back out of your driveway?
  

19               And then, Mr. Mayor, I'm going to ask you
  

20   to recall a meeting that I came to, Niles came to, and
  

21   Scott from Hillsdale came to, and among the
  

22   conversations we had I asked you not once, but twice,
  

23   "Can the City Council make Willowbrook adhere to the
  

24   present day Comp Plan?"
  

25               You said not once, but twice, "We may."  In
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 1   other words, you can, but you didn't say that you
  

 2   wouldn't.  And I'm going to -- I took you at your word
  

 3   at that, that you may, the City Council may require
  

 4   Willowbrook to adhere to that -- to the new Comp Plan.
  

 5   I would ask that you do that.
  

 6               But first of all, until all these issues
  

 7   are cleaned up and there's more than just promises and
  

 8   "Trust me, I'll do this later on," make sure that all
  

 9   this is infrastructure.  If you go ahead and annex them
  

10   in that this infrastructure has taken place.
  

11               If they want to -- if they want to build up
  

12   there, let them stay in the county.  The question is,
  

13   why wouldn't they?  Because there's no money in it if
  

14   they have to stick to 1 acre per parcel.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

16          GORDON SONNE:  And I don't know about a golf
  

17   course.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  All right.  Thank you, sir.
  

19          GORDON SONNE:  Thank you.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Let's see.  We got
  

21   Mr. Niles.
  

22          NILES NORDQUIST:  Good evening.
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Just real quick, is Doug
  

24   Stewart here?
  

25               Okay.
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 1          NILES NORDQUIST:  Yeah.  Mayor, Councilmen,
  

 2   Councilpeople, Niles Nordquist, 4652 North Echo Summit
  

 3   Place, Star.
  

 4               You've heard a variety of different
  

 5   criticisms of what's been proposed here.  I would like
  

 6   to just focus on one aspect of it.  And I think it's
  

 7   primary to everything you're considering.
  

 8               Right now you have a golf course that's
  

 9   taking up one-quarter of the total site that you're
  

10   considering.  It's taking up one-third of all the
  

11   developable land you're considering.  And yet that
  

12   seems to have no influence on the number of homes
  

13   they're asking for.
  

14               The reality is this is a commercial
  

15   business.  It's no different than an office park or any
  

16   kind of other commercial development.  It is not
  

17   designated for residential development, period.  It's
  

18   not available for it.
  

19               You've heard the stories about what happens
  

20   when a golf course goes down.  If this whole thing
  

21   builds out and you have 1,094 homes here and the golf
  

22   course goes down, don't you think that developer is
  

23   going to come back in and say "Hey, I got R-2 zoning,
  

24   and I got 175 acres"?
  

25               What will the -- probably not -- you might
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 1   not be sitting in this Council at that time.  But what
  

 2   would that do to the traffic up there?
  

 3               So I urge you to have a complete
  

 4   reconsideration for how many homes are here, be it R-2
  

 5   or R-1, as your Comprehensive Plan has.  And you have
  

 6   the prerogative to ask for that R-1.  You have a reason
  

 7   why R-1 is in your current Comprehensive Plan.  And
  

 8   there's very good reasons.  There's reasons why things
  

 9   changed.  Stick with what you have.
  

10               Thank you very much.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.
  

12               Okay.  So we have David Welch is up, Russ
  

13   and Dorothy --
  

14          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Smerz.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- Smerz.  Okay.  Russ and
  

16   Dorothy Smerz, if you'd come up here.  And then Michael
  

17   Flanagan, please come up here as well.
  

18          DAVID WELCH:  Good evening.
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Mr. David Welch?
  

20          DAVID WELCH:  Yep.  I'm David Welch.
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

22          DAVID WELCH:  Good evening, Honorable Mayor,
  

23   Members of the City Council.  For the record, David
  

24   Welch.  I live at 4635 North High Prairie Place here in
  

25   Star, Idaho.
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 1               I am a Hillsdale Estate resident.  I
  

 2   actually don't really oppose the golf course.  I did
  

 3   write a previous letter on April 23rd that was
  

 4   submitted with your Council packet.  I hope you all had
  

 5   a chance to look at that, but briefly I'll provide some
  

 6   updates on that.
  

 7               My main concern really with this project is
  

 8   that you're building a bunch of small houses
  

 9   kitty-corner to my back yard, right where I live, on
  

10   Lanktree Gulch Road.  I won't be able to see the golf
  

11   course.  And it's not compatible with what's out there
  

12   already.
  

13               You've heard already tonight R-1.  Well,
  

14   guess what?  Your current Comprehensive Plan,
  

15   low-density residential, that's R-1, one lot per acre.
  

16   That's what we all want here.  That's what we're
  

17   looking for.
  

18               But, you know, this project here, there's
  

19   traffic impacts.  I mean ACHD has basically said, hey,
  

20   Lanktree Gulch Road will never be a collector.  There's
  

21   no mitigation for that, other than to redesign the
  

22   project or reduce the density.  That's what we're after
  

23   here.  Reduce the density.  We all want R-1.  That's
  

24   what we want.  And that's why I recommend that you
  

25   reject this proposal as currently planned.
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 1               However, if you're going to sell us
  

 2   Hillsdale Estates residents out, please, I beg you, do
  

 3   me a favor, at least take -- where all those patios are
  

 4   going to be right across from my view of the back yard,
  

 5   at least make them minimum half-acre lots.  At least
  

 6   that would be consistent with staff's recommendation
  

 7   for this project.
  

 8               And I don't have a pointer up there, but
  

 9   you can see all those homes in between High Prairie
  

10   Place and Ptarmigan Road are all patio homes there.
  

11   They're tiny.  They're not compatible with the
  

12   surrounding uses there.  So please, increase those to
  

13   larger lot sizes, and this might be more tolerable for
  

14   us.
  

15               But that's the reasons why I disagree with
  

16   this project, and I respectfully request that, you
  

17   know, Council take a look at planning to the current
  

18   Comprehensive Plan, which you approved last year.
  

19               Thank you for your consideration, and
  

20   please do us proud.  Make us proud Star citizens here.
  

21   Thank you very much.
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.
  

23               Mr. Russ.
  

24               Is Michael Flanagan here?
  

25               Oh, you're right there in the front.  Okay.
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 1               Russ, you've got the floor, sir.
  

 2               And then is Ms. Dorothy going to speak, or
  

 3   just you?
  

 4          RUSS SMERZ:  Dorothy is not going to speak.  She
  

 5   sent me up here.
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  She sent you up here.  Perfect.
  

 7               Okay.  And then we have Randy Biddle,
  

 8   please come up here as well, if you're here.
  

 9               Okay.  Go ahead, sir.
  

10          RUSS SMERZ:  Okay.  My name -- my name is Russ
  

11   Smerz.  I live at 4498 North High Prairie Place.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  And will you do me a favor and
  

13   spell your last name for the clerk.
  

14          RUSS SMERZ:  S-m-e-r-z.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.
  

16          RUSS SMERZ:  It's like Smurf, but Smerz.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Smerz.
  

18          RUSS SMERZ:  And I'd just like to make a point
  

19   of clarification for the audience here.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  But you've got to talk to the
  

21   phone.
  

22          RUSS SMERZ:  I --
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You can't speak to them.
  

24   You've got to speak to the Council, and they'll hear
  

25   you.
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 1          RUSS SMERZ:  Okay.  If you'll look at that map
  

 2   up there, all that green property is not Hillsdale
  

 3   Estates.  That surrounds Hillsdale Estates.
  

 4               So correct me if I'm wrong on this, you are
  

 5   not asking to annex Hillsdale Estates into the City of
  

 6   Star?
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Correct.  The current
  

 8   application does not annex in the current Hillsdale
  

 9   Estate folks.
  

10          RUSS SMERZ:  Okay.  Well, I just want to make
  

11   sure everybody understands that, because I think most
  

12   of the people here are from Hillsdale Estates.
  

13               A couple of quick comments.  This has been
  

14   going on for years.  Several years ago Willowbrook got
  

15   the support of Hillsdale Estates because they agreed in
  

16   a Development Agreement to do matching lots to current
  

17   lots, 1 acre to 1 acre, 2 acres to 2 acres, whatever.
  

18               Well, that's changed.  And now it's
  

19   half-acre lots to existing lots.  Not what we want.
  

20               The first exception that Willowbrook asked
  

21   for in their list up there was to change it from half
  

22   acre to whatever was necessary in order for this
  

23   project to make -- make money for them, I would assume.
  

24               So what we want to make sure is that if
  

25   we're going to go and get the support of Hillsdale
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 1   Estates, we want matching properties.
  

 2               Secondly, and they sort of blew by this
  

 3   one.  Not many people, I don't think, are familiar with
  

 4   the Pathways Project.  Pathways Project, folks, is a
  

 5   group of citizens in Ada County -- and again, you could
  

 6   correct me on this if I'm wrong -- who are developing a
  

 7   pathway, similar to the Greenbelt, as a matter of fact,
  

 8   it will attach to the Greenbelt, through Hillsdale
  

 9   Estates.  And that could go right through or by your
  

10   back yard.
  

11               And we're talking about whatever number of
  

12   people, dogs, whatever, going right alongside your
  

13   property that are not affiliated with Hillsdale
  

14   Estates.
  

15               So that's really all I -- I have.  I want
  

16   these folks to be aware what Pathways Project is
  

17   because it is going to impact us.  And to my knowledge,
  

18   very few of the citizens here from Hillsdale are aware
  

19   of it.
  

20               So I urge you not to vote yes on this
  

21   project --
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

23          RUSS SMERZ:  -- until we get clarification.
  

24               Thank you.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thanks, Mr. Russ.
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 1          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Sorry.  One question.
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Oh, okay.
  

 3               Mr. Russ, Ms. Jennifer has a question for
  

 4   you.
  

 5          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  So Pathways to Project,
  

 6   is that what you called it?
  

 7          RUSS SMERZ:  Yes.
  

 8          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  And where would one
  

 9   find information about this?
  

10          RUSS SMERZ:  The way I found out about it is
  

11   going to a City Council meeting.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So this is -- you're talking
  

13   about our Parks and Pathways Committee that -- or I'm
  

14   sorry, Transportation and Pathways Committee creating
  

15   our master pathway plan from the City.
  

16          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Oh.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Not some other project.
  

18          RUSS SMERZ:  Well, doesn't it do all of western
  

19   Ada County?
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  No.
  

21          RUSS SMERZ:  Is it just Star?
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  It's just Star, yes.
  

23          RUSS SMERZ:  Okay.  Well, we need to know what
  

24   that is.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yep.
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 1          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Okay.  So --
  

 2          RUSS SMERZ:  And in the presentation, their
  

 3   presentation, it was unclear it was just something else
  

 4   in addition to COMPASS, which I think most people are
  

 5   familiar with.  COMPASS is --
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  It's a regional planning --
  

 7   transportation planning agency, yes.
  

 8          RUSS SMERZ:  Right, which are going to put all
  

 9   of us on bicycles.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So this doesn't run -- our
  

11   stuff doesn't run through COMPASS on the Pathways.
  

12          RUSS SMERZ:  I'm sorry?
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Our stuff doesn't run through
  

14   COMPASS on the Pathways, just so you're aware.
  

15          RUSS SMERZ:  Well, Pathways definitely.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Not on the Pathways, it
  

17   doesn't.
  

18          RUSS SMERZ:  Okay, good.
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Just so you know.
  

20          RUSS SMERZ:  Good answer.
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  All right.
  

22          RUSS SMERZ:  Thank you.
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You're welcome.
  

24          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  So, Mayor Chadwick, I
  

25   would add, for anyone in the audience, if you're
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 1   interested, I believe you're referencing the City of
  

 2   Star Transportation and Pathway Committee.  And we do
  

 3   have a Master Pathway map.
  

 4               And so if you're interested in viewing
  

 5   that, you can go to the City of Star website and look
  

 6   at the -- and view the map.  So I will just put that
  

 7   info out there.
  

 8          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah.
  

 9          RUSS SMERZ:  Thank you.
  

10          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Thank you.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thanks, Russ.
  

12               Okay.  We've got Mr. Michael Flanagan.  And
  

13   we have Randy, Kelsey Roy -- Royball and Scott Emerich
  

14   down here in the hole.
  

15          MICHAEL FLANAGAN:  My name is Michael Flanagan.
  

16   And I'm at 12076 West Deep Canyon Drive in Star in this
  

17   part of Hillsdale.
  

18               I object to Willowbrook's development plan
  

19   as proposed.  Allowing a mixed-use development in this
  

20   residential area would be a mistake that would have
  

21   long-term negative consequences for the residents of
  

22   Star.
  

23               The subject area is nowhere near contiguous
  

24   to any current mixed-use parcels in the city of Star.
  

25   Allowing a mixed-use rezone would establish a precedent
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 1   in the City of Star, and would likely open the
  

 2   floodgates for additional developers to request
  

 3   mixed-use rezones in Star's areas of City's impact
  

 4   lands.
  

 5               Star's Comprehensive Plan states that the
  

 6   commercial ventures ought to be near major
  

 7   transportation corridors and other commercial areas.  A
  

 8   bar, a restaurant, and other commercial enterprises
  

 9   miles from downtown Star and State Highway 44 is
  

10   contrary to the precepts of Star's Comprehensive Plan.
  

11               The Star City Council recent zoning changes
  

12   specified that the Willowbrook property should be
  

13   developed with a single residential house per acre.  It
  

14   did not envision commercial ventures like those
  

15   proposed.  The Comprehensive Plan does not envision
  

16   another sea of roofs in these beautiful foothills.
  

17               Willowbrook's development proposal is akin
  

18   to the Kevin Costner movie Field of Dreams, "Build it
  

19   and they will come."  The "it" is the golf course.
  

20               In one of the earlier public information
  

21   meetings, Nate Mitchell, Willowbrook's spokesperson,
  

22   stated that the golf course was a breakeven affair.  He
  

23   said they would spend $20 million developing this
  

24   course.
  

25               It's obvious that this breakeven venture is
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 1   merely to attract people to purchase homes in a
  

 2   proposed Willowbrook Development and fill the coffers
  

 3   of the other planned commercial enterprises.  Doubtless
  

 4   many of the future owners of the patio homes
  

 5   surrounding the golf course will not be full-time
  

 6   residents, rather the owners will be renting out these
  

 7   patio homes on a nightly/weekly basis in order to fray
  

 8   the cost of acquisition and maintenance.
  

 9               In fact, these patio homes will likely be
  

10   investment properties for many owners, who expect to
  

11   gain positive cash flow from the rental of these units
  

12   and subsequent appreciation.
  

13               Is Willowbrook Development asking the
  

14   surrounding full-time property owners to endure ruckus
  

15   parties on the weekends where Treasure Valley high
  

16   schoolers, college students, young adults party it up
  

17   into the wee hours of the morning?  This is not what
  

18   should happen in an R-zoned neighborhood.
  

19               I imagine if Willowbrook Development
  

20   understood that these patio homes would not be
  

21   permitted, they would not invest the money to build a
  

22   golf course.  Star City Council is not in the business
  

23   of enabling business models.  Clearly this proposal is
  

24   a complex business model which requires all elements of
  

25   what they propose to be approved in order for them to
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 1   undertake this grand plan, starting with the golf
  

 2   course.
  

 3               Let this foothill area of Star be an
  

 4   example of a premier Treasure Valley residential
  

 5   neighborhood, not a Disneyland in the foothills of
  

 6   Southwestern Idaho.  The Treasure Valley is not like
  

 7   Detroit, Michigan, where cities needed to incentivize
  

 8   development.  I see no reason why there should be any
  

 9   deviations from the Comprehensive Plan as requested by
  

10   Willowbrook Development.
  

11               I feel it behooves the City of Star to
  

12   respond and address the varying issues raised by the
  

13   letter submitted by Elam & Burke, attorneys at law.
  

14   The City of Star, Ada County, and the State of Idaho is
  

15   a documented public process that must be followed.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Mr. Michael, your time's up.
  

17   Your three minutes is up.
  

18          MICHAEL FLANAGAN:  Thank you very much.
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Appreciate it.  Thank you.
  

20               So we got Mr. Randy.  Then we have Cash,
  

21   are you here still?  You're on -- on -- down here in
  

22   the hole, sir.
  

23          RANDY BIDDLE:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the City
  

24   Council, thank you for the opportunity to come before
  

25   you.
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 1               I have no prepared remarks this evening.
  

 2   And I want to commend all of the speakers who preceded
  

 3   me for their research, their articulate present- --
  

 4          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Oh, I'm sorry.  State your name
  

 5   and address -- it's been a long night already.  State
  

 6   your name and address for the record.
  

 7          RANDY BIDDLE:  Randy Biddle, B-i-d-d-l-e.  My
  

 8   wife and I live at 10623 West Wild Iris in Star.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

10          RANDY BIDDLE:  Just a few blocks from here.
  

11               Once again, I'd like to commend those who
  

12   spoke before me for their research, for their
  

13   thoroughness, for their passion, and for their
  

14   articulation in opposition of this patently absurd
  

15   project.  And I want to enjoin my voice with theirs in
  

16   serious opposition to this being approved.
  

17               On the one hand, I'm amazed that it made it
  

18   this far in your deliberations.  But on the other hand,
  

19   based on what my wife and I have experienced as nearly
  

20   six-year residents of Star, I'm not surprised at all.
  

21               Out of respect for the gentleman who
  

22   preceded me, sort of stole my thunder that this concept
  

23   of the golf course as a Field of Dreams project, I
  

24   think that's an apt metaphor.  I try to put myself in
  

25   the position not being a golfer, if I were a golfer,
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 1   would this be a destination for me?  And I think the
  

 2   answer is obvious.  Of course it wouldn't be.
  

 3               There are no other amenities.  There are no
  

 4   high-end restaurants.  There's no high-end shopping
  

 5   district.  There are no hotels.  There's no place to
  

 6   stay.  There's no place to park.  And to get here, I
  

 7   have to wrangle my way through all the traffic issues
  

 8   that this golf course has inflicted on the people who
  

 9   already live here.  So I think it's terribly
  

10   ill-advised.
  

11               And I would echo my friend Niles Nordquist,
  

12   who's been up here I think almost 14 years, I think
  

13   there's a very high likelihood that this golf course
  

14   will fail for the reasons I just mentioned.
  

15               People might come here once.  But are they
  

16   going to come here a second time to play golf?  They
  

17   got lots of other better choices for all the reasons I
  

18   listed.
  

19               So I think it's likely to fall into disuse,
  

20   which means the maintenance will degrade, and it will
  

21   be abandoned.  And as has been stated earlier, having
  

22   the benefit of the -- what is it? -- R-2 designation,
  

23   the developer owns the property, they can come back and
  

24   pepper it, carpet bomb it with as many houses as they
  

25   want to under that new R-2 ruling.
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 1               The last thing I'd like to say is that not
  

 2   much has been said by those of us who live south of
  

 3   Floating Feather.  And we will bear the burden that
  

 4   being downstream metaphorically of a bad idea, that we
  

 5   will bear that burden.  And I would hate to see that
  

 6   for the community.
  

 7               Star is poorly planned.  It's poorly
  

 8   executed.  And we need people who can do a better job.
  

 9               Thank you.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Let's see.  Ms. Kelsey.
  

11          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Everything's been said?  Okay.
  

13          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Royball, it's going to be on
  

15   this list right here.
  

16               Okay.  Scott Emerich, is he still here?
  

17               Surprising.
  

18               Okay.  Cash or John.  State your name and
  

19   address.
  

20          JOHN PICKENS:  My name is John Pickens.  My
  

21   address is 10200 West Scenic View Lane.
  

22               Mr. Mayor, City Councilmembers, thank you
  

23   for the time.
  

24               I own the property that Willowbrook wants
  

25   to cut through to make Star -- or Wing Road a
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 1   connector.  So mine is a tale of bait and switch,
  

 2   which, I know, it's a shocker.  Most developers never
  

 3   do that.
  

 4               But -- so Mr. Phillips purchased the
  

 5   5 acres behind me and has an easement up my driveway,
  

 6   which is great, to access his property.  And I was told
  

 7   it was just by him himself that, "Oh, we're just going
  

 8   to -- I just need it in case we need to put water and
  

 9   sewer up there."  Not a connector road that has, oh,
  

10   let's just be conservative and say 8,000 cars a day,
  

11   40 feet from my front door.  So you can understand
  

12   sometimes why I don't sleep at night when I think of
  

13   that.
  

14               And, you know, the rest everyone says it so
  

15   well.  The traffic is crazy, and that's just what we
  

16   need more of.
  

17               Anyways, thank you for your time.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

19               Do we have Bob Lenigan?
  

20               You're up next.
  

21               We have Christine Welch, and then Ron
  

22   Stout, if you could come up here to these seats,
  

23   please.
  

24          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yes, you're up, sir.  Yeah,
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 1   absolutely.  Okay.  Hang on a second.  You got to come
  

 2   to the microphone for us.  State your name and address
  

 3   for the record and then --
  

 4          BOB LENIGAN:  Bob Lenigan, 10605 West Deep
  

 5   Canyon Drive.  Twinkle, twinkle.
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Go ahead.
  

 7          BOB LENIGAN:  Okay.  I'm 100 percent opposed to
  

 8   this proposal.  Number one, it's an open contract.  And
  

 9   if there's anything that you guys should know, it's
  

10   business.  And there's nothing in there that makes them
  

11   do anything.  Nothing.  You're insulting us.
  

12               I'm an old businessman.  I had -- I did
  

13   pretty well.  I retired at 52.  And I did capital
  

14   equipment.  You guys are just -- you -- you people are
  

15   all like Californians.  High density, love that high
  

16   density, no respect for what we had.
  

17               This is an open contract.  I remember when
  

18   I came here over 20 years ago there was a little sales
  

19   office down the road here.  And in there there was the
  

20   plat.  And the plat said that there was going to be 5
  

21   and 10-acre for the rest of the material -- the rest of
  

22   the project.
  

23               You guys are -- you go look at history,
  

24   because what you guys are doing is wrong, damn wrong.
  

25   And I came out here from Connecticut.  And I had high
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 1   density.  And I came out here to enjoy the countryside.
  

 2   And then you guys come in here with your California
  

 3   attitudes, and it stinks.
  

 4               I'm sorry, but I'm -- I'm an old fart, and
  

 5   I'm just damn sick and tired of this type of bullshit.
  

 6   Excuse my French.  We don't need it.  We don't need any
  

 7   of this.
  

 8               And if you annex Hillsdale, think of how
  

 9   many people are here.  And they'll be thinking of you.
  

10               That's it.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.  All right.  Guys,
  

12   like I said, civility.
  

13               Okay.  We have Ms. Christine.
  

14          CHRISTINE WELCH:  Good evening.  I'm Christine
  

15   Welch.  Address is 4635 North High Prairie Place.
  

16               And Honorable Mayor and Councilpeople,
  

17   thank you for letting me be here to speak tonight.
  

18               I went to the trouble of making signs for
  

19   the protest.  It was going to be a mostly peaceful and
  

20   slightly fiery protest.  And my favorite one is back in
  

21   the corner.  It says, "Please don't Californicate
  

22   Star."
  

23               So on that line, I just wanted to hold up
  

24   this sign, which says, "Hold the Vision, Trust the
  

25   Process."  This is from Star's own, you know, City
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 1   page.  So hold the vision, trust the process.
  

 2               When I look at the Willowbrook Master Plan,
  

 3   I don't see a process.  I see greed.  It's the greed of
  

 4   a developer.  And I understand it's a business and
  

 5   things have to pencil, but does he have to be so
  

 6   greedy?
  

 7               I just don't see that this development fits
  

 8   with our neighborhood.  Again, it's putting apples --
  

 9   it's surrounded -- we're surrounded with a totally
  

10   different neighborhood than what they want to include
  

11   now.  And all of the issues, every single issue would
  

12   go away if they just zoned it as R-1.  It's like R-1 is
  

13   the magic number.
  

14               So I realize that the developer can by
  

15   right build, and I realize that you're all favorable to
  

16   the development because tax reasons.  I understand how
  

17   the world works, and I understand that oligarchy is a
  

18   thing.
  

19               But it would be nice to have the voice of
  

20   the people heard.  And the people are saying please, do
  

21   not approve this in its current form because it just
  

22   doesn't fit and it -- the density does not work.
  

23               So thank you for your time.
  

24          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Ron Stout.
  

25               And then we have, let's see, Steven, is it
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 1   Prichlin?  Lives on Echo Summit.
  

 2          STEVEN PACKARD:  It's Packard.
  

 3          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  You're down here, sir.
  

 4               And then Pam Slendorn.  You're over here as
  

 5   well.
  

 6               All right, sir.  Please state your name and
  

 7   address for the record.
  

 8          RONALD STOUT:  Ronald Stout, 6227 Purple Sage
  

 9   Road.
  

10               And to the gentleman who didn't like
  

11   California ideas, I'm from California also, and I'm
  

12   against this project.  We live on Purple Sage, and in
  

13   the last year three homes sold across the house -- or
  

14   the road from us, and they sold for 1.1 and
  

15   1.6 million.  And widening that road and taking part of
  

16   our property will have an impact on us.  And who will
  

17   compensate for the decrease in property values?
  

18               And I come a little bit experienced with
  

19   that.  We come from California.  I had a beautiful
  

20   walnut ranch right on the Kings River.  Jerry Brown's
  

21   high-speed train came through.  It was projected to
  

22   start in 2012.  Supposed to be up and running.  They
  

23   don't even have the middle third done yet.  We fought
  

24   them for four years.  They only wanted to pay for the
  

25   7 acres that ran through our property.
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 1               They bought the whole farm.  And we got an
  

 2   attorney out of our law firm who is excellent out of
  

 3   Las Vegas, eminent domain, and they paid for
  

 4   everything.  The train came a quarter of a mile from
  

 5   our house, noise from the train, the vibration in the
  

 6   ground, they compensated everything.
  

 7               Who's responsible for the fees if there's
  

 8   litigation?  Is it going to be the taxpayers or the
  

 9   City of Star to defend the Council's decision, or will
  

10   it be the developer who's trying to widen these roads
  

11   to five lanes?
  

12               I see that they're paying the City impact
  

13   fees for fire and sewer and police, but there's no
  

14   compensation to the property owners for the impact on
  

15   their lives.
  

16               That's all I have to say.  And I'll be glad
  

17   to talk to anyone about my experience with eminent
  

18   domain.
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

20               Mr. Steven.  Please, when you -- spell your
  

21   last name, too, when you're up here, sir.
  

22          STEVEN PACKARD:  Steven Packard, P-a-c-k-a-r-d.
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Well, that's easy to say.  I
  

24   just couldn't read it.
  

25          STEVEN PACKARD:  Thank you, Mayor and Council.
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 1               I live on 6052 North Echo Summit Lane.
  

 2               I've listened to all the testimony.  I --
  

 3   I'm an Idaho native, born and raised.  That's not a big
  

 4   issue with me.  We're all neighbors, and I love my
  

 5   neighbors up there.  I don't know if anybody's really
  

 6   looked at this.
  

 7               So my question is, I live there.  My
  

 8   question would be to the Council:  Have you drove up
  

 9   Deep Canyon Lane?  Any of you, have you drove up there?
  

10   It's beautiful, but it's a windy road.  If you look at
  

11   this, there's not a straight road up there.  And it's
  

12   bordered by BLM land.
  

13               And 16, our neighbors to the north in
  

14   Emmett, it's increasing traffic.  And I can't even
  

15   imagine 1200 more cars coming down Deep Canyon Lane to
  

16   get on 16.  It will be backed up to my house.  But it's
  

17   a wonderful idea.  I'm just saying that it should stay
  

18   with R-1.  There's -- it's just not a grid.  It just
  

19   doesn't fit.
  

20               Thank you.
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  All right.  Thank you.  Thank
  

22   you.
  

23               Is this still on?  Can you guys still hear
  

24   me?  Okay.
  

25               All right.  Ms. Pam.  And then hang on one
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 1   sec here.
  

 2               Mr. Dave Blanchat.
  

 3          DAVE BLANCHAT:  Everything's been said already.
  

 4          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

 5          PAM SLENDORN:  Before you start my time, I
  

 6   wanted to --
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Well, we're not starting your
  

 8   time yet.
  

 9          PAM SLENDORN:  Oh.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So hang on one sec here.  They
  

11   shouldn't start your time yet.
  

12          PAM SLENDORN:  No, not yet.
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  And then, Kenneth
  

14   Richardson, come up here, please.  And then Kathleen
  

15   Northrop.
  

16               Okay.  Go ahead, ma'am.  State your name
  

17   and address for the record.
  

18          PAM SLENDORN:  Well, I just want to say that I'm
  

19   pointing out those where all the houses want to be
  

20   built, like --
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You got to state your name and
  

22   address first for the record.
  

23          PAM SLENDORN:  Pam Slendorn, 5089 North Golden
  

24   View Court, of course Star, or I wouldn't be here.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
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 1          PAM SLENDORN:  Okay.  So the Idaho code.  The
  

 2   Idaho statute code regarding the property rights
  

 3   component requires an analysis of provisions which must
  

 4   be necessary to ensure that land-use politics,
  

 5   policies, restrictions, conditions, and fees do not
  

 6   violate private property rights, adversely impact
  

 7   property values, or create unnecessary technical
  

 8   limitations on the use of property and analysis, as
  

 9   prescribed under the Declarations of Purpose in
  

10   Chapter 80, Title 67, Idaho Code.
  

11               Background analysis:  Private property
  

12   rights encompass not only the right to develop, invest,
  

13   achieve, and profit from property, but also the right
  

14   to hold and enjoy property.  Property rights must
  

15   balance the individual's desire to do whatever I want
  

16   with my land with the respect for the property rights
  

17   of neighboring owners.  And that's your Idaho statute
  

18   code.
  

19               This is the -- outside the golf course,
  

20   this is the first where a proposed subdivision is
  

21   completely coming in, taking over, and intertwining in
  

22   another subdivision.  Normally a sub would abut another
  

23   sub on flat land, but this one completely affects all
  

24   the roads and canyons and way of life for over 350-plus
  

25   homes and natural habitat in the -- in the canyons, and
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 1   not only Star streets and the traffic.
  

 2               Most of the areas where they want to put
  

 3   the homes are in deep canyons, some of which have never
  

 4   been walked on and are typically not flat development
  

 5   land.  They are deep canyons, some in excess of
  

 6   25 percent.  We have roads that are not very wide, are
  

 7   curvy, no sidewalks, no solid fences, and no
  

 8   streetlights, homes abutting the canyon with wildlife
  

 9   and natural habitat.
  

10               It is not conducive to the amount of homes
  

11   they want to build within the existing subdivision.
  

12   There also has been no study done on the impact of the
  

13   roads within the existing subdivision.  This also
  

14   completely would devalue their property.
  

15               City's that still need to be done:  Soil or
  

16   engineering tests done in the canyons where the homes
  

17   they want to build abutting the other homes are pretty
  

18   steep, water drainage studies.  We also have water
  

19   drainage easements where they have proposed housing.
  

20               There has been no study done on the impact
  

21   of the roads within the existing subdivision.  So all
  

22   those windy roads you see in and out and no sidewalks,
  

23   there has been no study done on these roads for
  

24   traffic.  And you're talking -- we have within the two
  

25   fingers there, there's only like not even 250 homes,
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 1   and then you want to put the other fingers, you want to
  

 2   put over -- what did we say? -- 1400 homes, and then
  

 3   you want to put them on all these little roads with no
  

 4   sidewalks, no streetlights, and people can't even ride
  

 5   their bikes now, and you want to put all that traffic
  

 6   in on there.
  

 7               So I'm telling you this is not only
  

 8   dangerous to children and pedestrians, but the
  

 9   community.
  

10               Oh, dammit.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  That's time.
  

12          PAM SLENDORN:  Can I just conclude?  Just my
  

13   conclusion, just really quick.
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  No, that's okay.  No.  You get
  

15   three minutes.  But I would suggest that you just hand
  

16   that over to the clerk --
  

17          PAM SLENDORN:  I know.  But let me just say --
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- so we can include it in the
  

19   record.
  

20          PAM SLENDORN:  -- if you don't approve --
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  No.  Ma'am, ma'am, no.  It's
  

22   three minutes, and that's it.  I'm sorry.  So you could
  

23   hand that to the clerk.  Thank you.
  

24               Okay.  Mr. Dave Blanchat.  Oh, I'm sorry,
  

25   you already told me that.  I apologize.
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 1               Kenneth Richardson.
  

 2          KENNETH RICHARDSON:  Thank you, Mayor and
  

 3   Council.
  

 4               Kenneth Richardson, 11370 West Lanktree
  

 5   Gulch Road.
  

 6               If I owned the property, I'd want to
  

 7   develop it.  I do love golf.  A golf course will not
  

 8   work there.  I'm flying to Ireland actually Monday to
  

 9   play golf.  I come from California.  I've seen golf
  

10   courses just fail.  Okay?
  

11               If this golf course was so great, there
  

12   should have been a Harvard Business School study to
  

13   prove how fantastic this resort area would be.  And if
  

14   you Google right now, you'll find six Tom Weiskopf's
  

15   public golf courses, and most of them are in resort
  

16   areas that offer skiing or some other type of
  

17   entertainment.
  

18               So the driving range will be right abutting
  

19   my 10 acres, along with the maintenance shed.  Okay?
  

20   I've been on a lot of golf courses.  They put the
  

21   maintenance shed and the driving range near the
  

22   clubhouse, at a lower part of the clubhouse so that
  

23   they can get food and everything else.  So I don't even
  

24   understand this design.
  

25               Number 18 or whatever I'm on, the traffic,
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 1   the studies, are just ridiculous, because you are in
  

 2   la-la land.  I mean I would just advise you and your
  

 3   traffic people to go down and watch the rodeo and see
  

 4   what that traffic does on 16.  That's what you need to
  

 5   go do --
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Please.
  

 7          KENNETH RICHARDSON:  -- if you want to get a
  

 8   real study.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Hey, people online can't hear
  

10   you speaking when you're clapping.  Let him finish his
  

11   comments, please.
  

12          KENNETH RICHARDSON:  As far as the water goes, I
  

13   just went down another hundred feet to hit water.
  

14   Okay?  So I was at 380.  Now I'm at 480.  Okay?  So
  

15   when you say your water study's not going to be an
  

16   issue, there will be an issue.  Okay?
  

17               And this is all preliminary.  Once --
  

18   once -- if you approve this, once you -- if you do,
  

19   then the litigation's really going to start.  Okay?
  

20   Because that's when you're going to find out that
  

21   you're not meeting code, you're overriding your
  

22   decision and your legal obligations.
  

23               So I just -- you know, everybody that's
  

24   done the work before that brought in all the legal
  

25   documentation, I appreciate it.  But if this gets
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 1   approved as is, that just is going to start.  I'm
  

 2   all -- I'm all for R-1.  If I owned it, I would develop
  

 3   it.  I get it.  You know, my constitutional right.  You
  

 4   actually created my constitutional right to pursue my
  

 5   happiness.  That's why I bought that house.
  

 6               I have horses, I love to hunt, I love to
  

 7   fish, and I love golf.  Right?  So you created my
  

 8   pursuit under the constitution to pursue my happiness.
  

 9   Right?  Now you get to pursue yours also, but keep it
  

10   under R-1.
  

11               Thank you very much.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.
  

13               Okay.  Ms. Kathleen Northrop.
  

14          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  And then I also -- what?
  

16          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  What was his name
  

17   [unintelligible]?
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah.
  

19          KENNETH RICHARDSON:  It was Kenneth Mark
  

20   Richardson.
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah.  Kenneth Richardson,
  

22   11370 West Lanktree Gulch Road.
  

23          KENNETH RICHARDSON:  Yes.
  

24          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  We got Ms. Kathleen and
  

25   then we have -- is it Marci Miller?  Are you still
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 1   here?
  

 2               Okay.  And then we have -- that was all the
  

 3   sign-ups.
  

 4               All right, Ms. Kathleen.  State your name
  

 5   and address, please, for the record.
  

 6          KATHLEEN NORTHROP:  Kathleen Northrop,
  

 7   11334 West Collina Vista Drive in Star.
  

 8          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Go ahead.
  

 9          KATHLEEN NORTHROP:  Thank you, sir.
  

10               Mr. Mayor and the Council, I wanted to
  

11   bring up some present, current day things for
  

12   consideration.
  

13               We live in Collina Vista, which is right
  

14   off New Hope road, which is adjacent to Wing, Beacon
  

15   Light, and just down the street from Can-Ada.
  

16               Current state, there are seven subdivisions
  

17   that are started, not completed, broke ground on Beacon
  

18   Light itself.  There are two on New Hope.  If you just
  

19   do an average of 100, you're looking at 900 homes right
  

20   there.  That's already been approved.  That's in
  

21   progress that's going to be using those roads.
  

22               So that traffic impact is huge before
  

23   taking on this project.  And these roads, there was no
  

24   timeline presented here.  We have no status.  So as the
  

25   question -- first question out of the box would be the
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 1   roads to support this influx of traffic to support this
  

 2   project, when would those be developed?  We don't even
  

 3   have enough right now from what we've got.  How are we
  

 4   going to support that?
  

 5               And the second thing I was going to bring
  

 6   up was with respect to fire.  There's supposed to be a
  

 7   fire station going in at Plummer and Floating Feather.
  

 8   That has not even broken ground yet.
  

 9               We experienced a construction fire up by
  

10   Collina Vista.  Response time was seven-and-a-half
  

11   minutes.  If you put in the hundred -- the 900 homes,
  

12   the oncoming traffic, currently we don't have Brandon,
  

13   but all of those traffic obstacles, and you don't have
  

14   a fire station, which I'm guessing is probably going to
  

15   be another 18 months to two years, you're probably
  

16   looking at ten-minute response times, as opposed to the
  

17   current seven-and-a-half minute response times.
  

18               So those are things' current state, if you
  

19   could please take into consideration, because we're not
  

20   in support of the project.  We like the country
  

21   atmosphere that we have here with our neighbors.
  

22               Thank you very much.
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.  All right.
  

24   Marci Miller.  She's not here.  All right.
  

25               And we are done with the against.  We have
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 1   a whole bunch of folks that will be part of the record
  

 2   with their names and addresses for Jacob later on
  

 3   there.
  

 4               We're going to do a five-minute recess
  

 5   again for a facilities break before we head into the
  

 6   next group of letters -- I'm sorry, speakers.  So at
  

 7   10:01, we'll recess until 10:01.  It's 9:56.
  

 8               (Recess.  Video file silent from 2:54:03 to
  

 9          3:00:00.)
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I just got to wait a second for
  

11   Shawn to get up here.
  

12               Excuse me.  It's 10:03, and we're going to
  

13   resume the public hearing process.  We're on to the
  

14   neutral sheet here.
  

15               I do have Michael Keyes will be up, and
  

16   then Chris Todd, and then a Peter Albinsen, I believe,
  

17   then Steve Burton and Nita Metro.  If you could all
  

18   just come up here to the front.  That's all we have
  

19   left to testify.  That would be fantastic.
  

20               Is Chris here or -- are you going to come
  

21   up here to the front?
  

22          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I'm sorry?
  

24          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  That was at the very beginning,
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 1   and there was nobody that signed up, correct.
  

 2               Okay.  All right.  Mr. Michael, if you'd
  

 3   please state your name and address, please, for the
  

 4   record.  And then Shawn will get the timer going.
  

 5          MICHAEL KEYES:  Honorable Mayor and Council, my
  

 6   name is Michael Keyes.  I live at 338 South Long Bay
  

 7   Way.  And unlike the vast majority of people you've
  

 8   heard tonight, I actually live in the city limits of
  

 9   Star.
  

10               Now, there can be no doubt that this area
  

11   will eventually be developed.  Star's future limits --
  

12   Star's future city limits are well defined on three
  

13   sides, and it's only logical that the City gains
  

14   developmental control of the parcels related to this
  

15   project to control Star's very destiny and ability to
  

16   grow for decades to come.
  

17               But there's a giant something or other in
  

18   the punch bowl here.  The TIS and the ACHD staff report
  

19   bring up many troubling issues that must have defined
  

20   resolution before this project is approved in its
  

21   current configuration.
  

22               Ironically, Mr. Phillips and Mr. Mitchell
  

23   have both had a role in the decades-long history of
  

24   defining our current inadequate transportation planning
  

25   in that area.
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 1               However, in my opinion, they've done an
  

 2   admirable job in marshaling the agencies and doing the
  

 3   infrastructure planning for most other areas of the
  

 4   project.  The issue of supplying police and fire
  

 5   protection, utilities, electricity, gas, telecom,
  

 6   municipal water and sewer, and irrigation water have
  

 7   been addressed, and reasonable plans are in place to
  

 8   accommodate them.
  

 9               The agencies and other entities that must
  

10   do so are on board and are able to perform.  And
  

11   certainly schools and school overcrowding are an issue,
  

12   but there are definable, though not trivial, paths
  

13   forward to address those.  One outstanding issue
  

14   regarding schools, though, is the location of an
  

15   elementary school parcel within the project.
  

16               And, Mr. Mayor, you mentioned earlier about
  

17   guaranteeing a parcel, and I hope you'll follow through
  

18   on that.
  

19               The sole outlier, though, is that there's
  

20   still no reasonable defined path forward for the
  

21   Willowbrook area transportation network.  This Council
  

22   must take steps to ensure that an adequate
  

23   transportation plan is in place to accommodate whatever
  

24   project and whatever configuration moves forward in
  

25   this area.
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 1               While I'm in favor of the City gaining
  

 2   developmental control over the project area, I'm
  

 3   neither in favor nor opposed to the particular project.
  

 4   But I'm adamantly opposed to any project moving forward
  

 5   in this area without an adequate transportation network
  

 6   being well defined.
  

 7               Now, I heard some comments earlier, and I
  

 8   wanted to address a couple things.  When it was asked
  

 9   if this was in the best interest of the City, I think
  

10   that the City maintaining a growth path to its north I
  

11   think is in the best interest of the City.
  

12               Wing Road being extended through the
  

13   current City park, if that happens, could be an issue.
  

14   I know three of you were here when the City made a
  

15   commitment to not do that.  If you decide to change
  

16   that, I hope that the citizens of Star get something
  

17   really good in return in that detail.
  

18               If we do put a road through the BLM land, I
  

19   certainly hope that we can maintain our ability to go
  

20   out there and still do target practice.
  

21               And there was some discussion about the
  

22   golf course being redeveloped.  And in order to prevent
  

23   a bait and switch -- and I'm sure a developer will say
  

24   that will never happen.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Time's up, Mr. Michael.
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 1          MICHAEL KEYES:  Please consider having the
  

 2   developer dedicate the redevelopment, redevelopment
  

 3   rights to the future HOA.
  

 4               Thank you.
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So if you don't mind, pass that
  

 6   in to Mr. Jacob.  Oh, that looks like it's tied.
  

 7               Okay.  All right.  Chris Todd.
  

 8          CHRIS TODD:  Evening, Mayor, Council, Chris
  

 9   Todd, 10497 West Deep Canyon Drive.
  

10               I have the privilege of living on one of
  

11   the busiest roads within Hillsdale.  My lot is across
  

12   from the equestrian center near some of these
  

13   transition lots.
  

14               I'm here to ask that if this project is
  

15   approved that the lots that surround Hillsdale are true
  

16   mirrored lot sizes of what's currently there.
  

17               I'd also ask that the housing be designated
  

18   as R-1.  The reason for that, I think it will give the
  

19   Weiskopf group an opportunity to come in and actually
  

20   redesign a course that meets a championship-level or
  

21   tournament-level golf course.  I've been lucky to play
  

22   golf my entire life.
  

23               I want to go with Ken on Monday, if you
  

24   have any extra room.  I'm a good caddy.
  

25               The plan that Willowbrook has shown is very

148

Section 5, Item A.



City Council Meeting - May 9, 2023
Audio Transcription

140

  

 1   basic, I would say bland, not a tournament-style golf
  

 2   course.  I would say it's more similar to Eagle Hills
  

 3   than maybe a Banbury or a Spurwing.  I think that the
  

 4   site lays itself out properly for some elevated and
  

 5   planning of the golf course to take into accord some of
  

 6   the land that they're not using to the southeast.
  

 7               Also, the natural draws to the north of the
  

 8   current Deep Canyon lend itself to par 3s or par 4s
  

 9   similar to what's at Quail Hollow.  All of these
  

10   things, I think, could be roughed out and looked at in
  

11   a different way.
  

12               The course, as it is right now, has 16 out
  

13   of 18 holes that are fronted on -- or both sides of the
  

14   hole have homes on them.  I know that some of my
  

15   friends would be taking out windows at least every
  

16   nine.
  

17               Highway 16, I've been a canary in the coal
  

18   mine on this since I moved into the city of Star eight
  

19   years ago from the big city of Eagle.  Highway 16 is a
  

20   killer highway.  The environmental study has not been
  

21   completed.  We hear rumors that it might be funded, but
  

22   it hasn't commenced.
  

23               The improvements and connections to Aerie
  

24   Way and Spring Valley to the east need to be vetted,
  

25   studied, and an actual plan to be presented to the City
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 1   so they can understand what this transportation route
  

 2   will look like in the future.
  

 3               The transfer of BLM land and working with
  

 4   the federal government is a time-consuming process, and
  

 5   I come out of experience with that.
  

 6               There is vested interest, I understand, to
  

 7   develop to the north and to maintain the City's natural
  

 8   progression to the north, as well as to our governor's
  

 9   land that's between Chaparral and Deep Canyon for
  

10   future extension along that Purple Sage or Aerie Way
  

11   connection.  This connection needs to be shown as an
  

12   actual plan to the City.
  

13               With that, I stand for any questions.
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

15               All right.  We have Mr. Peter Albinsen.
  

16          PETER ALBINSEN:  Mr. Mayor, Councilmen, my
  

17   name's Peter Albinsen.  I live at 11951 West Lanktree
  

18   Gulch.
  

19               And I came in here as neutral.  And after
  

20   hearing a lot of the very well done research a lot of
  

21   these folks have done, I am not at all neutral anymore.
  

22   It's -- it doesn't make any sense.  And I've always
  

23   known that.
  

24               I came here 25 years ago.  I'm a native
  

25   Idahoan.  I just finally, you know, made enough money
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 1   to buy some land.  And everybody thought I was crazy,
  

 2   because Star was just a little blinking light there at
  

 3   the intersection.
  

 4               And I was amazed to see the old farmers
  

 5   sitting, you know, in their -- those little folding
  

 6   chairs, you know in the Star Merc drinking the coffee.
  

 7   And I'd just look at them and go, Wow, Pheasant
  

 8   Hunters' Breakfast was coming and all these fun things.
  

 9   And it was just really neat and special.
  

10               And, you know, it's just a little dopey
  

11   Idaho town.  And it should stay that way.  You know, we
  

12   don't have to be big boys here.  We can have a nice,
  

13   little, country town and try to maintain some of that
  

14   rural feel, you know.  We really ought to think about
  

15   it.  A little -- just this is your chance to really be
  

16   the -- you know, not the -- I'm trying to think of the
  

17   word here.  It's getting late.  I should be in bed.
  

18               But it's really and truly your guys' chance
  

19   to, you know, keep Star and make it a real destination
  

20   type of place, not a destination place for people to
  

21   all come live, because when I was here, nobody was
  

22   here.  And now you all are here, and it's changed
  

23   dramatically.
  

24               But the biggest thing is if you just look
  

25   at that land it should definitely be R-1 at the most,
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 1   because development's going to happen.  It's
  

 2   inevitable.  We all know that.  It's just going to
  

 3   happen.
  

 4               This thing is a boondoggle of money, and
  

 5   not a lot of real, you know, knowledge of what's really
  

 6   going to happen, because they're kind of
  

 7   crystal-balling it on a lot of things.
  

 8               And Hillsdale, hills and dales and twisties
  

 9   and turns, and it's gnarly.  I drive 25 through
  

10   Hillsdale because I live in Monument, and the neighbors
  

11   look at me like, You're speeding, you know.
  

12               No, I'm going 25.  Well, it seems like you
  

13   are because you got these quick, little turns and, you
  

14   know, it's -- it's just not meant for all of this.  It
  

15   really isn't.
  

16               I have to pull out of Lanktree Gulch onto
  

17   Can-Ada, people come booming down that road, and they
  

18   can't see us up there, and they're hauling ass, and I'm
  

19   pulling out because it looks clear, and then bam, there
  

20   he is, deer in the headlights.  Right?  It just doesn't
  

21   make sense.  Can-Ada Road is nuts.
  

22               And Lanktree Gulch, when I pull out of my
  

23   house it's a bunch of blind hills.  When I was teaching
  

24   my daughter to drive, all I kept saying is "Blind hill,
  

25   blind hill.  Watch it, watch it, watch it.  Stay to the
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 1   right.  Come on."
  

 2               You know, so we really ought to stick to
  

 3   the R-1.  And until there's adequate roads and smart
  

 4   things --
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Time is up.  Thank you.
  

 6          PETER ALBINSEN:  -- all the roads north, far
  

 7   north roads.
  

 8          MAYOR CHADWICK:  All right.  Mr. Steve Burton.
  

 9          STEVE BURTON:  So did Council get my e-mail?
  

10   You guys have it?
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Wait.  Yes.  It's in our
  

12   packet.
  

13          STEVE BURTON:  Okay.  So Steve Burton,
  

14   6915 Canyon Bend Court, Star.
  

15               I put myself down as neutral on this thing
  

16   because I think with a little tweaking the annexation
  

17   will be approved.  I think what it's going to come down
  

18   to is the zoning.  Will the old Comprehensive Plan hold
  

19   up to the new Comprehensive Plan.  But eventually it's
  

20   going to get approved.
  

21               So I just wanted to kind of -- on what
  

22   Michael Keyes was just talking about, the
  

23   transportation plan is really the one that's -- I think
  

24   needs to be talked about a lot more.  You're -- the
  

25   $10 million mitigation fees, I don't know how that's
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 1   going to get broken out.  I don't know how much the
  

 2   roads are going to get out of that.  It seems like
  

 3   that's a small amount.
  

 4               And the primary concern I have with the
  

 5   transportation plan, it really talks about, well, what
  

 6   is needed once all this is built out.  What should the
  

 7   roads look like?
  

 8               Well, I think the more immediate concern is
  

 9   what kind of traffic plans are going to be in place
  

10   during construction?  It always seems like that's when
  

11   the biggest problems arise is during construction you
  

12   got all the road closures and whatnot.  How do you get
  

13   around?
  

14               And when I look at the plans for the roads,
  

15   you have the road going through the BLM.  You have the
  

16   Wing Road addition.  Those are all new roads.  You
  

17   install those, there shouldn't be as much interference
  

18   with traffic.
  

19               But the big one's Can-Ada.  And the way I
  

20   look at it, it looks like you're going to put a sewer
  

21   down there.  Are you going to put water down there?
  

22   Are you going to widen it to five lanes?  That road's
  

23   going to be out for at least a year.
  

24               So what is the plan?  How are you going to
  

25   make accommodations for the people that live to the
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 1   north and northwest of this development?
  

 2               And I'm suggesting that, you know, things
  

 3   have to be rerouted down to Highway 44.  You could do
  

 4   it on Lansing Road.  You could do it on Blessinger.
  

 5   There's lots of options there.  But those have to be
  

 6   considered, and those have to be part of the cost, part
  

 7   of the mitigation before you'd approve the annexation.
  

 8               There's some way you have to get off of
  

 9   those roads, and safely.  If you -- if you go down
  

10   Highway 44, you have to cut the speed limits down to
  

11   35.  People trying to make a left-hand turn onto 44,
  

12   they're taking their life in their own hands with
  

13   traffic at 55.  So that has to be part of the plan.
  

14   What are you going to do during construction?
  

15               Another concern:  We just had bad
  

16   experiences with Thunder Ridge and then the
  

17   developments down on Purple Sage.  Big trucks coming
  

18   through on Purple Sage speeding, using their
  

19   compression brakes.  Those are the kind of things I
  

20   think we need to put in the plan to mitigate those
  

21   safety and noise concerns so that -- you know, people
  

22   that have to live with that day in and day out, it's a
  

23   real nuisance, and it's just a real problem.
  

24               So those are things I hope you consider as
  

25   you go forward on this.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.
  

 2               Let's see.  We got Nita Metro.
  

 3          ANITA METRO:  Good evening and thank you for
  

 4   giving me this opportunity to speak to you.  My name's
  

 5   Anita Metro.  I live at 9069 North Spangler Place in
  

 6   the Willowbrook Estates just north of this development.
  

 7   We are right off of Chaparral right on the other side
  

 8   of the governor's family's land, right west of Firebird
  

 9   Raceway.
  

10               The thing that brought me here tonight I'll
  

11   hit first, and that's my concern about the water.  I
  

12   heard that their plan is to dump their excess treated
  

13   water into the aquifer that I drink out of.  If that
  

14   water is so good, put it into your homes.  You drink
  

15   it.  I don't want it.
  

16               I want my organic water that is filtered
  

17   naturally through the soil and rocks so that it picks
  

18   up natural minerals that are good for my body.  Your
  

19   chemicals are not.  I don't want them.  And I'm not the
  

20   only one that lives on this.
  

21               Our entire neighborhood relies on that
  

22   aquifer.  We're at 250 feet, so we're the most shallow.
  

23   The entire neighborhood is at, I think, 300 or 350.
  

24   And the governor's land is at 400 feet deep.
  

25               So you're impacting a lot of people by just
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 1   openly dumping your chemical water into our drinking
  

 2   water.  So please don't do it.
  

 3               The other things I've heard tonight that
  

 4   kind of concern me:  One, nobody's brought up.  You're
  

 5   talking about eventually developing the BLM land, and I
  

 6   know that will happen.  But I just want to point out,
  

 7   because I have seen businesses taken out before because
  

 8   of development of housing getting near them.
  

 9               And I'm talking about Firebird Raceway.
  

10   They've been here since 1968.  They're a great
  

11   business.  They -- they are an economic boom.  This
  

12   golf course is not.  They're presenting it to you like
  

13   a golf course is going to bring you in so much money.
  

14   Think again.  It's a bad location.
  

15               Just like they said, there's nothing here
  

16   to support it.  There's no hotels.  The roadways don't
  

17   support it.  There was an equestrian center that closed
  

18   because there's not enough infrastructure to support it
  

19   right there to the west of this.  So this is not the
  

20   boom they are presenting it to you as.  So please
  

21   consider that.
  

22               And when you go to develop for future,
  

23   please think about Firebird Raceway.  We like it.  And
  

24   they -- people will move in around it, and then they
  

25   will complain about the noise as if they have more
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 1   rights than the people at Firebird.  So take that into
  

 2   consideration.
  

 3               Please keep this rural.  Please keep it
  

 4   R-1.  I grew up here.  I left to go into the military.
  

 5   I served 20 years.  I came home to my country home.
  

 6   And all I've seen it do is explode, and it's just
  

 7   killing me.
  

 8               We bought 5 acres out here so that we could
  

 9   enjoy our older years and have cattle and pigs and
  

10   chickens.  And you put this kind of housing in around
  

11   us, they're not going to like the smell of it.  They're
  

12   not going to like our roosters crowing.  They're going
  

13   to complain.
  

14               Where's my life?  It's gone.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Thank you.  All right.  That is
  

16   it that signed up to speak.
  

17               We'll have the applicant come up.  You have
  

18   15 minutes -- did you get that?  Did you change
  

19   that? -- to rebut the testimony.
  

20               At this time Council can ask questions of
  

21   the applicant as well.
  

22          DEBORAH NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members
  

23   of the Council.  Obviously a lot to respond to.  I'll
  

24   do my best to kind of consolidate comments for you.
  

25               I'll start with the traffic.  Obviously a
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 1   big concern.  And we already addressed a bit of this in
  

 2   our presentation, but I want to try to respond to as
  

 3   many of the comments as I can.
  

 4               Mr. Moore said at the beginning that the
  

 5   applicant had proposed to widen Deep Canyon and
  

 6   Lanktree to five lanes.  That's not the case.  We
  

 7   didn't propose widening of this road even to three
  

 8   lanes.  So that's just not accurate or reflective.  You
  

 9   can see that in the TIS.
  

10               He then said there was no alternative to
  

11   that plan when it failed.  And that's also not the
  

12   case.  The TIS did have to evaluate mitigations to
  

13   avoid impacts to those roads.  That is specifically
  

14   addressed by extension of Wing Road and the new
  

15   connection of Aerie Road to provide those alternatives,
  

16   improvements to Can-Ada also provide alternatives with
  

17   trip distribution.  Again, the protection is in place
  

18   for these local roads from ACHD's conditions to enforce
  

19   their local standards.
  

20               Mr. Ben Shields said that the TIS doesn't
  

21   consider commercial development.  That was repeated by
  

22   a few others.  That's also not accurate.  The TIS does
  

23   consider commercial uses, both within the golf course,
  

24   they use the ITE standards for transportation trip
  

25   generation standards, which define golf course to
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 1   include the restaurant and the pro shop and the bar,
  

 2   similar to City code.
  

 3               Also, separate from that they studied
  

 4   additional commercial uses outside of the golf course.
  

 5               There was a comment by Ms. Germaine that
  

 6   the traffic did not consider internal roads in the
  

 7   Hillsdale neighborhood.  That's also not correct.  The
  

 8   TIS studied all of the road segments within Hillsdale.
  

 9               A similar comment was made by Ms. Shields
  

10   that the TIS was only conducted on Lanktree and
  

11   Can-Ada.  The TIS actually studied 19 off-site
  

12   intersections and 23 roadway segments.  It's very
  

13   broad, that the scope of it was set by COMPASS.  It
  

14   uses COMPASS' growth rates.
  

15               That was another complaint, that the growth
  

16   rates weren't accurate.  We didn't use our own.  We
  

17   have to follow what's set forth by COMPASS, which is
  

18   done in concert with all of the municipalities and
  

19   counties in the area.
  

20               Mr. Keyes, former councilman, said that
  

21   it's definitely in the City's best interest to maintain
  

22   this growth path to the north.  And we agree.  And
  

23   that's a lot of what the commenting agencies recognized
  

24   and a lot of what the mitigation focuses on is those
  

25   key north-south routes.  Not putting traffic onto local
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 1   roads that exist, but finding the ways to get those
  

 2   north-south connections.  That's going to help the City
  

 3   overall, all City residents.  Not just this project.
  

 4               I'm turning to a few other maybe services,
  

 5   water issues, miscellaneous services issues and
  

 6   infrastructure.
  

 7               Mr. Jim Junge asked about where the lift
  

 8   station line would go.  That will be within the public
  

 9   right-of-way along Can-Ada.
  

10               There was a comment by Mr. Richardson about
  

11   concern, and expressed by others, too, in written
  

12   comments, about -- about water impacts to their wells.
  

13   Obviously, that has to be carefully evaluated.  IDWR
  

14   has to approve any new wells.  That goes through a
  

15   process.  There's a public hearing or administrative
  

16   process that's participated in that, if somebody
  

17   objects to that well application.  And so that does
  

18   have to be carefully considered.
  

19               Star Sewer and Water District, these will
  

20   be their wells.  To the extent there's wells to serve
  

21   them, they're their wells.  Everything has to follow
  

22   their standards as well.
  

23               There is existing water rights already.  So
  

24   the irrigation rights that serve the project are
  

25   sufficient to cover the needs of the project, even with
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 1   the golf course.  So there won't be additional
  

 2   withdrawals coming from the property to serve the
  

 3   project that's proposed before you.
  

 4               Star Sewer and Water District also has
  

 5   sufficient water rights to serve the project.  So any
  

 6   new wells are simply to address the point of diversion,
  

 7   not to increase the water diversion rate.
  

 8               There's comments about the water quality.
  

 9   And that's -- you know, it was also raised in the
  

10   written comments.  And we addressed that a little bit
  

11   already.  Just want to remind everybody that this is
  

12   treated water that is used for reuse.  It is class A
  

13   water.  You can actually use class B water, not treated
  

14   as well, for land application.  But this is fully
  

15   treated water.  The same water that's treated by your
  

16   Star Sewer and Water District and clean enough to put
  

17   into the river under an EPA NPDES permit.
  

18               So this is water that instead of losing the
  

19   value of it just going downstream, we'll have an
  

20   innovative opportunity to reuse it in a way that will
  

21   reduce impact on the aquifer from having to withdraw
  

22   that water to irrigate, which is what's happening now.
  

23   And what would happen if we didn't have that innovative
  

24   solution?
  

25               It was in -- it's in your Comprehensive
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 1   Plan.  I put up that goal, to reduce groundwater
  

 2   consumption and impacts through use of treated
  

 3   wastewater.  It's exactly what you've called for to
  

 4   happen.
  

 5               Obviously, all of the water-quality
  

 6   standards have to meet DEQ standards.  There can't be
  

 7   anything that isn't done in accordance with all of
  

 8   those laws.
  

 9               There was a comment about police service by
  

10   Ms. Yanecko and talked about levels of standard --
  

11   national levels of standard 2.4 and 3.5.  I don't know
  

12   what her sources are for that.  But, you know, your own
  

13   sheriff and police department did set forth the current
  

14   and target level service for police here.
  

15               The current level of service is .73 per
  

16   thousand population.  The City's target level of
  

17   service is one per thousand.  That's similar to other
  

18   surrounding cities that have the same target.
  

19               And like Ms. Yanecko and other residents
  

20   that are -- that actually live in Star, you know, the
  

21   residents in Willowbrook will be paying property taxes
  

22   to the City for these services.  They will also be
  

23   paying impact fees that contribute to capital
  

24   improvements.  And the City of Star has been proactive
  

25   to address public service by requiring an additional
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 1   mitigation fee that will also be paid to cover the
  

 2   personnel costs associated with these kinds of service
  

 3   providers.
  

 4               There was quite a bit of discussion about
  

 5   process.  So I'll try to address some of that.  The --
  

 6   Ms. Germaine, the attorney for Hillsdale HOA, talked
  

 7   about the Development Agreement not meeting the
  

 8   requirements the way it was submitted to the City of
  

 9   what's actually required.
  

10               I think she is citing to an old section of
  

11   code when she says that it must -- it's required to be
  

12   submitted with an application.  The applicable code
  

13   says that the City may require a Development Agreement,
  

14   which is, my understanding, expected here.  And we are
  

15   volunteering that as well.  We're asking for that to go
  

16   along with the requested zoning.
  

17               It also says that it may include a concept
  

18   plan.  We have provided that as well.  Regardless of
  

19   whether it is required or is optional, we have provided
  

20   a draft Development Agreement for your consideration.
  

21   We used the City's standard form and provided that.
  

22   Obviously all the terms and details and conditions are
  

23   subject to your approval and conditions that are
  

24   imposed on us.  But the process has been followed to
  

25   submit that.
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 1               There was also a discussion -- a comment by
  

 2   Ms. Germaine that there was new information presented
  

 3   this evening where we asked for the change in condition
  

 4   number two to include the restaurant and the bar within
  

 5   the golf course, saying that that was the first it had
  

 6   been heard of and the staff didn't have an opportunity
  

 7   to weigh in on that.
  

 8               But that's not accurate.  Our narrative
  

 9   submitted in June of '22 states on page 2, "This
  

10   application seeks approval of the golf course only,
  

11   which will include a restaurant, bar, and pro shop and
  

12   retail incidental to the golf course uses."  The staff
  

13   report also addressed it.
  

14               And so it was asked for specifically to
  

15   include the bar and restaurant, staff has a reason of
  

16   approval.  We're asking for a slight modification to
  

17   that to make sure that we can bring the bar and
  

18   restaurant forward, consistent with the City's
  

19   definition of golf course uses.  And it has been
  

20   analyzed in our TIS.
  

21               There was a lot of discussion about the
  

22   golf course.  Some people seem to want more amenities.
  

23   Some people want fewer.  You know, there's a request
  

24   not to have commercial with it, that they're concerned
  

25   about commercial, concerned that the golf course itself
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 1   is a commercial use, and yet others -- the ski resort
  

 2   was new.  Want it more amenitized.  And so I think that
  

 3   it's -- it's appropriate to kind of think about what's
  

 4   coming here.
  

 5               You have a nationally-acclaimed golf course
  

 6   designer who has put forth a design for your
  

 7   consideration for a quality golf course.  It does fit
  

 8   within the property.  It's appropriate based on the
  

 9   analysis that's been done.  It has the right level of
  

10   amenities to serve that golf course, based on the
  

11   experts that have weighed in on that and studied it
  

12   carefully.
  

13               It will have shopping.  It will have the
  

14   restaurant and bar.  It will have parking.  It will
  

15   bring an opportunity for business.  It is a business.
  

16   People are right to point that out.  It is a commercial
  

17   use.  I've heard the Mayor and Council comment
  

18   frequently on how you'd like to add more businesses in
  

19   the community to make sure you're increasing your tax
  

20   base.  It does that.
  

21               At the same time it provides this natural
  

22   resource and recreational opportunity for the public to
  

23   use.  We're not trying to create something that isn't
  

24   accessible to the actual residents in the area and the
  

25   public to use.
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 1               The density and transition, it's obviously
  

 2   very important, and that was discussed quite a bit.
  

 3   You know, the bulk of Hillsdale was the most of the
  

 4   comments here, and the bulk of those lots, especially
  

 5   that those that front us, are about 1 acre.  And I know
  

 6   there was a comment that lots range from 1 acre to
  

 7   10 acres.  That's not Hillsdale.  That's considering
  

 8   other lots on the other side of the development that we
  

 9   already -- that were pointed out with Monument Ridge
  

10   has three lots.  The bulk of these lots are about
  

11   1 acre.
  

12               Half acre, as recommended by your planning
  

13   staff, is an appropriate transition to 1 acre.  1 acre
  

14   matching it perfectly isn't a transition.  When you've
  

15   got that range that's built into your code that talks
  

16   about half to one is appropriate, the one is
  

17   appropriate for much larger lots that you're next to.
  

18               We're -- we're proposing denser, smaller
  

19   lots to preserve open space for the golf course, to
  

20   preserve open space in addition to the golf course, to
  

21   create that opportunity to manage sprawl.  That's one
  

22   of -- that's a part of your Comprehensive Plan.  It was
  

23   cited by one of the neighbors as problem with our
  

24   density.  But that's exactly what that does when you
  

25   provide appropriate density.
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 1               We've concentrated smaller lots around the
  

 2   golf course, around the commercial, because it's
  

 3   walkable.  That's also called for in your Comprehensive
  

 4   Plan.  And that's what that manages with that external
  

 5   boundary that has the half-acre lots, appropriate next
  

 6   to the 1-acre lots.
  

 7               In a southwest area, as we pointed out on a
  

 8   slide, given the significant setbacks to those homes,
  

 9   given the proximity to our internal uses with the golf
  

10   course and commercial, we ask for those to be buffered
  

11   with landscape buffering, which is also appropriate and
  

12   allowed in your code.
  

13               Lots of discussion about property rights,
  

14   following the law, following the planning code.  We
  

15   couldn't agree more with all of those points.
  

16               The process has been followed here.  You
  

17   have the opportunity with -- the staff report has
  

18   outlined this, has analyzed this very carefully.  The
  

19   application before you meets the standards in your
  

20   Comprehensive Plan and your code.  The process is
  

21   appropriate.  You have all the protections in place to
  

22   allow the development that's being asked for and
  

23   nothing more, and to continue to monitor this, approve
  

24   this, as appropriate, as it progresses.
  

25               This is -- the density has already been
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 1   reduced.  We didn't come to you with a high level
  

 2   expecting a compromise.  It has been reduced already,
  

 3   as we described.  We removed the townhomes.  We've met
  

 4   your requirements for transitional lots.  This new
  

 5   number is what is needed to support the significant
  

 6   amenity that's being -- that's being requested.
  

 7               Everyone wants to be the last in to the
  

 8   city, and it's hard to have growth happen around them.
  

 9   But we are asking for approval of something that we
  

10   believe will benefit the citizens and the adjacent
  

11   neighbors and the County, and will benefit the City
  

12   with significant economic rewards.
  

13               So thank you for your time and
  

14   consideration.  I stand for further questions.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  At this time Council can
  

16   ask the applicant questions.
  

17               Do we have some questions?
  

18          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Mr. Mayor.
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilman Hershey.
  

20          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  I have a lot.  I just
  

21   don't --
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  [Unintelligible.]
  

23          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  I just don't have them
  

24   together.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Just start.
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 1          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Well --
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You may answer some of the
  

 3   others' questions.
  

 4          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Are we asking questions or
  

 5   are we asking -- are we -- I thought we weren't going
  

 6   to do that part tonight.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  No.  Tonight is through this.
  

 8   The deliberation of the Council will happen on the
  

 9   20th.
  

10          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Right.  Will they still be
  

11   able to be spoken to at that time?
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  No.  Not if we close the
  

13   hearing tonight.
  

14          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  No, I don't want to close
  

15   the hearing tonight.
  

16          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Yeah, I don't want to close
  

17   the hearing, then.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  We can talk about that when we
  

19   get closer to 11:30 when we're done.
  

20          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Okay.
  

21          MAYOR CHADWICK:  But we need to ask questions of
  

22   the applicant at this time.  I will start, then.
  

23          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  I'm not against starting.
  

24   I just don't want to --
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah.  No, that's all right.
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 1   I'll get going.
  

 2               I just want to go back to the water issue
  

 3   up there real quick.  The Star Sewer -- we have what,
  

 4   Ms. Nito [phonetic], is that the name, I believe? --
  

 5   was talking about -- which kind of piqued my interest,
  

 6   and I had to grab The Star Sewer and Water District's
  

 7   information.
  

 8               The intent is not to directly inject
  

 9   wastewater that's cleaned directly into the aquifer;
  

10   correct?
  

11          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor, that's correct.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  It's going to be placed on the
  

13   surface and go through the same filtration process as
  

14   other water?
  

15          DEBORAH NELSON:  That is correct.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

17          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  As rain.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Similar as rain, correct.
  

19               So then when I look at the water rights
  

20   thing that Star Sewer and Water put on here, it says
  

21   that "Willowbrook Development currently has 21.33 cubic
  

22   feet per second of diversion water rights.  This water
  

23   right is currently utilized mainly for irrigation water
  

24   for existing fields.  As part of the Annexation
  

25   Agreement, Willowbrook will be required to transfer
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 1   5 cubic feet per second to the District for utilization
  

 2   to the District for District customers.  For reference,
  

 3   the District currently has 14.53 cubic feet of total
  

 4   water rights reserved, but only uses 7.22 cubic feet of
  

 5   water rights for 6,000 existing homes.  The additional
  

 6   5 cubic feet of water rights transferred to the
  

 7   District will provide the District with more than two
  

 8   times the amount of water rights required to serve the
  

 9   proposed 1,094 new homes included within the
  

10   Willowbrook application."
  

11               So what's going to happen to the other 17
  

12   water rights that are not going to be transferred to
  

13   the Sewer and Water District?
  

14          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the
  

15   Council, I -- I don't know exactly what they'll all be
  

16   used for.  They can be used for any irrigation
  

17   that's -- they're rightfully approved for.  But at
  

18   this -- the plan for serving this development is Star
  

19   Sewer and Water District.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Right.  But the additional --
  

21   so I guess where I'm going with this, this additional
  

22   17 cubic feet, are you going to be utilizing that
  

23   17 cubic feet for irrigation until you run the lines
  

24   from sewer and water to bring that clean water up?
  

25          DEBORAH NELSON:  I'm going to let others answer
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 1   this for you.
  

 2          NATE MITCHELL:  Yeah.  So -- so the water -- the
  

 3   5 cubic feet per second is going to be required by Star
  

 4   Sewer and Water District, like you talked, is
  

 5   sufficient to serve the domestic use.  We still retain
  

 6   those other water rights that can be used to irrigate
  

 7   before the reuse program or to irrigate -- we can
  

 8   transfer the diversion point to other pieces of
  

 9   property.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Require -- say that last part
  

11   again?  I'm sorry.
  

12          NATE MITCHELL:  We can -- there's a process that
  

13   we could divert those two other parcels that
  

14   Mr. Phillips owns in other parts of the county or --
  

15   they're a legal water right that he owns.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

17          NATE MITCHELL:  He's willing to obviously donate
  

18   what's required of him to serve this project plus for
  

19   the Star Sewer and Water District.  But --
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So is there -- I'm just
  

21   throwing this out there on there.
  

22               Is there a possibility to transfer 5 of
  

23   those cubic rights to Willowbrook -- I mean to
  

24   Hillsdale, considering the issues that they have with
  

25   their water?  I don't know how that works.  I'm just
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 1   asking.
  

 2          NATE MITCHELL:  He's -- he's already transferred
  

 3   what was considered by the water experts to be
  

 4   sufficient for Hillsdale's domestic water use.
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Uh-huh.
  

 6          NATE MITCHELL:  I -- there could be --
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I mean it's something to
  

 8   consider.
  

 9          NATE MITCHELL:  They're not going to be given to
  

10   them.  They could be bought.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So -- but I mean I get it.
  

12   Just looking at the extra water rights that are there
  

13   in that area.  So okay.  That answers that question for
  

14   me.  Thank you.
  

15               And then when we talk about the half-acre
  

16   lots surrounding the existing Willowbrook -- I'm sorry,
  

17   existing Hillsdale, previously, I think it was brought
  

18   up, we went with 1-acre lots at that time.  So I'd be
  

19   more amenable to have 1-acre lots like we'd had in the
  

20   past, because our code does say half acre to 1 acre;
  

21   right?  I know half acre is on the bottom end, but the
  

22   1-acre lots would give you have more of the lot line
  

23   matches that you need to create that buffer zone when
  

24   you go into the smaller lots on the interior.
  

25          NATE MITCHELL:  So I believe in the last five or
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 1   six years that the numerous public meetings we've had,
  

 2   I've committed to two things:  1-acre lots around the
  

 3   existing 11 lots that are on the east end.  We got a
  

 4   48-acre parcel, and we've shown those as 1-acre lots
  

 5   that we've committed to.
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Right.
  

 7          NATE MITCHELL:  And I know there's some
  

 8   inconsistency in this with that concept plan, but we
  

 9   would also commit to matching lot lines, not matching
  

10   lot sizes.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Matching lot lines on --
  

12          NATE MITCHELL:  We've said out loud in the past
  

13   that we will make --
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

15          NATE MITCHELL:  -- one neighbor to one neighbor.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  So that's not an issue,
  

17   then.
  

18               And then when we come to that driving
  

19   range, you talked about the buffer area for -- it looks
  

20   like you're removing houses, I think, and putting in a
  

21   buffer area of landscape along Monument Ridge, I think
  

22   it is; is that correct?
  

23          NATE MITCHELL:  Correct.
  

24          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So what does that look like?
  

25   What's --
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 1          NATE MITCHELL:  So -- so the line of lots on the
  

 2   southwest portion that border the Monument Ridge lots
  

 3   we've discussed, I know with at least one neighbor,
  

 4   creating a large landscaped berm.
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Oh, gotcha.  Okay.
  

 6          NATE MITCHELL:  Right.  So still have a walking
  

 7   path in it, but something that would transition over to
  

 8   the houses that -- where your -- a sound barrier and a
  

 9   visual barrier.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.
  

11          NATE MITCHELL:  That obviously meets the code
  

12   and the intent of the Comp Plan.
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I got to cough.
  

14          NATE MITCHELL:  It's going to be loud.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  All right.  Any other questions
  

16   of the Council right now at this time?
  

17          NATE MITCHELL:  Yeah.  Thank you.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yes, ma'am.
  

19   Councilwoman Salmonsen.
  

20          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  So we haven't talked
  

21   about this, amenities very much, for -- besides the
  

22   golf course.
  

23               So can you just throw us what you're
  

24   thinking for amenities.
  

25          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor,
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 1   Councilmember Salmonsen, yes, I'll start it and Nate
  

 2   can add on anything.
  

 3               As you know, that will come up with the
  

 4   preliminary plat and planned-unit development
  

 5   specifically.
  

 6          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Yes.
  

 7          DEBORAH NELSON:  And we will meet the 15 that
  

 8   are required under code.  We expect that to include
  

 9   clubhouses and pocket parks and natural open-space
  

10   areas with trails.
  

11               Did I miss anything?
  

12          NATE MITCHELL:  No.  And we show some of that on
  

13   this conceptual plan.  They're not really well called
  

14   out.  But we've left areas in the denser housing areas
  

15   for clubhouse amenities like the -- not committing to a
  

16   swimming pool, but the options have been talked about
  

17   with different clubhouse options, similar to what
  

18   you're seeing in your other developments in the city.
  

19   Tot lots.
  

20               And then specifically on the natural open
  

21   space to the north, trail systems, parking lots, access
  

22   to the BLM ground to the north to make it actually more
  

23   usable so Mr. Keyes can go shoot his guns easier.
  

24          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So can I go back to the amenity
  

25   thing?
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 1          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah.
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  I just -- did you talk about --
  

 3   you're going to put -- is parking along that Aerie Way
  

 4   going to be part of -- considered an amenity in this?
  

 5   When you create parking for horse trailers and things
  

 6   like that to the BLM land.
  

 7          NATE MITCHELL:  That will be part of the process
  

 8   with BLM, to allow for some equestrian area access up
  

 9   there.  But we're also talking about doing it down --
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  More south path?
  

11          NATE MITCHELL:  -- down in the development
  

12   along -- on our property to allow trailhead access that
  

13   would go up through the draws to the north into the
  

14   BLM.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Thank you.
  

16               Any further questions right now of the
  

17   applicant?
  

18          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Somebody else can go.
  

19   I might have more.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Councilman Wheelock.
  

21          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Sure.  So looking through
  

22   my notes, you're committing to matching one to one on
  

23   every -- all the Hillsdale lots; is that correct?
  

24          NATE MITCHELL:  Yes.  One to one.  Not matching
  

25   lot size, but matching --
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Lot lines?
  

 2          NATE MITCHELL:  -- lot lines, correct.
  

 3          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So what does that mean for
  

 4   sizes, I guess?  What does that look like?  A minimum
  

 5   of a half acre.
  

 6          NATE MITCHELL:  Your condition already suggests
  

 7   a minimum of a half an acre that we'll comply with, and
  

 8   we'll also adjust the lots to where they arranged were
  

 9   matching property lines.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

11          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Skinnier -- skinnier
  

12   1-acre lots or skinnier half acre to a 1-acre lot?
  

13          NATE MITCHELL:  So when you say "skinnier," we
  

14   would, at a minimum, put a half acre to 1-acre lot, and
  

15   it would be just as wide.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Further questions?
  

17               Councilman Wheelock.
  

18          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Yeah, I have a question
  

19   about the easement up Wing.
  

20               Can you tell me what that looks like?  And
  

21   we had a citizen that talked about --
  

22          NATE MITCHELL:  Yeah, I don't know --
  

23          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  -- easement that's turned
  

24   into a road.
  

25          NATE MITCHELL:  I don't know if Cash is -- I
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 1   don't know if Cash is still here.
  

 2               So there's two items to discuss there.
  

 3   There is -- Mr. Phillips does own an easement to a
  

 4   piece of property north of his house for access to that
  

 5   piece of property.
  

 6          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Yes.  We talked about
  

 7   that.
  

 8          NATE MITCHELL:  There is also an underlying
  

 9   closed public right-of-way that ACHD owns.  So ACHD
  

10   already owns right-of-way through his property to
  

11   extend Wing Road.  We'd have to go back to the staff
  

12   report from the 2018 application, but it is identified
  

13   there that ACHD owns everything except for the last
  

14   10 feet.
  

15               So there's a right-of-way that's on his
  

16   property and on Mr. Phillips' property to the north
  

17   that goes to within 10 feet of the Hillsdale boundary
  

18   that Mr. Phillips owns and would dedicate that last
  

19   10 feet of right-of-way.  So there -- the easement is a
  

20   separate legal document from the existing right-of-way.
  

21          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Was that a shock to him
  

22   that that's going to be turned into a road?
  

23          NATE MITCHELL:  It's been being talked about for
  

24   five or six years, so I don't -- I mean he'd have to
  

25   tell you whether it's a shock to him or not.  It
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 1   obviously has an impact to his property and his house.
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Further questions of the
  

 3   applicant?
  

 4          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Well, I can keep going.
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Keep going.  You got questions,
  

 6   keep asking, Councilman Wheelock.
  

 7          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  I still want to gather my
  

 8   thoughts truthfully.
  

 9               But what's your plan for the construction?
  

10   I'm curious about the phasing plans that are there.
  

11          NATE MITCHELL:  Your staff report says no
  

12   connection to Deep Canyon.  That doesn't mean that you
  

13   can't get in your crane and drive up there to lift
  

14   something up for somebody and use Deep Canyon.  That's
  

15   your choice you're going to have to make.
  

16               But for the golf course, they're suggesting
  

17   a private driveway off of Can-Ada.  So it's all on our
  

18   property to come off of Can-Ada.
  

19          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  So it will go all off of
  

20   Can-Ada.
  

21          NATE MITCHELL:  Yeah.
  

22          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  -- down -- down that hill.
  

23               What -- what Can-Ada mitigation -- what
  

24   Can-Ada changes are going to happen with that steep
  

25   hill, or do you have any plans for that?  Is that
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 1   something that you guys have to deal with?  Let's talk
  

 2   about it.
  

 3          NATE MITCHELL:  Yeah.  And I could -- Jamie, you
  

 4   want to address kind of what the TIS contemplates for
  

 5   Can-Ada?
  

 6               I do know ACHD has a couple of
  

 7   site-specific conditions in your staff report as well
  

 8   for improvement to Can-Ada.
  

 9          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Just nice to have it
  

10   publicly talked about.  I went around that cement spill
  

11   for years that was in the middle of Can-Ada because
  

12   it's so steep.
  

13          DEBORAH NELSON:  Canyon County Highway District
  

14   actually has the specific comments about Can-Ada
  

15   improvements, and it does discuss the realignment
  

16   issue.
  

17               So, Jamie, if you want to add to that.
  

18          MAYOR CHADWICK:  State your name and address,
  

19   please.
  

20          JAMIE MARKOSIAN:  Yep.  Thank you.
  

21               Jamie Markosian, Kittleson & Associates,
  

22   101 South Capitol Boulevard, Suite 600, Boise, Idaho.
  

23               Mr. Mayor, Council, the Can-Ada Road
  

24   improvements would consist of a few things.  Number
  

25   one, capacity for traffic.
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 1               And number two, a physical regrading of
  

 2   those steep hills.  That would occur to mitigate
  

 3   speeds, increase safety performance, and allow for
  

 4   better site distances along Can-Ada Road.
  

 5               You know, our TIS indicates those are some
  

 6   potential mitigations, obviously with future TIS
  

 7   requirements on any future plat submittal.  Those
  

 8   mitigations would be addressed in full and in complete
  

 9   based on those various applications and the content
  

10   within each of those.
  

11          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  That didn't help me.
  

12          JAMIE MARKOSIAN:  Okay.
  

13          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  I'm honest.  Because I
  

14   want to know that -- the golf course is going to impact
  

15   that road.  We all know it.  The houses are going to
  

16   impact that road.
  

17               As you incrementally grow this project, if
  

18   you grow it small enough, slow enough, does nobody ever
  

19   say you've impacted it enough to change that whole
  

20   road?  Where does that line draw?  Does that make
  

21   sense?  If you do this as a trickle --
  

22          JAMIE MARKOSIAN:  Uh-huh.
  

23          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  -- "Oh, it's not us that's
  

24   making the change.  Its somebody else.  It's coming
  

25   from the Canyon County side that we sold off."  But
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 1   nonetheless, we're all impacted by it.
  

 2               I'm curious what that looks like in
  

 3   realtime, I guess.
  

 4          JAMIE MARKOSIAN:  Did you have something?
  

 5          DEBORAH NELSON:  I can [unintelligible], and
  

 6   then Jamie can jump in on anything.
  

 7               So very fair comment.  So I think that's
  

 8   part of why the staff -- the planning staff has
  

 9   required us to come in with the very first preliminary
  

10   plat with the phasing plan, and the transportation
  

11   agencies are asking for a specific update to the
  

12   transportation plan to match that phasing -- to the TIS
  

13   to match that phasing so that you do have the full,
  

14   long-term vision now.
  

15               So we did the full traffic study so you can
  

16   see the scale of improvements.  Those aren't all
  

17   attributable to the project.  Right?  There's a lot of
  

18   improvements that are already needed on these roadways.
  

19   But the project is contributing and will -- and will
  

20   continue to contribute with each phase.
  

21               So part of what they'll do with each of
  

22   these phasings is determine what is the development
  

23   requiring to be done?  Are we ahead of improvements
  

24   that are being made to that road that are already
  

25   planned and funded?  And what is our proportionate
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 1   share?
  

 2               Canyon County Highway District's comments
  

 3   already take a stab at that.  ACHD wants to do it with
  

 4   the preliminary plat phasing.  But all of the agencies
  

 5   will have to weigh in on our updated plat.
  

 6               So we will have to take it on with each
  

 7   phase, but it will be set at the beginning how that
  

 8   phasing plan will roll out.
  

 9               The only small ask now is for the golf
  

10   course.  The traffic study did consider a golf course
  

11   only.  And that was the 526 trips per day.  And that
  

12   does not trigger a traffic study by itself.  It will
  

13   not trigger these mitigations.  None of the
  

14   transportation agencies are requiring that be done
  

15   before that piece proceed.
  

16               So I hope that tries to answer your
  

17   question, that we're not going to come in with the
  

18   first preliminary plat and say, okay, now we're not
  

19   going to do any road improvements.  That's going to
  

20   have to be mapped out with the updated traffic study,
  

21   with the buyoff from the transportation agencies, just
  

22   like they've done now to look at the whole and say,
  

23   okay, we agree with your traffic study.  They accepted
  

24   the traffic study.
  

25               But exactly how those improvements are
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 1   applied to this project and in what time frame happens
  

 2   with the updates with the platting.
  

 3          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  So what does -- how do
  

 4   we -- how do we -- if we're approving this with just
  

 5   the golf course and the 560 trips, whatever that is,
  

 6   how do we approve this without knowing what the phases
  

 7   are of the future of the whole plan?  That's a huge
  

 8   difference in impact that makes this easier to say,
  

 9   yeah, that makes sense.  And we don't know where we're
  

10   going yet.
  

11          DEBORAH NELSON:  Well, you do have an idea of
  

12   where you're going because you have this full traffic
  

13   study that normally isn't required until you have a
  

14   development application.  But instead we can't proceed.
  

15               So if you're worried about that we would
  

16   just come in and do the next portion and we do the next
  

17   portion, we cannot do that without getting your
  

18   approval.  So we have to come back to you.  So no
  

19   residential can continue.
  

20          NATE MITCHELL:  I think it's also important to
  

21   note when we say we're coming back with preliminary
  

22   plat, it's not going to be multiple preliminary plats.
  

23   It will be for the entire development, that we'll have
  

24   a detailed phasing plan with it that your
  

25   transportation agencies will give you the control
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 1   you're asking for.
  

 2          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Yeah.  When does that
  

 3   come, is what I'm asking?
  

 4          DEBORAH NELSON:  Two years.
  

 5          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  [Unintelligible.]
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Hey.  No.  Please.
  

 7          NATE MITCHELL:  It will -- if we get the
  

 8   conceptual approval and agreements on layouts and
  

 9   matching lots and everything else we're talking about
  

10   in this Development Agreement, we'll start on the
  

11   engineering of that immediately.
  

12               It's -- it's a large development that needs
  

13   to be -- so when we bring you a preliminary plat, we
  

14   basically have to have construction drawings done,
  

15   grading plans done for individual lot pads, things like
  

16   that.  It's going to take two years to build a golf
  

17   course.
  

18               At the same time we would hope to have back
  

19   in front of you, inside of that two-year period, those
  

20   preliminary plats so that we can -- as the golf course
  

21   matures, we can start building lots and selling houses
  

22   on it.
  

23               But the first -- the next step after what
  

24   we've asked for now would be a PUD and a preliminary
  

25   plat that's going to have a detailed phasing plan in it
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 1   that the agencies all have to agree to is reasonable.
  

 2   And that's when they determine when each mitigation is
  

 3   required.
  

 4               ITD will have to determine, ACHD, Canyon
  

 5   Highway District No. 4 will have to determine when they
  

 6   want what improvements made.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So can I just take it back off
  

 8   that?
  

 9               Sorry, David.
  

10          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Please.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  When I look at the CHD 4 letter
  

12   that came, and when we're talking traffic mitigation on
  

13   Can-Ada Road, the first thing they talk about is the
  

14   intersection of 44 and Can-Ada that says "Intersection
  

15   currently operates on a level service of F in the P and
  

16   peak hour.  CHD recommends approving improvements
  

17   providing a level service of D or better shall be
  

18   operating prior to issuance of building permits for any
  

19   phase of the development."
  

20               So when we're looking at this -- when I'm
  

21   looking at this -- and I believe ITD said something
  

22   similar in here about that same intersection.  If
  

23   that's the very first thing that we're dealing with, I
  

24   think it needs to be in here that before you do
  

25   anything on the golf course, or simultaneously, either
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 1   way, that we do a lighted intersection at Can-Ada and
  

 2   44 with a latecomer's agreement for future developments
  

 3   that are going to come along that corridor.
  

 4          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  If that's part of the
  

 5   Phase 1 is --
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Well, this is telling me -- I
  

 7   guess this is telling me prior to the issuance of any
  

 8   building permits -- well, the golf course is going to
  

 9   have some building permits; correct?
  

10          NATE MITCHELL:  The clubhouse would require a
  

11   building permit, correct.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah.  So I mean we would have
  

13   to have traffic mitigation done at intersection 44 and
  

14   Can-Ada.  None of these guys talk about anything from
  

15   Can-Ada going up the hill to the golf course.  I'm
  

16   sorry, from 44 going up.  That's the challenge.  I
  

17   think that's what he's referring to is that hill coming
  

18   down.
  

19               What's the plan to fix that so it can
  

20   handle all this traffic?
  

21          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  So that we don't have an
  

22   accident in the preliminary construction Phase 0001.
  

23          DEBORAH NELSON:  So I guess one comment that I
  

24   just want to make about, Mr. Mayor, your suggestion
  

25   here in looking -- and I'll look to the traffic
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 1   engineer to back this up, the Can-Ada intersection with
  

 2   44 is not triggered by the trips.
  

 3               Is that what you're talking about?  That
  

 4   Can-Ada --
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah, Can-Ada and 44.
  

 6          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah, and 44, is not triggered
  

 7   by trips from the golf course.  That is background
  

 8   conditions.  And so while you're asking for that to be
  

 9   loaded onto the golf course, that's not triggered by
  

10   the trips themselves.  18 percent is the allocation
  

11   that Canyon County Highway District --
  

12               Is that the right letter?
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Well, they said -- they said in
  

14   here, right.
  

15          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  "A proportionate share of cost
  

17   to improve the intersection, either through an
  

18   established per-lot fee or by a collection of
  

19   18 percent of the intersection cost proportionate to
  

20   the report."
  

21          DEBORAH NELSON:  Right.
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  "This intersection is not
  

23   eligible for funding through impact fees, nor is it
  

24   currently funded for improvements by ITD.  The current
  

25   intersection operates at a level service of F in the
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 1   p.m. hour.  CHD 4 recommends improvements providing a
  

 2   level service D or better shall be operating prior to
  

 3   the issuance of building permits for any phase of
  

 4   development."
  

 5               So they're not even giving us a traffic
  

 6   thing.  They're saying building permits; right?  And so
  

 7   that's -- that's the concern.
  

 8               And then the ITD letter in here indicated
  

 9   something similar about making sure that the Highway 44
  

10   is signalized as well on there.
  

11               So based off of the recommendations of
  

12   those two agencies, how do we move forward without
  

13   having that done before any issuance of any building
  

14   permits?
  

15          DEBORAH NELSON:  Well, the current intersection
  

16   background traffic is causing that failure that's
  

17   identified.  And that's been studied in the TIS.  So
  

18   even to get to the full amount of 18 percent, which has
  

19   been suggested by Canyon County Highway District,
  

20   that's total trips of complete build-out in the 2045.
  

21               So that's -- once you get in the project
  

22   trips, that's when you get to that amount.  So there's
  

23   an existing deficiency in the system that I guess
  

24   that's what we're asking -- you're asking for the
  

25   project to pick up that completely, then, before
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 1   they're the contributor.
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  But with a latecomer's
  

 3   agreement involved to pay back the remainder of that --
  

 4   was it 72 percent?  82 percent?  Right?  If they're
  

 5   saying 82 percent --
  

 6          DEBORAH NELSON:  If there's -- if there's
  

 7   realistic contributors.
  

 8          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Well, there is realistic
  

 9   contributors along that corridor.  I mean there's other
  

10   developments that are going to be coming in --
  

11          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah.
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- between Blessinger and
  

13   Can-Ada Road into the city of Star.
  

14          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  And so there is realistic
  

16   opportunity for that to get that back.  I'm just trying
  

17   to -- when I look at my -- the biggest complaint --
  

18   there's complaints all over the place.  Our -- I'm
  

19   going to be honest.  Our traffic stuff is a disaster.
  

20   We try and try and try and get ITD -- or not ITD.
  

21   Well, yeah, ITD, everybody that do projects in Star,
  

22   and get this done with the impact fees are collected;
  

23   right?
  

24               It's not happening.  It's getting spent
  

25   other places.  So we have to find ways to make sure
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 1   that our traffic is handled in Star.  And if it's not
  

 2   through this process, well, I need everybody else to
  

 3   get on board and try to get these guys to fund projects
  

 4   out here.
  

 5               Because we can't -- it's -- in my opinion,
  

 6   it's not sustainable to go the way we're going on these
  

 7   roads and not being able to have improved.
  

 8          DEBORAH NELSON:  Right.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Right?  And this -- and this
  

10   agency is telling me that before a building permit is
  

11   provided you got to have that intersection done.  So
  

12   how do I go around that?  I can't.  Right?  Because
  

13   they're telling me that.
  

14               And it would be -- to me it would be
  

15   shameful for us as a City to go against what the agency
  

16   is saying when I'm trying to get the agencies to do
  

17   projects in Star so we can mitigate the nightmares that
  

18   we're all dealing with out here.  Right?
  

19               I just -- it's part of -- it's part of
  

20   my -- but don't clap, please.  That's not meant for
  

21   clapping.  But it's just we got do figure out these
  

22   challenges that we're facing here in our community to
  

23   make things work.  I mean and this is not unique to
  

24   this project, I'm going to tell you.  I go on this
  

25   tirade with all these projects that ever come to the
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 1   City of Star.
  

 2          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah.  No, I --
  

 3          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Right?  I just got to figure
  

 4   out a way to make sure that we can be mobile, right, in
  

 5   here.  And that's why we put that proportionate share
  

 6   agreement in place and have this project going that's
  

 7   unfunded right now in the state, right --
  

 8          DEBORAH NELSON:  Uh-huh.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- on 44 is to help mitigate
  

10   that traffic by coming up with an alternate solution to
  

11   the funding mechanisms that they're not doing for us.
  

12               So that's where I'm at on that, so...
  

13          DEBORAH NELSON:  I don't disagree with your
  

14   comments.  I think they're fair.  I guess all we're
  

15   trying to do is figure out how we plug in appropriately
  

16   to our proportionate share --
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Right.
  

18          DEBORAH NELSON:  -- with the actual impacts
  

19   using the traffic study.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  And maybe it is part of the
  

21   proportionate share, you know, where that gets funded
  

22   through that, in lieu of proportionate share up ahead
  

23   in front.  I mean we just got to find a solution to
  

24   make it happen; right?
  

25          DEBORAH NELSON:  Uh-huh.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Sorry.  Anybody else
  

 2   have a question?
  

 3          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  On my right.
  

 4          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  That was good.
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Go ahead.  Councilman Hershey.
  

 6          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Just a clarification here.
  

 7               You want to close this and it's purely
  

 8   deliberations next time?  Because I'd like to leave it
  

 9   open.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Oh, when it gets -- when we
  

11   close the public hearing, it goes into the Council
  

12   deliberation, but that deliberation's not happening
  

13   until June 20th.
  

14          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Right.  What I'm saying is,
  

15   though, I want to ask them some stuff, and they might
  

16   need a month to think about it.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Oh, and that's -- we can talk
  

18   about that with Council and stuff as well when we get
  

19   to that point.  And we're not -- we're not quite there
  

20   yet.  We're getting close.
  

21          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  All right.  First off, I
  

22   actually really liked how that 12-person process went.
  

23   That was smart.  I just wanted to say that.  Because it
  

24   kept it flowing.
  

25               Now, I'm losing it.  I want to ask --
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 1   actually, I'm just going to tell you.  When it comes to
  

 2   the transitions, I think it's important that we have
  

 3   the 1 acres.  And I'm going to have to hold to that.
  

 4               Second, I'd like you to reduce the density.
  

 5   I was looking at 10 percent.  And bringing it down to
  

 6   the 985 makes it a 1.3.  I think that's still quite
  

 7   sustainable.  But it does have some areas that do look
  

 8   like they're getting kind of tight.
  

 9               So I want you to -- you don't have to
  

10   answer this today, because that's why I wanted to leave
  

11   this open, is to get those 1-acre transitions.  I know
  

12   what our code says, and I think the 1 acre does fall
  

13   into it.  Plus, this is an annexation.  And in my mind,
  

14   annexations have to be looked at very carefully.  Also,
  

15   it's an extremely large project, so I'm asking you to
  

16   reduce the density and go into the 1-acre transitions.
  

17               Other than that, I agree with the traffic.
  

18   I'm no traffic expert, but hearing things that are
  

19   alarming.  And I think it needs to be evaluated and
  

20   looked at even closer over these next couple weeks.
  

21               Also, something -- let me ask about the
  

22   golf course.  I don't golf, so I have to ask golf
  

23   course questions.  I tried to golf, and I actually do
  

24   better on my worst day of work than I do on my best day
  

25   of golf.  I get more angry out there.
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 1               I don't pass commercial items of any type
  

 2   on the assumption that they're going to fail.  I don't.
  

 3   I think they -- I have the assumption that those will
  

 4   succeed.  I do believe we have a lot of golfers in this
  

 5   Valley.
  

 6               But if it was to have to ever not be a golf
  

 7   course, who actually owns it?  I mean who would
  

 8   actually own this thing when it's built?  An HOA?
  

 9          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor,
  

10   Councilmember Hershey, no, it will be owned by a
  

11   private entity that owns and operates the golf course
  

12   as a commercial business.  And if -- if anything were
  

13   to happen to that operation, that's what's allowed on
  

14   that property from the Council, if the Council approves
  

15   that.  And so any -- any different use would have to
  

16   come back to the Council.
  

17          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  I'm just making sure of
  

18   that, because it cannot just go R-2.  I mean you're
  

19   going to be capped -- you've even asked for a cap.  And
  

20   I've asked you for a 985 cap.
  

21               So I just want to be clear, if the golf
  

22   course was to -- I don't know.  I don't know how many
  

23   golf courses are out there, but I know how many people
  

24   I know that golf.  Everybody but me.  And so I think it
  

25   has a great chance of success.  I do concern myself
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 1   with traffic.
  

 2               And like Councilman Wheelock said, I, too,
  

 3   am concerned about the trickle effect.  I am very happy
  

 4   you brought the whole thing initially.  And I know this
  

 5   is just a look.  This is not -- there's nothing -- like
  

 6   you said, there's no actual plats in this.
  

 7               Is the golf course technically in the right
  

 8   spot, though?  Because you do seem to have a lot of
  

 9   information on that.
  

10          NATE MITCHELL:  The simple answer is yes.  So
  

11   the process we went about with Mr. Weiskopf and Phil
  

12   Smith design was put the golf course where you want it.
  

13   We gave them a blank canvas, said, "Go at it.  We will
  

14   make -- we will make whatever development fit around
  

15   your golf course."
  

16               To touch on a couple of the things that
  

17   were brought up, the safe zones as far as breaking
  

18   windows.  There's requirements for golf course design
  

19   that makes those fairways wide enough that even you and
  

20   I don't go out and break windows.
  

21          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Trust me, you have no idea.
  

22          NATE MITCHELL:  No, I'm with you.  And just
  

23   remember, there's never anything worth getting mad
  

24   about on a golf course.
  

25          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Well, in all reality, Nate,
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 1   I'm going to tell you this, if you build a golf course
  

 2   and you build a house on a golf course and I go, Gee, I
  

 3   really like that house on the golf course and my window
  

 4   gets broken, I don't think you can blame many people.
  

 5   You saw that it was sitting there on a golf course.
  

 6          NATE MITCHELL:  I don't disagree with you.  But
  

 7   I also tell you that if you break a golf -- if you
  

 8   break a window as a golfer, you're liable for the cost
  

 9   of the window.
  

10          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  All right.  Well, that's --
  

11   well, that just got more expensive.
  

12               So yeah, back to my original point.  The
  

13   trickling in effect is something I do worry about.  So
  

14   if this does pass, that preliminary plat, which would
  

15   take years, I know, would have to come in all at once.
  

16   There would be no other way around it.
  

17          NATE MITCHELL:  Your code doesn't allow for
  

18   anything else.
  

19          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  And also, just like the
  

20   Mayor stated, there's going to have to be some heavy
  

21   traffic mitigation, maybe even pre to what you're
  

22   looking for, just to -- because it is a heavy concern.
  

23   I mean I've lived here for -- I think I just passed
  

24   about 11 years.
  

25               And Star, to me, was -- it never felt
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 1   small, because, you know, we're intersected by two
  

 2   highways and another one.  And the Valley is right in
  

 3   the middle.  I mean I knew what was going to happen,
  

 4   and yet I was still dumb enough to run for City
  

 5   Council.
  

 6               So I don't know where that came from.  But
  

 7   traffic is a concern.  And houses bring traffic and
  

 8   business brings traffic, and they bring it at different
  

 9   times, but it is something that is very concerning to
  

10   think about.
  

11               So -- and that's another reason why I'm
  

12   asking for -- it may seem like a lot, but I am asking
  

13   for the 10 percent reduction, and I really would like
  

14   the 1-acre transitions because that would mirror, and I
  

15   heard a lot of people say, that's what they would feel
  

16   more comfortable with.  And I think it's a -- it's a
  

17   fair ask.
  

18               But that's my comments for now.
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Any further comments of
  

20   Council?
  

21               Councilman Nielsen, you haven't -- you
  

22   wanted to say something a minute ago.
  

23          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  I've got a lot of things to
  

24   say.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
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 1          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  But I'll start by saying I
  

 2   kind of agree with Councilman Hershey.  I think if it's
  

 3   possible, I would not like to close the public hearing
  

 4   tonight so that we can reflect on testimony and
  

 5   continue to ask questions of the applicant at the next
  

 6   hearing or the continuation.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah, Chris, that's -- that's
  

 8   okay; correct?
  

 9          CHRIS YORGASON:  Mayor, Members of Council,
  

10   yeah, I think what we'd want to do is you still want to
  

11   close generally the public hearing portion so you're
  

12   not going to bring in any new evidence, you're not
  

13   getting any written testimony that's outside of
  

14   whatever was heard tonight and is part of the record.
  

15   And so doing that, I think is okay, leave things all
  

16   done, lets the Council to consider what you've heard
  

17   tonight, allow the applicant to come back, even maybe
  

18   respond to some of the questions [unintelligible] notes
  

19   and have some further discussion and ask more questions
  

20   at that time, I think that's fine.
  

21               But I think you would want to make sure
  

22   it's closed.
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

24          CHRIS YORGASON:  -- to any -- any communication
  

25   directly with the Council, whether it's, you know, oral
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 1   or written.
  

 2          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Yeah.  I think that's fine.
  

 3   The closed part doesn't matter.  It's the ability to
  

 4   still communicate and ask questions, have dialogue with
  

 5   the applicant before we move into deliberation.
  

 6          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

 7          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  So, you know, I've heard
  

 8   really clearly tonight that people are concerned with
  

 9   traffic.  And not just folks who testified, we all are.
  

10   You know, this is -- this is a challenge that we live
  

11   with day in and day out, just like everybody else.  And
  

12   this is a challenge that we ran for public office to
  

13   try to help be part of the solution for.
  

14               And part of that is also responding to
  

15   these applications that come before us.  You know,
  

16   we've heard testimony here tonight that you guys are as
  

17   bad as people from other states.  You know, we didn't
  

18   ask Mr. Phillips to bring this application to us.
  

19               And I think -- and I say that not in
  

20   defense of -- of the City or of the Council, but just
  

21   as a part of understanding the process that we're
  

22   involved in here, is the applicant's constitutional
  

23   right to have this hearing and to have these things
  

24   presented and your consti- everybody's constitutional
  

25   rights to have their voice heard here so that we can
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 1   consider all the facts and make the best decision
  

 2   possible.
  

 3               And I think as part of that process,
  

 4   understanding traffic, understanding the planning for
  

 5   traffic, understanding the timing of when mitigations
  

 6   are put in, understanding what goes into determining
  

 7   what those mitigations are, you know, I've been doing
  

 8   this for seven years now, and I feel like I'm just
  

 9   barely starting to understand it.
  

10               And I don't say that because I feel like
  

11   I've done a poor job as a Councilperson.  I've really
  

12   tried.  It's just that complex.  And I'm not a traffic
  

13   engineer, you know.  And I haven't gone to school for
  

14   it.  And even if I did, I don't know if then I'd still
  

15   understand it.  It takes a lot of people and a lot of
  

16   agencies and a lot of cooperation.
  

17               And so, you know, having said that, it's
  

18   understandable why we drive down the roads bumper to
  

19   bumper and it takes us 20 minutes to get through Star
  

20   and we're frustrated.  Right?
  

21               And so that doesn't change the fact that
  

22   you all moved here.  That doesn't change the fact that
  

23   more people are going to move here.  It just -- it's
  

24   what brings us together here tonight.
  

25               And so how do we -- how do we honor
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 1   people's agency and honor their rights?  And not just
  

 2   for the applicant, but for each and every person who
  

 3   lives in our community, and, frankly, gets to travel
  

 4   through our community.  You know, more than 70 percent
  

 5   of the trips that come through our community don't
  

 6   start here in Star.  They're from outside.  So the --
  

 7   it's a complex problem.
  

 8               And I don't know, Nate, or, you know,
  

 9   anybody on your team, if you guys have had the ability
  

10   to simplify it any further than what you've tried to do
  

11   already, but I think some more dialogue about the
  

12   process that things go through and how agencies impact
  

13   things in the future.
  

14               You know, we started the hearing, I asked
  

15   Shawn a question, I asked him to talk about these
  

16   future things that we might put in our -- in a
  

17   Development Agreement.  And I asked that question
  

18   because I felt that getting to that clarity and having
  

19   that understanding that not everything is known at this
  

20   point in time.
  

21               But when is it known and when will we know
  

22   and what assurances will we have that we're not just
  

23   signing a blank check.  And -- or not being asked to
  

24   sign a blank check that you as an applicant, and all
  

25   applicants that come through the City, how does that
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 1   work?
  

 2          NATE MITCHELL:  I'm going to take a shot at
  

 3   this, and then Deb's going to correct me.
  

 4               We're not asking for a blank check.  We're
  

 5   actually offering to you through the Development
  

 6   Agreement process to define the check we're asking to
  

 7   be -- for you to write.  We do it through caps on
  

 8   density.  Whether we end up at 985 or 1,094 or
  

 9   whatever, you're going to have a contractual obligation
  

10   from us that we can't exceed that.
  

11               So we can't just go build 4,000 houses
  

12   because we feel like it because the golf course didn't
  

13   work.  We're capped at whatever number that number's
  

14   capped at.
  

15               We're agreeing in that same Development
  

16   Agreement to comply with the mitigation that's
  

17   determined by those traffic engineers at the time our
  

18   impact takes place through their study who I -- and you
  

19   can talk to this guy for months to try and figure out
  

20   what he knows, because he did go to school for it.
  

21               I'm with you, I've been dealing in this
  

22   since 2000 on both sides of this table, and it is a
  

23   very complex issue.  But that's your -- your
  

24   Development Agreement process gives you guys the
  

25   hammer.  And there's only one target you can swing at
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 1   that hammer with, and that's us.
  

 2               So when we say -- when your development
  

 3   says the applicant shall comply with the mitigation as
  

 4   required by ACHD, ITD, CHD 4, that's what we have to
  

 5   do.  We don't have an option.
  

 6          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  And if I could, when --
  

 7   when the responses from these traffic agencies come
  

 8   back with a massive list of roads --
  

 9          NATE MITCHELL:  Correct.
  

10          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  -- and a list of unfunded,
  

11   unfunded, unfunded, unfunded, unfunded, I mean it's
  

12   understandable that people look at that and it's really
  

13   concerning.  Right?
  

14          NATE MITCHELL:  No, absolutely.  I --
  

15          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  So why does it come back
  

16   that way, and when will it not be that way?
  

17          NATE MITCHELL:  It comes back that way -- and
  

18   you can go into a lot more of the structure of the --
  

19   the scope of the TIS.  It comes back that way
  

20   because -- because you've got a very big proposal in
  

21   front of you, and it's going to take until 2045 to get
  

22   it built.
  

23               We're not going to build it next week.
  

24   Right?  So -- so things don't stay the same, background
  

25   conditions, existing deficiencies are getting
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 1   corrected.  You're collecting proportionate share fees
  

 2   that are going to end up on some road project
  

 3   somewhere.  Right?  Are you not?  Are you collecting
  

 4   impact fees that are going to end up somewhere?
  

 5               As those take place and he updates his TIS,
  

 6   we make adjustments for the projects that have
  

 7   occurred.  If all of Can-Ada Road develops before we
  

 8   develop, those developers will build that road as we
  

 9   go.
  

10               So we can't get to the answer today for
  

11   when I've got Phase 19 of this subdivision in front of
  

12   you for a final plat in 2040.  It's physically
  

13   impossible to do.
  

14          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Some of those old farmers
  

15   in those metal chairs at the Merc are going to be upset
  

16   at you in 2040 with all those final plats.
  

17          NATE MITCHELL:  They're upset at me today.  I
  

18   sit there with them every day.
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So real quick -- have you got
  

20   more questions?  Because I want to ask a question.
  

21          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Well, I'm interested.  It
  

22   appears I do have something to contribute to that.  And
  

23   if not, then I'm finished for now.
  

24          DEBORAH NELSON:  Well, Councilmember Nielsen, I
  

25   was just going to offer that ACHD's got a really
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 1   sophisticated process.  We read a lot of ACHD staff
  

 2   reports.  And, you know, they provide detailed staff
  

 3   reports with preliminary plats, because they've got
  

 4   statutory authority to do that.
  

 5               And they take a look at all the roads that
  

 6   you're going to impact and the percentage of your
  

 7   impacts on the roads.  If they're close to being funded
  

 8   by another project within the build-out of your
  

 9   project, then they'll usually defer to their funding
  

10   mechanism and their five-year work plan to see if it's
  

11   already being funded and divert your attention to other
  

12   roads that may not be in that situation.
  

13               They also have a very strict policy about
  

14   how they determine whether the improvement needs to be
  

15   done based on your percentage of impacts.  So if it's
  

16   already failing, and you're just adding to the problem
  

17   but it was already there, and if you're less than
  

18   10 percent, then you're not required to improve that.
  

19   If you're more than 10 percent, then you may be,
  

20   depending on what their funding is.
  

21               And they evaluate it road by road,
  

22   intersection by intersection just like that.  And they
  

23   go through and determine, okay, is the right-of-way
  

24   available?  What can you do?  What are you responsible
  

25   for?
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 1               If it's not feasible, then you have to
  

 2   provide alternative mitigation, but then they evaluate
  

 3   that.  So it's a very detailed, extensive process that
  

 4   they go through.
  

 5               ITD instead has opted for a less specific
  

 6   process.  They have fewer roads involved.  Obviously
  

 7   that's not true in Star.  You have a lot of ITD roads.
  

 8   But you have probably seen this quite a bit, they've
  

 9   done a proportionate share payment instead, or they've
  

10   asked for that.
  

11               The City and ITD have recently adjusted
  

12   that to be a thousand dollars per unit.  Rather than
  

13   going through that specific analysis that I just walked
  

14   through that ACHD does, ITD, I think, has decided as a
  

15   wash all of that is a lot of work, I'll do a thousand
  

16   dollars per unit, and that's exactly what's being
  

17   charged here and everywhere else.
  

18               So they've taken a different approach, but
  

19   the same idea, to try to mitigate that.  And the City
  

20   holds those funds.  And as the Mayor said, you want
  

21   those to be spent in your city.
  

22               So that's, you know, some input about, you
  

23   know, how does that work when we get to the specific
  

24   plats.  It's more rigorous.  At this point they're just
  

25   looking at the big vision of the TIS to see if it was
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 1   done correctly and commenting generally on it.
  

 2          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So I just want to ask this
  

 3   question.
  

 4               How do we get around, with this
  

 5   development, the issues that we face on the ACHD road
  

 6   stuff when the arterials, they don't require the
  

 7   developer to build them out because they have it
  

 8   supposedly at some point on their plan to do it --
  

 9          DEBORAH NELSON:  Uh-huh.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- but they collect impact fees
  

11   where the impact fees are being used somewhere else?
  

12   They're not always in the same jurisdiction where
  

13   they're collected.
  

14          DEBORAH NELSON:  That's true.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So how do we get around that
  

16   concept with what we're dealing with, with the traffic
  

17   issues we have today, with your development and the
  

18   traffic burden it's going to cause in some of those
  

19   intersections that they've identified?
  

20          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Can you imagine if 500
  

21   people showed up at an ACHD hearing?
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah, I want all 10,000 of you
  

23   out there at an ACHD hearing.  Right?
  

24               But I mean this is the challenge --
  

25          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- that we're faced with.  I
  

 2   mean this is the reality of what's happening.  We've
  

 3   had developments where it just blows me away that they
  

 4   just haven't put in the gravel in that section and not
  

 5   build it out, but then it's not in their improvement
  

 6   plan, you know, on the five-year integrated work plan,
  

 7   so we don't have any idea when that's going to get
  

 8   fixed.  And no developer's required to build it.  But
  

 9   yet your impact fees are going somewhere else.
  

10               So this is the crazy dynamic we're trying
  

11   to figure out and deal with and make certain that we're
  

12   getting it serviced here in Star with the development.
  

13          DEBORAH NELSON:  Mr. Mayor, you won't be
  

14   surprised to know that I hear this in Boise, that all
  

15   of the impact fees are being used in Star.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Probably every jurisdiction.
  

17          DEBORAH NELSON:  So it's every -- it's every
  

18   jurisdiction's feeling.
  

19               ACHD can answer this far better than I ever
  

20   could about how they allocate that.  But you know as a
  

21   city mayor, you participate and request, you get to put
  

22   in, I think is it annually, your list of priority
  

23   projects that they consider, and they use that in their
  

24   two-year budgeting cycle as part of their five-year
  

25   work plan.
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 1               And they have a proportionate amount of
  

 2   money that they spend of impact fees throughout the
  

 3   Valley and every jurisdiction.  You get to weigh in on
  

 4   that, and they will follow your priorities up to that
  

 5   amount.  And then you can come back in in the next
  

 6   budget cycle and say "We changed our mind.  Now this is
  

 7   a bigger priority."
  

 8               It doesn't -- so you don't get this dollar,
  

 9   just like you don't get this molecule, but you get a
  

10   proportionate share of those impact fees.
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  And I know they're online
  

12   listening to me right now, but I'm telling you, it's a
  

13   challenge because it's not happening out there right
  

14   now.  You know, until we see things happening --
  

15          DEBORAH NELSON:  Yeah.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- that's our -- that's our
  

17   concern, so --
  

18          DEBORAH NELSON:  And from the developer's point
  

19   of view, I guess like I was trying to express with the
  

20   intersection before, we definitely don't disagree with
  

21   your -- any of your objectives to try and improve the
  

22   roads.  It's beneficial for the project too.
  

23               We're just trying to weigh in and make sure
  

24   we're paying the proportionate share and the timing is
  

25   appropriate.  That's all.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Right.
  

 2          DEBORAH NELSON:  Same with impact fees.
  

 3          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So I'm going to -- I'm going to
  

 4   hold -- we said that we're going to end at 11:30, and
  

 5   it's right there.
  

 6               So, Chris, do we need to just do a motion
  

 7   to close the public hearing and -- and continue the
  

 8   discussion with the applicant on June 20th?
  

 9          CHRIS YORGASON:  Yes.
  

10          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Would that be the cleanest?
  

11          CHRIS YORGASON:  You're not getting anything
  

12   new.
  

13          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah, no new testimony.
  

14          CHRIS YORGASON:  Right.
  

15          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  So I'll enter -- so can
  

16   I do that?
  

17          CHRIS YORGASON:  Yes.  So close the public
  

18   hearing and then we'll continue the --
  

19          MAYOR CHADWICK:  The deliberation with the
  

20   applicant.
  

21          CHRIS YORGASON:  Yeah, it's actually probably
  

22   not even a deliberation.  So we're closing the public
  

23   hearing to any additional public input, but we'll --
  

24   because this is still part of the public hearing
  

25   process, this conversation.
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 1          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Right.
  

 2          CHRIS YORGASON:  So --
  

 3          MAYOR CHADWICK:  So closing the public input?
  

 4          CHRIS YORGASON:  Yeah.
  

 5          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

 6          CHRIS YORGASON:  And then we'll continue the
  

 7   public hearing to receive additional information and
  

 8   continue the conversation with the applicant to the
  

 9   next meeting.  And we'll need it to a date certain, of
  

10   course.  And then we'll do the [unintelligible].
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Did somebody write that down?
  

12          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  I'll make the -- David
  

13   did.
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay, David.
  

15          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Before I do, I'm going to
  

16   have a closing remark.  It's only one second long.
  

17               You know, I've heard a lot about Star.  And
  

18   I'm going to tell you this.  The qualities of Star are
  

19   not the size, the number of people, or where you're
  

20   from.  The qualities of Star are what you bring and
  

21   what you give.  And that's what makes Star great.  And
  

22   everywhere I go, I see great people.
  

23               That's why I do this job, because you can
  

24   ask me at any time, do I like this job, and I guarantee
  

25   I'll say the same answer.  Nope, I really don't.
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 1               But the sacrifices I make personally I
  

 2   think benefit the City.  And I see that with everyone
  

 3   at these tables here.
  

 4               So in that, Mr. Mayor, I'd like to -- okay.
  

 5   I forgot -- table --
  

 6          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Close.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  No, we -- do I do that or do --
  

 8          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  You have to close it.  You
  

 9   have to close it.
  

10          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  You want me to do it?
  

11          MAYOR CHADWICK:  It's a little bit different.
  

12          CHRIS YORGASON:  Yeah, Mayor, you can -- you can
  

13   declare the public hearing is closed to any further --
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.
  

15          CHRIS YORGASON:  -- public input.
  

16          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  All right.  So I'm going
  

17   to -- it's a little different than what we usually do.
  

18   So I'm going to close -- I'm going to declare that the
  

19   public input is closed --
  

20          CHRIS YORGASON:  Portion of the public hearing
  

21   is closed.
  

22          MAYOR CHADWICK:  -- on this public hearing and
  

23   that we will --
  

24          CHRIS YORGASON:  And you motion to continue.
  

25          MAYOR CHADWICK:  At 11:29.  Okay.
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 1          CHRIS YORGASON:  You'll need a motion to
  

 2   continue the public hearing and continue the discussion
  

 3   with the applicant and deliberation to a date certain.
  

 4          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  Now we need a motion.
  

 5          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  All right.  Mr. Mayor, I
  

 6   make a motion that we -- you closed the public comment.
  

 7          MAYOR CHADWICK:  You don't have to do the public
  

 8   hearing part.  We just [unintelligible] --
  

 9          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  We continue this public
  

10   hearing with the applicant and Council deliberations to
  

11   the 21st --
  

12          MAYOR CHADWICK:  20th, 20th of June.
  

13          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  -- 20th of June --
  

14          MAYOR CHADWICK:  At 7:00 p.m.
  

15          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  -- at 7:00 p.m. at
  

16   LifeSprings Church, I believe.
  

17          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Yeah.
  

18          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  LifeSpring Church.  Excuse
  

19   me.
  

20          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  We have a motion.
  

21               Do we have a second?
  

22          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  I'll second.
  

23          MAYOR CHADWICK:  We have a motion and a second.
  

24               Any further discussion?
  

25               Hearing none, roll call.
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 1          THE CLERK:  Hershey.
  

 2          COUNCILMAN HERSHEY:  Aye.
  

 3          THE CLERK:  Wheelock.
  

 4          COUNCILMAN WHEELOCK:  Aye.
  

 5          THE CLERK:  Salmonsen.
  

 6          COUNCILWOMAN SALMONSEN:  Aye.
  

 7          THE CLERK:  Nielsen.
  

 8          COUNCILMAN NIELSEN:  Aye.
  

 9          MAYOR CHADWICK:  Okay.  So has been continued
  

10   until June 20th.  And it's very clear to the public
  

11   that you can't contact the Council on this at all,
  

12   because now we're just into the discussions with the
  

13   applicant at this time.
  

14               I want to thank everybody for coming out
  

15   and participating as part of the process, and we will
  

16   see everybody on June 20th.
  

17               So at 11:30 am going to end.
  

18               (End of video file.)
  

19                            -oOo-
  

20
  

21
  

22
  

23
  

24
  

25
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 1                   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
  

 2
  

 3          I, JEFF LaMAR, CSR No. 640, Certified Shorthand
  

 4   Reporter, certify:
  

 5          That the audio recording of the proceedings was
  

 6   transcribed by me or under my direction.
  

 7          That the foregoing is a true and correct
  

 8   transcription of all testimony given, to the best of my
  

 9   ability.
  

10          I further certify that I am not a relative or
  

11   employee of any attorney or party, nor am I financially
  

12   interested in the action.
  

13          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I set my hand and seal this
  

14   8th day of June, 2023.
  

15
  

16
  

17
  

18
  

19
  

20                         ____________________________
  

21                         JEFF LaMAR, CSR NO. 640
  

22                         Notary Public
  

23                         Post Office Box 2636
  

24                         Boise, Idaho 83701-2636
  

25   My commission expires December 30, 2023
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CITY OF STAR, IDAHO 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING NOTES 
 City Hall - 10769 W State Street, Star, Idaho 

Tuesday, August 15, 2023 at 7:00 PM 
 

Jmq   Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Chadwick called the meeting to order at 7pm. 
 

2. INVOCATION – Bishop Cody Larsen, Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints 
Bishop Larsen offered the invocation. 
 

3. ROLL CALL 

Elected Officials: Kevan Wheelock, Trevor Chadwick, Jennifer Salmonsen, Kevin Nielsen.  David Hershey was 
absent and excused.  Staff: City Attorney Chris Yorgason, City Clerk – Treasurer Jacob Qualls, Planning & 
Zoning Administrator Shawn Nickel, Assistant City Planner Ryan Field, Public Information Officer Dana 
Partridge, Star Police Chief Zach Hessing, City Engineer Ryan Morgan and Information Technology Director 
Shane Dale.   

 

4. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Star Police Chief Presentation 

Police Chief offered his presentation reporting for April, May and June.  Hessing reported a New School 
Resource Officer has been hired at Star Middle School.  Hessing reported there were more drug crimes over 
the summer months and his department is working diligently to keep these crimes down.  He noted the 
Crime Reports are on the City Website.  A question about pursuits going through the city and the Code 3 
response times was asked by the Council members, Hessing answered stating the response time ratios are 
artificially inflated and are based on when and where the person is stopped.  He indicated two of the last 
three pursuits would have inflated the response times.  Hessing advised the Police Department has a game 
plan for the back-to-school traffic. 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA (ACTION ITEM)  

A. Approval of Paid & Pending Claims 

B. Final Plat - Cresta DeSol Phases 3, 4 & 5 (FILE: FP23-08, FP23-09 & FP23-10) 

C. Findings of Fact / Conclusion of Law - Inspirado Commercial Annexation (FILE: AZ-23-04) 

 Council Member Salmonsen moved to approve the Consent Agenda; Council Member Wheelock 
seconded the motion.  ROLL CALL VOTE: Wheelock – aye, Salmonsen – aye & Neilsen – aye.  Motion 
carried. 

 

6. ACTION ITEMS:(The Council at its option may suspend the rules requiring three separate readings on three 
separate days for ordinances on the agenda for approval. This may be by a single motion to suspend the 
rules under Idaho Code 50-902; second of the motion; ROLL CALL VOTE; Title of the Ordinance is read aloud; 
motion to approve; second of the motion: ROLL CALL VOTE.) 

A. Star Fire Protection District Property Lease to the City of Star - Approval of a Property Lease between 
the Star Fire Protection District and the City of Star for the use of their building for Star City Police and 
Star Sports & Recreation Community Programs (ACTION ITEM) 
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Mayor Chadwick introduced the written lease agreement, which is a formality, renews annually and 
formalizes the already verbal agreement between the two entities for the use of the Star Police Department 
and Sports and Recreation Department housed in the Star Fire Station. 

 Council Member Nielsen moved to approve the Star Protection District Property Lease; Council 
Member Wheelock seconded the motion.  ROLL CALL VOTE: Wheelock – aye, Salmonsen – aye & 
Neilsen – aye.  Motion carried. 

 

B. Ordinance 390-2023 FY 23/24 Budget - AN ORDINANCE, TO BE TERMED THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF STAR, IDAHO, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING OCTOBER 1, 2023, 
AND ENDING ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY IN THE AGGREGATE 
AMOUNT OF $13,542,388.70 TO DEFRAY ALL NECESSARY EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES OF THE CITY OF 
STAR FOR SAID FISCAL YEAR; SPECIFYING THE OBJECT AND PURPOSES FOR WHICH SUCH 
APPROPRIATIONS ARE MADE AND THE AMOUNT APPROPRIATED FOR EACH OBJECT AND PURPOSE; 
AUTHORIZING THE CERTIFICATION TO THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ADA & CANYON COUNTIES, 
IDAHO, THE AMOUNT OF $1,869,337.00 PROPERTY TAXES TO BE LEVIED AND ASSESSED UPON THE 
TAXABLE PROPERTY IN THE CITY; PROVIDING FOR THE FILING OF A COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE WITH 
THE OFFICE OF THE IDAHO SECRETARY OF STATE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (ACITON ITEM) 

 Council Member Nielsen moved to introduce and suspend the rules requiring three separate 
readings on three separate days and approve on the first reading; Council Member Salmonsen 
seconded the motion.  ROLL CALL VOTE: Hershey – aye, Wheelock – aye, Salmonsen – aye & Neilsen 
– aye.  Motion carried. 

 Council Member Salmonsen moved to approve the ordinance and read the title; Council Member 
Wheelock seconded the motion.  ROLL CALL VOTE: Wheelock – aye, Salmonsen – aye & Neilsen – 
aye.  Motion carried. 

 

C. Reconsideration - Dude DeWalt Winery, Annexation & CUP (FILE# CU-23-05) (ACTION ITEM) 

Shawn Nickel explained the request for reconsideration for Dude DeWalt Winery, Annexation & CUP was 
received, and staff felt the burden was not met and recommended the request be denied but up to the City 
Council to determine.   

 

City Attorney Yorgason explained the request for reconsideration did not have anything specifically relevant the 
city could use to reconsider the decision but also explained the annexation is discretionary by the City Council 
and is a legislative action.  He also stated the city looked at the Zoning and the CUP to verify if the application 
met the standards to qualify.  The request did not give any new facts or issues that were not reported in the 
original hearing. 
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Mayor Chadwick explained the city did a Comprehensive Change at the same time as the rezone.  He explained 
he felt the specifics in the request were relevant to Ada County specifically, but the property was being brought 
into the City of Star and would follow City of Star codes.   

 

Yorgason added the Ada County code to follow for liquor laws is different than that of the City of Star. 

 Council Member Neilsen stated he was satisfied with the decision and process the council made and 
followed previously including the Comprehensive Plan Change, Annexation, Conditional Use Permit 
but believed the standard to meet the reconsideration request was not met. He moved to deny the 
request; Council Member Wheelock seconded the motion.  ROLL CALL VOTE: Wheelock – aye, 
Salmonsen – abstained and stated since she was not present for the meeting in which it was 
approved felt she should abstain; Neilsen – aye.  Motion carried. 

 

D. 946 South Main - Ordering / Authorizing the Demolition / Putting out to Bid of 946 South Main Street 
Improvements (ACTION ITEM) 

 

Mayor Chadwick explained this action would allow the city to sell the Mobile Home and Outbuildings at the 
recently acquired property at 946 South Main Street, and if no bids were received, then it would allow him to 
order the structure to be demolished. 

 Council Member Salmonsen moved to approve / order /authorize the demolition or putting out to 
bid of 946 South Main Street Improvements; Council Member Wheelock seconded the motion.  
ROLL CALL VOTE: Wheelock – aye, Salmonsen – aye & Neilsen – aye.  Motion carried. 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:24pm 

 

 

__________________________________    ATTEST: ______________________________ 

Trevor A Chadwick, Mayor          Jacob M Qualls, City Clerk-Treasurer 
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 1 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2339  22126S      4 A & B LOCK AND KEY                     968.50

   1   63810 07/13/23 Keys, levers, knobs                  968.50                                10      41540    431         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        968.50

  2313  22107S     20 ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT        209,580.00

   1   17831 08/02/23 ACHD Impact Fees July 2023       209,580.00                                10      41510    731         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    209,580.00

  2335  22127S     21 ADA COUNTY LANDFILL                    122.88

   1   0810-0255 08/10/23 Landfill Fees                     15.00                                10      41540    411         10110

   2   0808-0262 08/08/23 Landfill Fees                    107.88                                10      41540    411         10110

  2384  22173S     21 ADA COUNTY LANDFILL                     15.00

   1   0816-0172 08/16/23 Landfill Fees                     15.00                                10      41540    411         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        137.88

  2329  22108S     22 ADA COUNTY PROSECUTORS OFFICE        2,500.00

   1   AUG 2023 07/27/23 Prosecutions Contract - Aug     2,500.00                                10      42110    322         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,500.00

  2340  22128S     23 ADA COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE        160,006.83

   1   119202 08/02/23 Police Services Aug 2023        160,006.83                                10      42110    365         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    160,006.83

  2334  22129S     27 ADVANCED SIGN LLC                      400.24

   1   6100008335 08/09/23 Construction/Parking Signs      298.24                                10 706  41540    738         10110

   2   6100008395 08/14/23 No Dogs Allowed Sign            102.00                                10 706  41540    738         10110

  2419  22203S     27 ADVANCED SIGN LLC                      119.60

   1   6100008210 07/25/23 No Jumping Signs                119.60                                10      41540    737         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        519.84

  2402  22190S   1397 AMERICAN HOMES 4 RENT                6,357.47

   1    08/18/23 Refund - overpayment of check           6,357.47                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      6,357.47
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17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2337  22130S   1377 ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, INC           444.00

   1   2305297 07/31/23 Fish Pond Water Testing            444.00                                10      41810    737         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        444.00

  2336  22131S   1210 ANDREWS TECHNOLOGY                   2,430.00

   1    08/14/23 UKG Time & Attendance System            2,430.00                                10      41810    751         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,430.00

  2338  22132S   1067 ANNIE PEW                            1,600.26

 Ion Grant

   1    08/08/23 Reimburse Counselors/Training             102.33                                10 300  44022    560         10110

   2    08/08/23 Reimburse B/A School                       25.30                                10 101  44022    611         10110

   3    08/08/23 Reimburse Baking Camps                  1,378.56                                10 300  44022    611         10110

   4    08/02/23 Reimburse Training                         94.07                                10      44022    560         10110

  2431  22204S   1067 ANNIE PEW                            1,273.59

 Ion Grant

   1    08/23/23 Reimburse Sports Equip                     50.30                                10      44021    612         10110

   2    08/23/23 Reimburse Rec Camp Supplies               328.47                                10 104  44022    611         10110

   3    08/23/23 Reimburse Baking Camps ION                325.50                                10 300  44022    611         10110

   4    08/23/23 Reimburse Baking Camps                    116.08                                10 102  44022    611         10110

   5    08/23/23 Reimburse B/A School                      453.24                                10 101  44022    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,873.85

  2341  22133S    117 BOISE RIGGING SUPPLY                   185.88

   1   142056 07/26/23 Slings                              185.88                                10      41540    431         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        185.88

  2385  22174S    119 BOISE STATE UNIVERSITY               1,250.00

 Scholarship Award Funds for Valentina Perez Student ID: 114209915

   1    08/21/23 Scholarship Valentina Perez             1,250.00                                10      48520    840         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,250.00
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17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2332  22124S    160 CANYON HIGHWAY DISTRICT # 4          2,384.82

 Property Tax Collected for 06/01/23 - 06/30/23

   1    05/31/23 CHD4 Property Tax                       2,380.83                                10      41510    732         10110

   2    05/31/23 CHD4 Penalty                                1.23                                10      41510    732         10110

   3    05/31/23 CHD4 Interest                               2.76                                10      41510    732         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,384.82

  2342  22134S   1312 CAPITAL PAVING COMPANY INC         289,741.58

 Engineer's Project No 203010-464 State Highway 44, Bent Lane to Star Road

   1   13932 08/15/23 SH-44 Construction App #6        289,741.58                                10 500  45110    760         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    289,741.58

  2326  22109S   1072 CIVIC PLUS                             350.00

   1   263768 08/01/23 MuniDocs Subscription               350.00                                10      41810    751         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        350.00

  2415  22191S   1242 COMPUNET INC                        44,909.17

   1   231656 08/01/23 Police Station Electronics       21,659.17                                10 800  45110    741         10110

   2   231022 08/02/23 CompuNet Install Police          23,250.00                                10 800  45110    741         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     44,909.17

  2343  22135S   1391 CRAIG GROVES                        51,015.90

   1    08/08/23 Bond Release Parkstone 14 & 15         51,015.90                                10      41510    881         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     51,015.90

  2333  22125S   1387 CRAIG L ROBINSON JR LLC                600.00

   1   RH CONCERT 08/11/23 ACTIVITIES / EVENTS / CONC      600.00                                10  51  46000    324         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        600.00

  2344  22136S   1390 CUSTOM TILE LLC                         60.00

   1    08/07/23 Refund Duplicte Permit                     60.00                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         60.00
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17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V
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  2345  22137S    233 DAN'S PUMP AND FILTER LLC              225.12

   1   8228 08/15/23 Service Waterfall                     225.12                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        225.12

  2320  22110S    231 DANA PARTRIDGE                       2,456.10

   1    08/04/23 Services July 21 - Aug 3 2023           2,456.10                                10      41140    351         10110

  2386  22175S    231 DANA PARTRIDGE                       2,576.10

   1    08/18/23 Services Aug 4 - Aug 17, 2023           2,576.10                                10      41140    351         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      5,032.20

  2346  22138S   1318 DENIELLE REDONDO                       252.00

   1    08/08/23 July Barre Strength                       252.00                                10      44022    352         10110

  2429  22205S   1318 DENIELLE REDONDO                       364.00

   1    08/24/23 August Barre Strength                     364.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        616.00

  2348  22139S   1368 DIAMOND CONTRACTORS                 45,664.13

   1   App 2 08/09/23 Pavilion Parking Lot App 2        45,664.13                                10      45110    738         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     45,664.13

  2347  22140S   1307 DIRT ROAD DANCING                      630.00

   1    08/08/23 Daytime County Dancing Jun/Jul            630.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        630.00

  2400  22187S   1395 DOUG THOMPSON                        1,920.75

   1   113 08/11/23 50% Laminate Bldg Dept Desks         1,920.75                                10      41510    324         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,920.75

  2331  22123S    274 EDNETICS INC                         5,715.95

   1   123390 07/31/23 City Hall Server Room             5,715.95                                10      41810    741         10110
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  2404  22192S    274 EDNETICS INC                         2,141.04

   1   122669 06/30/23 Rec Center Wifi                   2,141.04                                10 850  45110    741         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      7,856.99

  2352  22141S   1388 FAIRBANK EQUIPMENT INC                 139.46

   1    08/02/23 Sprayer Gasket and Diaph                  139.46                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        139.46

  2350  22142S    308 FIREWORKS & STAGE FX AMERICA LLC     3,250.00

   1   21660 08/11/23 Fireworks Display Hometown         3,250.00                                10  57  41810    598         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      3,250.00

  2349  22143S    312 FLAG STORE OF IDAHO LLC                350.00

   1   2447 07/19/23 Flag Repair                           350.00                                10      41540    435         10110

  2424  22206S    312 FLAG STORE OF IDAHO LLC                 52.80

   1   2477 08/18/23 Flag Repair City Hall                  52.80                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        402.80

  2351  22144S   1240 FUNDRAISING BRICK LLC                  265.00

   1    08/11/23 Dog Park Bricks                           265.00                                10      45130    586         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        265.00

  2353  22145S   1152 GARRETT PARKS AND PLAY              17,396.40

   1   2945 08/03/23 Splash Pad Rubber Mulch            17,396.40                                10 706  45110    738         10110

  2413  22193S   1152 GARRETT PARKS AND PLAY              10,587.50

   1   3031 08/24/23 Splash Pad Rubber Mulch             6,187.50                                10 706  41540    738         10110

   2   3032 08/24/23 HC Playground Mulch/Fence           4,400.00                                10      41540    735         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     27,983.90

  2387  22176S    331 GEM STATE PAPER & SUPPLY             1,042.34

   1   3077873 08/16/23 Cleaning Supplies                1,042.34                                10      41540    611         10110
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  2423  22207S    331 GEM STATE PAPER & SUPPLY               860.78

   1   3077873-01 08/23/23 Mat, Dispenser, Cloths          860.78                                10      41540    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,903.12

  2323  22111S    373 HORIZON                                170.06

   1   3L216845 08/03/23 Shovel                             54.69                                10      41540    613         10110

   2   3L216845 08/03/23 Scoop Shovel                       60.68                                10      41540    613         10110

   3   3L216845 08/03/23 Point Shovel                       54.69                                10      41540    613         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        170.06

  2420  22208S    382 IDAHO CENTRAL CREDIT UNION           5,514.30

   1   4825 08/21/23 Chadwick                              177.59                                10      41810    611         10110

   2   3463 08/21/23 Qualls                              4,654.07                                10      41810    611         10110

   3   6074 08/21/23 Little                                682.64                                10      41540    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      5,514.30

  2356  22146S    393 IDAHO MATERIALS & CONSTRUCTION         594.00

   1   6153027 08/03/23 Road Mix                           198.00                                10 706  41540    738         10110

   2   6154088 08/04/23 Road Mix                           158.40                                10 706  41540    738         10110

   3   6145893 07/28/23 Road Mix                           237.60                                10      41540    738         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        594.00

  2358  22147S    399 IDAHO PRESS TRIBUNE                    607.17

   4   37100 08/13/23 Legal/Pub Notice PH 9/5/23            95.52                                10      41510    530         10110

   5   37063 08/11/23 Legal/Pub Notice Ord 375-2023        196.17                                10      41510    530         10110

   6   37062 08/11/23 Legal/Pub Notice Ord 384-2023        157.74                                10      41510    530         10110

   7   37061 08/11/23 Legal/Pub Notice Ord 385-2023        157.74                                10      41510    530         10110

  2388  22177S    399 IDAHO PRESS TRIBUNE                    190.28

   4   37173 08/16/23 Legal/Pub Notice BID - Star          190.28                                10      41510    530         10110

  2422  22209S    399 IDAHO PRESS TRIBUNE                    128.46

   4   37388 08/23/23 Legal/Pub Notice Ord 390-2023        128.46                                10      41510    530         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        925.91
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  2321  22112S    408 IDAHO STATE UNIVERSITY               1,395.00

 Scholarship Award Funds for Karissa Jenkins, Student ID: 001545003

   1    08/04/23 Scholarship Karissa Jenkins             1,395.00                                10      48520    840         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,395.00

  2406  22194S   1398 INTEGER UNLIMITED                    3,000.00

   1   1004 08/21/23 Computers Clerk's Office            3,000.00                                10      41810    742         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      3,000.00

  2355  22148S    421 INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY               62.70

   1   *3000 1 08/03/23 City Hall                           15.45                                10      41810    414         10110

   2   *3000 2 08/03/23 B&G Shop-1310 N Little Camas        15.45                                10      41540    414         10110

   3   *1000 1 08/03/23 Outreach Building                   15.45                                10      41810    414         10110

   4   *7251 2 08/03/23 Star Police Station                 16.35                                10      42010    414         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         62.70

  2354  22149S   1170 IWORQ                                5,000.00

   1   201163 08/01/23 Facility Management               5,000.00                                10      41540    751         10110

  2418  22210S   1170 IWORQ                               14,000.00

   1   201252 08/25/23 Comm Development Package         14,000.00                                10      41510    751         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     19,000.00

  2322  22113S   1386 JAMES TYLER                          1,200.00

   1   SAB230010 07/31/23 Summer Concert                 1,200.00                                10  51  41810    598         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,200.00

  2359  22150S    480 JULEE ELLIOTT                          502.00

   1   2198 07/24/23 Art in the Park                       352.00                                10      45130    586         10110

   2   2201 08/08/23 Art in the Park                       150.00                                10      45130    586         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        502.00

  2357  22151S    488 JUSTIN MAY                           2,500.00

   1   HT 08/01/23 Hometown Celebration                  2,500.00                                10  50  41810    597         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,500.00
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  2389  22178S    502 KEELY ELECTRIC                       2,710.80

   1   20-2097 08/21/23 River House Patio                2,710.80                                10      45110    737         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,710.80

  2433  22211S   1304 LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES INC           127,007.14

   1   127967 05/08/23 Splashpad Progress               86,057.14                                10 706  45110    738         10110

   2   127271-FIN 04/20/23 Splashpad Progress           40,950.00                                10 706  45110    738         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    127,007.14

  2362  22152S   1354 LARA YOUNGMAN                          252.00

   1    08/08/23 Mat Pilates July                          252.00                                10      44022    352         10110

  2428  22212S   1354 LARA YOUNGMAN                          168.00

   1    08/24/23 Mat Pilates August                        168.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        420.00

  2361  22153S    524 LARRY BEARG                            364.00

   1    08/08/23 Tai Chi Instruction July                  364.00                                10      44022    352         10110

  2430  22213S    524 LARRY BEARG                            448.00

   1    08/24/23 Tai Chi Instruction August                448.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        812.00

  2363  22154S    542 LIFESPRING CHURCH                      250.00

   1    08/08/23 July Basketball Camp                      250.00                                10      44022    699         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        250.00

  2360  22155S   1107 LLOYD AND LEE TENNIS ACADEMY         1,435.00

   1   07232023A 08/08/23 June Tennis Camp                 630.00                                10      44022    352         10110

   2   07232023B 08/08/23 July Tennis Camp                 805.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,435.00

  2364  22156S   1374 MADYSSON JUNGENBERG                    100.00

   1    08/08/23 July Cheer Class                          100.00                                10      44022    352         10110
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  2392  22179S   1374 MADYSSON JUNGENBERG                    181.30

   1    08/08/23 Cheer                                     181.30                                10      44022    352         10110

  2425  22214S   1374 MADYSSON JUNGENBERG                  1,247.40

   1    08/23/23 July Interstellar Cheer Class             607.60                                10      44022    352         10110

   2    08/24/23 August Cheer                              639.80                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,528.70

  2401  22188S   1396 MARY ANNE SAUNDERS                      50.00

   1    08/21/23 Park Rental Deposit Refund                 50.00                                10      41810    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         50.00

  2421  22215S    583 MASTERCARD                             959.41

   1   7969 08/10/23 Qualls                                854.97                                10      41810    611         10110

   2   7586 08/10/23 Little                                104.44                                10      41540    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        959.41

  2390  22180S    635 MOUNTAIN ALARM                         105.00

   1   3827216 08/16/23 Fire Alarm Inspection               15.00                                10      41810    344         10110

   2   3827216 08/16/23 Backflow Inspection                  7.00                                10      41810    344         10110

   3   3827216 08/16/23 Fire Monitoring                     32.50                                10      41810    344         10110

   4   3827216 08/16/23 Fire Sprinkler Inspection           18.00                                10      41810    344         10110

   5   3827215 08/16/23 Security Cellular Backup            13.00                                10      41810    344         10110

   6   3827215 08/16/23 Security Monitoring                 19.50                                10      41810    344         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        105.00

  2393  22181S    642 NAPA AUTO PARTS                         23.38

   1   094292 08/16/23 Blister Pack Capsules                23.38                                10      41540    437         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         23.38

  2365  22157S    648 NICK PEW                               201.04

   1    08/08/23 Reimburse Training Parking                 56.00                                10      44022    560         10110

   2    08/08/23 Reimburse Rec Wall Repair                 145.04                                10      44022    610         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        201.04
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  2366  22158S    649 NIKI DEAN                              707.00

   1    08/08/23 Yoga Instruction July                     707.00                                10      44022    352         10110

  2427  22216S    649 NIKI DEAN                              700.00

   1    08/24/23 Yoga Instruction August                   700.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,407.00

  2409  22195S    656 OFFICE SAVERS ONLINE                   316.69

   1   9828 08/21/23 Staplers, tape disp, cartridge        185.20                                10      41810    611         10110

   2   9804 08/21/23 Scissors, cartridge                   131.49                                10      41810    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        316.69

  2318  22114S    670 PATHWAY CONCRETE & LANDSCAPING      35,795.50

   1   126 08/02/23 Splashpad Additions                 35,795.50                                10 706  45110    738         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     35,795.50

  2316  22115S    686 PORTAPROS LLC                          260.00

   1   121435O-1 08/03/23 Dog Park                         260.00                                10      41540    411         10110

  2394  22182S    686 PORTAPROS LLC                          515.00

   1   112049AN-1 08/18/23 River Walk                      515.00                                10      41540    411         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        775.00

  2407  22196S    688 POWERHOUSE ELECTRIC                    104.00

   1    08/22/23 Refund Duplicate Permit                   104.00                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        104.00

  2367  22159S   1392 PRIMARY ELECTRIC, INC                  156.00

   1    08/15/23 Refund Cancelled Permit 80%               156.00                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        156.00

  2369  22160S   1393 RAINTREE INVESTMENT CORPORATION    187,420.42

   1    08/08/23 Bond Release Amazon Falls             187,420.42                                10      41510    881         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    187,420.42
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  2368  22161S    707 REPUBLIC SERVICES INC                  895.70

   1   001326839 07/31/23 Hunters Creek Park               443.48                                10      41540    411         10110

   2   001326906 07/31/23 Star River Access 1000 S Ma       85.39                                10      41540    411         10110

   3   001326917 07/31/23 River Park 1000 S Main St        116.30                                10      41540    411         10110

   7   001327219 07/31/23 Star City Hall                   127.27                                10      41540    411         10110

   8   001327246 07/31/23 Blake Haven Park                 123.26                                10      41540    411         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        895.70

  2410  22197S    721 ROBERT P LITTLE                      4,402.50

   1   116185 08/25/23 B&G Contracted Services           4,660.00                                10      41540    351         10110

   2   Life Insur 08/25/23 Life Insurance                 -203.50                                10      41540    215         10110

   3   Vision Ins 08/25/23 Spousal Vision Insruance        -13.00                                10      41540    211         10110

   4   Dental Ins 08/25/23 Spousal Dental Insurance        -41.00                                10      41540    212         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      4,402.50

  2412  22198S   1400 RON LANGE                              453.46

   1    08/23/23 Reimbursement burned pipes                453.46                                10      41540    735         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        453.46

  2432  22217S    727 RON WESTON                             197.83

   1    08/23/23 Reimburse Sports Equip                    197.83                                10      44021    612         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        197.83

  2370  22162S   1238 ROYALTY ELECTRIC LLC                 1,913.00

   1   23094 08/09/23 Patch Panel                          188.00                                10      41810    742         10110

   2   23089 08/09/23 Splash Pad Trench                  1,725.00                                10 706  45110    738         10110

  2414  22199S   1238 ROYALTY ELECTRIC LLC                 6,107.00

   1   23116 08/24/23 Mics/Speakers/Cab Police           6,107.00                                10 800  45110    741         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      8,020.00

  2396  22183S    772 SHERWIN WILLIAMS                       179.23

   1   0271-6 08/19/23 Paint                                52.49                                10      41540    434         10110

   2   0229-4 08/18/23 Paint                               126.74                                10      41540    434         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        179.23
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  2372  22163S    777 SILVER CREEK SUPPLY                    802.73

   1   *8091-001 08/08/23 PVC Pipe                          42.99                                10      41540    611         10110

   2   *5441-002 08/04/23 Rotor/Pop Up Sprinkler           310.18                                10      41540    611         10110

   3   *5441-001 08/04/23 Rotor/Cement/Valve               449.56                                10      41540    611         10110

  2395  22184S    777 SILVER CREEK SUPPLY                     76.95

   1   0979-001 08/17/23 Pinlanbox Fabric Sod               76.95                                10      41540    611         10110

  2416  22218S    777 SILVER CREEK SUPPLY                    234.70

   1   *3307-001 08/26/23 Valves/Adapters                  234.70                                10      41540    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,114.38

  2397  22185S    780 SIMPLOT TURF & HORTICULTURE            801.00

   1   216066850 07/13/23 Herbicide, Nutriwash, ROBlu      801.00                                10      41540    735         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        801.00

  2317  22116S    796 SPECIALTY CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY          265.68

   1   0233346-IN 08/01/23 Fence and ties                  265.68                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        265.68

  2371  22164S    819 STAR TIRE & AUTO LLC                   315.45

   1    07/12/23 Turf Master                               328.98                                10      41540    435         10110

   2    12/31/22 Credit                                    -13.53                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        315.45

  2374  22165S    857 TATES RENTS                          2,111.07

   1   1758838-9 08/14/23 Trailer                        1,677.35                                10      41540    442         10110

   2   1760962-9 08/04/23 Roller                           283.64                                10      41540    442         10110

   3   1758881-9 08/07/23 Post Driver                       94.08                                10      41540    442         10110

   4   1762189-9 08/07/23 Post Driver                       56.00                                10      41540    442         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,111.07

  2376  22166S   1370 TAYLOR HAMMRICH                        614.60

   1    08/08/23 July Tumbling Instructor                  614.60                                10      44022    352         10110
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  2426  22219S   1370 TAYLOR HAMMRICH                        555.10

   1    08/24/23 Aug Tumbling Instructor                   555.10                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,169.70

  2411  22200S   1355 THE STAR COURIER NEWSPAPER             151.20

   1   1757 08/18/23 Recreation Dept                       151.20                                10      44022    530         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        151.20

  2399  22189S   1394 TOWNSQUARE MEDIA BOISE               1,500.00

   1   8182023 08/22/23 Radio/Dig Marketing ArtByRive    1,500.00                                10 615  45130    586         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,500.00

  2373  22167S   1093 TREASURE VALLEY BOUNCE N SLIDE         304.33

   1   1581 08/15/23 Summer Camp                           304.33                                10 104  44022    442         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        304.33

  2328  22117S    898 TREASURE VALLEY COFFEE                  65.90

   2   09581458 08/01/23 Rec Dept Water                     13.40                                10      44022    611         10110

   4   09581362 08/01/23 Bldg Maint Coffee                  52.50                                10      41540    611         10110

  2398  22186S    898 TREASURE VALLEY COFFEE                 160.12

   2   09636556 08/15/23 Rec Dept Water                     13.40                                10      44022    611         10110

   4   09636506 08/15/23 City Hall Water, Coffee, Tea      146.72                                10      41810    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        226.02

  2375  22168S   1332 TREASURE VALLEY YOUTH SPORTS LLC       992.62

   1   190810R1 08/02/23 STEM June Camp                    314.62                                10 300  44022    324         10110

   2   190812 08/01/23 STEM July Camp                      678.00                                10 300  44022    324         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        992.62

  2381  22169S   1389 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AMERICA),      1,848.38

   1   *88644-001 08/02/23 Forklift                      1,848.38                                10      41540    442         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,848.38
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 14 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2377  22170S   1295 VALLEY OFFICE SYSTEMS                  196.52

   1   AR1202728 08/14/23 Monthly Lease - Copier           196.52                                10      41810    610         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        196.52

  2378  22171S    935 VERIZON WIRELESS                       964.70

 Charges for 18 Phone Lines and 1 Jetpack

   1   9941001083 08/01/23 Montly Cell Phone Charge        964.70                                10      41810    416         10110

 1

                                     Total for Vendor:        964.70

  2324  22119S   1129 WESTERN HEATING & AIR                1,771.00

   1   166908746 08/01/23 Maintenance Membership         1,771.00                                10      41540    344         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,771.00

  2327  22120S    949 WESTERN RECORDS DESTRUCTION             60.00

 Services from 07/01/23 - 07/31/23

   1   0650277 08/01/23 02-64 Gallon City Hall              60.00                                10      41810    411         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         60.00

  2408  22201S    960 WOODY'S OUTDOOR POWER INC              429.98

   1   139110 07/17/23 Trimmer & Replacement Head          429.98                                10      41540    433         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        429.98

  2325  22121S    962 XEROX                                  141.18

 Meter Read from 06/21/23 - 07/21/23

   2   019418040 08/01/23 Meter Usage                      141.18                                10      41810    742         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        141.18

  2383  22172S   1385 YMC                                    345.21

   1    08/15/23 Refund  Incorrect Jurisdiction            345.21                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        345.21

  2315  22122S    963 YORGASON LAW OFFICES PLLC            3,522.93

   1   Contract 07/01/23 City Attorney Monthly Servic    3,500.00                                10      41310    322         10110

   2   Jul 2023 07/01/23 City Attorney Additional Svc       22.93                                10      41310    322         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      3,522.93
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 15 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2405  22202S    966 ZOOM                                    40.00

   1   215851046 08/22/23 Cloud Recording                   40.00                                10      41810    570         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         40.00

                                       # of Claims   112      Total: 1300,966.31      # of Vendors    89

** This report runs by Claim Posted Date, which is a system generated field that always shows the date on which the Claim was

actually posted in the system. If a Claim was cancelled and re-posted, the posted date will show as of the date it was re-posted. **
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File # FP-23-11 Page 1 
Milestone Ranch Subdivision Phase 6 
Final Plat 

 

             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   City of Star – Planning & Zoning Department  

MEETING DATE: September 5th 2023 

FILE(S) #: FP-23-11 Final Plat, Milestone Ranch Subdivision, Phase 6 

  

 

REQUEST 

 

The Applicant is seeking approval of a Final Plat for Milestone Ranch Subdivision Phase 6, 

consisting of 59 residential lots and 9 common lots on 12.41 acres. The subject property is 

generally located on the northwest corner of W. Floating Feather Road and Highway 16. Ada 

County Parcel No’s. R3721750030, R3721750020.  

APPLICANT/OWNER/REPRESENTATIVE 

 

APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE:     OWNER     

Van Elg      BHEG Milestone Ranch, LLC          

JUB Engineers      Toll Brothers Southwest     

2760 W. Excursion Lane, Ste. 400   3103 W. Sheryl Drive, Ste. 100   

Meridian, Idaho 83642    Meridian, Idaho 83642 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Land Use Designation - Residential (R-5-DA) 

 

    Phase 6  

Acres -    12.41   

Residential Lots -  59   

Common Lots -  9    

Commercial -   N/A   
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File # FP-23-11 Page 2 
Milestone Ranch Subdivision Phase 6 
Final Plat 

HISTORY   

 

This property was previously platted in Ada County as Lots 1, 2 and 3, Block 1 of Hoot Nanney 

Farms Subdivision. On June 19, 2018, Lots 1 & 2 were annexed into the City of Star as Dixon 

Sunrise Subdivision with an M-U zoning designation. The approval did not include any 

development plans, but it was for commercial and residential according to the file records. 

  

October 12, 2021 Council approved applications for Annexation and Zoning (AZ-21-

20), Rezone (RZ-21-06), Development Agreement (DA-21-15) and 

Preliminary Plat (PP-21-14) for Milestone Ranch Subdivision. The 

preliminary plat was approved for 284 residential lots and 33 

common lots on 70.52 acres.  

 

May 3, 2022 Council approved the Final Plat for Milestone Ranch Subdivision, 

Phase 1 consisting of 57 residential lots and 15 common lots on 

18.66 acres.  

 

June 7, 2022 Council approved the Final Plat for Milestone Ranch Subdivision, 

Phase 2 consisting of 42 residential lots and 7 common lots on 

8.69 acres. 

 

June 21, 2022 Council approved the Final Plat for Milestone Ranch Subdivision 

Phase 3 consisting of 38 residential lots and 4 common lots on 

8.97 acres. The Council also approved the Final Plat for Phase 4 

consisting of 34 residential lots and 7 common lots on 5.96 acres.  

 

June 20, 2023 Council approved the Final Plat for Milestone Ranch Subdivision, 

Phase 5 consisting of 52 residential lots and 10 common lots on 

12.43 acres. 

     

GENERAL DISCUSSION 

 

The Applicant is seeking approval of a Final Plat for Milestone Ranch Subdivision Phase 6, 

consisting of 59 residential lots and 9 common lots on 12.41.  

 

The Final Plat generally complies with the approved Preliminary Plat. 

 

This subdivision is located in FEMA Zone X; outside the 500-year floodplain.  No special permits 

are required. 

 

Staff Reviewed Comments from the Preliminary Plat Approval/Findings of Fact: 

 

The Preliminary Plat submitted contains 240 single family detached residential lots, 44 single 

family attached townhome lots and 33 common area lots on 67.0 acres. This equates to 4.24 
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Final Plat 

dwelling units per acre. The lots will have access and frontage from public streets. The 

development has a variety of lot widths, including 40, 45, and 55 feet with depths of 110 feet. 

Single family detached lots will range in size from 4,738 square feet to 11,431 square feet with 

the average buildable lot being 5,498 square feet. The Townhome lots will range in size from 

3,906 square feet to 9,172 square feet. The submitted preliminary plat is showing all local roads 

with a 50-foot wide right of way with paved streets measuring 36 feet from back of curb to back 

of curb. Sidewalks are proposed to be detached with a 5-foot, concrete sidewalk and 8-foot side 

landscape strip. The applicant is proposing 10.75 acres (16.04%) of open space, not including 

5.93 acres set aside for future State Highway 16 right-of-way. The applicant is proposing 10.63 

acres (15.87%) of usable open space, not including the 8-foot-wide landscape strip along the 

local streets. These percentages satisfy the Unified Development Code requirement of 15% open 

space with 10% useable.   

 

The Unified Development Code, Section 8-4E-2 requires a development of this size to have a 

minimum of seven (7) site amenities. The applicant is proposing a 2.44-acre central park with a 

club house, pool, a plaza with picnic tables, two (2) pocket parks with sitting areas, four (4) 

pickleball courts, a cart path with connection to the golf course and multiple pathways and 

micro pathways that connect the development to the common areas and amenities. These 

amenities satisfy the code requirement for development amenities.   

 

Discussions with ACHD indicate that this section of W. Floating Feather Road may be 

downgraded from a minor arterial to a collector and the applicant may be required to 

disconnect W. Floating Feather Road from Hwy 16 and construct a cul-de-sac turn around. 

Timing of this is being coordinated between ACHD and ITD. The applicant will be required to 

dedicate an additional five (5) feet of right of way and install curb, gutter and a detached 5-foot 

sidewalk along their W. Floating Feather Road frontage. 

 

Staff analysis of Final Plat Submittal: 

 

The preliminary plat was approved with 284 residential lots (240 single family and 44 

townhomes). Phase 1 final plat included 57 residential lots. Phase 2 had 42 residential lots 

platted. Phase 3 is 38 lots and Phase 4 is 34 lots and Phase 5 has 52 lots for a total of 223 

platted lots in the first 5 phases. Phase 6 is 59 lots.  Total number of lots platted to date is 

282 lots. 

 

Common/Open Space and Amenities – Approved open space includes the large Central 

Park, clubhouse, pool, picnic tables, 2 pocket parks/sitting areas four pickleball courts, cart 

path/golf course connection, multiple pathways, micro paths for connectivity to common areas 

and mailbox turn out.  

 

Landscaping - As required by the Unified Development Code, Chapter 4, Section B-7-C-3 Street 

Trees; the minimum density of one (1) tree per thirty-five (35) linear feet is required. The 

landscaping plan as submitted appears to satisfy this requirement. The applicant shall use “Tree 
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Selection Guide for Streets and Landscapes throughout Idaho”, as adopted by the Unified 

Development Code. The included landscape plan appears to satisfy these requirements.  

 

Streetlights – Streetlight design shall be uniform throughout the development and follow the 

approved style and model from the previous phases. Staff is supportive of the location of the  

proposed streetlights in this phase. Applicant has previously submitted an approved streetlight 

cut sheet.  

 

Setbacks – Council approved a 10-foot rear setback during the public hearing on the 

preliminary plat versus the 15-foot rear setback that code calls for.  

 

Subdivision Name – Applicant has provided documentation that the proposed subdivision 

name has been accepted and reserved by Ada County.  

 

Street Names – Applicant has provided documentation that the proposed street names have 

been reviewed and approved by Ada County and are reflected correctly on the final plat.  

 

Mail Cluster – Applicant has provided approval from Star Postmaster for the location of the 

mail clusters. It will be on Lot 1, Block 3 in the provided vehicle pull out of phase 1. 

 

Staff Review of Development Agreement Conditions of Approval – The following 

Conditions of Approval in the DA include: 

 

• The subdivision was approved for a maximum of 284 residential lots. With this Phase 6, 

282 residential lots have been platted. 

• The following setbacks were approved by Council: 

o Setbacks. The development shall comply with the following approved setbacks 

and dimensional standards:  

  

Single-family Detached Setbacks:  

Max. Height Min. Front 

Yard Setback 

Min. Rear 

Yard Setback 

Min. Interior 

Side Setback 

Min. Street 

Side Setback 

35’ 15' to living 

area/side 

load garage  

20' to garage 

face 

10’ 5'  20' 

Single-Family Attached Setbacks (Front-load):  

Max. Height Min. Front 

Yard Setback 

Min. Rear 

Yard Setback 

Min. Interior 

Side Setback 

Min. Street 

Side Setback 
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35’ 15' to living 

area 

20’ to garage 

face 

10' 0' for 

common 

walls  

5' at end of 

building  

20' 

 

Single-Family Attached Setbacks (Alley-load):  

 

 

Max. Height 

 

Min. Front 

Yard Setback 

Min. Rear 

Yard Setback 

from Alley 

 

Min. Interior 

Side Setback 

 

Min. Street 

Side Setback 

35’ 10'  20' 0' for 

common 

walls  

5' at end of 

building  

20' 

 

• Proportionate shares for ITD roadway improvements in the amount of $138.10 per 

residential lot have been paid for in the previous phases. This phase will provide an 

additional $8.147.90 of Proportionate Shares. 

 

PUBLIC/DEPARTMENTAL NOTIFICATIONS 

 

Notifications of this application were sent to agencies and City Departments having jurisdiction 

on May 16, 2023.   

 

FINDINGS 

 

The Council may approve, conditionally approve, deny or table this request.  In order  

to approve this Final Plat, the Unified Development Code requires that Council must find  

the following: 

 

A.  The Plat is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Staff finds that this subdivision upon Preliminary Plat approval was in conformance with the 

Comprehensive Plan; no changes have been made to change this status. 
 

B. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate the 

proposed development. 

Staff finds that all public services are available and able to accommodate this development. 

 

C.  There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development. 
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Staff knows of no financial hardship that would prevent services from being provided. 

 

D.  The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or general welfare; and, 

Staff finds no facts to support that this subdivision phase will be detrimental to the public 

health, safety, or general welfare. 
 

E.  The development preserves significant natural, scenic, or historic features. 

Staff finds that existing conditions have not substantially changed from the approved 

Preliminary Plat of this subdivision. 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

1. The final plat for the Milestone Ranch Subdivision shall comply with all statutory 

requirements of applicable agencies and districts having jurisdiction in the City of Star. 

2. The Final Plat shall comply with all received comments from the City Engineer prior to 

signature of the plat by the City. 

3. The applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City, agreeing to 

proportionate share assessment by ITD regarding impacts to the State Highway 

System. ITD has calculated the fees to be $39,222. These fees will be collected by the 

City of Star, by phase, prior to final plat signature. The development agreement shall be 

signed and recorded as part of the ordinance for annexation and zoning and shall contain 

the details of the fees to be collected. 

4. All private drive shall be built to Fire Department specifications and receive their 

approval before certificate of occupancy is issued.  

5. The property shall be satisfactorily weed abated at all times, including future phases, 

preventing a public nuisance, per Star City Code Chapter 3, Section 3-1-1 through 3-1-7. 

6. The property associated with this approved Final Plat, in addition to the property of all future 

phases shall be properly maintained throughout the construction process to include trash 

picked up and trash receptacles emptied with regular frequency, streets swept and cleaned 

weekly, including any streets used to access the property and all debris shall be prevented 

from accumulating on any adjacent property or public right of way and shall remove all 

debris from public way at least daily.  

7. Mylar’s/final plats must include the statement supporting the “Right to Farm Act” as per 

Idaho Code Title 22, Chapter 45. 

8. Development standards for single family residential units shall comply with effective building 

and zoning requirements at time of building permit issuance. 

9. The Mylar of this final plat shall be signed by the owner, Surveyor, Central District Health, 

ACHD and City Engineer, prior to being delivered to the City of Star for City Clerk’s signature.   

10. All common areas shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association. 

11. Streetlights shall comply with the Star City Code and shall be of the same design 

throughout the entire subdivision. Streetlights shall be continuous throughout the 

subdivision and shall be maintained by the Homeowners Association. Streetlights 

shall be installed and energized prior to issuing of building permits. Design shall 

follow Code with requirements for light trespass and “Dark Skies” lighting. 
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Streetlights shall comply with the Star City Code regarding light trespass and “Dark 

Sky” initiative.  
12. The Applicant/Owner shall comply with the City of Star Unified Development Code regarding 

landscaping, both internal buffers and frontages. Street trees shall be installed per Chapter 4, 

Section B-7-C-3 Street Trees as indicated on the approved landscape plan. 

13. The applicant shall provide the City with a written Certificate of Completion that all 

landscaping and amenities have been installed in substantial compliance with the City 

approved landscape plan. The certification shall be prepared by the licensed landscape 

architect responsible for the landscape plan. This shall be completed prior to final plat 

signature. 

14. A letter from the US Postal Service shall be given to the City prior to final Mylar signature 

stating the subdivision is in compliance with the Postal Service. 

15. A form signed by the Star Sewer & Water District shall be submitted to the City prior to final 

mylar signature stating that all conditions have been met. 

16. A sign application shall be submitted to the City for any subdivision signs. 

17. The applicant shall provide a sign, to be located at all construction entrances, indicating the 

rules for all contractors that will be working on the property starting at grading and running 

through home sales that addresses items including but not limited to dust, music, dogs, 

starting/stopping hours for contractors (7a.m. start time). Sign shall be approved by the 

City prior to start of any construction. 

18. Applicant shall provide the City with one (1) full size copy, one (1) 11”x17” copy and an 

electronic pdf copy of the as-built irrigation plans, prior to any building permits being 

issued.  

19. Applicant shall provide the City with two (2) full size copies, one (1) 11”x17” copy and an 

electronic pdf copy of the signed recorded final plat with all signatures, prior to any 

building permits being issued.  

20.  Applicant shall provide the City  with one (1) copy and an electronic pdf copy of the 

recorded CC&R’s, prior to any building permits being issued. 

21.  Applicant shall provide the City  with one (1) full size copy and an electronic pdf copy of the 

final, approved construction drawings, prior to any building permits being issued. 

22. All common areas shall be maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

23. Any additional Condition of Approval as required by Staff and City Council. 

24. Owner/Developer agrees to install a 2’ (High Density Polyethylene) HDPR SDR-11 roll 

pipe in the shared utility trench to be used for future fiber optic/high speed data 

cables.  

 

COUNCIL DECISION 

 

The Star City Council ____________________ File # FP-23-11 Milestone Ranch Subdivision, Phase 6 

Final Plat, on _________________ ______, 2023. 
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MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 6

LEGEND

A PORTION OF LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK 1, HOOT NANNEY FARMS SUBDIVISION
LOCATED IN THE SW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 4, T.4N., R.1W., B.M., CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO

2023

PLASTIC CAP
SET 5/8" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT

SECTION LINE

PLASTIC CAP
SET 1/2" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

CALCULATED POINT, NOT SET

CENTER LINE

OTHER EASEMENT LINE AS NOTED

PLASTIC CAP, OR AS NOTED
FOUND 1/2" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

PLASTIC CAP, OR AS NOTED
FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY LINE
LOT LINE

LOT NUMBER

SURVEY TIE LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT
STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT LINE

ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT
PERMANENT EASEMENT, INSTRUMENT 
NO. ___________________

FOUND BRASS CAP MONUMENT

SURVEYOR'S NARRATIVE
THE BOUNDARY FOR THIS SUBDIVISION WAS DEVELOPED FROM SURVEYED TIES
TO CONTROLLING SECTION CORNER MONUMENTATION, THE PLATTED
SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES OF HOOT NANNEY FARMS SUBDIVISION, THE TRELLIS
SUBDIVISION, MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 1, MILESTONE RANCH
SUBDIVISION NO. 4, MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 5, INFORMATION FROM
RECORD OF SURVEY NUMBERS 1205, 4931, 5321, 5716, 6981, 12518, AND CURRENT
DEEDS OF RECORD.  THE SURVEYED MONUMENTATION AND CONTROLLING
BOUNDARIES FIT THE RECORDS WELL AND WERE ACCEPTED TO ESTABLISH THE
BOUNDARY FOR THIS SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON.

40' 160'80'0'

SCALE: 1" = 80'

Land Surveying and Consulting

BOOK ____ , PAGE _______

231 E. 5TH STREET, MERIDIAN ID 83642
(208) 288-2040      www.landsolutions.biz

SHEET 1 OF 4

RECORD DATA

SEE NOTE 10

PUBLIC UTILITY, PRESSURE IRRIGATION
& LOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT LINE -
SEE NOTES 1 & 2

SEE SHEET 2 OF 4 FOR CURVE DATA AND NOTES
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MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 6

Land Surveying and Consulting

BOOK ____ , PAGE _______

231 E. 5TH STREET, MERIDIAN ID 83642
(208) 288-2040      www.landsolutions.biz

SHEET 2 OF 4

NOTES
1. ALL LOT LINES COMMON TO PUBLIC STREETS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED TO HAVE A SIXTEEN (16) FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, PRESSURE

IRRIGATION AND LOT DRAINAGE, UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN. THIS EASEMENT SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF PROPER HARD-SURFACED DRIVEWAYS
AND WALKWAYS FOR ACCESS TO EACH INDIVIDUAL LOT.

2. ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED AS HAVING A FIVE (5) FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT ON EACH SIDE OF THE INTERIOR SIDE LOT LINES, AND TEN (10) FOOT PERMANENT
EASEMENT CONTIGUOUS TO ALL REAR LOT LINES, PRIVATE ALLEYS, AND SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY, FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, PRESSURE IRRIGATION, AND LOT DRAINAGE,
UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.  ALL OTHER EASEMENTS ARE AS SHOWN.

3. MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACKS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF STAR APPLICABLE ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AT THE TIME OF ISSUANCE OF
INDIVIDUAL BUILDING PERMITS OR AS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED AND/OR REQUIRED, OR AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

4. ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE ZONING REGULATIONS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF THE RESUBDIVISION.

5. IRRIGATION WATER HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY THE FARMERS UNION DITCH COMPANY IN COMPLIANCE WITH IDAHO CODE SECTION 31-3805(1)(b). LOTS WITHIN THE
SUBDIVISION SHALL BE ENTITLED TO IRRIGATION WATER FROM SAID IRRIGATION ENTITY, TO BE DELIVERED TO LOTS THROUGH A PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION SYSTEM
OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE HOMEOWNER ASSOCIATION. THE HOMEOWNER ASSOCIATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO ASSESSMENTS BY SAID IRRIGATION ENTITY.

6. MAINTENANCE OF ANY IRRIGATION OR DRAINAGE PIPE OR DITCH CROSSING A LOT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LOT OWNER UNLESS SUCH RESPONSIBILITY IS
ASSUMED BY AN IRRIGATION/DRAINAGE ENTITY OR THE HOMEOWNER ASSOCIATION.

7. LOTS 70, 84, 85, 86 AND 97, BLOCK 3; LOTS 17, 18 AND 27, BLOCK 13; AND LOT 17, BLOCK 16 ARE DESIGNATED AS COMMON LOTS AND SHALL BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY
THE MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, OR ITS ASSIGNS. SAID LOTS ARE COVERED BY BLANKET EASEMENTS FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES,
IRRIGATION AND LOT DRAINAGE.

8. THIS DEVELOPMENT RECOGNIZES IDAHO CODE SECTION 22-4503, RIGHT TO FARM ACT, WHICH STATES "NO AGRICULTURAL OPERATION, AGRICULTURAL FACILITY OR
EXPANSION THEREOF SHALL BE OR BECOME A NUISANCE, PRIVATE OR PUBLIC, BY ANY CHANGED CONDITIONS IN OR ABOUT THE SURROUNDING NONAGRICULTURAL
ACTIVITIES AFTER IT HAS BEEN IN OPERATION FOR MORE THAN ONE (1) YEAR, WHEN THE OPERATION, FACILITY OR EXPANSION WAS NOT A NUISANCE AT THE TIME IT
BEGAN OR WAS CONSTRUCTED. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL NOT APPLY WHEN A NUISANCE RESULTS FROM THE IMPROPER OR NEGLIGENT OPERATION OF
AN AGRICULTURAL OPERATION, AGRICULTURAL FACILITY OR EXPANSION THEREOF."

9. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2022-014198, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO.

10. LOT 17, BLOCK 13 AND THE WESTERLY PORTION OF LOT 17, BLOCK 16 AS SHOWN HEREON ARE SERVIENT TO AND CONTAIN THE ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT STORM
WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM. THESE LOTS ARE ENCUMBERED BY THAT CERTAIN MASTER PERPETUAL STORM WATER DRAINAGE EASEMENT RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 10,
2015 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2015-103256, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY THIS REFERENCE AS IF SET FORTH IN FULL (THE "MASTER
EASEMENT"). THE MASTER EASEMENT AND THE STORM WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM ARE DEDICATED TO ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT PURSUANT TO SECTION 40-2302,
IDAHO CODE THE MASTER EASEMENT IS FOR THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE STORM WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

11. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF AN ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT TEMPORARY LICENSE AGREEMENT RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO. ____-______,
RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO.

12. DIRECT LOT OR PARCEL ACCESS TO N. MILESTONE WAY, W. STATESBORO STREET AND STATE HIGHWAY 16 IS PROHIBITED.

13.  THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND EASEMENTS FOR MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION, RECORDED AS
INSTRUMENT NO. _____-___________, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, AND AS MAY BE AMENDED.

14.   SEE INSTRUMENT NO. ____-______, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, FOR VACATION OF EXISTING INGRESS/EGRESS, PUBLIC UTILITY, DRAINAGE & IRRIGATION AND
IDAHO POWER OVERHEAD EASEMENTS PER THE PLAT OF HOOT NANNEY FARMS SUBDIVISION.
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CERTIFICATE OF SURVEYOR

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS

CLINTON W. HANSEN
PLS 11118

I, CLINTON W. HANSEN, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF IDAHO, AND
THAT THIS PLAT AS DESCRIBED IN THE "CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS" WAS DRAWN FROM THE FIELD NOTES OF A SURVEY MADE ON
THE GROUND UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND ACCURATELY REPRESENTS THE POINTS PLATTED THEREON, AND IS IN
CONFORMITY WITH THE STATE OF IDAHO CODE RELATING TO PLATS AND SURVEYS.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  THAT WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, ARE THE OWNERS OF THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IN ADA COUNTY,
IDAHO, AND THAT WE INTEND TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY IN THIS PLAT OF MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 6;

A PORTION OF LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK 1 OF HOOT NANNEY FARMS SUBDIVISION AS SHOWN IN BOOK 103 OF PLATS ON PAGES 13839 THROUGH 13841,
RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, BEING LOCATED IN THE SW ¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY
OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A BRASS CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NW ¼ OF THE SE ¼ (CS 1/16 CORNER) OF SAID SECTION 4, FROM
WHICH AN ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NW ¼ OF THE SE ¼ (C ¼ CORNER) BEARS N 0°48'29” E A DISTANCE OF
1329.13 FEET;

THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID NW ¼ OF THE SE ¼ S 89°27'07” E A DISTANCE OF 1318.39 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID
NW ¼ OF THE SE ¼ (SE 1/16 CORNER);

THENCE ALONG THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID NW ¼ OF THE SE ¼ AND OF SAID SW ¼ OF THE NE ¼ N 0°55'29” E A DISTANCE OF 2329.46 FEET TO A
POINT;

THENCE LEAVING SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY N 89°04'31” W A DISTANCE OF 80.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE HIGHWAY 16
BEING THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 5, AS SHOWN IN BOOK ___ OF PLATS ON PAGES ______ THROUGH ______,
RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 5 THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:

THENCE N 89°04'31” W A DISTANCE OF 280.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°55'29” E A DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°04'31” W A DISTANCE OF 435.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 0°55'29” W A DISTANCE OF 110.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°04'31” W A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 0°55'29” W A DISTANCE OF 160.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 1, AS SHOWN IN
BOOK ____ OF PLATS ON PAGES ______ THROUGH ______, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO;

THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY BOUNDARY, AND CONTINUING ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 4, AS SHOWN
IN BOOK ____ OF PLATS ON PAGES ______ THROUGH ______, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:

THENCE N 89°04'31” W A DISTANCE OF 365.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 0°55'29” W A DISTANCE OF 113.74 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 23.33 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 30.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
44°33'55” AND A LONG CHORD BEARING N 47°20'05” W A DISTANCE OF 22.76 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°04'31” W A DISTANCE OF 23.03 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 22.79 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 46.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
28°22'55” AND A LONG CHORD BEARING S 13°15'58” E A DISTANCE OF 22.55 FEET TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 15.43 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 46.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 19°13'26” AND A
LONG CHORD BEARING S 17°50'43” E A DISTANCE OF 15.36 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°04'31” W A DISTANCE OF 122.81 FEET TO THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF SAID MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 4, SAID POINT BEING ON
THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID HOOT NANNEY FARMS SUBDIVISION AND THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID SW ¼ OF THE NE ¼;

THENCE LEAVING THE BOUNDARY OF SAID MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 4 AND ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY N 0°48'31” E (FORMERLY N
0°16'22” E) A DISTANCE OF 705.65 FEET TO THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF SAID SW ¼ OF THE NE ¼ (CN 1/16 CORNER) AND OF SAID HOOT NANNEY FARMS
SUBDIVISION, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF THE TRELLIS SUBDIVISION, AS SHOWN IN BOOK 87 OF PLATS ON PAGES 9991
THROUGH 9996, RECORDS OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO;

THENCE S 89°07'52” E A DISTANCE OF 1243.77 FEET ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID SW ¼ OF THE NE ¼ AND OF SAID HOOT NANNEY FARMS
SUBDIVISION (FORMERLY S 89°39'48” E, 1243.63 FEET), AND THE SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID THE TRELLIS SUBDIVISION (FORMERLY S 89°34'23” E, 1243.77
FEET)  TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE HIGHWAY 16 BEING THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID HOOT NANNEY FARMS
SUBDIVISION;

THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY AND THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID HOOT NANNEY FARMS SUBDIVISION S 0°55'29” W (FORMERLY S 0°23'02” W) A
DISTANCE OF 321.86 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THIS PARCEL CONTAINS 12.41 ACRES.

ALL THE LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION WILL BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE WATER AND SEWER SERVICE FROM THE STAR SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT.  THE STAR
SEWER AND WATER DISTRICT HAS AGREED IN WRITING TO SERVE ALL THE LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION.

THE PUBLIC STREETS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC.  PUBLIC UTILITY, IRRIGATION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS ON THIS
PLAT ARE NOT DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC, BUT THE RIGHT OF ACCESS TO, AND USE OF, THESE EASEMENTS IS HEREBY RESERVED FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES,
DRAINAGE AND FOR ANY OTHER USES AS MAY BE DESIGNATED HEREON AND NO PERMANENT STRUCTURES OTHER THAN FOR SAID USES ARE TO BE
ERECTED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF SAID EASEMENTS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF WE HAVE HEREUNTO SET OUR HAND THIS ____ DAY OF _________________________ , 20___.

BHEG MILESTONE RANCH LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

____________________________________________________________
BY A. JANELLE ITURBE, AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

BOOK ____ , PAGE _______MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 6

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Land Surveying and Consulting
231 E. 5TH STREET, MERIDIAN ID 83642
(208) 288-2040      www.landsolutions.biz

SHEET 3 OF 4

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY S.S.

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

RESIDING AT

ON THIS ____ DAY OF ____________ , 20___, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID STATE PERSONALLY
APPEARED A. JANELLE ITURBE, KNOWN OR IDENTIFIED TO ME TO BE AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF BHEG MILESTONE RANCH LLC,
A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, WHO SUBSCRIBED SAID LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY'S NAME TO THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT,
AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT SHE EXECUTED THE SAME IN SAID LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY'S NAME.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL THE DAY AND YEAR IN THIS CERTIFICATE FIRST
ABOVE WRITTEN.
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APPROVAL OF ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

PRESIDENT, ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT

CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY TREASURER

CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY SURVEYOR

ADA COUNTY SURVEYOR

DATE: ______________________              ______________________________________________
COUNTY TREASURER

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY RECORDER

STATE OF IDAHO
COUNTY OF ADA

S.S.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS INSTRUMENT WAS FILED FOR RECORD AT THE REQUEST OF

LAND SOLUTIONS, P.C., AT ____ MINUTES  PAST ___ O'CLOCK __ .M. ON

DEPUTY EX-OFFICIO RECORDER

THIS ____ DAY OF __________________ , 20___, IN BOOK ____ OF PLATS AT PAGES _______________.

INSTRUMENT NO. ______________________

APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL

CITY CLERK

CITY ENGINEER ~ STAR, IDAHO

APPROVAL OF THE CITY ENGINEER

HEALTH CERTIFICATE

CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH, EHS                DATE

SANITARY RESTRICTIONS AS REQUIRED BY IDAHO CODE, TITLE 50, CHAPTER 13, HAVE BEEN SATISFIED
ACCORDING TO THE LETTER TO BE READ ON FILE WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER OR HIS AGENT LISTING THE
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.  SANITARY RESTRICTIONS MAY BE RE-IMPOSED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH
SECTION 50-1326, IDAHO CODE, BY THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF DISAPPROVAL.

FEE:  ______________________

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY CLERK IN AND FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY ,IDAHO, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY THAT AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD ON THE ____ DAY OF ____________ ,
20___, THIS PLAT WAS DULY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED.

THE FOREGOING PLAT WAS ACCEPTED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY
DISTRICT COMMISSIONERS ON THE ____ DAY OF ___________ , 20___.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR FOR ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I
HAVE CHECKED THIS PLAT AND FIND THAT IT COMPLIES WITH THE STATE OF IDAHO CODE RELATING TO
PLATS AND SURVEYS.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, COUNTY TREASURER IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA, STATE OF  IDAHO, PER THE
REQUIREMENTS OF I.C. 50-1308, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ANY AND ALL CURRENT AND OR DELINQUENT
COUNTY PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THIS SUBDIVISION HAVE BEEN PAID IN FULL.
THIS CERTIFICATION IS VALID FOR THE NEXT THIRTY (30) DAYS ONLY.

CLINTON W. HANSEN
PLS 11118

BOOK ____ , PAGE _______MILESTONE RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 6

Land Surveying and Consulting
231 E. 5TH STREET, MERIDIAN ID 83642
(208) 288-2040      www.landsolutions.biz

SHEET 4 OF 4

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY ENGINEER IN AND FOR THE CITY OF STAR, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, ON THIS DAY,
___________________________, HEREBY APPROVE THIS PLAT.
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 1 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2339  22126S      4 A & B LOCK AND KEY                     968.50

   1   63810 07/13/23 Keys, levers, knobs                  968.50                                10      41540    431         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        968.50

  2313  22107S     20 ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT        209,580.00

   1   17831 08/02/23 ACHD Impact Fees July 2023       209,580.00                                10      41510    731         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    209,580.00

  2335  22127S     21 ADA COUNTY LANDFILL                    122.88

   1   0810-0255 08/10/23 Landfill Fees                     15.00                                10      41540    411         10110

   2   0808-0262 08/08/23 Landfill Fees                    107.88                                10      41540    411         10110

  2384  22173S     21 ADA COUNTY LANDFILL                     15.00

   1   0816-0172 08/16/23 Landfill Fees                     15.00                                10      41540    411         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        137.88

  2329  22108S     22 ADA COUNTY PROSECUTORS OFFICE        2,500.00

   1   AUG 2023 07/27/23 Prosecutions Contract - Aug     2,500.00                                10      42110    322         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,500.00

  2340  22128S     23 ADA COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE        160,006.83

   1   119202 08/02/23 Police Services Aug 2023        160,006.83                                10      42110    365         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    160,006.83

  2334  22129S     27 ADVANCED SIGN LLC                      400.24

   1   6100008335 08/09/23 Construction/Parking Signs      298.24                                10 706  41540    738         10110

   2   6100008395 08/14/23 No Dogs Allowed Sign            102.00                                10 706  41540    738         10110

  2419  22203S     27 ADVANCED SIGN LLC                      119.60

   1   6100008210 07/25/23 No Jumping Signs                119.60                                10      41540    737         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        519.84

  2402  22190S   1397 AMERICAN HOMES 4 RENT                6,357.47

   1    08/18/23 Refund - overpayment of check           6,357.47                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      6,357.47
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 2 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2337  22130S   1377 ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, INC           444.00

   1   2305297 07/31/23 Fish Pond Water Testing            444.00                                10      41810    737         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        444.00

  2336  22131S   1210 ANDREWS TECHNOLOGY                   2,430.00

   1    08/14/23 UKG Time & Attendance System            2,430.00                                10      41810    751         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,430.00

  2338  22132S   1067 ANNIE PEW                            1,600.26

 Ion Grant

   1    08/08/23 Reimburse Counselors/Training             102.33                                10 300  44022    560         10110

   2    08/08/23 Reimburse B/A School                       25.30                                10 101  44022    611         10110

   3    08/08/23 Reimburse Baking Camps                  1,378.56                                10 300  44022    611         10110

   4    08/02/23 Reimburse Training                         94.07                                10      44022    560         10110

  2431  22204S   1067 ANNIE PEW                            1,273.59

 Ion Grant

   1    08/23/23 Reimburse Sports Equip                     50.30                                10      44021    612         10110

   2    08/23/23 Reimburse Rec Camp Supplies               328.47                                10 104  44022    611         10110

   3    08/23/23 Reimburse Baking Camps ION                325.50                                10 300  44022    611         10110

   4    08/23/23 Reimburse Baking Camps                    116.08                                10 102  44022    611         10110

   5    08/23/23 Reimburse B/A School                      453.24                                10 101  44022    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,873.85

  2341  22133S    117 BOISE RIGGING SUPPLY                   185.88

   1   142056 07/26/23 Slings                              185.88                                10      41540    431         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        185.88

  2385  22174S    119 BOISE STATE UNIVERSITY               1,250.00

 Scholarship Award Funds for Valentina Perez Student ID: 114209915

   1    08/21/23 Scholarship Valentina Perez             1,250.00                                10      48520    840         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,250.00
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 3 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2332  22124S    160 CANYON HIGHWAY DISTRICT # 4          2,384.82

 Property Tax Collected for 06/01/23 - 06/30/23

   1    05/31/23 CHD4 Property Tax                       2,380.83                                10      41510    732         10110

   2    05/31/23 CHD4 Penalty                                1.23                                10      41510    732         10110

   3    05/31/23 CHD4 Interest                               2.76                                10      41510    732         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,384.82

  2342  22134S   1312 CAPITAL PAVING COMPANY INC         289,741.58

 Engineer's Project No 203010-464 State Highway 44, Bent Lane to Star Road

   1   13932 08/15/23 SH-44 Construction App #6        289,741.58                                10 500  45110    760         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    289,741.58

  2326  22109S   1072 CIVIC PLUS                             350.00

   1   263768 08/01/23 MuniDocs Subscription               350.00                                10      41810    751         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        350.00

  2415  22191S   1242 COMPUNET INC                        44,909.17

   1   231656 08/01/23 Police Station Electronics       21,659.17                                10 800  45110    741         10110

   2   231022 08/02/23 CompuNet Install Police          23,250.00                                10 800  45110    741         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     44,909.17

  2343  22135S   1391 CRAIG GROVES                        51,015.90

   1    08/08/23 Bond Release Parkstone 14 & 15         51,015.90                                10      41510    881         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     51,015.90

  2333  22125S   1387 CRAIG L ROBINSON JR LLC                600.00

   1   RH CONCERT 08/11/23 ACTIVITIES / EVENTS / CONC      600.00                                10  51  46000    324         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        600.00

  2344  22136S   1390 CUSTOM TILE LLC                         60.00

   1    08/07/23 Refund Duplicte Permit                     60.00                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         60.00
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 4 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2345  22137S    233 DAN'S PUMP AND FILTER LLC              225.12

   1   8228 08/15/23 Service Waterfall                     225.12                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        225.12

  2320  22110S    231 DANA PARTRIDGE                       2,456.10

   1    08/04/23 Services July 21 - Aug 3 2023           2,456.10                                10      41140    351         10110

  2386  22175S    231 DANA PARTRIDGE                       2,576.10

   1    08/18/23 Services Aug 4 - Aug 17, 2023           2,576.10                                10      41140    351         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      5,032.20

  2346  22138S   1318 DENIELLE REDONDO                       252.00

   1    08/08/23 July Barre Strength                       252.00                                10      44022    352         10110

  2429  22205S   1318 DENIELLE REDONDO                       364.00

   1    08/24/23 August Barre Strength                     364.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        616.00

  2348  22139S   1368 DIAMOND CONTRACTORS                 45,664.13

   1   App 2 08/09/23 Pavilion Parking Lot App 2        45,664.13                                10      45110    738         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     45,664.13

  2347  22140S   1307 DIRT ROAD DANCING                      630.00

   1    08/08/23 Daytime County Dancing Jun/Jul            630.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        630.00

  2400  22187S   1395 DOUG THOMPSON                        1,920.75

   1   113 08/11/23 50% Laminate Bldg Dept Desks         1,920.75                                10      41510    324         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,920.75

  2331  22123S    274 EDNETICS INC                         5,715.95

   1   123390 07/31/23 City Hall Server Room             5,715.95                                10      41810    741         10110
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 5 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  2404  22192S    274 EDNETICS INC                         2,141.04

   1   122669 06/30/23 Rec Center Wifi                   2,141.04                                10 850  45110    741         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      7,856.99

  2352  22141S   1388 FAIRBANK EQUIPMENT INC                 139.46

   1    08/02/23 Sprayer Gasket and Diaph                  139.46                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        139.46

  2350  22142S    308 FIREWORKS & STAGE FX AMERICA LLC     3,250.00

   1   21660 08/11/23 Fireworks Display Hometown         3,250.00                                10  57  41810    598         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      3,250.00

  2349  22143S    312 FLAG STORE OF IDAHO LLC                350.00

   1   2447 07/19/23 Flag Repair                           350.00                                10      41540    435         10110

  2424  22206S    312 FLAG STORE OF IDAHO LLC                 52.80

   1   2477 08/18/23 Flag Repair City Hall                  52.80                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        402.80

  2351  22144S   1240 FUNDRAISING BRICK LLC                  265.00

   1    08/11/23 Dog Park Bricks                           265.00                                10      45130    586         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        265.00

  2353  22145S   1152 GARRETT PARKS AND PLAY              17,396.40

   1   2945 08/03/23 Splash Pad Rubber Mulch            17,396.40                                10 706  45110    738         10110

  2413  22193S   1152 GARRETT PARKS AND PLAY              10,587.50

   1   3031 08/24/23 Splash Pad Rubber Mulch             6,187.50                                10 706  41540    738         10110

   2   3032 08/24/23 HC Playground Mulch/Fence           4,400.00                                10      41540    735         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     27,983.90

  2387  22176S    331 GEM STATE PAPER & SUPPLY             1,042.34

   1   3077873 08/16/23 Cleaning Supplies                1,042.34                                10      41540    611         10110
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08/29/23                                                    CITY OF STAR                                        Page: 6 of 15

17:10:51                                            Claim Details by Posted Date                           Report ID: AP100V

                                                For Claims from 08/04/23 to 08/28/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash

Line #          Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
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  2423  22207S    331 GEM STATE PAPER & SUPPLY               860.78

   1   3077873-01 08/23/23 Mat, Dispenser, Cloths          860.78                                10      41540    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,903.12

  2323  22111S    373 HORIZON                                170.06

   1   3L216845 08/03/23 Shovel                             54.69                                10      41540    613         10110

   2   3L216845 08/03/23 Scoop Shovel                       60.68                                10      41540    613         10110

   3   3L216845 08/03/23 Point Shovel                       54.69                                10      41540    613         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        170.06

  2420  22208S    382 IDAHO CENTRAL CREDIT UNION           5,514.30

   1   4825 08/21/23 Chadwick                              177.59                                10      41810    611         10110

   2   3463 08/21/23 Qualls                              4,654.07                                10      41810    611         10110

   3   6074 08/21/23 Little                                682.64                                10      41540    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      5,514.30

  2356  22146S    393 IDAHO MATERIALS & CONSTRUCTION         594.00

   1   6153027 08/03/23 Road Mix                           198.00                                10 706  41540    738         10110

   2   6154088 08/04/23 Road Mix                           158.40                                10 706  41540    738         10110

   3   6145893 07/28/23 Road Mix                           237.60                                10      41540    738         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        594.00

  2358  22147S    399 IDAHO PRESS TRIBUNE                    607.17

   4   37100 08/13/23 Legal/Pub Notice PH 9/5/23            95.52                                10      41510    530         10110

   5   37063 08/11/23 Legal/Pub Notice Ord 375-2023        196.17                                10      41510    530         10110

   6   37062 08/11/23 Legal/Pub Notice Ord 384-2023        157.74                                10      41510    530         10110

   7   37061 08/11/23 Legal/Pub Notice Ord 385-2023        157.74                                10      41510    530         10110

  2388  22177S    399 IDAHO PRESS TRIBUNE                    190.28

   4   37173 08/16/23 Legal/Pub Notice BID - Star          190.28                                10      41510    530         10110

  2422  22209S    399 IDAHO PRESS TRIBUNE                    128.46

   4   37388 08/23/23 Legal/Pub Notice Ord 390-2023        128.46                                10      41510    530         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        925.91
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  2321  22112S    408 IDAHO STATE UNIVERSITY               1,395.00

 Scholarship Award Funds for Karissa Jenkins, Student ID: 001545003

   1    08/04/23 Scholarship Karissa Jenkins             1,395.00                                10      48520    840         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,395.00

  2406  22194S   1398 INTEGER UNLIMITED                    3,000.00

   1   1004 08/21/23 Computers Clerk's Office            3,000.00                                10      41810    742         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      3,000.00

  2355  22148S    421 INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY               62.70

   1   *3000 1 08/03/23 City Hall                           15.45                                10      41810    414         10110

   2   *3000 2 08/03/23 B&G Shop-1310 N Little Camas        15.45                                10      41540    414         10110

   3   *1000 1 08/03/23 Outreach Building                   15.45                                10      41810    414         10110

   4   *7251 2 08/03/23 Star Police Station                 16.35                                10      42010    414         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         62.70

  2354  22149S   1170 IWORQ                                5,000.00

   1   201163 08/01/23 Facility Management               5,000.00                                10      41540    751         10110

  2418  22210S   1170 IWORQ                               14,000.00

   1   201252 08/25/23 Comm Development Package         14,000.00                                10      41510    751         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     19,000.00

  2322  22113S   1386 JAMES TYLER                          1,200.00

   1   SAB230010 07/31/23 Summer Concert                 1,200.00                                10  51  41810    598         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,200.00

  2359  22150S    480 JULEE ELLIOTT                          502.00

   1   2198 07/24/23 Art in the Park                       352.00                                10      45130    586         10110

   2   2201 08/08/23 Art in the Park                       150.00                                10      45130    586         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        502.00

  2357  22151S    488 JUSTIN MAY                           2,500.00

   1   HT 08/01/23 Hometown Celebration                  2,500.00                                10  50  41810    597         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,500.00
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  2389  22178S    502 KEELY ELECTRIC                       2,710.80

   1   20-2097 08/21/23 River House Patio                2,710.80                                10      45110    737         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,710.80

  2433  22211S   1304 LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES INC           127,007.14

   1   127967 05/08/23 Splashpad Progress               86,057.14                                10 706  45110    738         10110

   2   127271-FIN 04/20/23 Splashpad Progress           40,950.00                                10 706  45110    738         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    127,007.14

  2362  22152S   1354 LARA YOUNGMAN                          252.00

   1    08/08/23 Mat Pilates July                          252.00                                10      44022    352         10110

  2428  22212S   1354 LARA YOUNGMAN                          168.00

   1    08/24/23 Mat Pilates August                        168.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        420.00

  2361  22153S    524 LARRY BEARG                            364.00

   1    08/08/23 Tai Chi Instruction July                  364.00                                10      44022    352         10110

  2430  22213S    524 LARRY BEARG                            448.00

   1    08/24/23 Tai Chi Instruction August                448.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        812.00

  2363  22154S    542 LIFESPRING CHURCH                      250.00

   1    08/08/23 July Basketball Camp                      250.00                                10      44022    699         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        250.00

  2360  22155S   1107 LLOYD AND LEE TENNIS ACADEMY         1,435.00

   1   07232023A 08/08/23 June Tennis Camp                 630.00                                10      44022    352         10110

   2   07232023B 08/08/23 July Tennis Camp                 805.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,435.00

  2364  22156S   1374 MADYSSON JUNGENBERG                    100.00

   1    08/08/23 July Cheer Class                          100.00                                10      44022    352         10110
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  2392  22179S   1374 MADYSSON JUNGENBERG                    181.30

   1    08/08/23 Cheer                                     181.30                                10      44022    352         10110

  2425  22214S   1374 MADYSSON JUNGENBERG                  1,247.40

   1    08/23/23 July Interstellar Cheer Class             607.60                                10      44022    352         10110

   2    08/24/23 August Cheer                              639.80                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,528.70

  2401  22188S   1396 MARY ANNE SAUNDERS                      50.00

   1    08/21/23 Park Rental Deposit Refund                 50.00                                10      41810    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         50.00

  2421  22215S    583 MASTERCARD                             959.41

   1   7969 08/10/23 Qualls                                854.97                                10      41810    611         10110

   2   7586 08/10/23 Little                                104.44                                10      41540    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        959.41

  2390  22180S    635 MOUNTAIN ALARM                         105.00

   1   3827216 08/16/23 Fire Alarm Inspection               15.00                                10      41810    344         10110

   2   3827216 08/16/23 Backflow Inspection                  7.00                                10      41810    344         10110

   3   3827216 08/16/23 Fire Monitoring                     32.50                                10      41810    344         10110

   4   3827216 08/16/23 Fire Sprinkler Inspection           18.00                                10      41810    344         10110

   5   3827215 08/16/23 Security Cellular Backup            13.00                                10      41810    344         10110

   6   3827215 08/16/23 Security Monitoring                 19.50                                10      41810    344         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        105.00

  2393  22181S    642 NAPA AUTO PARTS                         23.38

   1   094292 08/16/23 Blister Pack Capsules                23.38                                10      41540    437         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         23.38

  2365  22157S    648 NICK PEW                               201.04

   1    08/08/23 Reimburse Training Parking                 56.00                                10      44022    560         10110

   2    08/08/23 Reimburse Rec Wall Repair                 145.04                                10      44022    610         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        201.04
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  2366  22158S    649 NIKI DEAN                              707.00

   1    08/08/23 Yoga Instruction July                     707.00                                10      44022    352         10110

  2427  22216S    649 NIKI DEAN                              700.00

   1    08/24/23 Yoga Instruction August                   700.00                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,407.00

  2409  22195S    656 OFFICE SAVERS ONLINE                   316.69

   1   9828 08/21/23 Staplers, tape disp, cartridge        185.20                                10      41810    611         10110

   2   9804 08/21/23 Scissors, cartridge                   131.49                                10      41810    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        316.69

  2318  22114S    670 PATHWAY CONCRETE & LANDSCAPING      35,795.50

   1   126 08/02/23 Splashpad Additions                 35,795.50                                10 706  45110    738         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:     35,795.50

  2316  22115S    686 PORTAPROS LLC                          260.00

   1   121435O-1 08/03/23 Dog Park                         260.00                                10      41540    411         10110

  2394  22182S    686 PORTAPROS LLC                          515.00

   1   112049AN-1 08/18/23 River Walk                      515.00                                10      41540    411         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        775.00

  2407  22196S    688 POWERHOUSE ELECTRIC                    104.00

   1    08/22/23 Refund Duplicate Permit                   104.00                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        104.00

  2367  22159S   1392 PRIMARY ELECTRIC, INC                  156.00

   1    08/15/23 Refund Cancelled Permit 80%               156.00                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        156.00

  2369  22160S   1393 RAINTREE INVESTMENT CORPORATION    187,420.42

   1    08/08/23 Bond Release Amazon Falls             187,420.42                                10      41510    881         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:    187,420.42
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  2368  22161S    707 REPUBLIC SERVICES INC                  895.70

   1   001326839 07/31/23 Hunters Creek Park               443.48                                10      41540    411         10110

   2   001326906 07/31/23 Star River Access 1000 S Ma       85.39                                10      41540    411         10110

   3   001326917 07/31/23 River Park 1000 S Main St        116.30                                10      41540    411         10110

   7   001327219 07/31/23 Star City Hall                   127.27                                10      41540    411         10110

   8   001327246 07/31/23 Blake Haven Park                 123.26                                10      41540    411         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        895.70

  2410  22197S    721 ROBERT P LITTLE                      4,402.50

   1   116185 08/25/23 B&G Contracted Services           4,660.00                                10      41540    351         10110

   2   Life Insur 08/25/23 Life Insurance                 -203.50                                10      41540    215         10110

   3   Vision Ins 08/25/23 Spousal Vision Insruance        -13.00                                10      41540    211         10110

   4   Dental Ins 08/25/23 Spousal Dental Insurance        -41.00                                10      41540    212         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      4,402.50

  2412  22198S   1400 RON LANGE                              453.46

   1    08/23/23 Reimbursement burned pipes                453.46                                10      41540    735         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        453.46

  2432  22217S    727 RON WESTON                             197.83

   1    08/23/23 Reimburse Sports Equip                    197.83                                10      44021    612         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        197.83

  2370  22162S   1238 ROYALTY ELECTRIC LLC                 1,913.00

   1   23094 08/09/23 Patch Panel                          188.00                                10      41810    742         10110

   2   23089 08/09/23 Splash Pad Trench                  1,725.00                                10 706  45110    738         10110

  2414  22199S   1238 ROYALTY ELECTRIC LLC                 6,107.00

   1   23116 08/24/23 Mics/Speakers/Cab Police           6,107.00                                10 800  45110    741         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      8,020.00

  2396  22183S    772 SHERWIN WILLIAMS                       179.23

   1   0271-6 08/19/23 Paint                                52.49                                10      41540    434         10110

   2   0229-4 08/18/23 Paint                               126.74                                10      41540    434         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        179.23
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  2372  22163S    777 SILVER CREEK SUPPLY                    802.73

   1   *8091-001 08/08/23 PVC Pipe                          42.99                                10      41540    611         10110

   2   *5441-002 08/04/23 Rotor/Pop Up Sprinkler           310.18                                10      41540    611         10110

   3   *5441-001 08/04/23 Rotor/Cement/Valve               449.56                                10      41540    611         10110

  2395  22184S    777 SILVER CREEK SUPPLY                     76.95

   1   0979-001 08/17/23 Pinlanbox Fabric Sod               76.95                                10      41540    611         10110

  2416  22218S    777 SILVER CREEK SUPPLY                    234.70

   1   *3307-001 08/26/23 Valves/Adapters                  234.70                                10      41540    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,114.38

  2397  22185S    780 SIMPLOT TURF & HORTICULTURE            801.00

   1   216066850 07/13/23 Herbicide, Nutriwash, ROBlu      801.00                                10      41540    735         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        801.00

  2317  22116S    796 SPECIALTY CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY          265.68

   1   0233346-IN 08/01/23 Fence and ties                  265.68                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        265.68

  2371  22164S    819 STAR TIRE & AUTO LLC                   315.45

   1    07/12/23 Turf Master                               328.98                                10      41540    435         10110

   2    12/31/22 Credit                                    -13.53                                10      41540    435         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        315.45

  2374  22165S    857 TATES RENTS                          2,111.07

   1   1758838-9 08/14/23 Trailer                        1,677.35                                10      41540    442         10110

   2   1760962-9 08/04/23 Roller                           283.64                                10      41540    442         10110

   3   1758881-9 08/07/23 Post Driver                       94.08                                10      41540    442         10110

   4   1762189-9 08/07/23 Post Driver                       56.00                                10      41540    442         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      2,111.07

  2376  22166S   1370 TAYLOR HAMMRICH                        614.60

   1    08/08/23 July Tumbling Instructor                  614.60                                10      44022    352         10110
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  2426  22219S   1370 TAYLOR HAMMRICH                        555.10

   1    08/24/23 Aug Tumbling Instructor                   555.10                                10      44022    352         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,169.70

  2411  22200S   1355 THE STAR COURIER NEWSPAPER             151.20

   1   1757 08/18/23 Recreation Dept                       151.20                                10      44022    530         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        151.20

  2399  22189S   1394 TOWNSQUARE MEDIA BOISE               1,500.00

   1   8182023 08/22/23 Radio/Dig Marketing ArtByRive    1,500.00                                10 615  45130    586         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,500.00

  2373  22167S   1093 TREASURE VALLEY BOUNCE N SLIDE         304.33

   1   1581 08/15/23 Summer Camp                           304.33                                10 104  44022    442         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        304.33

  2328  22117S    898 TREASURE VALLEY COFFEE                  65.90

   2   09581458 08/01/23 Rec Dept Water                     13.40                                10      44022    611         10110

   4   09581362 08/01/23 Bldg Maint Coffee                  52.50                                10      41540    611         10110

  2398  22186S    898 TREASURE VALLEY COFFEE                 160.12

   2   09636556 08/15/23 Rec Dept Water                     13.40                                10      44022    611         10110

   4   09636506 08/15/23 City Hall Water, Coffee, Tea      146.72                                10      41810    611         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        226.02

  2375  22168S   1332 TREASURE VALLEY YOUTH SPORTS LLC       992.62

   1   190810R1 08/02/23 STEM June Camp                    314.62                                10 300  44022    324         10110

   2   190812 08/01/23 STEM July Camp                      678.00                                10 300  44022    324         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        992.62

  2381  22169S   1389 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AMERICA),      1,848.38

   1   *88644-001 08/02/23 Forklift                      1,848.38                                10      41540    442         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,848.38
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  2377  22170S   1295 VALLEY OFFICE SYSTEMS                  196.52

   1   AR1202728 08/14/23 Monthly Lease - Copier           196.52                                10      41810    610         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        196.52

  2378  22171S    935 VERIZON WIRELESS                       964.70

 Charges for 18 Phone Lines and 1 Jetpack

   1   9941001083 08/01/23 Montly Cell Phone Charge        964.70                                10      41810    416         10110

 1

                                     Total for Vendor:        964.70

  2324  22119S   1129 WESTERN HEATING & AIR                1,771.00

   1   166908746 08/01/23 Maintenance Membership         1,771.00                                10      41540    344         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      1,771.00

  2327  22120S    949 WESTERN RECORDS DESTRUCTION             60.00

 Services from 07/01/23 - 07/31/23

   1   0650277 08/01/23 02-64 Gallon City Hall              60.00                                10      41810    411         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         60.00

  2408  22201S    960 WOODY'S OUTDOOR POWER INC              429.98

   1   139110 07/17/23 Trimmer & Replacement Head          429.98                                10      41540    433         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        429.98

  2325  22121S    962 XEROX                                  141.18

 Meter Read from 06/21/23 - 07/21/23

   2   019418040 08/01/23 Meter Usage                      141.18                                10      41810    742         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        141.18

  2383  22172S   1385 YMC                                    345.21

   1    08/15/23 Refund  Incorrect Jurisdiction            345.21                                10      41510    698         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:        345.21

  2315  22122S    963 YORGASON LAW OFFICES PLLC            3,522.93

   1   Contract 07/01/23 City Attorney Monthly Servic    3,500.00                                10      41310    322         10110

   2   Jul 2023 07/01/23 City Attorney Additional Svc       22.93                                10      41310    322         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:      3,522.93
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  2405  22202S    966 ZOOM                                    40.00

   1   215851046 08/22/23 Cloud Recording                   40.00                                10      41810    570         10110

                                     Total for Vendor:         40.00

                                       # of Claims   112      Total: 1300,966.31      # of Vendors    89

** This report runs by Claim Posted Date, which is a system generated field that always shows the date on which the Claim was

actually posted in the system. If a Claim was cancelled and re-posted, the posted date will show as of the date it was re-posted. **
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LEGAL NOTICE 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Star City Council will hold a Public Hearing on September 5, 

2023 at the Star City Hall, 10769 W. State Street, Star, Idaho at 7:00 pm, or as soon thereafter as 

the matter may be heard.  

 

Application: Iron Mountain Vista Subdivision – De-Annexation of Property 

Files #’   DE-AX-23-01 

    

                      

Representative:  Jay Walker, Kimley-Horn and Associates, 1100 W. Idaho Street Suite 210, Boise, 

Idaho 83702 

 

Owner:  Todd Campbell, PO Box 140298 Boise, Idaho 83714 

              

Action:  The Applicant is seeking approval of a De-Annexation of a small area along the south 

boundary line. Approximately 3,500 square feet or 0.08 acres.  

 

Property Location:  The subject property is generally located NE ¼, SW ¼ Section 4 T4N, R1W.  

Ada County Parcel No# R9545740040. 

 

Information/Comments:  A complete copy of the applications are available at City Hall for 

public review.  The City invites all interested parties to attend the meeting and provide public 

testimony.  Written comments will be accepted by the City up to 2 days prior to the date of the 

public hearing. 

 

Services for persons with disabilities may be made available if notice is received in advance of 

the meeting by calling Star City Hall at (208) 286-7247. 

 

Shawn L. Nickel 

Planning Director and Zoning Administrator 

snickel@staridaho.org 
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             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF REPORT 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   City of Star Planning Department  

MEETING DATE: September 5, 2023 – PUBLIC HEARING 

FILE(S) #: DE-AX-23-01 Annexation and Zoning 

  

 

OWNER/APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE 

  

Applicant/Representative:    Property Owner: 

Jay Walker      Todd Campbell 

Kimley Horn & Associates    P.O. Box 140298 

950 W. Bannock St., Ste. 1100    Boise, Idaho 83714 

Boise, Idaho 83702      

   

REQUEST 

  

Request:  The Applicant is requesting de-annexation of a small area of about 3,500 square feet 

along the southern boundary of the property annexed as part of the Iron Mountain Vista 

Subdivision. The property is located on the north side of W. Floating Feather Road, 

approximately 650 east of N. Pollard Lane in Star, Idaho, and consists of 16.46 acres with a 

proposed density of 2.79 dwelling units per acre.  

            

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Property Location:   The subject property is generally located between N. Pollard Lane and N. 

Hwy 16. Ada County Parcel Numbers R9545740040 & R9545740050. 

 

APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Pre-Application Meeting Held  July 26, 2023 

 Neighborhood Meeting Held       

 Application Submitted & Fees Paid  August 2, 2023 

 

308

Section 6, Item A.



   
A 

 

      2 

 

 Application Accepted    August 2, 2023  

 Residents within 300’ Notified  August 7, 2023 

 Legal Notice Published   August 13, 2023 

 Property Posted      

 

HISTORY 

               

City Council approved the annexation and zoning, development agreement and preliminary plat 

for Iron Mountain Vista Subdivision on November 16, 2021. 

 

OVERVIEW OF REQUEST 

 

DE-ANNEXATION: 

 

The applicant is requesting approval by Council to de-annex an area of 6’ x 587.12’ (3,520 square 

feet) along the southern boundary of the parcel that was originally annexed in 2021 as part of 

the Iron Mountain Vista Subdivision. The area that is requested to be de-annexed will then be 

given to the property owners to the south through a lot-line adjustment by Ada County. The 

area in question contains the water service lines that serve the 3 lots located to the south in the 

Worsley’s Folly Subdivision. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Based upon the information provided to staff in the applications and agency comments received 

to date, the proposed de-annexation request is consistent with all requirements, standards and 

intent as they relate to the Comprehensive Plan and Unified Development Code.  

 

The Council should consider the entire record and testimony presented at their scheduled public 

hearing prior to rendering its decision on the matter. Should the Council vote to approve the 

applications, either as presented or with added or revised conditions of approval, Council shall 

direct staff to draft findings of fact and conclusions of law for the Council to consider at a future 

date.  

 

FINDINGS 

 

The Council may approve, conditionally approve, deny or table this request.  In order to 

approve these applications, the Unified Development Code requires that Council must find the 

following: 
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ANNEXATION/REZONE FINDINGS:  

 

1.  The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 The purpose of the Star Comprehensive Plan is to promote the health, safety, and 

general welfare of the people of the City of Star and its Impact Area.  Some of the prime 
objectives of the Comprehensive Plan include: 

✓ Protection of property rights. 

✓ Adequate public facilities and services are provided to the people at reasonable 

cost. 

✓ Ensure the local economy is protected. 

✓ Encourage urban and urban-type development and overcrowding of land. 

✓ Ensure development is commensurate with the physical characteristics of the 

land. 

The goal of the Comprehensive Plan for Land Use is to encourage the development of a 

diverse community that provides a mixture of land uses, housing types, and a variety of 

employment options, social and recreational opportunities, and where possible provides 
an assortment of amenities within walking distance of a residential development. The 

Council must find compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2.  The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district,  

     specifically, the purposes statement. 

The Council must find that the proposal complies with the proposed district and purpose 

statement. The purpose of the residential districts is to provide regulations and districts 

for various residential neighborhoods with gross densities in compliance with the intent 

of the Comprehensive Plan designation. Housing shall be single family detached unless 

approved with a PUD or development agreement. Connection to municipal water and 

sewer facilities are required for all subdivision and lot split applications in all districts 
exceeding one dwelling unit per acre. Private streets may be approved in this district for 

access to newly subdivided or split property. 

 

3.  The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and  

     welfare; and 

 The Council must find that there is no indication from the material submitted by any 

political agency stating that this annexation and zoning of this property will be materially 

detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare.   

 

4.  The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by  

     any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to,  

     school districts. 

The Council must find that it has not been presented with any information from agencies 

having jurisdiction that public services will be adversely impacted other than traffic, 
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which will continue to be impacted as the City grows. 

 

5.  The annexation is in the best interest of the city. 

The Council must find that this annexation is reasonably necessary for the orderly 

development of the City. 
 

COUNCIL DECISION 

 

The Star City Council __________________ File Number DE-AX-23-01 for Iron Mountain Vista 

Subdivision on __________________ ________, 2023. 
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kimley-horn.com 1100 W. Idaho Street, Suite 210, Boise, ID 83702 208-906-0883 

 

August 2, 2023 

Planning & Zoning Department 

City of Caldwell 

10769 W. State Street 

Star, ID 83669 

RE: Iron Mountain Vista De-Annexation 

On behalf of Todd Campbell, we are submitting a De-Annexation application for review and approval. 

In accordance with direction from the Planning Director, this submittal is based off the Annexation 

submittal checklist. Accordingly, we are submitting all required documents electronically via a thumb 

drive, as required. Paper copies can be submitted if requested/required. 

The proposed De-Annexation is for a small sliver of land (approximately 3,500 square feet or 0.08 

acres) along the south boundary of the Iron Mountain Vista Subdivision (File #’s AZ-21-14/DA-21-

21/PP-21-18) containing water service lines. At the time of original submittal and approvals, the precise 

location of these two water service lines were not known. Therefore, the annexation boundary included 

these water service lines that serve the County zoned parcels directly south of the project. To ensure 

there are no maintenance, access, or tax issues on this area and water service lines, we are submitting 

a De-Annexation with the City of Star for this area. If approved, a separate Property Boundary 

Adjustment will be submitted to Ada County to ensure the subdivision boundary of Iron Mountain Vista 

and the rear property lines of the adjacent lots are consistent with the “new” annexation boundary. 

Please contact me at (208) 906-0883 or Jay.Walker@kimley-horn.com should you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

Jay Walker 
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             CITY OF STAR 
 

                   LAND USE STAFF MEMO 
 

 
TO:        Mayor & Council 

FROM:        Shawn L. Nickel, Planning Director & Zoning Administrator  

MEETING DATE:  September 5, 2023 - Mediation Request 

FILE(S) #:              CU-23-05 Conditional Use Permit for Dude DeWalt Cellars Winery & Event Center 

 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE 

  

Application Property Owner/Applicant:      

Trae & Johnna Buchert   

5446 Hwy 16 

Eagle, Idaho 83616 

 

Mediation Request Petitioner: 

Keith Hill 

8602 W. High Ridge Lane 

Eagle, Idaho 83616 

           

REQUEST SUMMARY 

  

Request:  The City of Star has received a request for Mediation of conditions of approval for the 

Dude DeWalt Cellars Winery & Event Center Conditional Use Permit from Keith Hill (Petitioner). A 

copy of the Petitioners request is included as an attachment to this memo.  
 

STAFF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

  

The City of Star does not have an ordinance specific to “requests for mediation”.  

 

Title 67, Chapter 65 Local Land Use Planning states the following: 

 

67-6510.  MEDIATION — TIME LIMITATIONS TOLLED. (1) The procedure established for 
the processing of applications by this chapter or by local ordinance shall include the option of 

mediation upon the written request of the applicant, an affected person, the zoning or planning 

and zoning commission or the governing board. Mediation may occur at any point during the 
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decision-making process or after a final decision has been made. If mediation occurs after a 

final decision, any resolution of differences through mediation must be the subject of another 

public hearing before the decision-making body. 

(2)  The applicant and any other affected persons objecting to the application shall 

participate in at least one (1) mediation session if mediation is requested by the commission or 
the governing board. The governing board shall select and pay the expense of the mediator for 

the first meeting among the interested parties. Compensation of the mediator shall be 

determined among the parties at the outset of any mediation undertaking. An applicant may 

decline to participate in mediation requested by an affected person, and an affected person 

may decline to participate in mediation requested by the applicant, except that the parties shall 

participate in at least one (1) mediation session if directed to do so by the governing board.  

(3)  During mediation, any time limitation relevant to the application shall be tolled. Such 

tolling shall cease when the applicant or any other affected person, after having participated in 

at least one (1) mediation session, states in writing that no further participation is desired and 

notifies the other parties, or upon notice of a request to mediate wherein no mediation session 

is scheduled for twenty-eight (28) days from the date of such request. 
(4)  The mediation process may be undertaken pursuant to the general limitations 

established by this section or pursuant to local ordinance provisions not in conflict herewith.  

(5)  The mediation process shall not be part of the official record regarding the 

application. 
 

 

Council approved File AZ-23-02 Annexation and Zoning, DA-23-04 Development Agreement, 

CPA-23-01 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment, and CU-23-05 Conditional Use Permit on July 

18, 2023. On August 15, 2023, City Council denied a request for reconsideration of the Conditional 

Use Permit approval by Keith Hill. 

 

Council should consider the previous actions associated with this application and make a decision 

on the request for mediation. 
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ORDINANCE NO. 387-2023 
(GARNET SUBDIVISION ANNEXATION) 

  

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF STAR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

LOCATED IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO; MORE 

SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 22491 N. CAN ADA ROAD IN STAR, IDAHO (CANYON 

COUNTY PARCELS R340000000 & R34000010A1) AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY OF 

STAR; THE PROPERTY IS OWNED BY CAROL A. STORKAN & JEFFREY D. STORKAN; 

ESTABLISHING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF THE ANNEXED PROPERTY AS 

RESIDENTIAL WITH A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (R-3-PUD-DA) OF APPROXIMATELY 37.58 ACRES; DIRECTING THAT 

CERTIFIED COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; 

PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Star, Ada and Canyon County, Idaho (“the City”), is a municipal 

corporation organized and operating under the laws of the State of Idaho and is authorized to annex 

and to incorporate within the boundaries of the City contiguous real property in the manner 

provided by Section 50-222, Idaho Code; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 67-6524, Idaho Code, the City of Star has adopted the 

Unified Development Code Ordinance, the same being Ordinance No. 370-2022, adopted on July 

19, 2022 and subsequently amended; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of the real property situated in the unincorporated areas of Ada 

County and particularly described in Section 2 of this Ordinance have requested, in writing, 

annexation of said real property to the City of Star; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council, held a public hearing on April 18, 2023 on the 

proposed annexation and zoning of the property described in Section 2 below, as required by 

Section 67-6525, Idaho Code, and determined that the requested annexation should be granted and 

that the annexed property should be zoned Residential with a Development Agreement                    

(R-3-PUD-DA) pursuant to the Unified Development Code of the City of Star. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF STAR, IDAHO, as follows: 

  

 Section 1:   The Mayor and Council of the City of Star, Idaho, hereby find and declare 

that the real property described in Section 2 of this Ordinance is contiguous to the City, that said 

property can be reasonably assumed to be used for orderly development of the City, that the 

owner(s) of said property have requested, in writing, annexation of said property by the City, and 

that the requirements of Section 50-222, Idaho Code, for annexation of said property, have been 

satisfied. 

  

 Section 2:   The real property, described in the attached “Exhibit A”, including adjacent 

right of way, situated in Canyon County, Idaho, is hereby annexed into the City of Star.  From and 

after the effective date of this Ordinance, the residents and other occupants and property owners 
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within such area shall enjoy all the rights and responsibilities and shall be subject to all ordinances, 

resolutions, police regulations, taxation and other powers of the City of Star as their fellow 

residents, occupants, and owners within the City of Star. 

  

 Section 3: The zoning land use classification of the land described in Section 2 above, 

is hereby established as Residential with a Development Agreement and Planned Unit 

Development (R-3-PUD-DA), as provided by the Unified Development Code of the City of Star.  

The Zoning Map of the City is hereby amended to include the real property described in Section 2 

above in the Residential with a Development Agreement and Planned Unit Development                 

(R-3-PUD-DA) land use classification. 

  

 Section 4: The City Clerk is hereby directed to file, within ten (10) days of passage 

and approval of this Ordinance, a certified copy of this Ordinance with the offices of the Auditor, 

Treasurer, and Assessor of Canyon County, Idaho, and with the State Tax Commission, Boise, 

Idaho, as required by Section 50-223, Idaho Code, and to comply with the provisions of Section 

63-215, Idaho Code, with regard to the preparation and filing of a map and legal description of the 

real property annexed by this Ordinance. 

  

 Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage, 

approval, and publication as required by law.  In lieu of publication of the entire Ordinance, a 

summary thereof in compliance with Section 50-901A, Idaho Code maybe be published. 

  

 DATED this ____ day of ___________, 2023. 

  

       CITY OF STAR 

       Ada and Canyon County, Idaho 

 

        

BY: ________________________ 

ATTEST:             Trevor A. Chadwick, Mayor 

  

____________________ 

Jacob M. Qualls, City Clerk 
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DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

OLIVER ESTATES SUBDIVISION ANNEXATION 

 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between the 

City of Star, a municipal corporation in the State of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as "City", 

and Carol A. Storkan, hereinafter referred to as “Owner".  

 

WHEREAS, Owner owns parcels of land of approximately 37.58 acres in size, 

currently located within Canyon County, zoned AG, and more particularly described in 

Exhibit A of Ordinance 387-2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 

herein (the "Property"); 

 

WHEREAS, Owner requested that the Property be annexed into the City and be 

developed in accordance with the applicable ordinances and regulations of the City and 

this Agreement; 

 

WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Section 67-6511A, Idaho Code, and Star City 

Code at Title 8, Chapter 1, has the authority to enter into a development agreement for the 

purpose of allowing, by agreement, a specific development to proceed in a specific area 

and for a specific purpose or use which is appropriate in the area, but for which all allowed 

uses for the requested zoning may not be appropriate; 

 

WHEREAS, the City has authority to enter into development agreements to 

condition annexations and re-zones; 

 

WHEREAS, Owner desires to be assured that it may proceed with allowing its 

Property to be zoned and developed in accordance with this Agreement; 

 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to the zoning designations for the Property as 

provided in Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, a Request for Annexation and Zoning of the Property to R-3-PUD-

DA, a Planned Unit Development and a preliminary plat was made as File No. AZ-22-

01/DA-22-01/PUD-22-01/PP-22-01, so that the City can review all the applications 

affecting the use and development of the Property in an integrated manner consistent with 

the City's Comprehensive Plan and land use ordinances, which applications were approved; 

 

WHEREAS, the intent of this Agreement is to protect the rights of Owners use and 

enjoyment of the Property while at the same time mitigating any adverse impacts of the 

development upon neighboring properties and the existing community and ensuring the 

Property is developed in a manner consistent with City Ordinances; 

 

THEREFORE, the City and Owner, for and in consideration of the mutual 

covenants, duties and obligations herein set forth, hereby agree as follows: 
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Section 1. Legal Authority. This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance 

with the provisions of Idaho Code Section 67-6511A and Star City Code, Title 8, Chapter 1. 

 

Section 2. Development/Uses/Standards. 

 

2.1 Development Acreage and Uses Permitted. As to the Property described 

on Exhibit A, Owner is allowed to develop the 37.58 acres as follows: 

 

• Zoning Classification:  The zoning classification of the Property shall be 

an R-3-PUD-DA. 

• The Owner shall comply with all city ordinances relating to the Property 

except as otherwise provided herein. 

 

2.2 Site Design. The Property shall be developed in substantial conformance 

with the approved preliminary plat, dated 4/5/22, a copy of which is 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit B. 

 

2.3 Uses. 

 

• Residential – The Property is hereby approved for a maximum of 92 

residential lots. Lots 2 & 3, Block 1 and Lots 13 & 14, Block 4 of the 

approved Preliminary Plat have the option of being residential or 

non-residential. Single-Family Dwellings consistent with the 

building elevations illustrated in Exhibit C shall be constructed on 

all residential lots. 

• Commercial – The property is hereby approved for non-residential 

uses on specific lots. Lot 15, Block 4 is hereby approved as a non-

residential use only. Lot 15 may remain as residential for the current 

residence. Lots 2 & 3, Block 1 and Lots 13 & 14, Block 4 of the 

approved Preliminary Plat have the option of being residential or 

non-residential. Uses on the non-residential lots are as follows: 

o Allowed uses (principally permitted): Artist Studio; 

Barbershop/Styling Salon; Financial Institutions w/out drive-

through; Healthcare; Library; Medical Clinic; Personal and 

Professional Services; Pharmacy; Photographic Studio; 

Professional Offices; Parks, Public and Private. 

o Uses Allowed only as Conditional Uses: Arts, Entertainment, 

Recreation Facility; Bakery-Retail or Manufacturing; Child 

Care Center (more than 12); Child Care-Preschool/Early 

Learning; Church or Place of Religious Worship; Drive-up 

Service Window only; Educational Institution, Private; 

Museum; Retail Store/Retail Services; Veterinarian Office; 

Wholesale Sales; 

o Prohibited Uses in this Development (not already listed as 
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prohibited in the Code): Animal Care Facility; 

Bar/Tavern/Lounge/Drinking Establishment; Brewpub/Wine 

Tasting; Building Material, Garden Equipment and Supplies; 

Civic, Social or Fraternal Organizations; 

Conference/Convention Center; Convenience Store; 

Educational Institution, Public; Farmers or Saturday Market; 

Fireworks Stand; Flex Space; Gasoline, Fueling & Charging 

Station with or without Convenience Store; Golf 

Course/Driving Range; Government Office; Hospital; 

Laboratory; Laboratory, Medical; Laundromat; Laundry and 

Dry Cleaning; Nursery, Garden Center and Farm Supply; 

Nursing or Residential Care Facility; Office Security Facility; 

Parking Lot/Parking Garage-Commercial; Pawnshop; 

Portable Classroom/Modular Building; Public Infrastructure; 

Public Utility major, minor and yard; Research Activities; 

Restaurant; Retirement Home; Swimming Pool, 

Commercial/Public; Vehicle Emissions Testing; Warehouse 

and Storage; Wireless Communication Facility. 

 

2.4 Setbacks. The development shall comply with the standard setbacks for 

the R-3 & L-O zones as follows: 

 

Single-family Detached Setbacks:  

Max. 

Height 

Min. Front Yard 

Setback 

Min. Rear 

Yard 

Setback 

Min. 

Interior 

Side 

Setback 

Min. Street 

Side Setback 

35’ 15’ to Living 

Area/Side Load 

Garage. 20’ to 

Garage Face 

15’ 7.5'  20' 

 

Limited Office (L-O) Setbacks:  

Max. 

Height 

Min. Front Yard 

Setback 

Min. Rear 

Yard 

Setback 

Min. 

Interior 

Side 

Setback 

Min. Street 

Side Setback 

35’ 20’ 10’ 0'  20' 

 

Notes:  

1. Front yard setback shall be measured from the face of the garage to the 

face of the sidewalk, allowing for 20’ of parking on the driveway without 

overhang onto the sidewalk.  
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3. All setbacks in the CBD, C-1. C-2, LO, IL, PS, RC and M-U zone shall 

maintain a minimum 15’ when adjacent to a residential use or zone.  

 

2.5 Additional Requirements: 

 

• Lots 4-8, 23-28 and 48-50, Block 1 of the approved Preliminary Plat 

shall be limited to single-story homes.  

• The Right to Farm Act shall be included as a note on the final plat. 

• Any pond amenities with standing water shall provide life safety rings 

and aeration. 

• Applicant shall work with CHD4 to provide potential center left turn 

lane on Can Ada Road. CHD4 shall provide a letter to the City 

regarding the lane. 

• The Applicant shall work with the southern neighbor (Hatfield) to 

come up with a reasonable plan for fencing and the irrigation pipe 

along the southern boundary of the subdivision. 

• The Applicant shall provide internal split-rail fencing adjacent to 

common areas within the development. 

• The Applicant shall be responsible for mitigation fees for the future 

signal light as Can Ada Road and W. State Street as determined by 

CHD4. 

• The subdivision shall be responsible for maintaining historic drainage 

on the property and as it relates to adjacent properties. 

• The Council has approved non-residential uses per Staff recommended 

uses (omitting Social Services as an allowed use). 

• Where necessary, livestock rated fencing shall be used along the 

permitter of the development adjacent to existing agricultural uses. 

• Any pond amenities with standing water shall provide life safety rings 

and aeration. 

• Applicant shall work with CHD4 to provide potential center left turn 

lane on Can Ada Road. CHD4 shall provide a letter to the City 

regarding the lane. 

• The Applicant shall be responsible for mitigation fees for the future 

signal light as Can Ada Road and W. State Street as determined by 

CHD4. This fee shall be paid to the City prior to signature of the final 

plat. 

• The subdivision shall be responsible for maintaining historic drainage 

on the property and as it relates to adjacent properties. 

• Historic drainage shall be maintained at all times on the property and 

for adjacent properties. 

 

 

328

Section 7, Item B.



 

 

2.6 Proportionate Share Agreement for ITD Improvements. Developer 

has agreed to participate in the costs of construction or improvements to 

the portions of the State Highway System within the City of Star and/or 

City of Star Area of City Impact. The Developer will pay the $92,000.00 

traffic mitigation fee determined, or revised, by the Idaho Transportation 

Department as follows: the Developer will pay the City $1,000.00 per 

buildable lot within each phase prior to signature on the final plat for the 

applicable phase. The City will allocate the funds to roadway 

improvements in the vicinity of the project. The Developer shall pay this 

amount (unless otherwise revised by ITD) directly to the City of Star. 

The City will maintain this contribution in a specific Development 

Contributions account, to be distributed to ITD when requested for use 

with a specific Idaho Transportation Improvement Plan (ITIP) project 

within the City of Star Area of City Impact or City Limits in accordance 

with the terms of the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Idaho 

Transportation Department and the City of Star dated April 22, 2020. 

 

2.7 Changes and Modifications. No change in the use or restrictions 

specified in this Agreement shall be allowed or changed without modification of this 

Agreement pursuant to the requirements of the Star City Ordinances. In the event Owner 

changes or expands the use permitted by this Agreement or fails to comply with the 

restrictions without formal modification of this Agreement as allowed by the Star City 

Ordinances, Owners shall be in default of this Agreement. 

 

2.8 Conditions, Bonding for Completion. All of the conditions set forth 

herein shall be complied with or shall be bonded for completion by Owner before an 

Occupancy permit will be granted. Failure to comply with the Star City Ordinances or the 

terms of this Agreement shall result in a default of this Agreement by Owner. Owner may 

be allowed to bond for certain conditions at one hundred and fifty percent (150%) of the 

estimated cost of completion pursuant to Star City Ordinances. 

 

2.9 Timeframe for Recordation of Final Plat. Developer shall record the 

final plat(s) with the office of the Canyon County Recorder within the timeframes 

specified within the Unified Development Code Subdivision Ordinance.  

 

Section 3. Affidavit of Property Owner. At the City’s request, Owner shall 

provide an affidavit agreeing to submit the Property to this Agreement and to the provisions 

set forth in Idaho Code section 67-6511A and Star Zoning Ordinance and such affidavit is 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Section 4. Default. The failure of Owner, its heirs or assigns or subsequent owners 

of the Property or any other person acquiring an interest in the Property, to faithfully 

comply with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed a default 

herein. This Agreement may be modified or terminated by the Star City Council as set forth 
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in the Star City Ordinances. In the event this Agreement is modified, Owner shall comply 

with the amended terms. Failure to comply with the amended terms shall result in default. 

In the event the City Council, after compliance with the requirements of the Star City 

Ordinances, determines that this Agreement shall be terminated, the zoning of the 

Residential Property or portion thereof that has not been developed in accordance with this 

Agreement shall revert to an RR zoning designation. For a non-residential property, the 

zoning shall not revert. All uses of such property, which are not consistent with the prior 

zoning designation, shall cease. A waiver by the City of Star for any default by Owner of 

any one or more of the covenants or conditions hereof shall apply solely to the breach and 

breaches waived and shall not bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any 

subsequent breach of any such or other covenants and conditions. Owner, by entering into 

this Agreement, does hereby consent to a reversion of the subject property to a RR zoning 

designation for residential in the event there is a default in the terms and/or conditions of 

this Agreement. 

 

Section 5. Unenforceable Provisions. If any term, provision, commitment or 

restriction of this Agreement or the application thereof to any party or circumstances shall, 

to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the instrument shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 6. Assignment and Transfer. After its execution, this Agreement shall be 

recorded in the office of the County Recorder at the expense of Owner. Each commitment 

and restriction on the development subject to this Agreement, shall be a burden on the 

Property, shall be appurtenant to and for the benefit of the Property and shall run with the 

land. This Agreement shall be binding on the City and Owner, and their respective heirs, 

administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, successors and assigns: provided, 

however, that if all or any portion of the Property is divided, each owner of a legal lot shall 

only be responsible for duties and obligations associated with an owner's parcel and shall 

not be responsible for duties and obligations or defaults as to other parcels of lots within 

the Property. The new owners of the Property or any portion thereof (including, without 

limitation, any owner who acquires its interest by foreclosure, trustee's sale or otherwise) 

shall be liable for all commitments and other obligations arising under this Agreement with 

respect only to such owner's lot or parcel. 

 

Section 7. General Matters. 

 

7.1 Amendments. Any alteration or change to this Agreement shall be made 

only after complying with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho Code Section 67- 

6509, as required by Star City Code. 

 

7.2 Paragraph Headings. This Agreement shall be construed according to its 

fair meaning and as if prepared by both parties hereto. Titles and captions are for 

convenience only and shall not constitute a portion of this Agreement. As used in this 
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Agreement, masculine, feminine or neuteral gender and the singular or plural number shall 

each be deemed to include the others wherever and whenever the context so dictates. 

 

7.3 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Idaho in effect at the time of the execution of this Agreement. Any 

action brought in connection with this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent 

jurisdiction located in Canyon County, Idaho. 

 

7.4 Notices. Any notice which a party may desire to give to another party must 

be in writing and may be given by personal delivery, by mailing the same by registered or 

certified mail, return receipt requested postage prepaid, or by Federal Express or other 

reputable overnight delivery service, to the party to whom the notice is directed at the 

address of such party set forth below. 

 

Star:    City of Star 

    Attn:  City Clerk 

    P.O. Box 130 

    Star, ID 83669 

 

Owner:   Carol A. Storkan 

    2272 N. Can Ada Road 

    Star, Idaho 83669 

 

7.5 Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective after delivery to each 

of the parties hereto of a fully executed copy of this Agreement. 

 

7.6 Attorney Fees. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties 

hereto concerning this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to any 

other relief as may be granted, to court costs and reasonable attorney fees as determined by 

a court of competent jurisdiction. This provision shall be deemed to be a separate contract 

between the parties and shall survive any default, termination or forfeiture of this 

Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused this Agreement to 

be executed on the day and year set forth below. 

 

Dated this _____ day _______________, 2023.  

                                    

 

     Trevor A. Chadwick, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

      

Jacob M. Qualls, City Clerk 
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OWNER: 

 

 

       

Jeffrey D. Storkan 

 

 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 

   ) ss. 

County of Ada ) 

On this _____ day of ______________, 2023, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said state, personally appeared ____________________, known to me to 

be ________________________, who subscribed his name to the foregoing instrument, 

and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in said limited liability company's 

name. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 

seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

       

Notary Public for Idaho 

Residing at       

My Commission expires     
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OWNER: 

 

 

       

Carol A. Storkan 

 

 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 

   ) ss. 

County of Ada ) 

On this _____ day of ______________, 2023, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said state, personally appeared Carol A. Storkan, known to me to be the 

person who subscribed her name to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that 

she executed the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 

seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

       

Notary Public for Idaho 

Residing at       

My Commission expires     
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ORDINANCE NO. 389-2023 
(DUDE DEWALT WINERY ANNEXATION) 

  

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF STAR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

LOCATED IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF ADA COUNTY, IDAHO; MORE 

SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 5446 HWY 16, IN STAR, IDAHO (ADA COUNTY PARCEL 

S0328427800) AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY OF STAR; THE PROPERTY IS OWNED 

BY TRAE & JOHNNA BUCHERT; ESTABLISHING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 

THE ANNEXED PROPERTY AS RURAL RESIDENTIAL WITH A DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT (RR-DA) OF APPROXIMATELY 32.5 ACRES; DIRECTING THAT 

CERTIFIED COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; 

PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Star, Ada and Canyon County, Idaho (“the City”), is a municipal 

corporation organized and operating under the laws of the State of Idaho and is authorized to annex 

and to incorporate within the boundaries of the City contiguous real property in the manner 

provided by Section 50-222, Idaho Code; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 67-6524, Idaho Code, the City of Star has adopted the 

Unified Development Code Ordinance, the same being Ordinance No. 370-2022, adopted on July 

19, 2022 and subsequently amended; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of the real property situated in the unincorporated areas of Ada 

County and particularly described in Section 2 of this Ordinance have requested, in writing, 

annexation of said real property to the City of Star; and  

  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council, held a public hearing on July 18, 2023 on the 

proposed annexation and zoning of the property described in Section 2 below, as required by 

Section 67-6525, Idaho Code, and determined that the requested annexation should be granted and 

that the annexed property should be zoned Rural Residential with a Development Agreement   

(RR-DA) pursuant to the Unified Development Code of the City of Star. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF STAR, IDAHO, as follows: 

  

 Section 1:   The Mayor and Council of the City of Star, Idaho, hereby find and declare 

that the real property described in Section 2 of this Ordinance is contiguous to the City, that said 

property can be reasonably assumed to be used for orderly development of the City, that the 

owner(s) of said property have requested, in writing, annexation of said property by the City, and 

that the requirements of Section 50-222, Idaho Code, for annexation of said property, have been 

satisfied. 

  

 Section 2:   The real property, described in the attached “Exhibit A”, including adjacent 

right of way, situated in Ada County, Idaho, is hereby annexed into the City of Star.  From and 

after the effective date of this Ordinance, the residents and other occupants and property owners 

within such area shall enjoy all the rights and responsibilities and shall be subject to all ordinances, 
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resolutions, police regulations, taxation and other powers of the City of Star as their fellow 

residents, occupants, and owners within the City of Star. 

  

 Section 3: The zoning land use classification of the land described in Section 2 above, 

is hereby established as Rural Residential with a Development Agreement (RR-DA), as provided 

by the Unified Development Code of the City of Star.  The Zoning Map of the City is hereby 

amended to include the real property described in Section 2 above in the Rural Residential with a 

Development Agreement (RR-DA) land use classification. 

  

 Section 4: The City Clerk is hereby directed to file, within ten (10) days of passage 

and approval of this Ordinance, a certified copy of this Ordinance with the offices of the Auditor, 

Treasurer, and Assessor of Ada County, Idaho, and with the State Tax Commission, Boise, Idaho, 

as required by Section 50-223, Idaho Code, and to comply with the provisions of Section 63-215, 

Idaho Code, with regard to the preparation and filing of a map and legal description of the real 

property annexed by this Ordinance. 

  

 Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage, 

approval, and publication as required by law.  In lieu of publication of the entire Ordinance, a 

summary thereof in compliance with Section 50-901A, Idaho Code maybe be published. 

  

 DATED this ____ day of ___________, 2023. 

  

       CITY OF STAR 

       Ada and Canyon County, Idaho 

 

        

BY: ________________________ 

ATTEST:             Trevor A. Chadwick, Mayor 

  

____________________ 

Jacob M. Qualls, City Clerk 
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DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

DUDE DEWALT WINERY & EVENT CENTER ANNEXATION 

 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between the 

City of Star, a municipal corporation in the State of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as "City", 

and Trae and Johnna Buchert, hereinafter referred to as “Owner".  

 

WHEREAS, Owner owns a parcel of land of approximately 32.50 acres in size, 

currently located within Ada County, zoned RR, and more particularly described in 

Exhibit A of Ordinance 389-2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 

herein (the "Property"); 

 

WHEREAS, Owner requested that the Property be annexed into the City, be zoned, 

and be developed in accordance with the applicable ordinances and regulations of the City 

and this Agreement; 

 

WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Section 67-6511A, Idaho Code, and Star City 

Code at Title 8, Chapter 1, has the authority to enter into a development agreement for the 

purpose of allowing, by agreement, a specific development to proceed in a specific area 

and for a specific purpose or use which is appropriate in the area, but for which all allowed 

uses for the requested zoning may not be appropriate; 

 

WHEREAS, the City has authority to enter into development agreements to 

condition annexations and re-zones; 

 

WHEREAS, Owner desires to be assured that it may proceed with allowing its 

Property to be zoned and developed in accordance with this Agreement; 

 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to the zoning designations for the Property as 

provided in Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, a Request for Annexation and Zoning of the Property to RR-DA, was 

made as File No. AZ-23-02/DA-23-04, so that the City can review all the applications 

affecting the use and development of the Property in an integrated manner consistent with 

the City's Comprehensive Plan and land use ordinances, which applications were approved; 

 

WHEREAS, the intent of this Agreement is to protect the rights of Owners use and 

enjoyment of the Property while at the same time mitigating any adverse impacts of the 

development upon neighboring properties and the existing community and ensuring the 

Property is developed in a manner consistent with City Ordinances; 

 

THEREFORE, the City and Owner, for and in consideration of the mutual 

covenants, duties and obligations herein set forth, hereby agree as follows: 
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Section 1. Legal Authority. This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance 

with the provisions of Idaho Code Section 67-6511A and Star City Code, Title 8, Chapter 1. 

 

Section 2. Development/Uses/Standards. 

 

2.1 Development Acreage and Uses Permitted. As to the Property described 

on Exhibit A, Owner is allowed to develop the approximate 32.50 acres as follows: 

 

• Zoning Classification:  The zoning classification of the Property shall be 

RR-DA. 

• The Owner shall comply with all city ordinances relating to the Property 

except as otherwise provided herein. 

 

2.2 Site Design. The Property shall be developed in substantial conformance 

with the approved Conditional Use Permit Master Site Plan, dated 7/10/23, 

a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein as 

Exhibit B.  

 

2.3 Uses. – The Property is hereby approved for a winery and events center, 

to be developed, operated, and maintained in compliance with the 

conditions of approval for CU-23-05.   

 

2.4 Additional Requirements: 

 

• Central District Health shall approve any new or upgraded septic 

systems. 

• Star Fire District shall approve all fire flow requirements and/or 

building permits, and any occupancy requirements for all buildings 

on-site. All Wildland Urban Fire Interface Overlay District 

requirements shall be met. 

• The owner/applicant shall maintain a minimum 125 feet distance 

from the southern property line to the new proposed tasting room 

and associated patio. 

• The owner/applicant shall submit plans for food or beverage 

establishment to the Central District Health Department for plan 

review and approval. 

• Idaho Department of Water Resources shall approve any new or 

upgraded well construction. 

• The owner/applicant shall pay the ACHD all traffic impact fees 

prior to issuance of a building permit. 

• The owner/applicant shall provide an all-weather dustless material 

(or other City approved dust mitigation) if the off-street parking 

areas and private drive are not surfaced with asphalt or concrete.  
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• The owner/applicant shall either install a placard or striping that 

clearly identifies and demarcates the ADA accessible parking 

spaces. 

• The owner/applicant, engineer of record and/or contractor shall 

notify the City when a construction start date is established. 

• The Engineer of Record shall submit a letter to the City stating the 

work has been completed in substantial compliance with the 

approved plans for the construction of the driveways and parking 

areas. 

• The owner/applicant shall schedule a final inspection with the City 

upon completion of each phase of the driveways and parking areas. 

• The owner/applicant shall schedule a final inspection with the Star 

Fire District prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

• During the time that the future construction of the production 

facility happens, the current driveway shall be constructed to Star 

Fire District standards. Star Fire District shall approve all access 

requirements. 

• A northbound right turn lane shall be constructed to the ITD 

current standards to mitigate for entering traffic.  

• A Certificate of Occupancy will be issued when all the above 

conditions are met. In the event conditions cannot be met by the 

desired date of occupancy, the owner/applicant may request a 

surety agreement in lieu of completing the improvements.  

• If a gate is ever installed, it will need to be equipped with a KNOX 

key lock specific to Star Fire District. 

• The outdoor public address/speaker system shall comply with the 

noise regulations of the City Code. 

• Food service for events shall be approved by the Central District 

Health Department. 

• Any (Event Center) event of more than 125 people and no greater 

than 250 people shall be limited to 24 events per year. 

• The days and hours of operation for the wine tasting and associated 

uses and the Event Center uses are from 10 a.m. to 10 p.m., daily; 

On Mondays and Tuesdays, hours of operation for events greater 

than 125 people shall be limited to 10 a.m. to 6 p.m. The operation 

of the winery use is allowed 24 hours/7 days a week. 

• The owner/applicant shall comply with ITD Permit No. 3-19-504 

or any updated permits. Should the use of the parcel change 

causing any increase in trip generation, or the parcel is split, the 

property owner shall reapply for access with ITD.  

• All drainage shall be retained onsite during and after construction. 

• During construction earthmoving equipment operation, hours shall 

be limited to between 7 a.m. to 6 p.m. 
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• The owner/applicant is responsible for restoring all disturbed areas. 

Restoration shall match the approved plans. For unapproved areas 

of disturbance, the City Engineer shall determine the level of 

restoration. This could include geotechnical reports, grading, 

erosion control blankets and hydro seeding. 

• The property must be managed and maintained consistent with the 

standard regulations of Star City Code regarding the accumulation 

of junk, atmospheric emissions, construction sites, hazardous 

materials storage, outdoor public address systems, outdoor storage 

of chemicals and fertilizers, transmission line corridors, and 

utilities. 

• The use shall comply with the noise regulations in Star City Code. 

• Comply with all requirements of the Star City Engineer including, 

but not limited to, drainage, grading, hillsides and slopes, site 

improvement engineering, retaining walls greater in height than 4 

feet. 

• All future improvement phases are subject to a Certificate of 

Zoning Compliance application submitted to the City. This will 

include detailed review of parking, landscaping, lighting, dust 

mitigation, and building elevations. 

• Any signage within ITD right of way shall be approved by the 

District prior to installation. 

• The owner/applicant shall meet all requirements of Central District 

Health Department regarding the preparation and sale of food. 

• A landscape plan shall be submitted to the City detailing the 

existing, required berm along the southern boundary of the 

property, including types of trees and landscaping proposed. The 

existing 8’ berm shall include 6’ tall trees to provide additional 

buffer on the southern parking lot boundary per the submitted site 

plan. 

• The conditional use permit shall be valid for a period of 10-years 

from the date of approval to allow for the applicants phasing plans. 

The applicant may apply for a time extension prior to the 

expiration date as allowed per Code. 

• The owner/applicant shall notify the City in advance of all events 

of greater than 125 people and no greater than 250 people per year 

(24 events per year maximum). This time period shall be from 

January 1st through December 31st, annually. The total number of 

events in 2023 shall include those already conducted prior to 

annexation. 

• The owner/applicant shall provide for adequate parking for all 

events on-site. At final build-out, a total of 150 permanent parking 

spaces shall be provided.  
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• Any future change of use of the existing residence to a commercial 

use shall be subject to review of a Certificate of Zoning 

Compliance. All current building and fire codes would need to be 

completed prior to any public occupancy. 

• The existing Storage/Production Facility (3,500 square feet) shall 

meet all Star Fire District requirements. 

• All new structures shall be subject to fire and building code 

standards. Extension of sewer & water may be required by Star 

Sewer & Water District to accommodate fire suppression and 

domestic water and sewer needs. All new structures shall be 

subject to future Certificate of Zoning Compliance (CZC) 

applications. Building elevations, parking, lighting, access details, 

fire and building code reviews and other Staff requested details 

will be reviewed for each building and proposed amenity under the 

CZC process. 

• The applicant shall submit a lighting plan with the first CZC 

application, and all subsequent submittals illustrating compliance 

with all City lighting requirements. 

• The applicant shall meet all requirements for emergency access, 

water supply and vehicle turn-around from the Star Fire District. 

Should municipal water be required to meet fire flows, the 

applicant shall annex into the Star Sewer and Water District and 

comply with any District requirements. 

• The applicant shall access to the north if, and when the property to 

the north were to redevelop, and direct access to the subject 

property is eliminated or limited to Hwy 16. 

 

2.5 Changes and Modifications. No change in the use or restrictions 

specified in this Agreement shall be allowed or changed without modification of this 

Agreement pursuant to the requirements of the Star City Ordinances. In the event Owner 

changes or expands the use permitted by this Agreement or fails to comply with the 

restrictions without formal modification of this Agreement as allowed by the Star City 

Ordinances, Owners shall be in default of this Agreement. 

 

2.6 Conditions, Bonding for Completion. All of the conditions set forth 

herein shall be complied with or shall be bonded for completion by Owner before an 

Occupancy permit will be granted. Failure to comply with the Star City Ordinances or the 

terms of this Agreement shall result in a default of this Agreement by Owner. Owner may 

be allowed to bond for certain conditions at one hundred and fifty percent (150%) of the 

estimated cost of completion pursuant to Star City Ordinances. 

 

Section 3. Affidavit of Property Owner. At the City’s request, Owner shall 

provide an affidavit agreeing to submit the Property to this Agreement and to the provisions 
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set forth in Idaho Code section 67-6511A and Star Zoning Ordinance and such affidavit is 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Section 4. Default. The failure of Owner, its heirs or assigns or subsequent owners 

of the Property or any other person acquiring an interest in the Property, to faithfully 

comply with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed a default 

herein. This Agreement may be modified or terminated by the Star City Council as set forth 

in the Star City Ordinances. In the event this Agreement is modified, Owner shall comply 

with the amended terms. Failure to comply with the amended terms shall result in default. 

In the event the City Council, after compliance with the requirements of the Star City 

Ordinances, determines that this Agreement shall be terminated, the zoning of the 

Residential Property or portion thereof that has not been developed in accordance with this 

Agreement shall revert to an RR zoning designation. For a non-residential property, the 

zoning shall not revert. All uses of such property, which are not consistent with the prior 

zoning designation, shall cease. A waiver by the City of Star for any default by Owner of 

any one or more of the covenants or conditions hereof shall apply solely to the breach and 

breaches waived and shall not bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any 

subsequent breach of any such or other covenants and conditions. Owner, by entering into 

this Agreement, does hereby consent to a reversion of the subject property to a RR zoning 

designation for residential in the event there is a default in the terms and/or conditions of 

this Agreement. 

 

Section 5. Unenforceable Provisions. If any term, provision, commitment or 

restriction of this Agreement or the application thereof to any party or circumstances shall, 

to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the instrument shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 6. Assignment and Transfer. After its execution, this Agreement shall be 

recorded in the office of the County Recorder at the expense of Owner. Each commitment 

and restriction on the development subject to this Agreement, shall be a burden on the 

Property, shall be appurtenant to and for the benefit of the Property and shall run with the 

land. This Agreement shall be binding on the City and Owner, and their respective heirs, 

administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, successors and assigns: provided, 

however, that if all or any portion of the Property is divided, each owner of a legal lot shall 

only be responsible for duties and obligations associated with an owner's parcel and shall 

not be responsible for duties and obligations or defaults as to other parcels of lots within 

the Property. The new owners of the Property or any portion thereof (including, without 

limitation, any owner who acquires its interest by foreclosure, trustee's sale or otherwise) 

shall be liable for all commitments and other obligations arising under this Agreement with 

respect only to such owner's lot or parcel. 
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Section 7. General Matters. 

 

7.1 Amendments. Any alteration or change to this Agreement shall be made 

only after complying with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho Code Section 67- 

6509, as required by Star City Code. 

 

7.2 Paragraph Headings. This Agreement shall be construed according to its 

fair meaning and as if prepared by both parties hereto. Titles and captions are for 

convenience only and shall not constitute a portion of this Agreement. As used in this 

Agreement, masculine, feminine or neutral gender and the singular or plural number shall 

each be deemed to include the others wherever and whenever the context so dictates. 

 

7.3 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Idaho in effect at the time of the execution of this Agreement. Any 

action brought in connection with this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent 

jurisdiction located in Ada County, Idaho. 

 

7.4 Notices. Any notice which a party may desire to give to another party must 

be in writing and may be given by personal delivery, by mailing the same by registered or 

certified mail, return receipt requested postage prepaid, or by Federal Express or other 

reputable overnight delivery service, to the party to whom the notice is directed at the 

address of such party set forth below. 

 

Star:    City of Star 

    Attn:  City Clerk 

    P.O. Box 130 

    Star, ID 83669 

 

Owner:   Trae & Johnna Buchert 

    5446 Hwy 16 

    Eagle, Idaho 83616 

 

7.5 Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective after delivery to each 

of the parties hereto of a fully executed copy of this Agreement. 

 

7.6 Attorney Fees. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties 

hereto concerning this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to any 

other relief as may be granted, to court costs and reasonable attorney fees as determined by 

a court of competent jurisdiction. This provision shall be deemed to be a separate contract 

between the parties and shall survive any default, termination or forfeiture of this 

Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused this Agreement to 

be executed on the day and year set forth below. 
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Dated this _____ day _______________, 2023.  

 

     

                                    

 

     Trevor A. Chadwick, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

      

Jacob M. Qualls, City Clerk 
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OWNER: 

      

Trae Buchert 

 

 

       

Johnna Buchert 

 

 

 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 

   ) ss. 

County of Ada ) 

On this _____ day of ______________, 2023, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said state, personally appeared Trae and Johnna Buchert, known to me to 

be the Owner, who subscribed their names to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged 

to me that they executed the same in said limited liability company's name. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 

seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

       

Notary Public for Idaho 

Residing at       

My Commission expires     
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PROPERTY AREA  34.602 ACRES TOTAL
ZONING  RR
SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED PERMITTED
VINYARD PERMITTED
BREWPUB/WINE TASTING ACCESSORY ALLOWED
WINERY USE CONDITIONAL
EVENTS CENTER, PUBLIC OR PRIVATE,
OUTDOOR CONDITIONAL
(125' Setback from residential use, 10pm event termination with illumination till
11pm, 6' Berm and landscaping for all property lines abutting a residential district)
OUTDOOR STORAGE USE ACCESSORY ALLOWED
(6' Screen fence on three sides and landscaping)
AGRICULTURAL / ACCESSORY STRUCTURE USE ACCESSORY ALLOWED
(The accessory structure shall portray the architectural character of the principal
permitted dwelling)
AGRICULTURAL / ACCESSORY STRUCTURE
(IN FRONT OF MAIN BUILDING) CONDITIONAL
(The accessory structure shall portray the architectural character of the principal
permitted dwelling)
RV PARK NOT PERMITTED
(CONDITIONAL USE REQUESTED FOR SHORT TERM STAYS)

NOTE: ALL USES & BUILDINGS ARE TO BE PHASED AND HAVE NO SPECIFIC
CONSTRUCTION ORDER OR TIMELINE.

SETBACKS:
FRONT: 30'
REAR: 30'
INTERIOR / STREET SIDE: 20'
HIGHWAY 16: 50' (PROVIDED)

Wildland-urban Fire Interface:
50' Defensible space around all habitable structures.
5' Gravel shoulder on either side of drive travel lanes.
30' Private Road easement

SITE DEVELOPMENT
FEATURES

PARKING STANDARDS:
Dwelling, single-family attached or detached or additional dwelling:  
2 per dwelling unit including 1 covered
REQUIRED = 2 PROVIDED = 4 + 3 covered (in garage)
Restaurants, dining rooms, taverns, nightclubs, etc.: 
1 per 150 square feet of gross floor area (6500sf)
REQUIRED = 43 PROVIDED = 43
Outdoor "club" capacity: 
1 per 4 seats (256)
REQUIRED = 64 PROVIDED = 64
Manufacturing, processing:
1 per 500 square feet of gross floor area + 1 per 300 square feet of Office
(18280 / 160)
REQUIRED = 37 PROVIDED = 37
Storage (Building & Outdoor):
1 per 1,000 square feet of gross (floor / enclosed) area (14,000)
REQUIRED = 14 PROVIDED = 14
RV Lot:
1 per each trailer space (5)
REQUIRED = 5 PROVIDED = 5

TOTAL PARKING REQUIRED = 165
TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED = 161 STANDARD + 6 ADA STALLS
= 167 TOTAL (not including private residence)

One 10' x 30' loading space required and provided at production facility.

Bicycle parking 1 per 25 required spaces (99):
REQUIRED = 7 PROVIDED = 7

NOTE: ALL PARKING TO BE PHASED IN WITH EACH ASSOCIATED
DEVELOPMENT AS REQUIRED.

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

SIGN LOCATION,  SEE DETAIL

SITE SIGNAGE IDENTIFICATION

WALL SCONE BUILDING
LIGHTING

LOW VOLTAGE PATHWAY
LIGHTING

OUTDOOR SPEAKERS FOR
AMBIENT BACKGROUND
MUSIC.

SCORE JOINT (TYPICAL)

CONCRETE CURB LOCATION

EXPANSION JOINT (TYPICAL)

ACCESSIBLE RAMP LOCATION
WITH DETECTABLE WARNING
SURFACE

NEW CONCRETE FLATWORK

EXISTING TREES AND
SHRUBS TO REMAIN

CONCRETE WHEEL STOP

EDGING, AS SPECIFIED

EDGE OF EXISTING ROAD

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF GRAVEL
(STABILIZED RAP)

PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

BUILDING SETBACKS

PROPOSED SEPTIC FIELD
LOCATION

STABILIZED RECYCLED
ASPHALT

CONCRETE FLATWORK

ASPHALT PAVING

PROPOSED BUILDING
LOCATION.

EXISTING BUILDING LOCATION

EXISTING NATIVE VEGETATION
TO REMAIN.

EXISTING VINEYARDS

PROPOSED VINEYARDS

3/4" MINUS COMPACTED
GRAVEL WALKING PATH

BOULDER RETAINING WALL

SEPTIC DRAIN FIELD

EP EP EP

RD RD RD RD RD RD

24"x 30" 24"x 30"30"x 30"

18"x 24"
18"x 30"

8'x 36'

EG EG EG

S S S S

STANDARD ADA PARKING
STALLS ON PAINTABLE
ACCESSIBLE SURFACE.

FUTURE OUTDOOR EVENT AND
WINE TASTING SEATING FLEX
SPACE.

APPROXIMATE SEPTIC FIELD
LOCATION TO BE SIZED BY CIVIL.

APPROXIMATE STORM WATER
RETENTION AREA TO BE SIZED
BY CIVIL.

PEDESTRIAN PATHWAY.

CONCRETE / PAVED
PEDESTRIAN PATHWAY.

VINEYARD ACCESS /
MAINTENANCE ROAD.

LOADING STALL.

EXISTING WELL LOCATION AND
IRRIGATION BACKFLOW
PREVENTOR.

EXISTING SEPTIC FIELD
LOCATION.

MONUMENT SIGN, SEE
NARRATIVE.

LOG POLE  CONSTRUCTION
RANCH STYLE ENTRY GATE.

HAMMERHEAD FIRE TURN
AROUND.

LANDSCAPE BERM FOR LIGHT &
NOISE BARRIER.

CONCRETE PATIO AREA.

FUTURE TASTING ROOM.

EXISTING CONCRETE PATIO
AREA.

WALL LIGHT LOCATION @ 15'
HEIGHT.

MONUMENT SIGN UP-LIGHTING
@ 3' HEIGHT.

ENTRY GATE UP-LIGHTING @ 3'
HEIGHT.

WALL SIGN LIGHTING @ 20'
HEIGHT.

OUTDOOR SPEAKER LOCATION -
NOT TO EXCEED NOISE
ORDINANCE CODE.

RESIDENTIAL PARKING AREA.

EXISTING ADA PARKING TO BE
RELOCATED AFTER FUTURE
TASTING ROOM CONSTRUCTION.

EXPANSION TO EXISTING
PARKING AREA

APPROXIMATE IDAHO POWER
TRANSFORMER LOCATION

MOTORCYCLE AND UTV
PARKING

BICYCLE PARKING FOR FOUR (4).

ALTERNATE TASTING ROOM
LOCATION ~ 5000 SF WITH
ADDITIONAL PARKING.

ALTERNATE 4800 SF STORAGE
FACILITY LOCATION.

POTENTIAL FUTURE
AMPITHEATER LOCATION.
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All rights reserved.  Reproduction or use in any
form or by any means without written permission of
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DUDE DEWALT CELLARS
A PARCEL OF LAND; #S0328427800 LOCATED IN THE NORTH WEST 1/4  OF

THE SOUTH EAST 1/4, EAST OF HIGHWAY 16 SECTION 28, T. 5N., R. 1W.,
BOISE MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY IDAHO

NOVEMBER 2020

VICINITY MAP

PER STAR FIRE DEPARTMENT COMMENTS, AN EARLY
DETECTION SYSTEM WILL BE REQUIRED FOR ALL NEW
BUILDINGS. NEW FIRE HYDRANTS ARE TO BE INSTALLED WHEN
CITY WATER BECOMES AVAILABLE. EXISTING COMMERCIAL
BUILDINGS ARE TO BE REVIEWED FOR ANY NECESSARY
UPDATES TO ALARMS, FIRE EXTINGUISHER, AND EXIT SIGNS.

FIRE REQUIREMENTS
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EXISTING TREES AND SHRUBS TO REMAIN

CONCRETE WHEEL STOP

EDGING, AS SPECIFIED

EDGE OF EXISTING ROAD

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EDGE OF GRAVEL (STABILIZED RAP)

PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

BUILDING SETBACKS

PROPOSED SEPTIC FIELD LOCATION

EP EP EP

RD RD RD RD RD RD

EG EG EG

S S S S

LANDSCAPING INFORMATION
*  ROADWAY LANDSCAPE BUFFERS:

HIGHWAY 16 :  STREET TREES / LANDSCAPED COMMERCIAL STRIP
40' STREET BUFFER
1,341 FEET STREET BUFFER
SHADE TREES @ 1/35' =38 TREES REQUIRED

  12 TREES PROPOSED +2 EXISTING
EVERGREENS @ 2:1 =40 EVERGREENS REQUIRED

  22 EVERGREENS PROPOSED +18 EXISTING
ORNAMENTALS @ 2:1 =8  ORNAMENTALS TREES REQUIRED

  8 ORNAMENTALS TREES PROPOSED
SHRUBS @ 5/35' =192 SHRUBS REQUIRED

  435 SHRUBS EXISTING

*  PARKING LOT INTERIOR:
1 TREE / 10 STALLS @ 167 / 10 = 17
PLUS 1 FOR EACH END OF ROW @ 14 ROWS =

31 TREES REQUIRED
25 TREES PROPOSED + 6 EXISTING

* RESIDENTIAL USE BUFFER:
MINIMUM 6' HEIGHT AND 10' WIDE BUFFER WITH MORE THAN 60% SIGHT BOCKING
5' TALL BERM WITH A MIX OF EVERGREEN AND DECIDUOUS TREES AND SHRUB
PROVIDING 100% VISUAL COVERAGE FOR 320' OF EXISTING NEIGHBORS ALONG
HIGHEST USE AREA. ADDITIONAL 888' OF REQUIRED BUFFER IS COVERED WITH EITHER
NATIVE VEGETATION OF FUTURE VINYARDS AND PROVIDING 6' MINIMUM HEIGHT OF
100% VISUAL COVERAGE WITH A WIDTH OF OVER 200' TO NEAREST USE AREA.

* OVERALL LANDSCAPE TREE REQUIREMENTS
TOTAL TREES REQUIRED = 69
TOTAL SPECIES PROVIDED = 10

*  NOTE: 
CONIFERS AND ORNAMENTAL TREES ARE SUBSTITUTED AT THE RATE OF 2 PER SHADE
TREE.

*  MITIGATION FOR REMOVAL OF EXISTING TREES:
ALL EXISTING TREES ON THE SITE ARE TO REMAIN - NO MITIGATION NECESSARY -
COORDINATE WITH THE CITY FORESTER IN THE FIELD BEFORE ANY EXISTING TREES ARE
DAMAGED OR REMOVED. DUE TO THE SIZE OF THE PROPERTY AND QUANTY OF EXISTING
TREES A TREE MITIGATION PLAN SHALL BE DEVELOPED IN THE FUTURE PRIOR TO ANY
BUILDING PERMITS BEING ISSUED.

* LANDSCAPE AS A PERCENT OF SITE:
TOTAL PROPERT SIZE = 34.062 AC = 1483740.72 SF

BUILDINGS = 35893 SF
HARDSCAPE = 160919 SF
LANDSCAPE = 1286928 SF (86.74%) 
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VICINITY MAP

1. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO THE AMERICAN
NURSERYMAN STANDARDS FOR TYPE AND SIZE SHOWN.  PLANTS
WILL BE REJECTED IF NOT IN A SOUND AND HEALTHY CONDITION.
ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE GRADE #1 OR BETTER.

2. ALL PLANTING BEDS AND TREE WELLS IN LAWN AREAS (WELLS TO
BE 3' IN DIAMETER) SHALL BE COVERED WITH A MINIMUM OF 3"
DEPTH OF 1"  BARK MULCH.  SUBMIT SAMPLE FOR APPROVAL BY
OWNER.

3. ALL LAWN AREAS SHALL BE SODDED WITH 100% TURF TYPE TALL
FESCUE (FESTUCA ARUNDINACIA).  CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY
AND MATCH THE VARIETY EXISTING IN THE ADJACENT
DEVELOPMENT.

4. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE GUARANTEED FOR A PERIOD OF
ONE YEAR BEGINNING AT THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE BY OWNER.
REPLACE ALL PLANT MATERIAL FOUND DEAD OR NOT IN A
HEALTHY CONDITION IMMEDIATELY WITH THE SAME SIZE AND
SPECIES AT NO COST TO THE OWNER.

5. PLANTING BACKFILL FOR TREES AND PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE 5
PARTS TOPSOIL AND 1 PART COMPOST WITH STRAW.  STAKE ALL
TREES PER DETAILS.

6. ALL LAWN AREAS SHALL HAVE 6" OF TOPSOIL AND ALL PLANTING
BEDS SHALL HAVE 12" OF TOPSOIL (MINIMUM).  TOPSOIL SHALL BE
A LOOSE, FRIABLE, SANDY LOAM, CLEAN AND FREE OF TOXIC
MATERIALS, NOXIOUS WEEDS, WEED SEEDS, ROCKS, GRASS, OR
OTHER FOREIGN MATERIAL LARGER THAN 1" IN ANY DIMENSION, A
PH FROM 5.5 TO 7.0.   TOP SOIL FROM SITE SHALL BE USED, IF
MEETING THESE STANDARDS.  PLACE 1/2" COMPOST OVER ALL
LANDSCAPED AREAS AND ROTOTILL INTO TOP 4".  SPREAD,
COMPACT, AND FINE GRADE TOPSOIL TO A SMOOTH AND UNIFORM
GRADE, 1" BELOW SURFACE OF WALKS AND CURBS IN AREAS TO
BE SODDED AND 3" IN PLANTING BED AREAS.

7. FERTILIZE ALL TREES AND SHRUBS WITH 'AGRIFORM" PLANTING
TABLETS, 21 GRAM.  QUANTITY PER MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATION.

8. PLANT MATERIAL SHALL NOT BE SUBSTITUTED WITHOUT THE
WRITTEN PERMISSION OF OWNER.  SUBMIT NAMES OF THREE
SUPPLIERS CONTACTED IF SUBSTITUTION IS REQUESTED AND
PLANT MATERIAL SPECIFIED IS NOT AVAILABLE.

9. SHRUB PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE SHOVEL EDGED TO CREATE A
DISTINCT SEPARATION OF LANDSCAPE TYPES.

10. IMMEDIATELY CLEAN UP ANY TOPSOIL, OR OTHER DEBRIS ON SITE
CREATED FROM LANDSCAPE OPERATION AND DISPOSE OF
PROPERLY OFF SITE.

11. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL HAVE AN STATE OF THE ART
AUTOMATIC UNDERGROUND SPRINKLER SYSTEM WHICH INSURES
COMPLETE COVERAGE AND IS PROPERLY ZONED FOR REQUIRED
WATER USES AND HAS A WEATHER STATION CAPABLE OF TURNING
OFF FOR RAIN/FREEZE EVENTS.  ALL SHRUB ZONES, SPRAY ZONES
AND GEAR DRIVEN ZONES SHALL BE PLACED ON SEPARATE
ZONES.  DO NOT EXCEED A MAXIMUM OF 5 FPS IN ALL MAINLINE
AND LATERAL LINES.

12. COORDINATE ALL DRAINAGE AREAS AND UTILITIES WITH TREE
LOCATIONS AND ADJUST PER FIELD CONDITIONS.

13. ALL EXISTING TREES SHOWN TO REMAIN SHALL BE RETAINED AND
PROTECTED THROUGH OUT CONSTRUCTION.

14. NO TREES SHALL BE PLANTED WITHIN THE 10 FOOT CLEAR ZONE
OF ALL ACHD STORM DRAIN PIPE, STRUCTURES, OR FACILITIES.

15. STORM PONDS MUST BE PROTECTED FROM ANY AND ALL
CONTAMINATION DURING THE CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION
OF THE LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION SYSTEM.

16. ALL TREES TO BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 5 FEET OR GREATER
FROM THE BACK OF ANY SIDEWALK..

17. TRIM ALL TREES WITHIN VISION TRIANGLES TO 8' ABOVE FINISH
GRADE TO MEET ACHD STANDARDS.

LANDSCAPE NOTES:

1. ALL LANDSCAPED AREAS SHALL HAVE AN AUTOMATIC
UNDERGROUND SPRINKLER SYSTEM WHICH INSURES COMPLETE
COVERAGE AND PROPERLY ZONED FOR REQUIRED WATER USES.
EACH HYDROZONE IS TO BE IRRIGATED WITH SEPARATE
INDIVIDUAL STATIONS.

2. PLANTER BEDS AND LAWN AREAS ARE TO HAVE SEPARATE
HYDRO-ZONES.

3. POP-UP SPRINKLER HEADS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM RISER HEIGHT
OF 4 INCHES AT LAWN AREAS AND 18" AT PLANTER BEDS.

4. PLANTER BEDS ARE TO HAVE DRIP IRRIGATION SYSTEM OR
POP-UP SPRAY SYSTEM.

5. ELECTRONIC WATER DISTRIBUTION/ TIMING CONTROLLERS ARE
TO BE PROVIDED. MINIMUM CONTROLLER REQUIREMENTS ARE AS
FOLLOWS:
a. PRECISE INDIVIDUAL STATION TIMING
b. RUN TIME CAPABILITIES FOR EXTREMES IN PRECIPITATION

RATES
c. AT LEAST ONE PROGRAM FOR EACH HYDROZONE
d. SUFFICIENT MULTIPLE CYCLES TO AVOID WATER RUN-OFF
e. POWER FAILURE BACKUP FOR ALL PROGRAMED INDIVIDUAL

VALVED WATERING STATIONS WILL BE DESIGNED AND
INSTALLED TO PROVIDE WATER TO RESPECTIVE
HYDRO-ZONES.

6. INDIVIDUAL VALVED WATERING STATIONS WILL BE DESIGNED AND
INSTALLED TO PROVIDE WATER TO RESPECTIVE HYDRO-ZONES.

7. THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE DESIGNED TO PROVIDE 100%
HEAD TO HEAD COVERAGE WITH TRIANGULAR SPACING.

8. SPRINKLER HEADS SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO REDUCE OVERSPRAY
ONTO IMPERVIOUS SURFACES (BUILDINGS, SIDEWALKS,
DRIVEWAYS, AND ASPHALT AREAS).

9. PROVIDE MINIMUM (1) QUICK COUPLER VALVE PER EACH (6)
AUTOMATIC VALVE ZONES.  APPROVE Q.C.V. LOCATIONS WITH
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

10. POINT OF CONNECTION TO BE APPROVED BY JURISDICTION
PROVIDING WATER SOURCE.

IRRIGATION NOTES:

THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PREPARED BASED UPON INFORMATION
PROVIDED, IN PART BY OTHERS.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, SOUTH BECK AND BAIRD, PC. CANNOT
ASSURE ITS ACCURACY AND THUS IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
ACCURACY OF THIS DRAWING OR FOR ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS
WHICH MAY HAVE BEEN INCORPORATE INTO IT AS A RESULT.  SOUTH
BECK AND BAIRD, PC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR ANY
MISINFORMATION.
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(11)

(5) RV
Parking

LARGE GROUPINGS OF
BITTER BRUSH AND
NATIVE MATERIAL TO
REMAIN (APPROX. 30)

EXISTING MIX OF
EVERGREEN AND
DECIDUOUS TREES TO
REMAIN (18 conifers and
2 deciduous)

LARGE GROUPINGS OF
BITTER BRUSH AND
NATIVE MATERIAL TO
REMAIN (APPROX. 100)

LARGE GROUPINGS OF
BITTER BRUSH AND
NATIVE MATERIAL TO
REMAIN (APPROX. 60)

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINEMATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

PLANT SCHEDULE

Acer platanoides ‘Columnarbroad’
Parkway Maple

Catalpa speciosa ‘Hiawatha 2’
Heartland® Catalpa

Gleditsia triacanthos inermis 'Skyline'
Skyline Honeylocust

Liriodendron tulipifera ‘eJFS-Oz’f
Emerald City Tulip Tree

Malus x 'Red Baron'
Red Barron Crabapple

Prunus cerasifera ‘Thundercloud’
Thundercloud Plum

Quercus rubra
Red Oak

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

40' hgt. 25' w

45' hgt. 40' w

45' hgt. 30' w

55' hgt. 25' w

15' hgt. 10' w

20' hgt. 20' w

50' hgt. 45' w

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS I

CLASS I

CLASS II

BOTANICAL NAME
COMMON NAME

KEY

DECIDUOUS TREES                                                                                                                      .

MATURE SIZE CLASSPLANTING
SIZE

GROUND COVERS/ GRASSES/ PERENNIALS                                                                            .

NOTE:  All trees to be grade #1
(Shown at 80% Maturity)

QUANTITY
PLANT
IDENTIFICATION KEY

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN

PLANTS TO BE
INSTALLED

RTF TURF TYPE TALL
FESCUE SOD OVER
APPROVED TOPSOIL AS
SPECIFIED

NATIVE BASALT
BOULDERS, 3'- 4'
DIAMETER, SEE DETAIL
4/L3.0

DEFENSIBLE SPACE
SEED MIX AS SPECIFIED
OVER ALL DISTURBED
SOILS

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

Pinus flexilis 'Vanderwolf's Pyramid''
Vanderwolf's Limber Pine

Picea glauca 'Densata'
Black Hills Spruce

Picea pungens 'glauca'
Colorado Blue Spruce

6' B&B

6' B&B

6' B&B

25' hgt. 15' w

25' hgt. 15' w

35' hgt. 15' w

CONIF.

CONIF.

CONIF.

CONIFEROUS TREES                                                                                                                    .

SEE DETAIL 6/L3.0

SEE DETAIL 5/L3.0

SEE DETAIL 2/L3.0

JB10

40' VISION TRIANGLE

PERGOLA ON CONCRETE PAD WITH
PICNIC TABLE, SEE DETAILS 2 & 5/L2.1

WATER SAFTEY STATION PER
OWNER.

PLAY STRUCTURE BY OWNER

3' HEIGHT RETAINING WALL WITH
MONUMENT SIGN, SEE DETAIL 3/L2.1

6'-0" BENCH, SEE DETAIL 1/L2.1

SAND BEACH

1 ACRE OPEN RECREATION POND

POND AERATION PER OWNER

OPEN GRASSY PLAY SPACE

3'-4' BERM WITH 3:1 MAX SLOPE, AND
ARBOR, SEE DETAIL 6/L2.1

10'-0" WIDE ASPHALT PATHWAY

5'-0" WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

START FENCE LINE AT 20' BUILDING
SETBACK.

MAILBOX CLUSTERS, SEE DETAIL
4/L2.1 (TYPICAL OF 10)

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

CALLOUT LEGEND
9

10

11

12

13

14

7

15

EXISTING NATIVE VEGETATION
TO REMAIN.

EXISTING VINEYARDS

PROPOSED VINEYARDS

BOULDER RETAINING WALL

LA

EA

1 Gal. # 36" O.C.Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote Blue'
Hidcote Blue English Lavender

2' hgt. x 3' wide

4' hgt. x 4' wide
Dwarf Burning Bush

Euonymus alata 'Compacta' 5 Gal.

1 Gal. # 36" O.C.Calamagrostis x. acutiflora 'Overdam'
Dwarf Feather Grass

3' hgt. x 2' wide

5 Gal.Berberis thunbergii atropurpurea
Red Leaf Japanese Barberry

4' hgt. x 4' wide

Buddleja davidii 'Black Knight'
Black Knight Butterfly Bush

2 Gal. 8' hgt. x 5' wideBD

BT

CA

2' hgt. x 2' wide
Zagreb Threadleaf Tickseed

Coreopsis verticillata 'Zagreb' 1 Gal. # 36" O.C.CV

PO 4' hgt. x 4' wide
Tiny Wine Ninebark

Physocarpus opulifolius 'Tiny Wine' 5 Gal.

PX 6' hgt. x 6' wide
Mock Orage

Philadelphus x virginallis 5 Gal.

RX 3' hgt. x 4' wide
Merlot Flower Carpet Rose

Rosa x 'Flower Carpet' 2 Gal.

SV 8' hgt. x 6' wide
Charles Joly Lilac

Syringa vulgaris 'Charles Joly' 5 Gal.

SHRUBS                                                                                                                                          .SEE DETAIL 3/L3.0
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4,280sf

(9)

(8)

LARGE GROUPINGS OF
BITTER BRUSH AND
NATIVE MATERIAL TO
REMAIN (APPROX 30)

LARGE GROUPINGS OF
BITTER BRUSH AND
NATIVE MATERIAL TO
REMAIN (APPROX. 15)

LARGE GROUPINGS OF
BITTER BRUSH AND
NATIVE MATERIAL TO
REMAIN (APPROX. 100)

LARGE GROUPINGS OF
BITTER BRUSH AND
NATIVE MATERIAL TO
REMAIN (APPROX. 100)
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PLANT SCHEDULE

Acer platanoides ‘Columnarbroad’
Parkway Maple

Catalpa speciosa ‘Hiawatha 2’
Heartland® Catalpa

Gleditsia triacanthos inermis 'Skyline'
Skyline Honeylocust

Liriodendron tulipifera ‘eJFS-Oz’f
Emerald City Tulip Tree

Malus x 'Red Baron'
Red Barron Crabapple

Prunus cerasifera ‘Thundercloud’
Thundercloud Plum

Quercus rubra
Red Oak

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

40' hgt. 25' w

45' hgt. 40' w

45' hgt. 30' w

55' hgt. 25' w

15' hgt. 10' w

20' hgt. 20' w

50' hgt. 45' w

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS I

CLASS I

CLASS II

BOTANICAL NAME
COMMON NAME

KEY

DECIDUOUS TREES                                                                                                                      .

MATURE SIZE CLASSPLANTING
SIZE

GROUND COVERS/ GRASSES/ PERENNIALS                                                                            .

NOTE:  All trees to be grade #1
(Shown at 80% Maturity)

QUANTITY
PLANT
IDENTIFICATION KEY

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN

PLANTS TO BE
INSTALLED

RTF TURF TYPE TALL
FESCUE SOD OVER
APPROVED TOPSOIL AS
SPECIFIED

NATIVE BASALT
BOULDERS, 3'- 4'
DIAMETER, SEE DETAIL
4/L3.0

DEFENSIBLE SPACE
SEED MIX AS SPECIFIED
OVER ALL DISTURBED
SOILS

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

Pinus flexilis 'Vanderwolf's Pyramid''
Vanderwolf's Limber Pine

Picea glauca 'Densata'
Black Hills Spruce

Picea pungens 'glauca'
Colorado Blue Spruce

6' B&B

6' B&B

6' B&B

25' hgt. 15' w

25' hgt. 15' w

35' hgt. 15' w

CONIF.

CONIF.

CONIF.

CONIFEROUS TREES                                                                                                                    .

SEE DETAIL 6/L3.0

SEE DETAIL 5/L3.0

SEE DETAIL 2/L3.0

JB10

40' VISION TRIANGLE

PERGOLA ON CONCRETE PAD WITH
PICNIC TABLE, SEE DETAILS 2 & 5/L2.1

WATER SAFTEY STATION PER
OWNER.

PLAY STRUCTURE BY OWNER

3' HEIGHT RETAINING WALL WITH
MONUMENT SIGN, SEE DETAIL 3/L2.1

6'-0" BENCH, SEE DETAIL 1/L2.1

SAND BEACH

1 ACRE OPEN RECREATION POND

POND AERATION PER OWNER

OPEN GRASSY PLAY SPACE

3'-4' BERM WITH 3:1 MAX SLOPE, AND
ARBOR, SEE DETAIL 6/L2.1

10'-0" WIDE ASPHALT PATHWAY

5'-0" WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

START FENCE LINE AT 20' BUILDING
SETBACK.

MAILBOX CLUSTERS, SEE DETAIL
4/L2.1 (TYPICAL OF 10)

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

CALLOUT LEGEND
9

10

11

12

13

14

7

15

EXISTING NATIVE VEGETATION
TO REMAIN.

EXISTING VINEYARDS

PROPOSED VINEYARDS

BOULDER RETAINING WALL

LA

EA

1 Gal. # 36" O.C.Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote Blue'
Hidcote Blue English Lavender

2' hgt. x 3' wide

4' hgt. x 4' wide
Dwarf Burning Bush

Euonymus alata 'Compacta' 5 Gal.

1 Gal. # 36" O.C.Calamagrostis x. acutiflora 'Overdam'
Dwarf Feather Grass

3' hgt. x 2' wide

5 Gal.Berberis thunbergii atropurpurea
Red Leaf Japanese Barberry

4' hgt. x 4' wide

Buddleja davidii 'Black Knight'
Black Knight Butterfly Bush

2 Gal. 8' hgt. x 5' wideBD

BT

CA

2' hgt. x 2' wide
Zagreb Threadleaf Tickseed

Coreopsis verticillata 'Zagreb' 1 Gal. # 36" O.C.CV

PO 4' hgt. x 4' wide
Tiny Wine Ninebark

Physocarpus opulifolius 'Tiny Wine' 5 Gal.

PX 6' hgt. x 6' wide
Mock Orage

Philadelphus x virginallis 5 Gal.

RX 3' hgt. x 4' wide
Merlot Flower Carpet Rose

Rosa x 'Flower Carpet' 2 Gal.

SV 8' hgt. x 6' wide
Charles Joly Lilac

Syringa vulgaris 'Charles Joly' 5 Gal.

SHRUBS                                                                                                                                          .SEE DETAIL 3/L3.0
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PLANT SCHEDULE

Acer platanoides ‘Columnarbroad’
Parkway Maple

Catalpa speciosa ‘Hiawatha 2’
Heartland® Catalpa

Gleditsia triacanthos inermis 'Skyline'
Skyline Honeylocust

Liriodendron tulipifera ‘eJFS-Oz’f
Emerald City Tulip Tree

Malus x 'Red Baron'
Red Barron Crabapple

Prunus cerasifera ‘Thundercloud’
Thundercloud Plum

Quercus rubra
Red Oak

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

2" B&B

40' hgt. 25' w

45' hgt. 40' w

45' hgt. 30' w

55' hgt. 25' w

15' hgt. 10' w

20' hgt. 20' w

50' hgt. 45' w

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS II

CLASS I

CLASS I

CLASS II

BOTANICAL NAME
COMMON NAME

KEY

DECIDUOUS TREES                                                                                                                      .

MATURE SIZE CLASSPLANTING
SIZE

GROUND COVERS/ GRASSES/ PERENNIALS                                                                            .

NOTE:  All trees to be grade #1
(Shown at 80% Maturity)

QUANTITY
PLANT
IDENTIFICATION KEY

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN

PLANTS TO BE
INSTALLED

RTF TURF TYPE TALL
FESCUE SOD OVER
APPROVED TOPSOIL AS
SPECIFIED

NATIVE BASALT
BOULDERS, 3'- 4'
DIAMETER, SEE DETAIL
4/L3.0

DEFENSIBLE SPACE
SEED MIX AS SPECIFIED
OVER ALL DISTURBED
SOILS

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

Pinus flexilis 'Vanderwolf's Pyramid''
Vanderwolf's Limber Pine

Picea glauca 'Densata'
Black Hills Spruce

Picea pungens 'glauca'
Colorado Blue Spruce

6' B&B

6' B&B

6' B&B

25' hgt. 15' w

25' hgt. 15' w

35' hgt. 15' w

CONIF.

CONIF.

CONIF.

CONIFEROUS TREES                                                                                                                    .

SEE DETAIL 6/L3.0

SEE DETAIL 5/L3.0

SEE DETAIL 2/L3.0

JB10

40' VISION TRIANGLE

PERGOLA ON CONCRETE PAD WITH
PICNIC TABLE, SEE DETAILS 2 & 5/L2.1

WATER SAFTEY STATION PER
OWNER.

PLAY STRUCTURE BY OWNER

3' HEIGHT RETAINING WALL WITH
MONUMENT SIGN, SEE DETAIL 3/L2.1

6'-0" BENCH, SEE DETAIL 1/L2.1

SAND BEACH

1 ACRE OPEN RECREATION POND

POND AERATION PER OWNER

OPEN GRASSY PLAY SPACE

3'-4' BERM WITH 3:1 MAX SLOPE, AND
ARBOR, SEE DETAIL 6/L2.1

10'-0" WIDE ASPHALT PATHWAY

5'-0" WIDE CONCRETE PATHWAY

START FENCE LINE AT 20' BUILDING
SETBACK.

MAILBOX CLUSTERS, SEE DETAIL
4/L2.1 (TYPICAL OF 10)

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

CALLOUT LEGEND
9

10

11

12

13

14

7

15

EXISTING NATIVE VEGETATION
TO REMAIN.

EXISTING VINEYARDS

PROPOSED VINEYARDS

BOULDER RETAINING WALL

LA

EA

1 Gal. # 36" O.C.Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote Blue'
Hidcote Blue English Lavender

2' hgt. x 3' wide

4' hgt. x 4' wide
Dwarf Burning Bush

Euonymus alata 'Compacta' 5 Gal.

1 Gal. # 36" O.C.Calamagrostis x. acutiflora 'Overdam'
Dwarf Feather Grass

3' hgt. x 2' wide

5 Gal.Berberis thunbergii atropurpurea
Red Leaf Japanese Barberry

4' hgt. x 4' wide

Buddleja davidii 'Black Knight'
Black Knight Butterfly Bush

2 Gal. 8' hgt. x 5' wideBD

BT

CA

2' hgt. x 2' wide
Zagreb Threadleaf Tickseed

Coreopsis verticillata 'Zagreb' 1 Gal. # 36" O.C.CV

PO 4' hgt. x 4' wide
Tiny Wine Ninebark

Physocarpus opulifolius 'Tiny Wine' 5 Gal.

PX 6' hgt. x 6' wide
Mock Orage

Philadelphus x virginallis 5 Gal.

RX 3' hgt. x 4' wide
Merlot Flower Carpet Rose

Rosa x 'Flower Carpet' 2 Gal.

SV 8' hgt. x 6' wide
Charles Joly Lilac

Syringa vulgaris 'Charles Joly' 5 Gal.

SHRUBS                                                                                                                                          .SEE DETAIL 3/L3.0

C
A

L
L

 2
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 D
A

Y
S

IN
 A

D
V

A
N

C
E

 B
E

F
O

R
E

Y
O

U
 D

IG
, 
G

R
A

D
E

, 
O

R
E

X
C

A
V

A
T

E
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
M

A
R

K
IN

G
 O

F
U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 C
al

l be
fo

re
 yo

u 
di
g.

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's b
el

ow
.

R

So
ut

h 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

P.
C.

D
ba

 So
ut

h 
Be

ck
 &

 B
ai

rd
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
P.

C.

20
02

 S.
 V

ist
a A

ve
Bo

ise
, I

D 
83

70
5

20
8.

34
2.

29
99

 O
ffi

ce
inf
o@

sb
bg
o.c
om

ww
w.
sb
bg
o.c
om

All rights reserved.  Reproduction or use in any
form or by any means without written permission of

South Landscape Architecture P.C. Dba South
Beck & Baird Landscape Architecture P.C. is
unlawful and subject to criminal prosecution.

No. Date Description

TH
E 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

 O
F 

TH
E 

D
ES

IG
N

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 A
R

E 
U

N
D

ER
TA

KE
N

 F
O

R
 A

N
D

 A
R

E 
PE

R
FO

R
M

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
IN

TE
R

ES
T 

O
F 

"T
H

E 
C

LI
EN

T"
 N

O
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TU
AL

 O
BL

IG
AT

IO
N

 IS
 A

SS
U

M
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E 

D
ES

IG
N

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

BE
N

EF
IT

 O
F 

AN
Y 

O
TH

ER
 P

ER
SO

N
 IN

VO
LV

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T.

M
as

te
r S

ite
 P

la
n

FO

S CAP E ARCH
I T

EC
T

DNAL
DE

SN
EC

I L

ETATS

IDAHOD.HOJ

OTERRN S

LA - 16827

MSP 2.3
356

Section 7, Item C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2770

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°12'17"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1209.58' [1209.53']

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE 1/16 COR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°21'24"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
273.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN ACCESSIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN ACCESSIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
USER:ADAM W JOHNSTON  LOCATION:D:\PROJECTS\PROJECTS\CK ENGINEERING\20-067 DUDE DEWALD CELLARS\CAD\SHEETS\20-067 LANDSCAPE.DWG PRINT DATE:7/9/2023 8:13 PMADAM W JOHNSTON  LOCATION:D:\PROJECTS\PROJECTS\CK ENGINEERING\20-067 DUDE DEWALD CELLARS\CAD\SHEETS\20-067 LANDSCAPE.DWG PRINT DATE:7/9/2023 8:13 PM  LOCATION:D:\PROJECTS\PROJECTS\CK ENGINEERING\20-067 DUDE DEWALD CELLARS\CAD\SHEETS\20-067 LANDSCAPE.DWG PRINT DATE:7/9/2023 8:13 PMD:\PROJECTS\PROJECTS\CK ENGINEERING\20-067 DUDE DEWALD CELLARS\CAD\SHEETS\20-067 LANDSCAPE.DWG PRINT DATE:7/9/2023 8:13 PM PRINT DATE:7/9/2023 8:13 PM7/9/2023 8:13 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMP:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright    2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dude DeWalt Cellars

AutoCAD SHX Text
5446 N. Hwy 16 Eagle, ID 83616

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/10/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
20-067

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/10/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY  N   O   T       F   O   R  C O N S T R U C T I O N 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Landscape Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENLARGED LANDSCAPE PLAN



C
A

L
L

 2
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 D
A

Y
S

IN
 A

D
V

A
N

C
E

 B
E

F
O

R
E

Y
O

U
 D

IG
, 
G

R
A

D
E

, 
O

R
E

X
C

A
V

A
T

E
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
M

A
R

K
IN

G
 O

F
U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 C
al

l be
fo

re
 yo

u 
di
g.

K
no

w
 w

ha
t's b
el

ow
.

R

So
ut

h 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

P.
C.

D
ba

 So
ut

h 
Be

ck
 &

 B
ai

rd
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
P.

C.

20
02

 S.
 V

ist
a A

ve
Bo

ise
, I

D 
83

70
5

20
8.

34
2.

29
99

 O
ffi

ce
inf
o@

sb
bg
o.c
om

ww
w.
sb
bg
o.c
om

All rights reserved.  Reproduction or use in any
form or by any means without written permission of

South Landscape Architecture P.C. Dba South
Beck & Baird Landscape Architecture P.C. is
unlawful and subject to criminal prosecution.

No. Date Description

TH
E 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

 O
F 

TH
E 

D
ES

IG
N

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 A
R

E 
U

N
D

ER
TA

KE
N

 F
O

R
 A

N
D

 A
R

E 
PE

R
FO

R
M

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
IN

TE
R

ES
T 

O
F 

"T
H

E 
C

LI
EN

T"
 N

O
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TU
AL

 O
BL

IG
AT

IO
N

 IS
 A

SS
U

M
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E 

D
ES

IG
N

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

BE
N

EF
IT

 O
F 

AN
Y 

O
TH

ER
 P

ER
SO

N
 IN

VO
LV

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T.

M
as

te
r S

ite
 P

la
n

FO

S CAP E ARCH
I T

EC
T

DNAL
DE

SN
EC

I L

ETATS

IDAHOD.HOJ

OTERRN S

LA - 16827

MSP 3.0

1/3
1/3 of

Stone Height1/3

VARY HEIGHTS OF BOULDERS.

18" - 36" DIAMETER BOULDER, AS
SPECIFIED,  LOCATE PER PLANS

30" - 60" DIAMETER BOULDER, AS
SPECIFIED,

COMPACT SUBGRADE UNDER
BOULDER AS REQUIRED

FINISH GRADE PER PLANS

BOULDER INSTALLATION
NOT TO SCALE

1.  NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT WHEN PLACING BOULDERS FOR APPROVAL.
2. PLACE BOULDERS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF IRRIGATION.
3. CLEAN BOULDERS OF SOIL AND LOOSE DEBRIS.
4. WHEN PLACING BOULDERS, BURY 14 TO 13 OF BOULDER BELOW FINISH GRADE.
5. DO NOT SCAR OR DAMAGE BOULDERS.
6. WHEN GROUPING BOULDERS, DISTRIBUTE SIZES EVENLY  (I.E., IN A GROUP OF (6),
   (2) WILL BE LARGE, (2) WILL BE MEDIUM, AND (2) WILL BE SMALL).

4

SHRUB PLANTING
NOT TO SCALE

1. WATER SHRUB TWICE WITHIN FIRST 24 HOURS.
2. APPLY SPECIFIED PRE-EMERGENT PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS TO ALL GROUNDCOVER BEDS.

KEEP GROUND LINE SAME AS NURSERY LINE

REMOVE ANY PLASTIC, BURLAP, NAILS, OR OTHER
MATERIALS FROM THE ROOTBALL WHICH MAY LIMIT
ROOT GROWTH

CONSTRUCT 2" EARTH BERM TO FORM A  WATER
RETENTION BASIN,  FILL BERM WITH MULCH, AS
SPECIFIED

MULCH, PER PLANS, 3" DEPTH OVER ENTIRE BED.  DO
NOT COVER CROWNS OF PLANTS

PROVIDE DEWITT PRO 5 WEED BARRIER FABRIC OR
APPROVED EQUAL

PROVIDE COMMERCIAL FERTILIZER TABLETS AND
BIOSTIMULANT, AS SPECIFIED, FOR EACH  SHRUB

BACKFILL WITH APPROVED TOPSOIL AND SOIL
AMENDMENTS, AS SPECIFIED.  BACKFILL IN 6" LIFTS,
WATER EACH LAYER,  DO NOT TAMP OR OVER
COMPACT.

CONSTRUCT 6" MOUND OF TOPSOIL

6"

6"
WIDTH OF
ROOTBALL 6"

3

'B
'

'A'

'A'

'A'

'A'

PERENNIAL & GROUNDCOVER
PLANTING NOT TO SCALE

1. ALL GROUNDCOVER PLANTS TO BE PLANTED ON CENTER AND IN A TRIANGULAR PATTERN.
2. APPLY SPECIFIED PRE-EMERGENT PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS TO ALL GROUNDCOVER

BEDS.

FINISH GRADE PER PLANS

EDGING, PER PLANS AND DETAILS

GROUNDCOVER PLANTING PER PLANTING PLAN

MULCH, PER PLANS, 3" DEPTH OVER ENTIRE BED.
DO NOT COVER CROWNS OF PLANTS

SPLIT ALL ROOT BOUND ROOTS WITH 3 EQUAL
SPACED VERTICAL CUTS.

TILL SOIL TO A DEPTH OF 12", BACKFILL WITH
APPROVED TOPSOIL AND SOIL AMENDMENTS, AS
SPECIFIED.

DEWITT PRO 5 WEED BARRIER FABRIC OR
APPROVED EQUAL

SUBGRADE

A = LENGTH, AS SPECIFIED
     OR PER PLANT SCHEDULE

B = 85% OF 'A'

3"
12

"

2

APPROVED TOPSOIL AND SOIL
AMENDMENTS AS SPECIFIED

3" DEPTH OF MULCH AT PLANTER
BEDS

CUT EDGE
FINISH GRADE,

PER PLANS

(TYPICAL AT TREES IN TURF AREAS)
PLANTER BED CUT EDGE

NOT TO SCALE1

6"

11 2"
2"

HIGHEST ROOT SHALL BE
2" MAXIMUM BELOW SOIL
LINE. UTILIZE SOIL/ROOT
PROBE AROUND TRUNK
(APPROX 1"-2" AWAY
FROM TRUNK) TO
LOCATE HIGHEST
ROOTS.

SOIL LINE

ROOT FLARE/COLLAR (SWELLING AT SOIL
LINE WHERE STEM TISSUE TRANSITIONS
INTO ROOT TISSUE) TO BE AT SOIL LINE.

ROOT PROBE

WHEN PRESENT: BUD
POINT (A MINOR CROOK
IN THE TRUNK JUST
ABOVE THE SOIL LINE)
TO BE APPROXIMATELY 1
1

2" ABOVE THE SOIL LINE

1. THE STAKING OF TREES IS TO BE THE CONTRACTOR'S OPTION; HOWEVER, THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO INSURE
THAT ALL TREES ARE PLANTED STRAIGHT AND THAT THEY REMAIN STRAIGHT FOR LENGTH OF WARRANTY PERIOD OR 1 YEAR
AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION WHICHEVER IS GREATER.  ALL STAKING SHALL BE REMOVED AT THE END OF THE
WARRANTY PERIOD.

2. IN THE EVENT OF A QUESTION OR LACK OF CLARITY ON THE DRAWINGS, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING.

3. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS TO NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF PLANT
MATERIAL.

4. WRAP RUBBER CINCH TIES AROUND THE TREE TRUNKS AND STAKES USING EITHER THE STANDARD OR FIGURE EIGHT TYING
METHOD.  SECURE THE TIES TO THE STAKES WITH GALVANIZED NAILS TO PREVENT SLIPPAGE.

5. WATER TREE TWICE WITHIN THE FIRST 24 HOURS.
6. IN THE EVENT HARDPAN SOILS PREVENT TREE PLANTING AS DETAILED, NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.
7. FOR TREES LOCATED WITHIN ROADSIDE PLANTERS LESS THAN 8'-0" IN WIDTH, PROVIDE TREE ROOT BARRIER (DEEPROOT

#24-2 OR APPROVED EQUAL).  LOCATE ROOT BARRIER AT BACK OF CURB AND EDGE OF SIDEWALK.  EXTEND ROOT BARRIER TO
80% OF MATURE TREE CANOPY. ALL TREE INSTALLATIONS SHALL CONFORM TO ALL AGENCY APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS,
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY PRIOR TO ANY INSTALLATIONS.

REMOVE DEAD/DAMAGED BRANCHES AND
PRUNE TO INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY OF
ARBORICULTURE STANDARDS; IMPROPERLY
PRUNED TREES (AS DETERMINED BY THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT) SHALL BE REMOVED
AND REPLACED.  DO NOT REMOVE MAIN
LEADER!!

RUBBER CINCH TIE

2"x 2" WOOD STAKE (LENGTH AS
REQUIRED)-DO NOT PENETRATE ROOTBALL.
SEE NOTE 1.  SET STAKES PARALLEL TO
PREVAILING WIND.

REMOVE TREE WRAP TRUNK PROTECTION,
AFTER INSTALLATION

CONSTRUCT 2" EARTH BERM AT EDGE OF
ROOTBALL,  FILL TREE RING W/ MULCH, AS
SPECIFIED.

3" THICK MULCH LAYER, KEEP MULCH 3" AWAY
FROM TRUNK.

REMOVE BURLAP, TWINE,
AND WIRE BASKET FROM
TOP 2 3  OF ROOTBALL,
REMOVE ALL NAILS, TIES,
AND PLASTIC FROM
ROOTBALL.  IF
SYNTHETIC BURLAP IS
UTILIZED TO WRAP THE
ROOTBALL, IT SHALL BE
COMPLETELY REMOVED.
ONLY BIODEGRADABLE
BURLAP SHALL BE LEFT
ON THE BOTTOM OF THE
ROOTBALL.

FINISH GRADE

PREVAILING WIND DIRECTION

DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING
NOT TO SCALE
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WIDTH
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COMMERCIAL SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
TABLETS

SIDES OF HOLE ROUGH & UNEVEN

BACKFILL WITH APPROVED TOPSOIL AND
SOIL AMENDMENTS AS SPECIFIED.
BACKFILL IN 6" LIFTS, WATER EACH LAYER,
TAMP LIGHTLY AS REQUIRED,  BACKFILL
SOIL EVEN W/ TOP OF ROOTBALL,
DO NOT OVER COMPACT!!

SET ROOTBALL ON NATIVE, UNDISTURBED
SOIL

6

1. THE STAKING OF TREES IS TO BE THE CONTRACTOR'S OPTION; HOWEVER, THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO INSURE THAT ALL
TREES ARE PLANTED STRAIGHT AND THAT THEY REMAIN STRAIGHT FOR LENGTH OF WARRANTY PERIOD OR 1 YEAR AFTER
SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION WHICH EVER IS GREATER.  ALL STAKING SHALL BE REMOVED AT THE END OF THE WARRANTY PERIOD.

2. IN THE EVENT OF A QUESTION OR LACK OF CLARITY ON THE DRAWINGS, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING.

3. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS TO NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF PLANT MATERIAL.
4. WRAP RUBBER CINCH TIES AROUND THE TREE TRUNKS AND STAKES USING EITHER THE STANDARD OR FIGURE EIGHT TYING

METHOD.  SECURE THE TIES TO THE STAKES WITH GALVANIZED NAILS TO PREVENT SLIPPAGE.
5. WATER TREE TWICE WITHIN THE FIRST 24 HOURS.
6. IN THE EVENT HARDPAN SOILS PREVENT TREE PLANTING AS DETAILED, NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.

CONIFEROUS TREE PLANTING
NOT TO SCALE

11 2"
2"

HIGHEST ROOT SHALL BE
2" MAXIMUM BELOW SOIL
LINE. UTILIZE SOIL/ROOT
PROBE AROUND TRUNK
(APPROX 1"-2" AWAY
FROM TRUNK) TO
LOCATE HIGHEST
ROOTS.

SOIL LINE

ROOT FLARE/COLLAR (SWELLING AT SOIL
LINE WHERE STEM TISSUE TRANSITIONS
INTO ROOT TISSUE) TO BE AT SOIL LINE.

ROOT PROBE

WHEN PRESENT: BUD
POINT (A MINOR CROOK
IN THE TRUNK JUST
ABOVE THE SOIL LINE)
TO BE APPROXIMATELY 1
1

2" ABOVE THE SOIL LINE

REMOVE DEAD/DAMAGED BRANCHES AND
PRUNE TO INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY OF
ARBORICULTURE STANDARDS; IMPROPERLY
PRUNED TREES (AS DETERMINED BY THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT) SHALL BE REMOVED
AND REPLACED.  DO NOT REMOVE MAIN
LEADER!!

RUBBER CINCH TIE

2"x 2" WOOD STAKE (LENGTH AS
REQUIRED)-DO NOT PENETRATE ROOTBALL.
SEE NOTE 1.  SET STAKES PARALLEL TO
PREVAILING WIND.

REMOVE TREE WRAP TRUNK PROTECTION,
AFTER INSTALLATION

CONSTRUCT 2" EARTH BERM AT EDGE OF
ROOTBALL,  FILL TREE RING W/ MULCH, AS
SPECIFIED.

3" THICK MULCH LAYER, KEEP MULCH 3" AWAY
FROM TRUNK.

REMOVE BURLAP, TWINE,
AND WIRE BASKET FROM
TOP 2 3  OF ROOTBALL,
REMOVE ALL NAILS, TIES,
AND PLASTIC FROM
ROOTBALL.  IF
SYNTHETIC BURLAP IS
UTILIZED TO WRAP THE
ROOTBALL, IT SHALL BE
COMPLETELY REMOVED.
ONLY BIODEGRADABLE
BURLAP SHALL BE LEFT
ON THE BOTTOM OF THE
ROOTBALL.

FINISH GRADE

PREVAILING WIND DIRECTION
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COMMERCIAL SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
TABLETS

SIDES OF HOLE ROUGH & UNEVEN

BACKFILL WITH APPROVED TOPSOIL AND
SOIL AMENDMENTS AS SPECIFIED.
BACKFILL IN 6" LIFTS, WATER EACH LAYER,
TAMP LIGHTLY AS REQUIRED,  BACKFILL
SOIL EVEN W/ TOP OF ROOTBALL,
DO NOT OVER COMPACT!!

SET ROOTBALL ON NATIVE, UNDISTURBED
SOIL

5

DEFENSIBLE SPACE DRYLAND
SEEDING REQUIREMENTS
GENERAL OVERVIEW

THIS REPORT OUTLINES RECOMMENDED REVEGETATION AND SLOPE STABILIZATION MEASURES FOR DISTURBED
CUT AND FILL SLOPES WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS AS DEFINED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAN WHICH WILL BE SEEDED
WITH THE DRYLAND SEED MIX AND NOT IRRIGATED.  THESE RECOMMENDATIONS ARE MADE TO PREVENT SHORT TERM
AND LONG TERM SOIL EROSION AS WELL AS TO PROVIDE AN AESTHETIC REVEGETATION WHICH WILL BLEND WITH THE
EXISTING NATURAL SURROUNDING AREA.  THE MEASURES INCLUDE REVEGETATION AND HYDROMULCHING
PROCEDURES FOLLOWING TOPSOIL DISTRIBUTION AND FINE GRADING.   THE AREA TO BE REVEGETATED CONSISTS OF
ALL DISTURBED AREAS RELATED TO GRADING FOR CONSTRUCTION AND ANY OTHER AREAS DISTURBED IN THE
PROCESS OF CONSTRUCTION.  THE SLOPES TO BE AFFECTED VARY WIDELY IN DEGREE AND ASPECT.

GENERAL EARTHWORK
ALL WORK SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AREA REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION WITH MINIMAL, IF ANY, DISTURBANCE

TO THE SURROUNDING NATURAL SLOPE OR VEGETATION. ALL FINISHED GRADES SHALL BE SMOOTH AND ROUNDED TO
ENSURE A NATURAL TRANSITION BETWEEN NEW AND EXISTING GRADES.  REFER TO GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLANS
FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

SITE PREPARATION
EARTHWORK PROCESS SHOULD BEGIN WITH CLEARING LARGE SHRUBS FROM THE AREAS TO BE DISTURBED.

WOODY STEMS AND BRANCHES SHALL BE CHIPPED ON SITE TO IMPROVE THE AMOUNT OF ORGANIC MATERIAL IN THE
TOP SOIL.  NATURAL TOPSOIL OCCURS AT VARYING DEPTHS ON THE PROJECT SITE.  THE TOPSOIL SHOULD BE
EXCAVATED AND STOCKPILED AT DESIGNATED STORAGE AREAS PRIOR TO THE PROPOSED GRADING OPERATIONS.

TOPSOIL DISTRIBUTION
ONCE THE GENERAL EARTHWORK IS COMPLETE AND ROUGH GRADING HAS BEEN ACCOMPLISHED, THE TOPSOIL

SHOULD BE REDISTRIBUTED OVER THE AREA TO MINIMUM DEPTHS AS SPECIFIED.  WHERE NEEDED, SLOPES SHOULD
BE GRADED WITH SERRATION TO HOLD TOPSOIL ADEQUATELY.  TOPSOIL SHOULD BE SPREAD AND LIGHTLY
COMPACTED UTILIZING A SMALL CLEATED TRACTOR MOVING PERPENDICULAR TO THE CONTOURS OR ANOTHER
METHOD WITH EQUAL CAPABILITY. IT IS OUR RECOMMENDATION THAT ANY NECESSARY MECHANICAL MEANS OF
EROSION CONTROL BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO BEGINNING SITE DISTURBANCE.

ONCE TOPSOIL HAS BEEN DISTRIBUTED AND GRADED, REVEGETATION SEEDING SHALL FOLLOW IMMEDIATELY.  IN
ORDER TO ELIMINATE SURFACE CRUSTING AND TO FACILITATE BETTER ROOT PENETRATION, THE SURFACE SHOULD
BE SCARIFIED PRIOR TO SEEDING.

SEEDING
APPLY SEED TO THE PROJECT SITE BY HYDROSEEDING.
THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION PROVIDES MATERIAL AND EXECUTION FOR SEEDING.

SEED MIXTURE: PURE LIVE SEED % MIX

JUNE PRARIEGRASS 20%
ROADCREST WHEATGRASS 20%
BLUEGRAMMA GRASS 5%
BUFFALOGRASS 10%
BIG SHERMAN BLUEGRASS 20%
MICROCLOVER 5%
SHEEPS FESCUE 15%
HARD FESCUE 5%

SEEDING RATE
INSTALL @ 35 LBS / ACRE ON SLOPES LESS THAN 10%
INSTALL @ 50 LBS / ACRE ON SLOPES GREATER THAN 10%

FIBER MULCH MATERIAL
GROW NUTRIBASE FROM “QUATTRO ENVIRONMENTAL”, A COMPOSTED POULTRY BASED MULCH MATERIAL FREE OF
GROWTH OR GERMINATION INHIBITING INGREDIENTS.  APPLY AT THE RATE OF 2000 LBS. PER ACRE.

ORGANIC SOIL AMENDMENT
GROW NUTRIBOOST FROM “QUATTRO ENVIRONMENTAL” (OR APPROVED EQUAL) APPLIED AT 5 GALLONS PER ACRE.

TACKIFIER
MULCH TACKIFIER SOIL STABILIZER - ECOLOGY CONTROLS M-BINDER.  TACKIFIER APPLIED AT THE RATE OF 80 LBS.
PER ACRE.
GRANITE SEED
1697 WEST 2100 NORTH
P.O. BOX 177
LEHI, UTAH 84043
1-800-768-4433
(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

HYDROSEEDING
MIX SPECIFIED SEED AND ORGANIC SOIL AMENDMENT IN WATER PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

APPLY SEEDED SLURRY EVENLY IN TWO INTERSECTION DIRECTIONS.  DO NOT HYDROSEED AREA IN EXCESS OF THAT
WHICH CAN BE MULCHED ON SAME DAY.  KEEP OFF ROADS, WALKS, STRUCTURES AND AREAS NOT TO BE SEEDED.
CLEAN UP THESE AREAS.  AFTER HYDROSEED, TRACK IN SEED USING A CLEATED CRAWLER WITH TRACK MARKS
PERPENDICULAR TO THE SLOPE.  AFTER TRACKED, MULCH SLOPE WITH 2000 LBS. PER ACRE OF FERTILE-FIBER MULCH
MATERIAL AND 80 LBS. PER ACRE OF TACKIFIER.

MAINTENANCE
IMMEDIATELY RESEED AREAS WHICH SHOW BARE SPOTS.  MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE PLANT COVERAGE IS 80

PERCENT AFTER ONE GROWING SEASON.  PROTECT SEEDED AREAS WITH WANING SIGNS DURING MAINTENANCE
PERIOD.  THE SEED WILL REQUIRE APPROXIMATELY NINETY (90) DAYS OF FAVORABLE GROWING CONDITIONS TO
GERMINATE AND BECOME ESTABLISHED FOR SUCCESSFUL SURVIVAL WITH NORMAL MINIMAL SUMMER PRECIPITATION.

SEEDING TIME
THE OPTIMAL SEEDING TIME SHALL BE IN FALL, BETWEEN MID SEPTEMBER AND MID OCTOBER.  IF SEEDING IS

APPLIED TOO EARLY OR TOO LATE AND PROPER GERMINATION IS NOT REALIZED PRIOR TO FALL DORMANCY, THEN
RESEEDING SHALL BE APPLIED IN EARLY SPRING, AS SOON AS SOIL IS WORKABLE (NOT MUDDY) BETWEEN MARCH AND
MID MAY.  THIS PLANTING TIME PROVIDES THE OPTIMUM WEATHER CONDITIONS FOR SEED GERMINATION AND
SEEDLING SURVIVAL RATE. SEEDING AFTER NOVEMBER 20, 'DORMANT SEEDING' INSURES THAT THE SEED DOES NOT
GERMINATE PRIOR TO FREEZING WINTER TEMPERATURES AND SEED SHOULD BE IN PLACE FOR THE EARLY SPRING
RAINS.

WATER
THE CONTRACTOR WILL PROVIDE SUPPLEMENTAL WATER TO ENSURE PROPER SEED GERMINATION.

FERTILIZATION
FERTILIZATION IS NOT RECOMMENDED FOR RECLAMATION SEEDING DUE TO PROMOTION OF WEED COMPETITION.  IF
WEEDS ARE APPARENT, CONTACT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR WEED REMOVAL REQUIREMENTS.

EROSION CONTROL
UNDER NORMAL CIRCUMSTANCES AND ADHERENCE TO THE CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES DESCRIBED IN THE

SPECIFICATIONS, THE ABOVE RECOMMENDED EROSION CONTROL MEASURE SHOULD PROVIDE A STABLE SLOPE
CONDITION.  TO AVOID INCIDENTAL EROSION, IT IS IMPERATIVE THAT THE SLOPES, ONCE PREPARED, REMAIN
UNDISTURBED UNTIL SEEDING GERMINATES AND IS ESTABLISHED.

AN 80% VEGETATION COVER IS RECOMMENDED TO CONTROL EROSION.  SURFACE CONDITIONS SHOULD BE
MONITORED DAILY.  IF EROSION DETRIMENTAL TO THE SLOPE IS OBSERVED OR ANTICIPATED DUE TO EXCESSIVE
RAINFALL, REMEDIAL MEASURES SHALL BE IMPLEMENTED AS REQUIRED.  REFER TO THE STORM WATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.
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RESOLUTION NO. TBD-2023 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF STAR ADOPTING THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL BOX 

BEAUTIFICATION ARTWORK; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS The Mayor of the City of Star charges the Parks, Art, and Beautification Committee (PABC) 

with stimulating awareness and appreciation of the importance of publicly accessible art and its benefits 

to the community, encouraging the growth and preservation of the city’s art resources, fostering the 

development of a receptive climate for the arts; and advising the City Council on the aesthetic aspects of 

art to be installed by the City of Star; 

WHEREAS the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the results of the Selection Committee Evaluation 

Form, and;  

WHEREAS the City desires that public art will be a component of our community, and to that end, PABC 

issued the Call for Artists attached hereto as Exhibit A, seeking proposals for the inclusion of artwork for 

the Traffic Signal Box Beautification Project, a project where selected artwork will be installed as a vinyl 

wrap on traffic signal boxes in Star, with permission from the property owner Ada County Highway 

District, and;  

WHEREAS on August 28, 2023, PABC reviewed the responses to the Call for Artists, requested the Art 

Selection Committee to score selected artists whose works are appropriate for the Traffic Signal Box 

Beautification Project based on their respectively submitted proposals, and recommends to the Star City 

Council that such works, as depicted in Exhibit B hereto, be used for reproduction on vinyl wraps to be 

installed on the traffic signal boxes in Star; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find that the proposed selected Traffic Signal Box Art, as set 

forth in Exhibit B, will serve the best interest of Star’s residents, businesses, and traveling public. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF STAR, IDAHO:  

Section 1: That the proposed Traffic Signal Box Art, as set forth in Exhibit B, is hereby accepted and 

adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Star.  

Section 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and 

approval.  

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Star, Idaho, this ____ day of _________________, 2023.  

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Star, Idaho, this _____ day of ____________________, 2023.  

APPROVED:                 ATTEST: 

______________________________                       _______________________________ 

Trevor A. Chadwick, Mayor                        Jacob M. Qualls, City Clerk/Treasurer 
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1.  “All Aboard” by Mary Ann Fraser.  Suggested for the traffic box near Albertson’s. 

 

2. “A New Generation (in Memory of Faydra)” by April McIntyre.  Suggested for the traffic box near 

Maverik. 
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3.  “A Star Barn” by Mary Ann Fraser.  Suggested for the traffic box by Star Elementary. 

 

4.  “Star Pride” by Kassidy Crawford.  Suggested for the library book drop box.   
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City Clerk / Treasurer - Memo 

August 31, 2023 

 

Mayor & Council –  

For City Council Regular Meeting on September 5, 2023 

 

As part of your packet is the Dude DeWalt Cellars LLC New Application for Beer & Wine License.  As you 

are aware, a new application requires the City Council to approve the application and renewals are 

performed administratively.   

The application is in good order, and we are awaiting the Mid / Star Fire Inspection which is required 

annually. 

I recommend this application be approved by the Council with the stipulation that I issue the license once 

the Fire Inspection has been completed. 

 

Regards –  

 

Jacob M Qualls, idCMC 

City Clerk – Treasurer, City of Star 
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